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INTRODUCTION
1. One of the last great issues related to payment of outstanding financial obligations is
that of the FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF GERMANY (hereinafter “GERMANY”), and
DEFENDANTS, to the holders of certain GERMAN GOLD BONDS, (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “THE BONDS”) that were sold in and through the United
States from 1924 to 1930. The complaint relates to the extraordinary, negligent,
careless, reckless and/or otherwise fraudulent, wrongful or unlawful lengths to which
the GERMAN government and its agents, and the other, Redemption and Paying
agents and Trustees, or banks, DEFENDANTS, will go to stop legitimate bondholders
from ever collecting upon a 70 year old debt, or otherwise using German gold bearer
bonds in any way they see fit, and for whatever commercial purposes they choose.
Historical Overview
2. After World War I, GERMANY was forced to make reparation payments, in order to
satisfy the debts incurred by waging World War I, with its resulting human and
financial losses. To help GERMANY deal with these obligations to pay debts, the
UNITED STATES and other allies agreed to sell certain GERMAN government
backed and secured gold bearer bonds including but not limited to, the “Dawes Bonds”
(named after the US Senator who devised the bond issue plan) sold starting in 1924,
and “Young Bonds” (named after another US Senator) in 1930 (a year after the great
stock market crash).
3. The Dawes, Young, and Rhein Elbe Union bonds, and/or other German gold bearer
bonds, were sold to American citizens, and denominated in United States Gold Dollars.
More than Eighty Five (85) issues, representing hundreds of millions of US Gold
Dollars, were marketed, sold and/or promoted to US citizens and others, through
United States selling brokers, redemption and paying agents, trustees, and/or through
the big United States banks and/or European, financial institutions, and/or banks and/or
others, including but not limited, as Defendants herein, such as JP Morgan, Schroders,
Citibank, Bankers Trust Co., and to over a million investors, bondholders, and/or class
members herein, and/or their predecessors, or successors, or representatives etc.
4. When Hitler came to power in 1933, GERMANY ceased payments on the BONDS,
and the BONDS went into default and remain so until today. In fact, GERMANY,
and DEFENDANTS, had no intention of paying for the BONDS, according to the
terms of the bonds, and the conspiracy described herein is perhaps the greatest
financial conspiracy against Americans in history.
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5. GERMANY under the Hitler Regime, determined NOT to make any further payments
on the BONDS, which had been sold and flooded in the American financial market by
various of the American and international banks and financial institutions. It is
important to understand that GERMANY would never have had the monies to fund
World War II had it paid its obligations under the BONDS. The monies that should
have gone to pay bondholders were ultimately used against Americans and the world
when Hitler diverted monies from debt service to the building of his war machine.
6. International Telephone and Telegraph (I.T.T.’s) worked both sides of the Second
World War, and its founder Sosthenes Behn, was linked with several banks, such as, JP
Morgan, and National City Bank. While I.T.T. Focke-Wolfe planes were bombing
Allied ships, and I.T.T. lines were passing information to German submarines, I.T.T.
direction finders were saving other ships from torpedoes. In 1930, Behn acquired
various German holding companies and telephone and manufacturing companies in
Germany and held a monopoly on US-German cable communications.
7. Nazi Baron Kurt Von Schroder became the guardian of I.T.T. interests in Germany and
acted as conduit for money funneled to Heinrich Himmler’s S.S. organization in the
late 1930’s, and in 1944 while World War II was in progress and the United States was
at war with Germany. Through Kurt Von Schroder, Behn and I.T.T. gained access to
the profitable German armaments industry and bought substantial interests including in
Focke-Wolfe aircraft, builder of some of the most successful Luftwaffe fighter aircraft.
These operations made huge profits which were reinvested in German armaments.
8. Baron Kurt Von Schroder was member of an old established German banking family,
and another Schroder family member went to London and changed the name to
Schroder (without the dierisis) and organized the J. Henry Schroder banks in London
and New York - and Schroders is integral as selling broker, redemption and/or paying
agent for various loans, including but not limited to, the Rheinelbe Union bonds.
9. Schroder had access to the very heart of Nazi power elite, and in 1933 in exchange for
financial and industrial support gained political prestige and was appointed as German
representative at the Bank for International Settlements, the trustee on the Dawes and
Young Bonds, and head of group of private bankers advising the German Reichsbank.
In 1938, the Schroder bank in London became the German financial agent in Great
Britain. In the mid 1930’s another link was forged between Wall Street and Schroder,
as Avery Rockefeller (son of Percy Rockefeller, brother of John D. Rockefeller)
became associated with J. Henry Schroder Banking Corporation in New York.
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10. Schroder was also associated with German attorney Dr. Gerhardt Westrick and German
commercial attaché Dr. H. Albert, who conducted espionage in the US with Franz von
Papen, and formed the law firm of Albert & Westrick, who handled the German end
and profited heavily from the J. Henry Schroder banking loans, while the John Foster
Dulles firm of Sullivan & Cromwell handled the US end of the Schroder loans.
11. Simply put, GERMANY, and DEFENDANTS, schemed to defraud bondholders, and
never intended to pay for the BONDS of American bondholders, and others, according
to the terms of the bonds. Defendants took significant amounts of the bondholders’
monies, or their predecessors, or successors, or representatives. Germany and
Defendants herein made huge profits and were unjustly enriched at the expense of
innocent investors, plaintiffs and class members who were defrauded.
12. In Ambassador Dodd’s Diary 1933-1938, 1941, P.8, and P.136, he discusses in his
entry of July 3, 1933: “I went at 10 to a conference at the National City Bank, where
State Department people had asked me to review the financial problems of GermanAmerican banks, involving payment of $1,200,000,000 to American creditors, who had
been “hoodwinked” by bankers into making loans to German corporations”. And in
his entry of August 1, 1934 Ambassador Dodd attested to the enormity of catastrophe:
“Why American bankers induced hundreds of thousands of their clients to buy Two
Billions of German bonds or why they granted such huge short-term credits between
1924 and 1930, I cannot understand on any other grounds than that they were willing
to risk their people’s savings in order to make huge profits themselves.”
13. The situation proved disastrous and American banking houses, like J.P. Morgan & Co.
that underwrote a great many of the issues, had in effect conned the public into buying
billions of dollars worth of German bonds with scant or no regard for the buyers. The
1930 Young Bonds, German Government International 5 ½ % Loan was sold by the
same banking houses that sold the previous issues despite the risks involved and failed
to warn the investors about the risks.
14. Three figures play prominently in the founding of the “Dawes Plan” and “Young Plan”
and the founding of the Bank for International Settlements, one of the trustees on the
Young bonds and Dawes bonds. First, Charles G. Dawes was director of the U.S.
Bureau of Budget in 1921 and the Allied Reparations Committee in 1923. His work in
“stabilizing the German, economy” earned him the Nobel peace prize in 1925, and
after being elected Vice President under President Calvin Coolidge 1925-1929, and
appointed Ambassador of England in 1931, he resumed his banking career in 1932 as
8
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the Chairman of the Board of the City National Bank and Trust in Chicago, Illinois.
15. Second, Owen D. Young, was an agent of JP Morgan, and he was an American
industrialist, who founded RCA (Radio Corporation of America) and was chairman
until 1933, and served as Chairman of General Electric until 1939, and in 1932 sought
the democratic presidential nomination, but lost to Franklin Delano Roosevelt.
16. In 1924, the Allies appointed a committee to get reparations payments back on track
and the “Dawes Plan” was largely a “JP Morgan production” and the plan called for
$800 Million in foreign loans to be arranged for Germany. Owen Young replaced
Charles Dawes as Chairman of the Allied Committee of Experts and the “Young Plan”
put more “teeth” into the “Dawes Plan.”
17. Third, Hjalmar Schact, Hitler’s top financial advisor, proposed the idea of the Bank for
International Settlements (“BIS”), as “the central banker’s central bank”, to create a
world system of financial control, and the BIS as unconditional obligor and Trustee for
the Dawes and Young bonds. The same group that brought the Dawes and Young
Plans brought forward the Bank for International Settlements established under the
Hague Agreement 1930, in Basle Switzerland with Germany, France, Belgium, United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, Italy, Japan, and three private
international banks from the United States, such as JP Morgan, the First National Bank
of New York and Chicago, provided funding for the establishment and contributed the
initial capital for the BIS along with six nations.
18. Germany’s Reichsbank president, Hjalmar Schact, used the sabotage technique to drive
down bond prices by not paying interest and buying back the obligations at a low price,
and thus the word “Schactage”. Hitler believed it was an “honor” not to pay
Germany’s debts to the American purchasers and investors.
19. Senator Hiram Johnson who investigated the matter, described the grand deception and
duplicitous methods of the banks involved in the selling of the German gold bonds, and
spoke of the insatiable voracity and greed of some of the American bankers in the
foreign bond debacle, and the “shameful, and even infamous exploitation of the
American investing public” which eventually led to the creation and establishment of
the Securities and Exchange Commission to protect investors.
20. Senator Hiram Johnson made a speech to the United States Senate, Congressional
Record, March 15, 1932, starting page 6052, and Senator Johnson expressively stated:
“Mr. President, the story of our foreign loans is a sordid tale, at once grotesque and
tragic...; for the first time in our legislative history there were disclosed certain ugly
9

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 10 of 241

facts which enable us fairly to understand and thoroughly to resent what has been done
to the investing American public…”;
21. “The loans, their extraordinary amounts, the mode in which all risks were passed on to
our people, and the profits appropriated by our bankers; the utterly unrestrained duping
of the investors, the smug complacency of the great financial prestidigitators, are all in
some degree shown by the testimony and afford us the highlights from which may be
illuminated the spaces between and from which with accuracy we may understand how
the game was played with a gullible people and the stakes appropriated by the
supermen of finance…”;
22. “The sale of foreign securities was not only unrestrained by our Government but the
peculiar system adopted by the State Department enabled the international bankers to
foster sales and either by direct reference or a mere statement of the fact to convey the
impression that their securities were of a character satisfactory to our Government. For
many years the State Department has asserted a policy of noninterference. It has
neither affirmatively approved nor disapproved loans made by international bankers
abroad. In most instances, however, the international banker has advised the State
Department of his intention to make a foreign loan, and under the fixed policy of the
department received a response stating “The Department of State offers no objection”;
23. “Of course, to investors, the statement accurate in letter, that the particular investment
had been submitted to the State Department and our Government had “no objection”
was quite persuasive, and the ordinary American laboring still, under the delusion, that
he participated by virtue of his citizenship in the capital republic, and his government
would protect his interests as well as those of international bankers, fondly believed
that if State Department had no objection to his purchase of foreign loans then his
rights had been safeguarded…”;
24. “The international bankers are purchasers of foreign securities only for sufficient time
to enable them, at a profit, to pass them on to the General public. It is a beautiful
system for them, out of which, of course, because of their acumen, and their
ability.…have made their enormous fortunes…”;
25. “The spread, as the international bankers term it, between the original price,…and the
ultimate selling price, varies in different loans. The small banker is of course not
crudely coerced into taking the allotment given to him by the big New York
international bank, but the small fellow knows full well that if he does not take what is
allotted to him, he will have his difficulties in the future. It is a perfectly safe game for
10
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the big international banker with his enormous connections in which he really cannot
lose, and the profits from it are staggering…”;
26. “During the progress of the investigation, I received a number of letters from those
who were interested in small banks, who complained bitterly, of the compulsion put
upon them. They told of how they had received allocations of foreign loans, how they
accepted them because of abject fear, and the dire results that had resulted…;
27. “What an indictment by one of their own is this of the American banker! Competing on
a violent scale to obtain loans in foreign countries! A horde of American bankers
sitting on the doorsteps of European governments offering them money! Of course, it
was a tempting thing for European governments. But what can be said of American
international bankers engaging in practices of this sort, taking anything which might be
offered for the profit that was in it, transport it across the sea, and then in ambiguous
prospectuses, in some instances designed to deceive, by virtue of their very reputation
as investment bankers, soaking the American public…”;
28. “The bankers were not without warning concerning the German loans. Unfortunately
these warnings did not permeate to the investing public but in good faith the bankers
selling these loans to the General public should have warned their customers…”;
29. In 1925, the Secretary of State, wrote to the international bankers about the German
loans…again on November 3, 1926, S. Gilbert, agent general for reparation payments,
in respect to German loans wrote: “I am constantly amazed at the recklessness of
American bankers in offering to the public the securities of German States on the basis
of the purely German view of the Article 248 of the Treaty of Versailles. And in this
letter Mr. Gilbert quoted from Sir William Leese, in which the latter held that certain
prospectuses of loans were “substantially untrue and misleading…”;
30. “These warnings were given to the international bankers not only by an official abroad
but from the American Secretary of State. The Secretary of State in unmistakable
terms told the bankers they should make clear to their clients the full situation in
reference to German loans. The bankers did nothing of the sort. Their prospective
profits outweighed their sense of duty. The empty pockets of American investors who
trusted them are their indictment…”;
31. After World War II ended, GERMANY was called upon to pay its debt to the world.
In particular, GERMANY was called upon to pay for the BONDS. During the
1952/1953 London Debt Conference, GERMANY’s officials or agents or
representatives, and Defendants, conspired and schemed to defraud bondholders, their
11
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predecessors, or successors, or representatives.
32. On the one hand, GERMANY publicly accepted liability and signed the 1953 treaties
and agreements to resume payments on bonds and end the status of default and stated
officially it was responsible for payment of the bonds and would pay the arrears in
interest and principal, to the bondholders.
33. German Chancellor Konrad Adenauer, declared that Germany was fully responsible
for the pre-war debt owed, and would pay the bondholders of German gold bonds,
including the debts relative to the German gold bonds at issue herein.
34. On the other hand, GERMANY and DEFENDANTS designed and implemented a
scheme to defraud bondholders, and a scheme to breach their contractual obligations,
and a scheme to breach their fiduciary duties, in order to preclude, diminish or
disqualify claims and evade their liabilities and avoid their pecuniary obligations.
35. As part of the scheme to defraud the bondholders, in 1952 during the London Debt
Conference, Germany falsely stated that over 300,000 bonds had been “looted” by
Russian soldiers in 1945 from the Reichsbank in Berlin (without submitting any proof)
and Germany falsely stated they “did not have” the serial numbers, of the bonds that
were “allegedly” stolen as the Records were also gone as they had been “looted” or
“destroyed” or “lost” during the war and the only way to find out is to determine where
the bonds were at the end of the war. This was the key to the scheme and to engage in
a fraudulent “validation” process, in order to confiscate bonds, deter, discourage and
dissuade bondholders, and deny redemption and “prohibit” payments of the bonds, and
withhold principal and interest, on an arbitrary and capricious basis.
36. Senate Hearings related to this issue were held in the United States during the period of
the Treaty 1952/1953; and James W. Riddleberger, Director of the Bureau of German
Affairs, to the US Department of State in response to questions by Senator Mansfield
stated that: “We do not have records, nor do the Germans” of serial numbers of bonds.
37. And James G. Rogers, Chairman of the Foreign Bondholders Protective Council in
response to Senator Hickenlooper stated that “These are bearer bonds. There are
practically no registry bonds. They pass from hand to hand simply by delivery,…”
Committee on Foreign Relations, 83 rd Congress, First Session on Executives D, E, F,
and G, ”Agreements with the Federal Republic of Germany”, June 17, 18, 1953.
38. The Department of State Bulletin, October 20, 1952, P. 609, stated that information
regarding the alleged “looted” bonds was “fragmentary and inconclusive” as the bonds
are identified by issue, not by individual serial numbers.
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39. The Federal Republic of GERMANY now takes a contradictory position (i.e. that they
NOW Have a “black list” of bonds) which is completely opposite to the official
position that Germany took in 1952/1953 - i.e. that they did NOT have any records
to determine which bonds were “good” or “bad”).
40. Although Germany now falsely claims they do have a “BAD LIST” of the serial
numbers of the allegedly “looted” bonds, yet, the GERMAN government has
REFUSED TO PROVIDE the alleged “bad list” of bonds to both the SECURITIES
EXCHANGE COMMISSION and in 1994 to the NEW JERSEY DISTRICT COURT
Judge - who demanded production of the “bad list” from the German authorities –
during the Integrated Equities case, and in generally refusing to produce the list Germany has invariably responded to the effect that it was “not in their interest to
produce the list!” Germany is making the story up as it goes along.
The Agreement on German External Debt 1953
41. The Agreement on German External Debt 1953 (commonly referred to as the “London
Debt Accord 1953”) and “Validation” schemes, were entered into between
GERMANY and the UNITED STATES, and other nations, to reduce Germany’s debt.
42. The London Debt Accord 1953, was a government-sponsored settlement proposal
relative to German external debt and was done without the consent of PLAINTIFFS
and/or CLASS MEMBERS, and was done without the assent of the Plaintiffs/Class
Members’ predecessors, or heirs, or assigns, or successors in interest.
43. The London Debt Accord 1953, Treaties, Agreements, or “Validation” scheme/s, were
contrary to the original payment terms of the bonds, and were in violation of the
German constitution, and were in violation of the United States constitutional rights
held by bondholders, plaintiffs and/or class members.
44. GERMANY claimed that a “looting” had occurred by Russians of its vaults in Berlin
at the end of the war. Even though such claims were false and/or unsubstantiated, the
mere “possibility” of “theft”, (as Germany “removed” or “hid” bonds and other assets
in the salt mines of Thuringia, prior to arrival of Russians), was one of the reasons for
the London Debt Accord 1953 and ensuing “Validation” schemes, so GERMANY
could supposedly engage a process to “validate” bonds. It is the American soldiers
who discovered the German assets, gold and dollar reserves. Patton’s army on April 4,
1945, broke into the Thuringian plain, and Merkers fell to the 90 th Division.
45. One of the cornerstones to GERMANY’S scheme was the fabrication of witness
testimony, documents and/or evidence used at the London Debt Conference 1952.
13
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These were used in an attempt to evade liability by claiming, that bonds had been
“stolen”, and that GERMANY had NO records from which it could determine which
of the BONDS remained unpaid, and to whom GERMANY owed what obligations on
the BONDS, and thus GERMANY created a “need” for GERMANY’S “validation”
scheme, to ascertain which bonds “were or were not” in the “German vaults” in 1945,
at the time of the Russian invasion and entry into Berlin.
46. As further part of the scheme to defraud Bondholders, this involved GERMANY’s
claim that, whatever bonds as may be presented post World War II era, could not be
properly “authenticated” and “validated”. Therefore GERMANY offered to “validate”
the bonds that were exchanged pursuant to the London Debt Accord 1953, through
their own “validation” scheme.
47. As further part of the scheme to defraud Bondholders and to prevent non-assenting
bondholders from making legitimate claims, GERMANY and DEFENDANTS
determined they would fight the non-assenting bondholders who declined to accept the
“offer” to take “pennies on the dollar” by giving up or exchanging his/her Bonds, as
provided under settlement terms offered in London Debt Accord 1953.
The “Validation” Scheme
48. The “Validation Boards” are obsolete and the validation procedures are no longer
available, not in the United States, not in Germany. And without such a process,
“validation” cannot be a prerequisite to adjudication. And there are no “competent
authorities” in Germany for purpose of “validation”, and “validation” is not possible in
the USA or Germany and there is no proper and valid and competent and fair process
available in Germany with any “Examining Agency”, or any entity, or Zivilkammer.
49. The “Examining Agencies” or “Zivilkamers” in Germany are incompetent and are
incapable and unwilling of validating bonds, and no fair procedure in English is
available in Germany, and all this is to the detriment of Plaintiffs and Class Members
who have not been able to redeem their bonds and obtain payment for their bonds - and
a court procedure in the United States is necessary, and the United States District
Courts, have the authority to hear these matters on German gold bonds and to enforce
redemption and payment of the Plaintiffs’ bonds by the responsible Defendants and
parties, such as the redemption and paying agents, and trustees and Germany.
50. Furthermore, the “Validation” scheme is unconstitutional, and the process of
redemption or “validation” of the bonds in Germany has been turned into a fraudulent
and mock process, being exploited or abused by DEFENDANTS to defraud Plaintiffs.
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51. The “Validation” laws, schemes or procedures, are arbitrary and capricious, highly
discriminatory, lack substantive or procedural due process, and deny the Plaintiffs’
right to JURY to fix damages. Further, the “Validation” schemes contain unfair and
unreasonable criteria, and are biased and/or include systematic abuse of power, or
abuse of discretion, by GERMANY and DEFENDANTS.
52. The “Validation” scheme to defraud PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, subjects
them to unduly burdensome “validation” requirements, with impossible “proofs”,
and/or imposes unacceptable conditions, contrary to the plain language of the bonds.
53. The DEFENDANTS’ scheme to defraud also includes the knowing, negligent,
careless, reckless, and/or wrongful fabrication of witness testimony, false documents
and/or false statements, or false evidence through which GERMANY or
DEFENDANTS could attempt to evade paying their obligations to persons such as
PLAINTIFFS, and CLASS MEMBERS, or their predecessors, or successors.
54. The DEFENDANTS were/are involved in malicious prosecution, wrongful
expropriation or taking of property, and confiscation or mutilation of bonds, and
deprivation of Plaintiffs/Class Members’ rights or interests, and wrongful forfeiture of
claims, denial of meaningful redemption of bonds, and refusal of obligations and
improper denial and/or “prohibition” of payment of bonds for no legitimate reason.
55. Notably, evidence indicates that repurchased bonds were in fact marked by
GERMANY, completely eliminating the “need” for “Validation” scheme. For
example, in 1956, Richard D. Kearney, assistant legal advisor to German Affairs in the
Department of State testified to that effect. Jacques J. Reinstein, Director Office of
German Affairs, testified that bonds were perforated.
56. Testimony was given at the Hearings before the Subcommittee to Investigate the
Administration of the Internal Security Act and other Internal Security laws of the
Committee on the Judiciary, United States Senate 84th Congress, on September 6th,
1956. Eugene Deter – Director of the Reichsbank, during the 1955 Validation Board
Hearings, and he testified that a secret tax stamp was affixed to the repurchased
external bonds (a swastika placed under gummed binding holding coupons together).
57. The PLAINTIFFS and/or CLASS MEMBERS, as bona fide purchasers of bonds, or as
heirs, or successors, or representatives thereof, are entitled to pursue their claims in the
United States District Court because the bonds are BEARER BONDS, sold in the
United States, denominated in US gold dollars, with the place of performance in the
US, and the redemption and paying agents and financial institutions and trustees are
15
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also in the US, and bearer bonds are financial instruments which require NO “proof of
ownership outside Germany in 1945”, as for bearer bonds “possession is the proof”.
58. And as PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS, own, and/or have possession of the
German gold bearer bonds, which are valid and self-authenticating, and/or can be
readily authenticated by independent experts’ examination of the bonds and coupons,
and there is no necessity or obligation pursuant to law or the terms of the BEARER
bonds, to meet arbitrary and capricious requirements imposed by DEFENDANTS’
expedient and fraudulent and incompetent so-called “validation” schemes.
The London Debt Accord 1953 – “Settlement Offer”
59. Under the London Debt Accord 1953, the bondholders, or their predecessors, or
successors, were proposed a “settlement offer”, and as bondholders had the right to
choose, either: (a) to accept the “offer” and/or subscribe to the settlement procedures of
the London Debt Accord 1953 and “Validation” scheme/s; Or alternatively, (b) to
reject the settlement “offer”, and (c) press their own claims for payment and
redemption of the bonds at the appropriate future time for full value, and/or in a court
of their choosing, preferably the US Federal Court, as the bonds were sold in the
United States, and were redeemable, payable, or collectible, at the option of the Bearer,
in time of peace or war, among other places, in the United States, with various
responsible parties, such as GERMANY, and its agencies, and with many
DEFENDANTS as US Trustees, Redemption or Paying agents, Guarantors, CoObligors, and the bonds are subject to United States law.
60. Despite the option given to bondholders for redemption and/or payment of the bonds
pursuant to original terms, in the United States, (or other options, NOT in Germany),
nevertheless, GERMANY and DEFENDANTS fraudulently conspired to compel the
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS, to “accept” what they did “not accept”, and against
their will, to yield to Defendants’ settlement “offer” or German “Validation” scheme.
61. GERMANY and DEFENDANTS would cause bondholders who did not accept the
“settlement offer” or “validation” schemes, persons such as Plaintiffs, and/or Members
of Plaintiff’s Class, and/or Plaintiffs or Class Members’ predecessors, or successors: (i)
to forfeit their claims or lose property rights, (ii) to be subject to criminal investigations
and/or prosecution, (iii) to intimidation, (iv) to intentional or negligent infliction of
emotional distress and/or ultimately, (v) to place them into a position where they
would be forced against their wish, or the contractual terms of the bonds, to yield,
concede, or subscribe to fraudulent schemes, and/or mock administrative process, or,
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(vi) to abandon efforts to enforce their rights, or to stop their legitimate claims on the
legitimate BEARER BONDS.
62. Furthermore, an examination of correspondence, statements, or declarations of
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS, or bondholders who experienced the “validation”
scheme over the years with GERMANY or DEFENDANTS, and who submitted bonds
for “validation” and redemption and payment, to the employees, agents representatives
of GERMANY or DEFENDANTS, provides compelling evidence, THAT:
(a) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS endorse, promote and/or maintain a deceptive
and spurious and “Validation” scheme and – evidence shows that “Validation ” Boards
and procedures are obsolete; and/or, that Defendants engage in mail and wire fraud;
(b) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS are unwilling and/or incapable to “authenticate”
or “validate” bonds for the benefit of bondholders; and/or
(c) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS will refuse to redeem bonds and refuse to pay;
Even if bonds are authenticated by foremost independent experts in the field; and/or
(d) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, in addition to refusal to pay any bonds, whether
“validated” or not, often will mark bonds for “nonpayment” or “void”, or will
perforate, or perform other such acts, rendering the bonds void or “worthless”, prior to
returning to their rightful owners; and/or
(e) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS misappropriate, convert, mutilate, or confiscate
the tendered bonds, and do not return them to their rightful owners.
(f) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS continue to this day, in a long-running and
coordinated pattern of racketeering activity, to wrongfully intimidate Plaintiffs, and
Class Members, by using their monumentally disproportionate economic and political
power, through amongst other things, threats of civil and/or criminal suits, including
the tortious and wrongful utilization of agents of various United States, German or
sovereign prosecutorial agencies, to create and maintain an improper deterrence and
fear of prosecution or defamation of bondholders by referring to them as “swindlers”
and/or to frustrate, and prevent Plaintiffs and Class Members of their ability to
rightfully assert their claims as Holders in Due Course, and/or bona fide purchasers in
good faith, and/or as owners in possession of the Bearer Bonds, payable to the bearers.
(g) GERMANY and DEFENDANTS implement a strategy to foreclose redemption of
bonds and unlawfully “prohibit” payment of principal and interest to Plaintiffs/Class.
It is against this backdrop of facts, and those recently discovered, that Plaintiffs
bring this CLASS ACTION, on behalf of themselves, and similarly situated bondholders.
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DESCRIPTION OF PARTIES
63. PLAINTIFF, RICHARD BLEIER (hereinafter “BLEIER”) is a citizen and resident
of the United States, living in Chicago, Illinois, in this judicial district, and is the legal
and/or equitable owner of German gold bearer bond/s, and/or in possession of German
gold bearer bond/s, at issue herein, and brings this lawsuit, Individually, and as
representative and on behalf of the Class Members and bondholders, similarly situated,
and brings this lawsuit as a CLASS ACTION.
64. PLAINTIFF, ELFRIEDE KORBER, (hereinafter “KORBER”) is a citizen and
resident of Belgium, living in Overijse, and is the legal and/or equitable owner of
German gold bearer bond/s, and/or in possession of German gold bearer bond/s, at
issue herein, and brings this lawsuit, Individually, and as representative and on behalf
of the Class Members and bondholders, similarly situated, and brings this lawsuit as a
CLASS ACTION.
65. PLAINTIFF, CHRISTOPHER MARK, (hereinafter “MARK”) is a citizen and
resident of the United States, living in Chicago, Illinois, in this judicial district, and is
the legal and/or equitable owner of German gold bearer bond/s, and/or in possession of
German gold bearer bond/s, at issue herein, and brings this lawsuit, Individually, and
as representative and on behalf of the Class Members and bondholders, similarly
situated, and brings this lawsuit as a CLASS ACTION.
66. DEFENDANT, BUNDESREPUBLIK DEUTSCHLAND, a/k/a, “FEDERAL
REPUBLIC OF GERMANY” (hereinafter “GERMANY”) has its main offices in
Berlin, Germany, and assumed full liability, and which is foreign issuer and/or trustee,
guarantor, obligor, and/or redemption or paying agent, on PLAINTIFFS/CLASS
MEMBERS’ BONDS, and has dealt with and/or was involved with the German gold
bearer bonds, and has documents related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold
bonds, and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more Defendants.
BUNDESREPUBLIK DEUTSCHLAND, a/k/a Federal Republic of Germany, as
issuer, guarantor, and/or successor, and/or co-obligor, and/or trustee, and/or paying and
redemption agent, is fully liable for payment of the German gold bearer bonds.
67. DEFENDANT, BUNDESMINISTERIUM DER FINANZEN, a/k/a, GERMAN
FINANCE MINISTRY, hereinafter (“GERMAN FINANCE MINISTRY”) is an
agency of the German government, with its main offices in Berlin, Germany, and
which is one of the guarantors, trustees, obligors, and/or redemption or paying agents,
18
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on Plaintiffs’/Class Members’ Gold Bonds, and which dealt with and or was involved
with one or more of the Defendants and has documents related to German gold bonds
and Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold bonds and or potential claims as they
may relate to one or more of the Defendants. BUNDESMINISTERIUM DER
FINANZEN a/k/a German Finance Ministry, as guarantor, and/or successor, and/or
trustee, and/or co-obligor and/or as redemption and paying agent, is liable for payment
of the bonds.
68. DEFENDANT, DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, a/k/a, “GERMAN NATIONAL
BANK”, hereinafter (“GERMAN NATIONAL BANK”) is an agency of the German
government, with its main offices in Berlin and Frankfurt, Germany, and which is one
of the trustees, guarantors, obligors, and/or successors, and/or redemption or paying
agents on Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ Gold Bonds, which dealt with and or was
involved with Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold bonds and with one or more of
the Defendants and or has documents which relate to Plaintiff/Class Members German
gold bonds and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants,
and has offices in the United States, at 499 Park Avenue, New York, New York.
DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, a/k/a German National Bank, as guarantor, and/or
successor, and/or trustee, and/or co-obligor, and/or paying and redemption agent, is
liable for payment of the bonds.
69. DEFENDANT, BUNDESAMT FUR ZENTRALE DIENST UND OFFENE
VERMOGENSFRAGEN, (hereinafter “BADV”), PRUFSTELLE FUR
AUSLANDSBONDS DAS DEUTSCHEN REICHS is an agency of the German
government, with its main offices in Berlin, Germany, and which is one of the
ostensible “Examining Agency” for the purported “validation”, redemption and
payment and/or “examination” of the bonds, and is one of the obligors, trustees,
guarantors, and/or successors, and/or redemption or paying agents on Plaintiffs/Class
Members’ Gold Bearer Bonds, which dealt with and/or was involved with Plaintiffs
and/or Class Members’ German gold bonds, in particular Dawes and Young Bonds,
and has dealt with one or more of the Defendants and/or has documents which relate to
Plaintiffs/Class Members’ German gold bearer bonds and/or potential claims as they
may relate to one or more of the Defendants, and has offices in Germany, at DGZ-Ring
12, 13086, Berlin. BADV – Prufstelle Fur Auslandsbonds as guarantor, and/or
successor, and/or trustee, and/or co-obligor, and/or paying and redemption agent, is
liable for payment of the bonds.
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70. DEFENDANT, LANDESAMT FUR FINANZEN, DIENSTSTELLE MUNCHEN,
is an agency of the German government, with its main offices in Munich, Germany,
and which is one of the ostensible “Examining Agency” for the redemption and/or
payment, and/or “examination” and/or “validation” of the bonds, and one of the
obligors, trustees, guarantors, and/or successors, and/or redemption or paying agents
on Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ Gold Bonds, which dealt with and/or was involved with
Plaintiff’s and/or Class Members’ German gold bonds in particular Free State of
Bavaria Bonds, and has dealt with one or more of the Defendants and/or has
documents which relate to Plaintiff/Class Members German gold bonds and/or
potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants, and has offices in
Germany, at Alexandrastr. 3, 80538 Munchen. Landesamt fur Finanzen Dienststelle
Munchen, as guarantor, and/or successor, and/or trustee, and/or co-obligor, and/or
paying and redemption agent, is liable for payment of the bonds.
71. DEFENDANT DRESDNER BANK AG, is a German bank and has its principal
offices in Frankfurt, Germany and has a branch in Dusseldorf, 40212, on Konigsallee
37, and Dresdner Bank AG is the ostensible “Examining Agency” for the redemption
or payment or “examination” or purported “validation” of the United Steel Works
Corporation Bonds, and is one of the trustees, guarantors, obligors, successors, and/or
redemption or paying agents on Plaintiff’s/Class Members Gold Bonds, and which also
maintains offices and conducts business in the United States, in various jurisdictions,
and/or, including this jurisdiction, and is now part of Commerzbank AG. DRESDNER
BANK, as obligor, or successor, or guarantor, or redemption and paying agent is liable
for redemption and payment of the bonds.
72. DEFENDANT, COMMERZBANK AG (hereinafter “COMMERZBANK”) is a
German bank which has its principal offices in Frankfurt, Germany, and which also
maintains offices in the United States, and which is one of the trustees, guarantors,
obligors, and/or redemption or paying agents on Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ Gold
Bonds, which has dealt with and or was involved with Plaintiff’s/Class Members’
German gold bonds, and has documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class
Members’ German gold bonds and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or
more of the Defendants. And Commerzbank Ag is the ostensible “Examining Agency”
for the redemption or “examination” or “confiscation” of “Rheinelbe Union Bonds”.
COMMERZBANK AG, as guarantor, and/or co-obligor, and/or successor, and/or
trustee, and/or as redemption and paying agent, is liable for payment of the bonds.
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73. DEFENDANT, COMMERZBANK AG (hereinafter “COMMERZBANK”) is a
German bank which has its principal offices in Frankfurt Germany, and which is one of
the trustees, guarantors, obligors, successors, and/or redemption or paying agents on
Plaintiff’s Gold Bonds, and which also maintains offices and conducts business in the
United States, in various jurisdictions, including this jurisdiction, through
DEFENDANTS, COMMERZBANK Chicago Branch, COMMERZBANK Atlanta
Branch, COMMERZBANK New York Branch, COMMERZBANK Los Angeles
Branch, as well as through its wholly owned subdivisions or subsidiaries, or alter egos,
such as, DEFENDANT, COMMERZBANK CAPITAL MARKETS
CORPORATION, a subsidiary/division of COMMERZBANK AG (hereinafter
“CCMC”) DEFENDANT, COMMERZBANK SECURITIES, a subsidiary/division
of COMMERZBANK AG (hereinafter “SECURITIES), DEFENDANT,
COMMERZBANK CORPORATES AND MARKETS, hereinafter (“CBMC”) a
subsidiary/division of COMMERZBANK AG, and DEFENDANT EUROHYPO AG,
division/subsidiary of COMMERZBANK AG, and which have dealt with and or were
involved with Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds, and have documents in
their possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold bonds and/or
potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants.
COMMERZBANK, and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or successors, and/or
trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or as redemption and paying agents, are jointly and
severally liable for payment of the bonds.
74. DEFENDANTS COMMERZBANK AG, COMMERZBANK, CCMC,
COMMERZBANK SECURITIES, CBMC, DRESDNER BANK AG, and
EUROHYPO AG are foreign corporations, doing business in the United States
through a myriad of divisions, wholly owned, subsidiary, or alter ego companies,
which are integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities
and/or assets are controlled, dominated and/or directed by Defendant
COMMERZBANK AG, and/or its majority shareholders. COMMERZBANK, and
related entities, as guarantors, and/or as successors, to redemption or paying agents,
and/or as trustees, and/or as co-obligors, and/or as alter egos, and/or as redemption and
paying agents, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
75. DEFENDANT, DEUTSCHE BANK AG, (hereinafter “DEUTSCHE”) is a German
bank which has its principal offices in Frankfurt, Germany and which is one of the
trustees, and/or guarantors, and/or obligors, and/or successors, and/or redemption or
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paying agents, on PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS Gold Bonds; and which also
maintains offices in the United States, and has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class Members’
German gold bonds, and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants and has
documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold bonds
and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein.
DEUTSCHE BANK AG conducts or conducted business in the United States and the
world through a myriad of divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies,
which are integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities
and/or assets and/or finances, are controlled, dominated and/or directed by
DEUTSCHE BANK AG and/or its majority shareholders. DEUTSCHE BANK AG,
and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or selling
brokers, and/or alter egos, and/or as redemption and paying agents, or successors
thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
76. DEFENDANTS, DEUTSCHE BANK USA/BANKERS TRUST CO., DEUTSCHE
BANK TRUST CO. OF AMERICA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“DEUTSCHE BANKERS TRUST CO. AMERICA”) is a United States and or Trustee
bank, which has offices in Chicago, New York and many other cities in the United
States, and which is one of the trustees, guarantors, successors, co-obligors, and/or
redemption or paying agents, on the PLAINTIFFS and/or CLASS MEMBERS’ Gold
Bearer Bonds, and which has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold
bonds and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants and has documents in
its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds and/or potential
claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein. The DEUTSCHE
BANKERS TRUST CO. AMERICA conducts, or conducted business, through a
myriad of divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies, which are
integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or
assets and/or finances, are controlled, dominated and/or directed by DEUTSCHE
BANKERS TRUST CO. AMERICA, and/or its majority shareholders. The
DEUTSCHE BANKERS TRUST CO. AMERICA, and its related entities, as
guarantors, and/or as redemption and paying agents, and/or as trustees, and/or as coobligors, and/or as selling brokers, and/or as alter egos, and/or as successors thereof,
are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
77. DEFENDANT CITIBANK N.A., and/or CITIGROUP INC., (hereinafter
“CITIBANK”) are United States banks, based in New York, and which are one of the
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trustees, and/or guarantors, and/or obligors, and/or selling brokers, and/or redemption
or paying agents, or successors thereof, and is responsible for payment on
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS’ German Gold Bonds, and which has and maintains
offices in the United States, and all over the world, and has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class
Members’ German gold bonds; and/or was involved with one or more of the
Defendants, and has documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members’
German gold bonds and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the
Defendants herein. CITIBANK conducts or conducted business in the United States
and the world through a myriad of divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary, or alter ego
companies, which are integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions,
whose activities and/or assets and/or finances, are controlled, dominated and/or
directed by CITIBANK, and/or its majority shareholders. CITIBANK, and its related
entities, as guarantors, and/or as trustees, and/or as selling brokers, and/or as coobligors, and/or as alter egos, and/or as redemption and paying agent, and/or as
successors thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
78. DEFENDANT JP MORGAN CHASE BANK N.A., (hereinafter “JP MORGAN”) is
a United States bank, and one of the trustees, and/or guarantors, and/or co-obligors,
and/or selling brokers, and/or redemption and paying agents, or successors thereof, on
PLAINTIFF’S/CLASS MEMBERS’ German Gold Bonds; and which has and
maintains offices in New York and other cities, and has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class
Members German gold bonds; and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants
and has documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German gold
bonds or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein.
Defendant JP MORGAN CHASE conducts or conducted business, in the US and/or the
world, through a myriad of divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego
companies, which are integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions,
whose activities and/or assets and/or finances, are controlled, dominated and/or
directed by JP MORGAN CHASE and/or its majority shareholders. JP MORGAN
CHASE, and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or as selling brokers, and/or as coobligors, and/or as alter egos, and/or as trustees, and/or as paying and redemption
agents, or successors thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for redemption and
payment of the bonds.
79. DEFENDANT WARBURG DILLON READ, (hereinafter “WARBURG DILLON”)
is one of the redemption or paying agents, or successors thereof, and/or guarantors,
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and/or selling brokers, and/or trustees, or co-obligors, responsible for payment on
PLAINTIFF’S/CLASS MEMBERS German Gold Bonds, and which has and maintains
offices in the United States, and has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class Members’ German
gold bonds and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants and has
documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds
and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein.
WARBURG DILLON conducts or conducted business through a myriad of divisions,
wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies, which are integrated companies,
and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or assets and/or finances, are
controlled, dominated and/or directed by WARBURG DILLON and/or its majority
shareholders. WARBURG DILLON, and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or
trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or alter egos, and/or as paying and redemption agents,
and/or successors thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
80. DEFENDANT SCHRODERS PLC, (hereinafter “SCHRODERS”) has its head
offices in London, United Kingdom, and maintains offices in New York, New York,
and which is one of the redemption and paying agents on PLAINTIFFS/CLASS
MEMBERS German gold bonds, and/or is one of the guarantors, and/or trustees,
and/or co-obligors, and/or selling brokers, and/or successors to the redemption and
paying agents, and is responsible for payment on Plaintiffs/Class Members’ German
Gold Bonds. SCHRODERS PLC has dealt with PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS
German gold bonds and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants and has
documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds,
and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein.
SCHRODERS PLC, a foreign corporation, with asset and investment management,
trading, brokerage and/or other banking or financial activities, conducts or conducted
business in the United States, United Kingdom, and the world, through a myriad of
divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary, or alter ego companies, which are integrated
companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or assets and/or
finances, are controlled, dominated and/or directed by SCHRODERS PLC and/or its
majority shareholders. SCHRODERS PLC, and/or its related entities, as guarantors,
and/or trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or alter egos, and/or selling brokers, and/or
principal/agents, and/or as paying and redemption agents, and/or successors thereof,
are jointly and/or severally liable for redemption and payment of the Plaintiff/Class
Members’ gold bonds.
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81. DEFENDANT BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS, (hereinafter
referred to as “BIS”) is a international financial institution with its main offices in
Basel, Switzerland and was established under the Hague Agreement 1930, and acted as
Trustee and/or Guarantor on the Young bonds and Dawes loans and is one of the
guarantors, trustees, obligors, paying and/or redemption agents on PLAINTIFFS
and/or CLASS MEMBERS’ German Gold Bearer Bonds, and has dealt with Plaintiffs’
German gold bonds and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants, held,
opened, and/or operated certain accounts related to PLAINTIFF’S/CLASS MEMBERS
German gold bonds, and has documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class
Members’ German gold bonds, and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or
more of the Defendants herein. BIS, as guarantor, and/or as trustee, and/or as coobligor, is unconditionally liable for payment of the Plaintiffs gold bonds.
82. DEFENDANT UBS AG, (hereinafter “UBS”), is a Swiss bank with its main offices in
Basel and Zurich, Switzerland, and is one of the paying and/or redemption agents,
and/or guarantors, and/or trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or successors thereof,
responsible for payment on PLAINTIFFS’/CLASS MEMBERS’ German Gold Bonds
and which has and maintains offices and agents in the United States and has dealt with
Plaintiff’s German gold bonds and/or was involved with one or more of the
Defendants, held, opened, and/or operated certain accounts related to Plaintiff’s
German gold bonds, and has documents in its possession related to Plaintiffs’ German
gold bonds and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants
herein. UBS AG conducts or conducted business in the United States and the world,
through a myriad of divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies, which
are integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or
assets and/or finances, are controlled, dominated and/or directed by UBS AG and/or its
majority shareholders. UBS AG, and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or as
trustees, and/or as co-obligors, and/or as alter ego, and/or as redemption and paying
agents, or successors thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the
Plaintiffs and Class Members’ gold bearer bonds.
83. DEFENDANT MIZUHO CORPORATE BANK, hereinafter “MIZUHO” is a
Japanese bank with its head offices in Tokyo, Japan, and which is one of the paying
and/or redemption agents, and/or guarantors, and/or trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or
successors thereof, responsible for payment on PLAINTIFFS’ and/or CLASS
MEMBERS’ German Gold Bonds; and which has and maintains offices and branches
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and agents in the United States, including New York and Chicago, and which has dealt
with Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds, and/or was involved with one or
more of the Defendants, and/or held, opened, and/or operated certain accounts related
to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds, and has documents in its possession
related to Plaintiff’s or Class Members’ German gold bonds and/or potential claims as
they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein. MIZUHO conducts or
conducted business in the United States and the world, through a myriad of divisions,
wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies, which are integrated companies,
and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or assets and/or finances, are
controlled, dominated and/or directed by MIZUHO and/or its majority shareholders.
MIZUHO, and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or as trustees, and/or as coobligors, and/or as alter egos, and/or as redemption and paying agents, and/or
successors thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
84. DEFENDANT SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN AB, hereinafter “SEB”
is a Swedish bank, with its head offices in Stockholm, Sweden, and which is one of the
paying and/or redemption agents, and/or guarantors, and/or trustees, and/or coobligors, and/or successors thereof, and is responsible for payment on PLAINTIFFS’
and/or CLASS MEMBERS’ German Gold Bearer Bonds; and which has and maintains
offices and branches and agents in the United States, including New York, and which
has dealt with Plaintiffs/Class Members German gold bonds, and/or was involved with
one or more of the Defendants, and/or held, opened, and/or operated certain accounts
related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds, and has documents in its
possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds and/or potential
claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein. SEB conducts or
conducted business in the United States and the world, through a myriad of divisions,
wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies, which are integrated companies,
and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or assets and/or finances, are
controlled, dominated and/or directed by SEB and/or its majority shareholders. SEB,
and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or as trustees, and/or as co-obligors, and/or
as alter egos, and/or as redemption and paying agents, and/or successors thereof, are
jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds.
85. DEFENDANT CREDIT SUISSE GROUP AG, hereinafter “CREDIT SUISSE” is a
Swiss bank with its head offices in Zurich, Switzerland, and which is one of the paying
and/or redemption agents, and/or guarantors, and/or trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or
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successors thereof, responsible for payment on PLAINTIFF’S/CLASS MEMBERS’
German Gold Bonds; and which has and maintains offices and branches and agents in
the United States, including New York, and which has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class
Members German gold bonds, and/or was involved with one or more of the
Defendants, and/or held, opened, and/or operated certain accounts related to
Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds, and has documents in its possession
related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds and/or potential claims as
they may relate to one or more of the Defendants herein. CREDIT SUISSE conducts
or conducted business in the United States and the world, through a myriad of
divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego companies, which are integrated
companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions, whose activities and/or assets and/or
finances, are controlled, dominated and/or directed by CREDIT SUISSE and/or its
majority shareholders. CREDIT SUISSE, and its related entities, as guarantors, and/or
as trustees, and/or as co-obligors, and/or as alter egos, and/or as redemption and paying
agents, and/or successors thereof, are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the
Plaintiffs’ and/or Class members’ gold bearer bonds.
86. DEFENDANT BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, hereinafter (“BNYMELLON) is
a United States global financial services company, with its head offices in New York,
New York, and which is one of the redemption and/or paying agents, and/or
guarantors, and/or trustees, and/or co-obligors, and/or successors thereof, responsible
for payment on PLAINTIFF’S/CLASS MEMBERS’ German Gold Bonds; and which
has and maintains offices and branches and agents in the United States, and other
countries, and which has dealt with Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds,
and/or was involved with one or more of the Defendants, and/or held, opened, and/or
operated certain accounts related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold bonds, and
has documents in its possession related to Plaintiff’s/Class Members German gold
bonds and/or potential claims as they may relate to one or more of the Defendants
herein. BNYMELLON conducts or conducted business in the United States and the
world, through a myriad of divisions, wholly-owned, subsidiary or alter ego
companies, which are integrated companies, and/or subsidiaries, and/or divisions,
whose activities and/or assets and/or finances, are controlled, dominated and/or
directed by BNYMELLON and/or its majority shareholders. BNYMELLON and its
related entities, as guarantors, and/or as trustees, and/or as co-obligors, and/or as alter
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egos, and/or as redemption and paying agents, or successors thereof, are jointly and/or
severally liable for payment of the PLAINTIFFS and/or CLASS MEMBERS bonds.
87. The DEFENDANTS above mentioned, will be collectively referred to as
“DEFENDANTS” and the use of the term in the Complaint is intended to include, any
and/or all of the “Defendants” herein, which are named in this complaint, and/or
named in the bonds. The PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS’ claims and allegations
are in connection with and relate to all the Defendants. When appropriate, Defendant/s
will be named separately, in accordance with the claims or allegations that relate to the
specific actions or omissions or particular facts for each of the Defendant/s herein.
UNITED STATES COURT JURISDICTION
Over FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF GERMANY, and its related agencies,
GERMAN NATIONAL BANK GERMAN FINANCE MINISTRY
88. Defendants, GERMAN FINANCE MINISTRY, BUNDESMINISTERIUM DER
FINANZEN, and GERMAN NATIONAL BANK , DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, are
agencies of Defendant, BUNDESREPUBLIK DEUTSCHELAND, a/k/a FEDERAL
REPUBLIC OF GERMANY, and as such this Court would have jurisdiction over such
defendants pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1330 and 1605 et seq. (providing for commercial
activity exceptions to the Foreign Sovereign Immunities Act), in so far as the action relates to
German Gold Bonds, i.e. commercial instruments which were sold and marketed in the
United States and for which communications, and other acts, were performed, and/or
directed to persons, such as Plaintiffs, and Class Members, including by one or more
DEFENDANTS herein, in the United States, and which had direct effect in the United States.
Over COMMERZBANK AG, and related entities, and DEUTSCHE BANK AG,
And DEUTSCHE BANK USA/BANKERS TRUST CO., and DRESDNER BANK AG,
and DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST CO. of AMERICA; and the
BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS (“BIS”)
89. The Court has jurisdiction over Defendants COMMERZBANK AG and its related
branches in the United States and otherwise affiliated companies, and subsidiaries and
divisions CCMC, CBMC, COMMERZBANK SECURITIES, named Defendants,
COMMERZBANK AG, and EUROHYPO AG, its various branches, and over
DEUTSCHE BANK AG, and DEUTSCHE BANK USA/BANKERS TRUST CO.,
DRESDNER BANK AG, DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST CO. of AMERICA, and BANK
FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS, (“BIS”) through diversity of citizenship,
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pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1332, and/or because said Defendants: (i) maintain, or maintained,
representatives, personnel, offices and/or assets within; and/or (ii) conduct, or conducted,
regular, continuous and systematic business within this judicial district, and the claims
and amount in controversy exceeds the jurisdictional minimum, $75,000, USD exclusive
of interest and costs, and venue is proper.
Over SCHRODERS PLC, WARBURG DILLON, CITIBANK N.A.,
CITIGROUP, INC.,MIZUHO, JP MORGAN CHASE BANK N.A., UBS AG,
BANK NEW YORK MELLON, SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN,
CREDIT SUISSE, LANDESAMT FUR FINANZEN, BADV-PRUFSTELLE
90. The Court has jurisdiction over Defendants, CITIBANK N.A., CITIGROUP, INC., J.P.
MORGAN CHASE BANK N.A., UBS AG, SCHRODERS PLC, WARBURG DILLON,
BANK NEW YORK MELLON, SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN, CREDIT
SUISSE, and LANDESAMT FUR FINANZEN, BADV-PRUFSTELLE, MIZUHO,
through diversity of citizenship, pursuant to 28 USC Sec.1332, and/or because
Defendants are either US corporations (i) or corporations that maintained agents,
representatives, personnel, offices and/or assets within and/or (ii) conducts or conducted
regular, continuous and systematic business within this judicial district, and the claims
and amount in controversy exceeds the jurisdictional minimum, $75,000,USD exclusive,
of interests and costs, and venue is proper.
RICO ACT 1970
91. The Court has jurisdiction over this action, and all Defendants, to enforce United States
law 18 U.S.C. §1961 et seq., the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act
due to Defendants violations of the RICO act.
SECURTIES ACT 1933/SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT 1934
92. The Court has jurisdiction over this action, and all Defendants, to enforce US Securities
laws due to Defendants violations of §10(b) (15 U.S.C. §78(j)(b), and Rule 10b-5 of the
Securities Exchange Act 1934 , and violations of Section 17 of the Securities Act 1933,
§17(a), 15 U.S.C. §77(q)(a), and/or violations of Section 11 and/or 12 of the Securities
Act; all of which subjects Defendants to civil penalties under §20 Securities Act, and/or
§21(d) of the Exchange Act 1934.
CLASS ACTION FAIRNESS ACT 2005
93. The Court has jurisdiction over the action and all Defendants herein, pursuant to the
Class Action Fairness Act 2005, Public Law 109-2, 109th Congress, (“CAFA”), 28
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U.S.C. §1332(d)(2), §1453 and/or §1711-1715., as the amount in controversy exceeds
$5,000,000 USD (Five Million US Dollars), and there are more than a 100 Class
Members and at least one class member is diverse from at least one defendant.
ALIEN TORT STATUTE ACT 1789 – 28 USC §1350
94. Plaintiff Elfriede Korber, also brings the action, pursuant to the Alien Tort Statute 28
USC § 1350, as the statute provides that: “The District court shall have original
jurisdiction of any civil action by an alien for a tort, committed in violation of the law
of nations or a treaty of the United States.”
FEDERAL QUESTION JURISDICTION – 28 USC § 1331
95. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 USC §1331 in that Plaintiffs make claims
against Defendants pursuant to federal law, and “federal question” jurisdiction exists,
and to the extent that federal law incorporates the law of nations and/or customary
international law, jus cogens, and/or, incorporates the international treaties enforceable
as the supreme law of the land under the US Constitution, and as federal common law.
96. Plaintiffs’ action involves claims for torts and breaches and violations of the applicable
international treaties such as the Agreement on German External Debt 1953 and/or
Second Implementing Ordinance 1953 and/or Agreement on Certain Matters Arising
from the Validation of Dollar Bonds 1953, which have been violated by Defendants.
97. Plaintiffs assert claims for torts and breaches that involve Defendants’ violations of the
law of nations and customary international norms condemning the practice of wrongful
misappropriation of property and conversion under the Hague Convention 1907, the
Treaty of Versailles 1919, the Holocaust Victims Redress Act of 1998 (Pub. L No.
105-508, 112 Stat. 15, 1998), and Plaintiffs assert claims for torts, equitable and/or
declaratory relief in violation of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights (U.N.
G.A. Respondent 217(III 1948), International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,
999 U.N.T.S. 171 (December 16, 1966), and International Declaration Concerning the
Laws and Customs of War, adopted by the Conference of Brussels, Aug. 27, 1874,
reprinted, (1907) 1 Am.Jur.Int.L. Supp. 96; Protocol No. 1 to the European Convention
on the Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms (Mar.20, 1952, 213 U.N.T.S. 262,
E.T.S.9); and Multilateral Declaration on Forced Transfers of Property in Enemy
Controlled Territory of 1943, 943 U.S.T. LEXIS 188, 3 Bevans 754; Multilateral Gold
Policy of 1944, 1944 U.S.T. LEXIS 149, 3 Bevans 889; and Customary International
Principles of International Law Recognized in the Charter of the Nuremberg Tribunal,
G.A. Res.95(I), UNGAOR, 1 st Ses., 188, UN Doc. A/236 (1947).
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SUPPLEMENTAL JURISDICTION – 28 USC §1367
98. The Court has jurisdiction over all non-governmental defendants and/or over Plaintiffs’ nonfederal law claims, by supplemental jurisdiction, 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1367 and for any claims
not otherwise covered by the aforementioned jurisdictional bases
VENUE
99. VENUE is proper in this district insofar as PLAINTIFF CHRISTOPHER MARK
resides in Chicago, Illinois, and is a United States citizen, and resides in this judicial
district; and PLAINTIFF RICHARD BLEIER resides in Chicago, Illinois, and is
United States citizen, and resides in this judicial district and/or;
100.

DEFENDANTS maintain offices, personnel, and assets and/or conduct or

conducted business within this district, or United States, or internationally, and/or
101.

DEFENDANTS have engaged in acts, and/or omissions, related to and/or affecting

PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS, within this district, and/or related to or
affecting Plaintiff/Class Members’ property within this district, and/or
102.

DEFENDANTS are subject to jurisdiction of this Court.

103.

VENUE is proper in this Court since two of the three named Representative Plaintiffs

herein reside in this judicial district, and/or that DEFENDANTS do business, and/or may
be found in this district within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1391 & 28 USC §1350.
104.

In the event, the Court should determine that venue may be lacking in this Court,

then pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1404, the Court may transfer the action to any other
district which the case could have been brought originally.
CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
105.

This action is brought and may be properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant

to the provisions of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 23, F.R.C.P. 23 (b) (1), (2)
and (3). This action satisfies the numerosity, commonality, typicality, adequacy,
predominance, and superiority requirements of the provisions.
106.

Plaintiff, RICHARD BLEIER, brings this cause individually, and on behalf of all

members of the proposed CLASS, of similarly situated bondholders.
107.

The Class is defined as: “All individuals and entities who currently own or possess

German gold bonds, (e.g. Dawes, Young, and/or Rheinelbe Union bonds, or other
legitimate German gold bonds) or their predecessors, heirs, successors, assigns, or
representatives of owners or bondholders, and whose bonds have never been redeemed
and/or for which no payment has ever been made by Germany or Defendants.”
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Included in the Class are those bondholders who did not accept the settlement “offer”

contained in the London Debt Agreement 1953 and did not subscribe to the “validation”
schemes of Defendants; and/or whose bonds were never exchanged, enfaced, redeemed, or
accepted for payment, and/or were never included in any contracts or agreements for
redemption or payment with any Defendants.
109.

Also included in the Class are those bondholders who actually Submitted their bonds for

“validation”, and redemption and payment to Germany, or Defendants; but whose bonds were
not validated or paid after submission, or whose bonds were not returned by Germany or
Defendants, or whose bonds were misappropriated after submission, or whose bonds were
returned after submission but have been tampered with by Germany or Defendants and
marked inappropriately rendering the bonds null and void.
110.

Members of the Proposed Class are so numerous and geographically dispersed as to make

joinder of all Class Members in this action impracticable.
111.

The estimated number of bondholders is between 67,000 to 500,000.

112.

The claims of the named Plaintiff s, are typical of the claims of the proposed Class, in so

far as Plaintiff and Class Members, were damaged by the same wrongful conduct of the
DEFENDANTS alleged herein. Furthermore the factual bases of Defendants’ misconduct is
common to all Class Members, and represents a common thread of fraudulent, deliberate,
and/or negligent misconduct, resulting in economic harm, and injury to the Plaintiffs/Class.
113.

Defendants have acted and/or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the

Proposed Class, making injunctive relief, and/or correspondent declaratory relief, and /or other
just relief, appropriate with respect to the Class as a whole, in that DEFENDANTS have been:
(a) unjustly enriched; (b) refused meaningful redemption or payment of the bonds to the
proposed Class Members; (c) refused to provide full and complete accounting and disclosure
of the aforesaid actions; (d) refused access to information critical to Plaintiff’s and Class
Members claims.
114.

A Class Action pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 23 is superior to the other

available methods of fair, just and efficient adjudication of the controversy. Individual
litigation would be unduly burdensome to the courts where the manifold individual litigations
would proceed. This Class Action will allow a single court to provide the benefits of unitary
adjudication, judicial economy, and the fair and equitable handling of all Plaintiffs/Class
Members’ claims in a single forum.
115.

The conduct of this action as a Class Action conserves judicial resources of the parties and

of the judicial system, and preserves the rights of each class member. Furthermore, a Class
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Action is for most class members the only feasible method that allows them an opportunity
for legal redress and justice.
116.

The named PLAINTIFFS are committed to vigorous prosecution of this action and will

fairly and adequately protect the interests of the proposed Class. Plaintiffs have no conflict of
interest with members of the proposed Class. Named Plaintiffs, and consenting members of
the Class, are represented by a team of local and international lawyers who are experienced
and competent.
117.

Common questions of fact and law predominate in the claims of all Class Members

including the named Plaintiff. These claims depend on showing that Defendants are liable for
payment of the German gold bearer bonds, pursuant to the terms of the bonds, and the
Defendants’ acts and omissions based on common facts. Named Plaintiffs’ and Class
Members’ evidentiary showing will be based on common documents and testimony relative
to the German gold bearer bonds and Defendants actions or omissions.
118.

There are questions of fact and law common to the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS

MEMBERS including, but not limited to, WHETHER, the DEFENDANTS HAVE:
a) Been unjustly enriched by their acts; and defaulted on their bond obligations;
b) Refused meaningful redemption or payment of the bonds;
c) Refused to provide full and complete disclosure;
d) Provided false or misleading statements relative to the worth (or lack thereof) of
the bonds and/or false or misleading statements regarding the validity (or lack thereof)
of the bondholders’ claims and/or provided false or misleading statements regarding
“looting of bonds” or the “validation” schemes for redemption or payment of the
bonds, all to the detrimental reliance and damage of bondholders;
e) Failed to institute necessary or reasonable protocols or instructions to the
various bondholders’ or redemption institutions in Germany, US and world, &
failed to make payment to the bondholders according to the terms of the bonds;
f)

Failed to take steps to prevent and/or protect Plaintiffs/Class Members,

bondholders, from conspiracies, fraudulent and/or wrongful acts related to the
German Gold Bonds, which conspiracies, fraudulent and/or other wrongful acts were
known to one of more Defendants;
g)

Knowingly, carelessly, recklessly and/or negligently participated in a

conspiracy designed to frustrate and/or interfere with Plaintiffs/Class Members,
bondholders, ability to redeem the German Gold Bonds; and knowingly,
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carelessly, recklessly and/or negligently participated in a conspiracy to cause
economic or emotional damage to Plaintiffs/Class Members, and bondholders,
and/or those who sought to redeem and obtain payment for German Gold Bonds;
h)

Engaged in commission of fraud and/or conspiracy to commit fraud

and/or deprived Plaintiff/Class Members of their constitutional rights, and/or
engaged in wrongful or unlawful actions to foreclose redemption, “prohibit”
payments, and impede the Plaintiff and Class Members rights to pursue claims
or receive payment for the gold bearer bonds in the United States or elsewhere;
i)

Engaged in racketeering activities, and/or wire and mail fraud, extortion;

j)

Transported and sold securities and/or commercial instruments in the US

and/or which caused direct affect in the US, in violation of 28 U.S.C. §1605
(a) (2); or 28 U.S.C.A. 1605 (a)(3); participated and/or profited from the
wrongful expropriation/taking in violation of International Law, of property
belonging to bondholders which was located in the US and elsewhere.
k)

Caused economic loss/damage to Plaintiffs /Class Members which
property located in the US and elsewhere, violation 28 USC 1605 (a);

l)

Violated the Holocaust Victims Redress Act of 1998, and the National

Stolen Property Act of 1994; and Violated the 1899, 1907, and 1930 Hague
Convention, and violated the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, and
international law, Other Treaties & Jus Cogens, international loan contracts.
m) Violated the European Convention on Human Rights, Article 1, Protocol
1; and violated the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties 1969;
(n)

Defendants engaged in deception, fraudulent statements,

scheme to defraud the plaintiffs/class members, bondholders
and/or market place, and engaged in spoliation of evidence related to the BONDS, including, but not limited, the fabrication
of a “bad list” of allegedly “looted bonds” or “BLACK LIST”.
STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS
119.

PLAINTIFFS, RICHARD BLEIER, CHRISTOPHER MARK, and ELFRIEDE

KORBER, are legal and equitable owners and/or in possession of hundreds of German
gold bearer bond/s, including but not limited to, the following types of gold bonds:
(a) RHEINELBE UNION bonds, (b) DAWES bonds, (c) YOUNG bonds, (d) FREE
STATE OF BAVARIA bonds, and (e) UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION
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bonds - and Plaintiffs have never been paid for their German gold bearer bond/s, by
Defendants, and Plaintiffs seek redemption and payment for their German gold bearer
bonds, and full payment according to the payment terms of the bonds, individually, and on
behalf of the Class members, and bondholders.
120.

There are many bondholders; such as Plaintiffs, and Class Members, (and/or their

predecessors, heirs, successors, assigns and/or their representatives); who own or possess
bonds, certain German Gold Bearer Bonds, known as Dawes, Young, Free State of Bavaria,
United Steel Works Corporation, and/or Rheinelbe Union bonds, or such other legitimate
German gold bonds; whose bonds have never been redeemed and/or for which no payment
has been made by Defendants - and for which Plaintiffs and Class Members, in general, seek
redemption and payment of their bonds according to the express payment terms of the bonds.
Many bondholders and Class Members continue to be defrauded, frustrated, or intimidated, or
dissuaded from seeking to redeem bonds due to the very scheme to defraud, breaches, and
pattern of racketeering activity, and wrongful situation created by Germany and Defendants.
a.

There exists many bondholders; such as Plaintiffs or Class Members, (and/or

their predecessors, heirs, successors, assigns, or representatives of owners), who own or
possess bearer bonds, certain German Gold Bonds, known as Dawes, Young and/or
Rheinelbe Union bonds, or other legitimate bonds, who DID NOT ACCEPT the
settlement “offer” as contained in the London Debt Accord 1953, and/or who did not
exchange or convert their bonds. And PLAINTIFFS did not accept, and CLASS
MEMBERS did not accept, the settlement “offer” contained in the London Debt Accord
1953, and did not exchange their bonds, and did not accept “pennies on the dollar”. And
PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS or their predecessors, or successors, or
representatives, decided to wait, even for decades, to redeem their bonds when they could
obtain full payment according to the terms of the bonds. Plaintiffs/Class Members were
not represented properly by Bondholders Councils or other Creditors Representatives, and
were not represented by their own counsel, during the London Debt Accord 1953.
b.

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS were never part of any payment or settlement

agreement with Germany/Defendants, and/or they never agreed to reduction of the debt
owed to them, pursuant to the bonds, which is their private right; Plaintiffs/Class Members
never agreed to altered, or modified, or changed, payment terms for the bonds; and they
were never part of any settlement with GERMANY or German agencies, or Defendants;
and Plaintiffs or Class Members were never part of any other agreement or other contract
for payment with any DEFENDANTS, and/or representatives of the Defendants.
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PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS were never part of any actions or other

contracts and/or other agreements which formed the basis of other legal actions by e.g.
Ronnie D. Fulwood, Eugene Thomason, James Grizzard, German Gold
Bondholders Redemption Group, LLC, Edward Fagan, Integrated Equities, and/or
others, who were part of the transactions upon which those persons or entities based
their claims against one or more of these defendants.
121.

PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS have discovered certain information or evidence

which indicates that from the period from 1945 to the present, certain officials or
representatives of the DEFENDANTS, and/or defendant GERMANY, or its agencies,
and/or former representatives of certain German government, financial, or banking
institutions and/or agencies, including but not limited to, DEFENDANTS GERMANY,
DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, GERMAN FINANCE MINISTRY, COMMERZBANK
AG, and DEUTSCHE BANK AG; and as well as the other DEFENDANTS, including but
not limited to, WARBURG DILLON, SCHRODERS, DEUTSCHE BANK
USA/BANKERS TRUST, UBS AG, JP MORGAN CHASE, MIZUHO, MELLON, SEB,
CITIBANK, CREDIT SUISSE, and BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS,
who were trustees, and/or agents for the trustees, and or guarantors, and/or co-obligors, and/or
alter egos, and/or redemption and paying agents, and/or successors thereof, named herein as
Defendants, were engaged in a conspiracy and/or Scheme to Defraud bondholders worldwide, and promulgated and disseminated false information and a spurious “validation”
scheme, and acted negligently and/or fraudulently, in connection with the bonds, and
acted with bad faith and/or in breached their fiduciary duties, and/or failed, or without
justification, refused to redeem or pay the bonds, to the detriment and economic harm of
bondholders and Plaintiffs and Class Members herein, and/or otherwise Germany and
Defendants created an environment of intimidation, fear, and situation of impossibility of
redemption and payment of bearer bonds according to the explicit terms of the bearer
bonds , directly inhibiting and preventing the Plaintiffs, and/or Class Members, from
asserting their full rights under the bonds, and Defendants unjustly “prohibited” payments.
122.

DEFENDANTS, HAVE, including but not limited to, among other things:
a)

Been unjustly enriched by their acts; and defaulted on the bond obligations

b)

Refused meaningful redemption or payment of the bonds;

c)

Refused to provide full and complete disclosure;

d)

Provided false or misleading statements relative to the worth (or lack
thereof) of the bonds and/or false or misleading statements regarding the
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validity (or lack thereof) of the bondholders’ claims and/or provided false or
misleading statements regarding the “looting of bonds” or “validation”
process or redemption or payment of the bonds, all to the detrimental reliance
and emotional and economic and business damage of bondholders;
e)

Failed to institute necessary and reasonable protocols and/or instructions
to the various bondholders and redemption institutions in Germany, the US
and worldwide;

f)

Failed to take steps to prevent and/or protect Plaintiffs/Class Members,

bondholders, from conspiracies, fraudulent and/or wrongful acts related to the
German Gold Bonds, which conspiracies, fraudulent and/or other wrongful acts were
known to one of more defendants;
g)

Knowingly, carelessly, recklessly and/or negligently participated in a

conspiracy designed to frustrate and/or interfere with Plaintiff/Class Members,
bondholders’ ability to redeem the German Gold Bonds; and knowingly,
carelessly, recklessly and/or negligently participated in a conspiracy to cause
economic or property or business or emotional damage to Plaintiff/Class Members
and those who sought to redeem and obtain payment for the German Gold Bonds;
h)

Engaged in commission of fraud and/or conspiracy to commit fraud

and/or deprived Plaintiff/Class members of their constitutional rights, and/or engaged
in actions to impede, circumscribe, foreclose redemption, “prohibit” payment, cause
forfeiture, denial of the Plaintiff and Class Members rights to pursue claims and
receive payment for the German gold bearer bonds in the United States or elsewhere;
i)

Engaged in racketeering activities and/or wire and mail fraud;
Transported and sold securities and/or commercial instruments in the
US and/or which caused direct affect in the US, in violation of 28
U.S.C. section 1605 (a) (2);

j)

Participated and/or profited from the wrongful expropriation/taking

in violation of US laws and International Law of property belonging to
bondholders which property was located in the US and elsewhere, in
violation of 28 U.S.C.A. 1605 (a) (3);
(k)

Caused economic loss/damage to Plaintiff /Class Members which
property was located in the US and elsewhere, in violation of 28
U.S.C.A. 1605 (a);

(l)

Defendants violated the Holocaust Victims Redress Act of 1998
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and violated the National Stolen Property Act of 1994; and
Violated the 1899, 1907, 1930 Hague Convention and Universal
Declaration of Human Rights, Other Treaties & Jus Cogens;
m)

Defendants violated the European Convention on Human
Rights Article 1, Protocol 1;

(n)

Engaged in deception, fraudulent statements, scheme to
defraud the Plaintiff/Class Members, bondholders and/or
the market place, and engaged in spoliation of evidence related to the BONDS, including, but not limited, THE
BLACK LIST.

123.

Subsequent to World War I, Germany was forced to make certain reparation payments.

In an effort to assist Germany to deal with the burdens, bond issues with coupons were
created called the "Dawes Bonds" (named after Senator Dawes who devised the bond issue
plan). Bonds were sold to American citizens and denominated in Gold US dollars.
124.

More than eighty five (85) issues, representing hundreds of millions of gold US dollars,

were marketed, sold and/or targeted to US Citizens and others, during the years of 1924 and
1930. One final issue of bonds was called the "Young Bonds" (named after a US Senator
Young, in 1930 a year after the great stock market crash), was designed to assist
GERMANY repayment of the Dawes bonds. When Hitler came to power in 1933, the
payments on the German Gold Bonds hereinafter went into default and remain in that
status until today.
125.

In addition to the Dawes & Young Bonds, the Federal Republic of GERMANY, and/or

its related agencies, also Issued, or Guaranteed, or Insured, and/or assumed full liability,
and/or were fully Responsible for payment of the Rheinelbe Union Bonds, Free State of
Bavaria Bonds, United Steel Works Bonds, and other legitimate German gold bearer bonds.
126.

GERMANY, the UNITED STATES and/or DEFENDANTS, Guaranteed, Insured,

Assumed liability, or Succeeded to redemption and paying agents, or were/are Trustees,
responsible for payment of the bonds in the event of default, and/or were/are Paying and
Redemption agents, responsible for payment, and DEFENDANTS are jointly and/or
severally responsible for redemption and payment of the Young, Dawes and Rheinelbe
Union Bonds, and other legitimate bearer bonds of the PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS.
127.

The Dawes, Young, and Rheinelbe Union bonds, Free State of Bavaria,

United Steel Works Corporation, and the other legitimate bonds, (hereinafter
collectively “German Gold Bonds" or “BONDS”) were/are tied to the United States
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Gold Dollar, and Defendants are responsible for redemption and payment accordingly.
128.

The bonds were sold via the Defendants’ banks or financial institutions, in the

United States, or otherwise, and via the DEFENDANTS, that acted as/were/are
Trustees, or Selling Brokers, or Authenticating, Collection, or Redemption and/or
Paying Agents, and/or Guarantors, and/or obligors, and/or alter egos of each other,
and/or successors thereof, and Defendants are co-obligors, and DEFENDANTS are
jointly and/or severally responsible for redemption and payment of Plaintiff and Class
Members’ German Gold Bonds.
129.

In 1952, seven years after the close of World War II, a series of meetings were

held in London to determine how GERMANY's pre war and post war debt, including
the German Gold Bonds held by Plaintiffs and Class Members would be paid.
GERMANY, and its German officials, including but not limited to, the German
CHANCELLOR KONRAD ADENAUER; and GERMANY’S public and private
financial institutions, STATED, CONFIRMED, ACCEPTED that Federal Republic of
GERMANY would take full responsibility for all of the prewar debt, including the
debt to the holders of the German Gold Bonds such as Plaintiff or Class Members,
and other bondholders, and would pay the bondholders according to the terms of the
debts.
130.

The Agreement was formally known as The Agreement on German External Debt

1953, or is more commonly known as, the London Debt Accord 1953. Through the
London Debt Accord 1953, the DEFENDANTS, and/or GERMANY, and/or the debtors
and obligors, sought to reduce, or limit the size of their debt and reduce the obligations
to pay bondholders for the German Gold Bonds. The London Debt Accord 1953
resulted in a significant reduction of GERMAN external debt (approximately a 70%
reduction of German debt). HOWEVER it did not result in a complete elimination of
German debt, as the PLAINTIFFS and/or CLASS MEMBERS had not been paid, and
DEFENDANTS remain jointly and/or severally liable, for full payment of the
outstanding bonds, to the Plaintiff or Class Members.
131.

The London Debt Accord 1953, also afforded GERMANY and/or DEFENDANTS

the opportunity to postpone debt repayment, and Germany's, public and private
financial institutions, issued a MORATORIUM on the repayments to the bond holders
of German Gold Bearer Bonds and the effect was POSTPONING payment for at
least (40) forty years.
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Pursuant to the settlement procedures of the London Debt Accord 1953, for

those bondholders who accepted the “validation” scheme - new bonds in exchange
for the old bonds were issued, and these “conversion” bonds had to be paid first; and
therefore by treaty or statutory “prohibition”, the “non-assenting” bondholders
who did not exchange or “convert” their bonds, and did not accept the “settlement
offer”, in general, had to wait 40 years or more.
133.

PLAINTIFF’S/CLASS MEMBERS’ BONDS, could NOT be presented for

redemption or payment in GERMANY or the UNITED STATES, and/or
DEFENDANTS’ redemption, and paying agents, financial institutions for decades.
Now, in 2009 the Plaintiffs and Class Members have the right to assert their claims
for redemption and for payment of the bonds, which are timely and appropriate
134.

During the London Debt Accord 1953, and years thereafter, GERMANY, and its

agents or officials, and/or DEFENDANTS, implemented a scheme to defraud
bondholders, and/or their predecessors, heirs, assigns, successors, or representatives.
As part of the scheme to defraud bondholders, GERMANY, during the London debt
conferences 1952, deceptively declared that its vaults in Berlin which contained
certain gold bonds had been “looted” and that the bonds were removed from the
Reichsbank on May 8 th, 1945 by invading Russian soldiers.
135.

However, trading on the bonds was ongoing during many years after the end of

the war from 1945 to 1952, in particular in SWITZERLAND, where trading never
stopped on the bonds, and the trading of the German gold bonds occurred during that
time, so therefore the alleged “thieves” had (8) eight years to liquidate their bonds,
prior to the enactment of the “validation” schemes. Bondholders who bought the
bonds from recognized stock exchanges, were being expected or compelled to forfeit
their investments, or accept “pennies on the dollar”.
136.

The alleged “theft” of the bonds was a mere possibility. This was indicated in the

Agreement between the UNITED STATES and GERMANY regarding Certain
Matters Arising from the Validation of German Dollar Bonds which states: “Whereas
the United States and Germany have agreed that it in their best interest to provide for
the determination of the validity of German dollar bonds…in view of the possibility…
that a large number bonds may have been unlawfully acquired during hostilities in
Germany..”.
137.

The Securities Act of May 27, 1933, under the provisions of Subchapters 1 and 2,

Domestic Securities, held that the “Act will apply to securities offered by foreign
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issuers including foreign governments.” 15 U.S.C. 77b note 77 page 41. For
example, Defendants JP MORGAN CHASE, DEUTSCHE BANK AG/BANKERS
TRUST, BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, CITIBANK N.A., are the “American
Trustees” and Fiduciaries for the Dawes, Young, or Rheinelbe Union Bonds, or other
bonds.
138.

It was the major banking houses like J.P. Morgan that underwrote many of the

issues, e.g. the Dawes bonds. Contained in the pages of the Congressional Record, of
the United States Senate of Tuesday March 15, 1932 starting on page 6052, the text of
the speech of Senator Hiram Johnson delivered to the United States Senate concerning
what his committee investigation had uncovered. The main points of Senator Hiram
Johnson’s speech have been included in the introduction herein (Pages 9-11) - which
depict the avarice of the international banks who conned the American investors, and
used certain prospectuses of loans which were substantially untrue and designed to
deceive investors into buying billions of dollars of German bonds.
139.

The United States became the “Country of Offering” under the so called

“validation” agreements, and the United States is thus a Secondary Guarantor and CoObligor on the bonds, and has obligations to pay the bonds in the event of default.
The United States, being bound by virtue of its corporate character, its sovereignty is
not involved. The United States government even went so far as to as inform small
banks at the time that they should invest 10% of their total assets in foreign
government bonds, as stated by Senator Langer, in the Senate hearings before the
Committee on Foreign Relations – United States Senate Eighty Third Congress First
Session on Executives D,E,F,G, dated June 17, 18, 1953 P.37. The State Department
issued “no objection” letters for the bonds issue - and thus giving tacit approval and/or became involved in requests to American financial institutions to sell bonds.
140.

Substantial amounts of money of innocent bondholders, such as

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS went into and/or remain in the coffers of
DEFENDANTS, by means of fraud, to which DEFENDANTS and their agents, or
successors, participated and/or acquiesced and have been unjustly enriched. Such
money is being illegally withheld by the DEFENDANTS, against the legitimate
claims of the wronged and injured bondholders such as Plaintiffs and Class Members
for payment of their bonds, including payment of principal and interest.
141.

Defendants’ are jointly and/or severally liable for payment of the bonds, based

upon, including, but not limited to: the BONDS themselves, and notably, the bonds
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name and identify the DEFENDANTS (or predecessors or successors thereof) as
responsible for payment of the bonds and the terms and conditions of payment.
DEFENDANTS are also named therein as the Trustees and/or Redemption and/or
Paying agents and/or Fiduciaries responsible for payment of the bonds (or
predecessors or successors thereof). Defendants are also liable based on the Express
contractual obligations, and the Implied contracts and duties of good faith, and the
Fiduciary duties and/or the equitable justifications, in order to prevent fraud and
injustice, and to prevent the Defendants’ unjust enrichment, and to prevent substantial
harm to Plaintiffs/Class Members.

DESCRIPTION OF THE GERMAN GOLD BONDS – AND RELEVANT TERMS
THE REDEMPTION AND PAYING AGENTS AND TRUSTEES
DEFENDANTS RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT OF PLAINTIFFS’ BONDS

A.

RHEINELBE UNION BONDS

142.

The Federal Republic of Germany is fully liable for payment of the Rheinelbe

Union bonds, and assumed full liability and the Rheinelbe Union bonds are listed on
the Schedule of Foreign Currency Bonds (See Document 62-2, filed in this case by
Defendants on 03/27/2009 page 25 of 26, Ser. No. 64, and incorporated by reference
herein) and the Federal Republic of Germany unequivocally and explicitly accepted
the obligation to pay the bondholders of the RHEINELBE UNION BONDS, including
those Rheinelbe Union bonds in possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members.
143.

The RHEINELBE UNION bond (copy attached herein) states in pertinent parts:

144. “Gelsenkirchener Bergwerks Aktien Gesellschaft of Gelsenkirchen, Germany,
Deutsch Luxemburgische Bergwerks und Hutten Aktiengesellschaft, of Bochum,
Germany, and Bochumer Verein Fur Bergbau und Gussstahlfabrikatino, of Bochum,
Germany, all corporations organized under the laws of Germany (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Companies) for value received hereby jointly and
severally promise to pay to the bearer hereof, or if this bond is registered, to the
registered owner…, at the office of Dillon, Read and Co, .. or at the option of the
bearer, or registered owner hereof, at the principal office of J. Henry Schroder
Banking Corporation, or their respective successors, as Fiscal Agents, in the borough
of Manhattan City, and the state of New York, United States of America,--One
Thousand Dollars-- and to pay interest thereon from January 1926 at the rate of 7%
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per annum, semi annually, on the first day of January and the first day of July, until
payment of such principal sum…”.
145. “…The principal and interest on this bond ... are payable in gold coin of the
United States of America, of, or equal to the standard weight and fineness existing in
January 1926,... and without deduction or diminution of any taxes, or charges, past or
present, or future, of the German National government…payment shall be made in
time of war, as well as time of peace, irrespective of the nationality of the person, firm
or corporation entitled to receive such payment, and irrespective of any regulation,
treaty or convention of the German National Government, or any subdivision
thereof, or any other authorities, …”;
146. “…the intent hereof being that at all times, and under all circumstances, the
person, firm or corporation, entitled to receive such payment, in every case, shall
receive, and the Companies agree to pay without diminution or deduction,...the full
specified amount…”; and
147. “Principal of, and interest on this bond, shall also be collectible at the option of
the bearer,… either in London, England, at the office of J. Henry Schroder & Co., in
Pounds Sterling, or in Amsterdam, Holland, at the offices of Mendelssohn & Co.,
Amsterdam Nederlandsche Handel-Maatschapijj, and Pierson and Co., in Dutch
Guilders…”.
148.

The American Trustee on the Rheinelbe Union bonds, responsible for payment of

the bonds and named on the bonds, and/or the indenture, is the American ExchangePacific National Bank, now BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, which is
responsible for redemption and payment of the Rhienelbe Union bonds of bondholders,
including those bonds of Plaintiffs.
149.

The Redemption and Paying agents responsible for payment of Rhienelbe Union

bonds also named on the bonds, are – Dillon, Read & Co., now UBS AG; and J. Henry
Schroder Banking Corp., now MIZUHO CORPORATE BANK; J. Henry Schroder
& Co., now SCHRODERS PLC; and they are all liable for redemption and payment
of the Rheinelbe Union bonds, of the bondholders, including those Rheinelbe Union
bonds in possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members, or their representatives.
150.

The redemption and paying agent and “Examining Agency” in Germany for

payment of the RHEINELBE UNION bonds is COMMERZBANK AG, and its
related entities, and by its own declaration or admission, COMMERZBANK AG has
stated that it been designated as “EXAMINING AGENCY” for the redemption and
payment of the RHEINELBE UNION bonds.
151.

COMMERZBANK AG is liable and responsible for redemption and payment of

the RHEINELBE UNION bonds in possession of bondholders including the Rheinelbe
Union bonds in possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members, or their representatives.
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B.

DAWES BONDS

152.

The Federal Republic of Germany and its related agencies herein, are fully

responsible and fully liable for payment of the Dawes Bonds, and GERMANY
explicitly and unequivocally accepted full responsibility, and assumed full liability for
payment of the DAWES BONDS, to bondholders, including payment for those Dawes
bonds in possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members.
153.

The Dawes bonds were are listed in the Schedule of Foreign Currency Bonds (See

Document 62-2, filed in this case by Defendants on 03/27/2009 page 19 of 26, Ser.
No. 1(i), and incorporated by reference herein) and part of the “Validation Law for
German Foreign Currency Bonds 1952” (Copy of Dawes bond - previously filed as an
Exhibit G, Doc. 65-9, 04/10/2009, and incorporated by reference herein).
154.

The redemption and paying agents and trustees, for the DAWES BONDS,

responsible for payment named on the bonds are: J.P. Morgan & Co., now Defendant,
J.P. Morgan Chase, N.A.; and, Bankers Trust Company, now Deutsche Bank AG
and Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, and/or Deutsche Bank Trust Co. America.
155.

Presently, the Redemption and Paying agents and/or Trustees on the DAWES

BONDS are as follows: JP MORGAN CHASE N.A., DEUTSCHE
BANK/BANKERS TRUST, and DEUTSCHE BANK AG and DEUTSCHE BANK
TRUST CO. AMERICA, are liable for redemption and payment of the Dawes bonds
of bondholders including for payment of the Dawes bonds in the possession of
Plaintiffs and Class Members, or their representatives.
156.

In addition, Trustee and/or unconditional obligor and guarantor on the Dawes

bonds, is the BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS, (“BIS”), which is
unconditionally liable for payment of the Dawes bonds.
157.

The international loan agreement for the Dawes bonds is subject to international

law and cannot be repudiated by Germany or Defendants and there is no applicable
statute of limitations for these Dawes bonds under the law of nations or the Hague
Agreement 1930 or international law.
158.

The German External Loan 1924, the DAWES BONDS, which states in relevant

parts:
159.

“The German Reich (hereinafter termed obligor), for value received hereby

promises to pay on the 15th day of October 1949, to the bearer of this bond, the
principal sum of “ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS” and to pay semi-annually on the 15 th
day of April and the 15th day of October in each year, until such principal shall have
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been paid, interest thereon at the rate of seven percent per annum….”;
160.

“Such principal sum and such interest shall be paid in the city of New York, State

of New York, United States of America at the office of J.P. Morgan & Co., in the
Borough of Manhattan in said city of New York, in gold coin of the United States of
America, of the standard weight and fineness existing on October 15th, 1924, without
deduction for all or any present or future German taxes…”
161.

“The Obligor further covenants that in no case or event will this bond or the

coupons for interest be attached or sequestered, and that all and any moneys in this
Bond covenanted to be paid upon or in respect of this Bond will be paid in time of war
as well as in time of peace and whether or not the holder of the bonds or any interest
coupons is a subject of a State friendly or hostile to German Reich…”.
162.

“This Bond is one of the Seven Percent Gold Bonds (hereinafter termed collectively

the (“Bonds of this issue”) of the Obligor, for the aggregate principal amount of
$110,000,000 payable in the above defined gold coin of the United States of America,
issued therein; which bonds constitute part of the German External Loan 1924
(hereinafter referred to as the “Loan”) for the purpose and in respect of which the
Obligor has executed its General Bond dated October 10, 1924, of which General
Bond a transcript in full is printed on the reverse hereof.
163.

“The sum due on this Bond in the event of such redemption will be paid in the

above-defined gold coin of the United States of America at the place of payment
hereof above expressed.”
164.

The redemption and paying agent and “Examining Agency” in Germany for

payment of the DAWES bonds is and its related entities, and by its own declaration
and/or admission, is the Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienst und Offene
Vermogensfragen (“BADV”), and the PRUFSTELLE FUR AUSLANDBONDS
DES DEUTSCHEN REICHS (“PFA”) in Berlin, Germany, (collectively known as
“BADV-PFA” in Berlin) and has acknowledged by Ms. Ingrid Jaeger in a letter to
Plaintiffs’ counsel that it is the “EXAMINING AGENCY” for the “validation” and/or
“redemption and payment” of the DAWES bonds.
165.

In addition, BADV-PFA is liable and responsible for redemption and payment of

the DAWES bonds in possession of bondholders including the Dawes bonds in
possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members, or their representatives.
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C.

YOUNG BONDS

166.

The Federal Republic of Germany is fully responsible and fully liable for payment

of the Young Bonds, and GERMANY explicitly and unequivocally accepted full
responsibility, and assumed full liability for payment of the YOUNG BONDS, to
bondholders, including payment for those Young bonds in possession of Plaintiffs and
Class Members.
167.

The Young bonds are listed in the Schedule of Foreign Currency Bonds (See

Document 62-2, filed in this case by Defendants on 03/27/2009 page 19 of 26, Ser.
No. 1(i), and incorporated by reference herein) which Schedule was in the “The
Validation Law for German Foreign Currency Bonds of 1952”.
168.

The YOUNG BONDS state in relevant part, including but not limited to, (copy

and/or full transcription attached herein):
169.

“The German Reich (hereinafter termed obligor), for value received hereby

promises to pay on the first day of June 1965, to the bearer of this bond, the principal
sum of “ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS” and to pay semi-annually on the first day of
June and the first day of December in each year, until such principal shall have been
paid, interest thereon at the rate of Five and one-half percent per annum….”;
170.

“Such principal sum and such interest shall be paid in the city of New York, State

of New York, United States of America at the office of J.P. Morgan & Co., in the
Borough of Manhattan in said city of New York, in gold coin of the United States of
America, of the standard weight and fineness existing on June 1, 1930, without
deduction for all present or future German taxes, stamp, other duties, dues or public
charges, of any kind whatsoever… In the below General Bond the Obligor has
covenanted that payment may, however, at the option of the holder, be effected on any
foreign market where any of the Bonds
171.

“The Obligor further covenants that in no case or event will this bond or the

coupons for interest be attached or sequestered, and that all and any moneys in this
Bond covenanted to be paid upon or in respect of this Bond will be paid in time of war
as well as in time of peace and whether or not the holder of the bonds or any interest
coupons is a subject of a State friendly or hostile to the German Reich…”
172.

“This Bond is one of the Five and One-half percent Gold Bonds (hereinafter

termed collectively the “Bonds of this issue”) of the Obligor, for the aggregate
principal amount of $98,250,000 payable in the above defined gold coin of the United
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States of America, issued therein; which bonds constitute part of the German
Government International 5 ½% Loan 1930 (hereinafter referred to as the “Loan”)
described in the General Bond (of which a transcript in full is printed on the reverse
hereof) dated June 10, 1930,,, executed by the Obligor with the Bank For
International Settlements as Trustee there under.
173.

“Nothing in the General Bond or in the Hague Agreement or elsewhere limits,

restricts, or varies, or shall be deemed to limit, restrict or vary the rights of the holder
of this bond, which Bond is and shall be the direct and unconditional obligation of
the Obligor.”
174.

“The sum due on this Bond in the event of any redemption hereof shall be paid in

the above-defined gold coin of the United States of America at the above expressed
place of payment of this Bond.”
175.

In addition, the redemption and paying agents and trustees, for the YOUNG

BONDS, responsible for payment and named on the bonds are: J.P. Morgan & Co.,
now is the Defendant, JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., and, The First National
Bank of the City of New York, now CITIBANK, N.A. and/or CITIGROUP.
176.

Presently, the Redemption and Paying agents and/or Trustees on the YOUNG

BONDS are as follows: JP MORGAN CHASE N.A., and CITIBANK N.A., and both
are liable for redemption and payment of the Dawes bonds of bondholders including
for payment of the Dawes bonds in the possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members, or
their representatives.
177.

In the scope of the Hague Agreements 1930, the Bank for International

Settlements (BIS) was founded in 1930, established at Basel, Switzerland. BIS was a
vital part for the enforcement of the regulations and the plan in accordance with the
Articles of Association such as Article 4, and Hague Agreement, for Germany payment
of the bonds and BIS acted as Trustee. The text of the General Bond, (Reverse side of
Young Bond) states that:
178.

“These Presents are entered into between the Government of the German Reich

(hereinafter called the German government) of the one part and the Bank for
International Settlements as Trustee for the holders of the Bonds for the time being
issued and outstanding under the provisions of these presents (hereinafter called “The
Bank”) of the other part”.
179.

Bank for International Settlements (BIS) as Trustee for bondholders was

assigned the task of making certain that payments of the coupons and bonds was made
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correctly and timely, and BIS facilitating the execution, operation, management of the
plan for the Young bonds, and/or also repayment of the German External Loan 1924
(Dawes bonds).
180.

As Trustee and unconditional Obligor and Guarantor on the Young bonds is the

BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS, which is liable for payment of
the Young bonds. The international loan contract for the Young bonds is subject to
international law and pursuant to the Hague Agreement 1930 and cannot be repudiated
by Germany or the Bank for International Settlements and there is no applicable statute
of limitations for these bonds under international law or the Hague Agreement of 1930.
D.

UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION BONDS

181.

GERMANY is fully liable and responsible for payment of the UNITED STEEL

WORKS CORPORATION BONDS and the Federal Republic of Germany accepted
and assumed full liability and responsibility for payment of the United Steel Works
Corporation bonds, 20 Year 6 ½ % Sinking Fund Debenture, Series A, Due July 1,
and listed on the Schedule of Foreign Currency Bonds (See Document 62-2, filed in
this case by Defendants on 03/27/2009 page 25 of 26, Ser. No. 81, and incorporated by
reference herein)
182.

The Federal Republic of Germany unequivocally and explicitly accepted full

liability for payment of these bonds and accepted the obligation to pay the bondholders
of the UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION bonds, including those in
possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members (Copy of bond attached herein).
183.

The UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION bonds states in relevant parts,

including but not limited to:
184.

“Vereinigte Stahlwerke Aktiengesellscschaft of Dusseldorf, Germany, a

corporation organized and existing under the laws of Germany (hereinafter called the
Company) for value received hereby promises to pay to the bearer hereof, or if this
Debenture is registered, to the registered owner on July 1, 1947, unless before said
date such Debenture shall have been duly redeemed, at the principal office of Dillon,
Read & Co, or, its successor, as Fiscal Agent, in the borough of Manhattan City, and
the state of New York, United States of America,--ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS
($1,000), and to pay interest thereon from July 1, 1927, at the rate of 6 and one half
percent (6 ½ %) per annum, semi annually, on the first day of January and July, in
each year, until payment of such principal sum…”.
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The UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION bond also states in relevant parts

that…
186.

The principal and interest … on this Debenture ...and payments into the Sinking

Fund…are payable in gold coin of the United States of America, of, or equal to the
standard weight and fineness existing in July 1, 1927,... and without deduction or
diminution of any taxes, or charges, past or present, or future, of the German National
government…payment shall be made in time of war, as well as time of peace,
irrespective of the nationality of the person, firm or corporation entitled to receive
such payment, and irrespective of any regulation, treaty or convention of the German
National Government, or any subdivision thereof, or any other authorities, …”;
187.

“Principal of, and premium, if any, and interest, and contingent additional

interest if any, on this DEBENTURE, shall also be collectible at the option of the
bearer,… either in London, England, at the office of J. Henry Schroder & Co., in
Pounds Sterling, or in Amsterdam, Holland, at the offices of Mendelssohn & Co.,
Amsterdam Nederlandsche Handel-Maatschapijj, and Pierson and Co., in Dutch
Guilders, or in Zurich, Switzerland, at the office of Credit Suisse, in Swiss
Francs,…and of Stockholm’s Enskilda Bank in Swedish Kroner…
188.

“This Debenture shall pass by delivery, unless registered in the owner’s name…”

189.

In addition, the redemption and paying agents and trustees, for the UNITED

STEEL WORKS CORPORATION BONDS, responsible for redemption and payment
and named on the bonds are the following: American Exchange Irving Trust Company
(named as United States Trustee)., now Defendant, BANK OF NEW YORK
MELLON; and, Credit Suisse, now CREDIT SUISSE GROUP AG; and Enskilda
Bank, now SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN AB; and also, J. Henry
Schroder & Co., now SCHRODERS PLC, and Dillon, Read & Co., which is now
UBS AG
190.

Presently, the Redemption and Paying agents and Trustees and liable parties on the

UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION bonds are as follows: Bank of New
York Mellon (trustee), Credit Suisse Group AG, Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken
and Schroders, and UBS; (redemption and paying agents and/or selling brokers).
191.

DRESDNER BANK AG in Dusseldorf is the alleged “Examining Agency/Paying

Agent” in Germany, also liable for redemption and payment of the United Steel Works
Corporation bonds, including for payment of the United Steel Works Corporation
bonds in the possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members, or their representatives, and
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Dresdner Bank has refused to respond to Plaintiffs’ requests for redemption and
misrepresented by email on 25 June 2009, that it would respond as “soon as possible”.
E. FREE STATE OF BAVARIA BONDS
192.

GERMANY assumed full liability for payment of the Free State of Bavaria

bonds, External 20 Year 6 ½ % Sinking Fund Gold Bond, Due August 1, 1945, and
listed on the Schedule of Foreign Currency Bonds (See Document 62-2, filed in this
case by Defendants on 03/27/2009 page 22 of 26, Ser. No. 6, and incorporated by
reference herein).
193.

The Federal Republic of Germany unequivocally and explicitly accepted the

obligation to pay the bondholders of the FREE STATE OF BAVARIA bonds,
including those bonds in possession of Plaintiffs and Class Members.
194.

The FREE STATE OF BAVARIA bonds states in relevant parts (copy of the bond

attached herein):
195.

“The Free State of Bavaria (Freistat Bayern), of the German Reich, (hereinafter

called the State) for value received hereby promises to pay to the bearer hereof, or if
registered, to the registered owner on August 1, 1945, --ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS-,in gold coin of the United States of America, of or equal to the standard of weight
and fineness existing on August 1, 1925, at the principal office of The Equitable Trust
Company of New York in the Borough of Manhattan, in the city of New York, in United
States of America,
196.

“…and to pay interest thereon from August 1, 1925,until the principal hereof is

paid, at the rate of 6 and one half percent per annum, payable at said office in like
gold coin semi annually, on February and August , in each year..”
197.

In addition, the Redemption and Paying agents and Trustees, for the FREE STATE

OF BAVARIA bonds, named on the bonds are: The Equitable Trust Company of New
York (named as United States Trustee and Redemption and Paying Agent), is now the
Defendant, JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
198.

Presently, the Redemption and Paying agents and Trustees on the FREE STATE

OF BAVARIA bonds is: JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., (trustee and/or redemption
and/or paying agent and unconditional obligor).
199.

JP Morgan Chase Bank is liable for redemption and payment of the Free State of

Bavaria bonds of bondholders, including for payment of the Free State of Bavaria
bonds in the possession of Plaintiffs, Class Members, or their representatives.
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The ostensible “Examining Agency” in Germany for redemption and payment of

Free State of Bavaria bonds is Landesamt Fur Finanzen Staatsschuldenverwaltung,
located in Munchen, and has refused to provide any information for redemption and
payment in English.
201.

Landesamt fur Finanzen has implemented a strategy to foreclose redemption and is

in breach of its fiduciary obligations and duties relative to the German gold bearer
bonds - which were sold in the United States and subject to American law, and the
bonds language is in English, and the applicable treaties and “Validation” laws require
the establishment of “validation” procedures in English and/or within the territorial
jurisdiction of the United States.
202.

Herr Huber, on behalf of the Landesamt fur Finanzen, in his letter of 08/07/2009

to Plaintiff’s counsel, has again reiterated the bogus criteria for “validation” and
artificial requirement of “proof of ownership of bonds in 1945 outside Germany”
(pursuant to Germany’s fabricated and false story of “looting of bonds by Russians”)
203.

Herr Huber has refused to communicate in English, which is another linguistic

barrier and method which Germany and its agencies employ to deter and obstruct and
prevent American bondholders from asserting their rights and claims for payment of
their bonds, in order to increase the costs of redemption and force Plaintiffs to incur
costs of translators and/or lawyers in Germany, all contrary to the treaties/s, and
agreements and explicit terms of the bonds. This letter by Herr Huber of 08/07/09,
with its false and spurious requirements, is also part of the “mail and wire fraud”, and
“pattern of racketeering activity” engaged in by the Defendants, and scheme to defraud
Plaintiffs and/or Class members and bondholders in violation of the RICO act.
204.

There are a multitude of types of bonds (other than the bonds in possession of

Plaintiffs herein) and presumably there are a multitude of “Examining Agencies” not
included and not identified herein.
205.

Germany has designated or selected numerous ostensible “Examining Agencies”

for dealing with the claims relative to German gold Bearer bonds and for redemption
and payment of bonds and/or “validation” and are also involved in the scheme to
defraud bondholders - but not known, or not named in this present action, and may be
added at some future time, as appropriate.
206.

PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, bondholders were not represented by counsel at

the London Debt Accord 1953, and their best interests were not properly represented
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by the Bondholders Protective Councils during the conference.
207.

Senator Hiram Johnson had campaigned to exclude Wall Street bankers from any

role in the Bond Holders Protective organizations, as in his view they had “perpetuated
the wrong”, and had violated “elementary business ethics” in selling of the bonds, and
the Council was influenced by the law firm of Sullivan and Cromwell, which in the
1930’s, represented bondholders, and contemporaneously defaulting German firms.
208.

The GERMAN government, and official representatives (E.g. Chancellor Konrad

Adenauer) and/or agencies, officially stated Germany’s intentions, and Germany
agreed to redeem and pay for the bonds, and formally recognized the Federal
Republic of Germany’s contractual obligations to pay the debts on the defaulted
bonds, and for that principal purpose entered the Agreement on German External Debt
1953, which states in the Preamble: “CONSIDERING that, for about twenty years,
payments on German external debts have not, in general, conformed to the contractual
terms, that from 1939 to 1945 the existence of a state of war prevented any payments
from being made with respect to many of such debts, that since 1945 such payments
have been generally suspended, and that the Federal Republic of Germany desires to
put an end to this situation” (See: Document 65-3, Agreement on German External
Debt 1953, previously filed 04/10/2009; Document 65-10 previously filed on
04/10/2009 as “Plaintiff’s Exhibit E”; Document 65-11, previously filed 04/10/2009 as
“Plaintiff’s Exhibit A”; and the documents are incorporated by reference herein).
209.

The Agreement on German External Debt 1953 and “validation” laws or

schemes, were unconstitutional acts of Congress in the United States, and
unconstitutional acts in Germany.
210.

The ratification of the agreements by the United States and Germany were

unconstitutional to the Extent the agreements were violative of Plaintiffs’ and Class
Members’ constitutional rights guaranteed in the 5th, 7th, and 14th Amendments of the
United States Constitution, and to the extent they were violative of the Takings Clause.
211.

The Agreement on German External Debt 1953 and “Validation” schemes, were

in violation of the United States constitutional guarantees, including, but not limited to,
those found in the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments, which state: “No person shall be
deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law”, and in violation of
the constitutional guarantees “against impairment of private contracts”, pursuant to
Article I, Section X, which states, in part, that, “No State shall enter into any Treaty or
Alliance or Confederation… or Law Impairing the Obligations of Contracts..”
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The Agreement on German External Debt 1953 and other related “validation”

scheme, were in violation of Plaintiffs/Class Members constitutional right to “Trial by
Jury”, pursuant to the 7th Amendment, prescribing damage claims be fixed by JURY.
213.

The United States and German agreements relative to the BONDS, impaired the

obligations of contract vis-à-vis the Plaintiff or Class Members. Further, they
constituted an abuse of power to the extent of being a governmental deprivation of
bondholders’ rights, or taking of property, of Plaintiffs or Class Members, without just
compensation, or due process.
214.

The obligations of DEFENDANTS to pay PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS for

the bonds remain intact pursuant to the contractual terms of the BONDS.
Furthermore, the DEFENDANTS, by their express or implied agreements, and stated
or implied intentions, are liable to pay for the bonds. The treaties or agreements do
not relieve Germany or Defendants of liability for payment of the bonds, to the
contrary, they confirm liability.
215.

Even if the Agreement on German External Debt 1953 (or the London Debt Accord

1953), is deemed a valid, it is basically a proposal for settlement agreement – as
indicated by one of the heading “Approval of Settlement Terms and Procedures”
relative to the German gold bonds and German External Debt, and as such, the
“validation” schemes, are not binding on PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS.
216.

Moreover, many of the Defendants herein, such as the private international banks,

JP Morgan, Citibank, Schroders, Deutsche Bank, Commerzbank, Dresdner Bank,
Credit Suisse, Bank of New York Mellon, Mizuho, UBS, SEB, etc., are the
“unconditional obligors” for payment of the bonds, and Defendants have pecuniary
obligations and fiduciary duties, as the selling brokers, and/or as the redemption and
paying agents and/or as the trustees on the bonds at issue.
217.

Germany and the private international banks were not relieved of their duties or

responsibilities by the treaty which was between Germany and the United States and
other nations - the private banks were not “signatory party” to the treaties and cannot
impose fraudulent “validation” schemes and Defendant banks must abide by the terms
of the bonds and redeem and make payment directly to Plaintiffs according to the terms
of the bonds - for which the banks are respectively liable and responsible for payment.
218.

The Agreement on German External Debt1953, states explicitly that “it does

not in itself modify the terms of the debts to which it applies”. There is nothing
which precludes PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS from obtaining payments for the
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bonds via the United States Federal Courts, given:(a) the rights of the Plaintiffs/Class
Members to redeem the bonds, and (b) the refusal by Defendants to honor their
obligations pay for the bonds, and (c) the ongoing default, and law which recognizes
Bearer Bonds as enforceable, and (d) the law which recognizes the validity of the
payment Gold Clauses expressed in the bonds, as enforceable definite contracts (by
statute, US law and public policy), and long and approved use in the United States.
219.

The original contracts, and the terms of the BONDS, and the stated intentions of

the parties, govern the instant agreements, contracts and/or bonds. The
bondholders, PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS, are entitled to bring suit directly in
the United States, or appropriate forum of their choice, and to state their present and
timely claims against DEFENDANTS for the bad faith, fraud, default, and the refusal
to pay the bonds pursuant to the terms of the bonds, because of Defendants misconduct
and breach of pecuniary, contractual and fiduciary obligations relative to the bonds.
220.

The PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS did not accept the settlement “offer”

under the treaties. PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS had/have the right to payment
pursuant to the full terms of the debts and specified amounts of the bonds, and
Defendants are jointly and severally liable for redemption and payment of the bonds.
221.

The Plain language of the Agreement is that it applied to those creditors that

accepted the settlement of the London Debt Accord 1953 under “ARTICLE 15,
ACCEPTANCE BY CREDITORS”, which sets forth the methods of acceptance of
the settlement terms by a creditor who must voluntarily submit the old bonds and/or
coupons – for exchange or enfacement or “validation” pursuant to settlement offer.
The “Acceptance” by the creditor of the offer was a condition precedent to the
exchange and submission of his/her bonds to the “validation” scheme.
222.

In the absence of the voluntary submission by Plaintiffs or Class Members, or

bondholders, to the settlement “offer” and “validation” scheme for reduction of debt,
DEFENDANTS are obligated to honor the original payment terms of the bonds.
223.

The PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS rights were protected in the

international convention that formulated the London Debt Accord 1953, and therefore
it did not hinder the legal rights of American bondholders to proceed with their claims
in court in the event of refusal of payment of the bonds by DEFENDANTS.
224.

The Agreement on German External Debt 1953, Annex II stated that: AGREED

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE SETTLEMENT OF MEDIUM AND LONG
TERM DEBTS RESULTING FROM PRIVATE CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS –
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as stated in Article 1 – Introductory “This Agreement establishes terms and
procedures which are to govern the settlement of the debts described in Article III
below. The Agreement does not in itself modify the terms of the debts to which it
applies. Rather it is contemplated that new contracts will be entered into between each
debtor and his creditors pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.”
225.

Given the valid and legitimate and existing rights of PLAINTIFFS or CLASS

MEMBERS to redeem their gold bearer bonds - it is unlawful, and unenforceable, and
contrary to public policy or the international agreements, and contrary the terms of the
debts and bonds, and contrary to the stated intentions of the parties and debtors, and
contrary to the fiduciary duties or guarantees of the responsible parties or debtors, for
GERMANY or DEFENDANTS, to “deny” or “repudiate” their obligations to pay for
the bonds and existing debts, it is unlawful for Germany and Defendants to deny
Plaintiffs their rights and deprive them of interest and principal owing on the bonds.
226.

Further, it is unlawful, unenforceable and contrary to public policy and the

international agreements, and/or contrary to law or the terms of the debts or bonds, for
GERMANY and DEFENDANTS to attempt to compel Plaintiff or Class Members to
yield, or capitulate, or accept, or to subscribe to fraudulent “validation” schemes in
Germany, or elsewhere, as a prerequisite to redemption or payment, and these
conditions are not part of the terms of the debts or the bearer bonds.
227.

Further it is unlawful or unenforceable and/or contrary to public policy or the

international agreements, and/or contrary to law or the terms of the debts or bonds, or
the stated intentions of the Defendants, fiduciary duties, or guarantees, for
DEFENDANTS to violate, or cause violation, of the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS
MEMBERS constitutional rights under the US Constitution and Amendments.
228.

GERMANY and/or DEFENDANTS have taken unfair advantage of the so-called

and spurious “validation” schemes in order to “destroy and/or impair” PLAINTIFFS or
CLASS MEMBERS private contract rights, and to deprive them of their property
rights, the bonds or payments on the bonds.
229.

The “validation” schemes have been used by DEFENDANTS as a deceptive

device to illegitimately alter or eliminate their payment obligations and minimize their
liabilities. The deceptive practice is designed to frustrate bondholders and cause
forfeiture of their claims. As such the Defendants’ have violated the applicable treaties
and the “validation” schemes are not compulsory upon Plaintiff or Class Members.
DEFENDANTS seek to impose unilateral changes in the terms of payment of the
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BONDS, to the detriment of rights and interests of Plaintiffs or Class.
230.

Further, not all countries, have signed or ratified the Agreement on German

External Debt 1953, and accordingly, those countries, are not parties to the London
Debt Accord, and therefore many nations are not covered the by the treaties, and the
bondholders from those countries, are not bound by its proposed settlement procedures,
and those bondholders may present their claims directly to or against Defendants.
231.

The Agreement on German External Debt 1953 was signed and ratified by

Germany and the United States, and other nations - (Not banks). As such, the
redemption, paying agents, and trustees, e.g. JP Morgan, Citibank, Commerzbank,
Mizuho, UBS, Schroders, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Credit Suisse, Dresdner,
Skandinaviska Enskilda, Bank of New York, Bank for International Settlements,
Dresdner Bank etc., as redemption and paying agents and trustees - cannot offer the
argument that “validation” is a prerequisite to payment of the bonds or a pre-condition
to adjudication, as the banks are unconditionally liable for payment of the bonds,
pursuant to the explicit terms of the bonds, and cannot impose on Plaintiffs, the
German “validation” schemes or artificial conditions prior to payment of bonds.
232.

The redemption and paying agents and trustees must honor their responsibilities

for payment of the bonds according to the explicit terms of the bonds which are
unconditional. Bonds are redeemable, payable, collectible from trustees, redemption
and paying agents. Also, the German government, as primary obligor, and the US
government, as secondary obligor, have responsibility for payment of Plaintiffs’ bonds.
233.

The redemption and paying agents and trustees, such as Bank for International

Settlements, Citibank, Deutsche Bank AG, and Deutsche Bank Trust Co. of America,
JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A., on the Dawes and Young and/or Free State of Bavaria
Bonds, are unconditionally liable for payment of the Dawes and Young bonds, and/or
other bonds, as the trustees or redemption and paying agents. Commerzbank, Mizuho,
UBS, Schroders, are unconditionally liable on the Rheienlbe Union bonds, among
other bonds, Credit Suisse, Skandinaviska Enskilda, Bank of New York Mellon are
liable on the United Steel Works Corporation Bonds, among other bonds. As to
American bondholders, the UNITED STATES government has express or implied
obligations to protect the private property interests and investments of American
citizens and/or to redeem and pay for their bonds.
234.

In addition, GERMANY, has, fraudulently or unlawfully, attempted to settle all

claims by executive fiat. For example in 1961, referring to “Second Agreement
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Regarding Certain Matters Arising from the Validation of German Dollar Bonds”;
where GERMANY was seeking to compel registration of bonds, and resolution of
claims no later by September 1, 1964. And also Germany has shut down all
“Validation Boards” and “Arbitration Boards” in the territorial jurisdiction of the
United States. This was a unilateral act by GERMANY to breach the Treaty, and
numerous agreements, and as such it was unlawful and invalid. GERMANY has
prejudiced, distorted or impaired the validity of its own agreement, and thus the
Agreement on German External Debt 1953, and other subsequent or prior agreements
relative to “validation” have been rendered inapplicable, and fail to impose the
“validation” schemes or procedures on Plaintiffs, Class Members or bondholders, and
there is no more “Validation Board” and no proper “validation” procedures anywhere.
235.

The Agreement on German External Debt or the “validation” laws, or various

Agreements Regarding Certain Matters Arising from the Validation of German Dollar
Bonds, have nil effect on the encashment or collectability of the bonds.
236.

Moreover, for PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS, or their predecessors, Tax

reasons existed for non-assention to the London Debt Agreement 1953, because
bondholders assenting to the issuance of new securities in exchange for old, became
liable for certain income tax liabilities.
237.

The effect of the London Debt Accord 1953 and “validation” schemes was to

cause prejudice and damages to bondholders, because they changed the payment,
redemption, and other material terms of the Bonds, without consent of the bondholders,
who chose NOT to exchange their German Gold Bonds, and the “non-assenting”
bondholders were prevented by Defendants for many decades from pursuing redemption
and payment for their bonds, and were wrongly “prohibited” from receiving payment.
238.

The result for many bondholders or class members was disastrous. Many of the

bondholders, as well as their predecessors, Died, before they could redeem the Bonds, or
collect, and to others, the bond certificates were lost and/or damaged, or confiscated and
misappropriated or wrongfully usurped by Defendants.
239.

The German Gold Bonds are legitimate BEARER bonds and passed from generation to

generation, and/or sold from one individual, or entity, to another.
240.

Based on the agreements and treaties contained herein and/or terms of the bonds, and/or

intentions of the parties, the Non-Assenting Bondholders – in the United States, or elsewhere,
such as Plaintiffs and Class Members, had/have the present and legal right and power to
demand redemption and payment on original terms and conditions in the bonds.
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The DEFENDANTS’ pre war debts, are due almost entirely to private persons or entities,

and accordingly, settlements and payments are based on voluntary arrangements between
debtors and creditors, and the settlement takes place when the individual creditor accepts the
terms of the settlement made by the debtors.
242.

The actions and/or failures outlined above were designed to UNJUSTLY ENRICH

and benefit the DEFENDANTS, such as GERMAN private and public institutions, and to
unjustly enrich or benefit the trustees, or selling brokers, underwriters, redemption or paying
agents, or guarantors, such as DEFENDANTS’ banks and/or financial institutions, and by
simply NOT PAYING the interest and principal owing to bondholders, Plaintiffs and/or
Class Members. DEFENDANTS have never paid for the Plaintiffs bonds.
243.

Defendants have never paid the full value of their debts and obligations, to Plaintiffs and

Class Members and bondholders, for their German Gold Bonds., and Defendants have not paid
the owing interest and principal on the bonds, monies which the Plaintiffs are entitled to receive.
244.

The GERMAN government agreed to pay bondholders for their bonds. American and

international banks and/or securities dealers, such as DEFENDANTS, or their predecessors,
or including but not limited to, JP MORGAN, CITIBANK, BANKERS TRUST and other
DEFENDANTS, acted as “American Trustees”, and/or fiduciary agents for the bonds
offered by issuers from GERMANY; and the GERMAN municipal and corporate issuers
were nationalized, and became the direct obligations of the GERMAN government.
Germany agreed to pay bonds of German entities such as Rheinelbe Union.
245.

Prior and subsequent to nationalization, the UNITED STATES ratified treaties, which

obligated its protection of the private property interests of bondholders in general, and the
United States is a secondary obligor for payment of the bonds.
246.

The 73rd U.S. Congress, Session 1, Chapter 38, on May 27, 1933, adopted a mechanism

to protect bondholders called the Corporation of Foreign Security Holders Act of May
27, 1933. Said Corporation was authorized, and delegated power, and ordered, to wit: (a) to
function as Fiscal and Paying Agent of the defaulted obligations, (b) to negotiate and assist
resumption of payment due to current bondholders, (c) to adopt corrective measures for the
protection, vindication, preservation or reservation of the Bondholders contractual
international judicial rights and interests, on any default in, or on breach or contemplated
breach of the conditions on which such foreign securities may have been issue , (d) to protect
the rights as Paying Agent, and as a national interest in acting as Trustee for the
bondholders, (e) to conserve and protect the rights and interests of holders of foreign
securities issued, sold or owned in the United States. 15 U.S.C. 77bb-77mm; 48 Stat. 92-95.
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The United States, through the Corporation of Foreign Bondholders Act, May 27,

1933, Subchapter II – Foreign Securities, as fiduciary trustee, and/or under Title II of the
Securities Act 1933, and/or as set forth in Judicial Code 24(1), 37; 28 U.S.C.A. 41(1), and
the assumption of the responsibility of bonds, was charged with the protection of the
bondholders’ property interests to wit: (a) Agreement for transfer of bonds to Bondholders
committee held to create express trust to conserve, salvage, and adjust investment; hence
Federal court had jurisdiction of action by Committee, (b) for the purpose of protecting,
conserving and advancing the interests of the holders of foreign securities in default.
15 U.S.C. 77bb-77mm; 48 Stat. 92-95.
248.

The United States Department of State acknowledged that these German gold bonds

are valid instruments and obligations, which have been approved by the Department of
State. This was accomplished by the bonds being published in the Addendum of
Additional Bonds to the MARSHALL PLAN, and by the United States Department of
State, became involved in requests with Defendants, such as, JP MORGAN sell the
Dawes bonds in the United States.
249.

The bonds contain a GOLD CLAUSE. The Gold Clause provides that the BEARER

is entitled to payment based upon the Gold content of the Dollar existing at that time, and
the legal content of the dollar at that time was 25.8 grains of gold, nine tenths fine, as was
defined by CONGRESS on March 14, 1900.
VALUATION OF BONDS
250.

The estimated and present value of the German gold bearer bonds is staggering,

approximately $2,000,000USD/bond (Two Million US Dollars per bond).
251.

The present value of a single Dawes bond, or Young bond, or Rhienelbe Union bond

for example, a Twenty Year 7% Sinking Fund Mortgage Gold Bond, with an original
face value of One Thousand ($1,000.00) US Gold Dollars, is in the MILLIONS OF
DOLLARS, being actual present value is calculated at 25.8 grains of gold for each
dollar, for a $1,000 gold bond the quantity of gold is 25,800 grains divided by 480
(equivalent troy ounces) and brought to present value of gold as of September 16th, 2009,
was $1017.30/ounce [25,800 divided by 480 multiplied Price of Gold $1017.30/ounce =
$54,679.88 face value of single bond], and then the applicable interest rates in Gold
including, compound and/or default interest, dating back, over 60 years must be
applied. Since the issuance of the bonds, the price of Gold, and number of compounding
periods has increased tremendously and so as has the value of the German gold bonds.
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Ron Campbell, enrolled agent of the United States Treasury Department, designated

no. 10845, and tax advisor, and various international accounting firms such as Ernst &
Young, Coopers & Lybrand, have confirmed and adopted the use of this formula, which
has been widely accepted. The bonds and gold clauses are definite, enforceable contracts in
the United States. The SEC has confirmed by prior letters, such as from Barry A.
Mendelssohn, to Integrated Equities, in 1994, the prospective use of defaulted bonds as
assets for closed-end mutual funds.
253.

The use of compounding is upheld by the United States law and there is no prohibition

against the use of compounding due to the default on the bonds such as the Young or
Dawes or Rheinelbe or Free State of Bavaria or United Steel Works bonds.
254.

The United States law, the Uniform Commercial Code, and the Internal Revenue

Service etc., permit the use of compounding; and Plaintiffs, Class members can seek
judgment based on compounding. The use of compounding is prevalent by the IRS on
delinquent tax balances. And the use of the “Gold clause” and compounding of defaulted
obligations has been upheld in both domestic and international courts.
255.

PLAINTIFFS have equitable, legal, and/or beneficial rights, control and interests in

hundreds of the German Gold Bearer Bonds, including but not limited to, YOUNG, DAWES,
& RHEINELBE UNION bonds, and other legitimate German Gold Bearer Bonds, such as
FREE STATE OF BAVARIA, or UNITED STEEL WORKS CORPORATION.
256.

Plaintiffs herein have equitable, legal and/or beneficial rights and interests in gold

bearer bonds, in the hundreds collectively, therefore the bonds and/or claims are
estimated to be valued in the Hundreds of Millions of USD, to be determined at trial.
257.

DEFENDANTS have never paid for the German Gold Bearer Bonds, of PLAINTIFFS

and/or CLASS MEMBERS, who have sought redemption and payment of the bonds but
have been prevented, denied or defrauded. Plaintiff Elfriede Korber complied with the
“redemption” and “validation” requirements in Germany, but, to no avail. There was No
proper procedures made available for Plaintiffs, who were subject to deceit and duplicity
by Germany and the “Examining Agencies” and there are NO “validation boards” or
procedures, and NO competent “examining agencies” that exist in Germany or the US.
258.

For example, Plaintiff Korber submitted bonds for redemption and payment to

Commerzbank, and was defrauded and denied redemption and “validation” and denied
payment, for no legitimate reason, and without written explanation. Plaintiff Korber sent
and/or deposited her bonds in Commerzbank in Dusseldorf and was promised payment but
was defrauded, and the bond debts and obligations are still unpaid, and remain owed.
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On October 3, 1990, EAST GERMANY and WEST GERMANY were REUNITED,

requiring that the provisions of the 1953 London Debt Agreement be implemented, and that
Additional Payments be made to bondholders.
260.

Under the terms of the Foreign Sovereign Immunities Act of 1976 (“FSIA 1976 ”),

GERMANY (and its related agencies, delegates, redemption or paying agents trustees)
relative to the bonds, HAS NO SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY from suit in United States
courts., due to the “commercial activity” they have engaged in selling bonds.
261.

FSIA, 28 USC Secs. 1330, 1391 & 1602-1611, directly addresses the issue of

jurisdiction: “Sale, issuance for sale, and authorization for issuance of sale in the United
States constitutes “commercial activity” carried on in the United States by foreign state for,
purposes of the FSIA 1976 and general immunity provision of such act regarding
commercial activity. It is irrelevant whether the “motivation” for the London Debt Accord
1953 or other treaties was “politically motivated” - as the sale of bonds in the United States
by Germany is quintessentially “commercial activity” involving bonds and Germany and
or its representatives and delegates acting as commercial players in the financial market
place for bonds, as any other private entity, and is not exclusive activity of a sovereign.
262.

FSIA exempts commercial activity of a sovereign from immunity from litigation and

provides jurisdiction and venue for the claimants in the United States District courts. A
US citizen, and/or other citizen, has the right to press a claim for the default on the bonds to
obtain redemption and payment against foreign government such as Germany and the banks
and financial institutions, which are the redemption and paying agents and trustees.
263.

The intention of the parties, express or implied, controls relative to the terms of

the bonds, and generally determines the law that governs the bonds. With respect to
dollar bonds, the trust indentures invariably provided for the application of New York law.
264.

The bonds sold in the United States to US citizens with US trustees are deemed

“domestic security”. The “Country of offering” is the United States. Courts in the United
States generally refused to recognize German legislation as a matter of public policy
because of its discriminatory features. Germany is not entitled to limit the rights of the
Plaintiffs, Class Members, or bondholders by the introduction of bogus “validation”
laws or criteria, or discriminatory conventions or treaties or regulations in Germany
or elsewhere. The terms of the bearer bonds specifically prohibit such discriminatory or
infringing action by Germany. The place of issue of the bonds was New York, and the
place of performance for the bonds is New York. The Dawes and Young bonds, and other
bonds, are subject to United States, and/or New York law.
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The Rheinelbe Union bonds, and Free State of Bavaria bonds, and United Steel Works

Corporation bonds, have the place of issuance New York, and place of performance
includes New York, and also includes, other options for the bearers of the bonds, such as
collection of their interest and principal in London, United Kingdom; Amsterdam,
Netherlands; Zurich, Switzerland; and/or Stockholm, Sweden.
266.

The London Debt Accord 1953, (LDA) stipulated the maturity date on Germany’s 6%

External “match” loan of 1930 became 1994. The CUSIP SERVICE BUREAU, in New
York, relative to assignment of Private Placement Number (PPN), has stated – (for Dawes
Bond - PPN: D3741* AA2, Rate: 7.00, Issuer GERMANY FED REP; Issue Desc.
EXTN LN 1924 – DUE 1994 and; (for Young Bonds) PPN D3741* AB 0 Rate: 5.5;
Issuer: GERMANY FED REP, Issue Desc. INTL LN 1930 – DUE 1994. According to the
Securities Exchange Commission the “conversion” bonds were paid off April 15, 1994.
267.

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA is unconditionally liable for payment of the Dawes and

Young bonds as trustee and/or redemption and paying agent. Similarly, the Bank for
International Settlements (“BIS”) is unconditionally liable as trustee for payment of the
Young bonds. The BIS committed a breach of trust against the holders of Young loan
bonds as whose Trustee, this bank was created and held out in wording of Young bonds.
268.

The BIS in 1930 had knowledge of the German Reich’s incapacity of meeting all the

obligations under the Young loan to repay the hundreds of millions of dollars and should
have alerted the bondholders and creditor countries but failed to do so. After 1931, the
German Reich sought shelter behind the Hoover moratorium, and BIS did not seek proper
payments to bondholders. After the Lausanne Agreement in 1934, a reaction to the
unilateral moratorium declared by the German Reich, the BIS failed to seek timely
payments or insist upon; and failed to pressure the German Reich to fully honor the express
wording of the Young loan bonds. BIS kept yielding to Hitler’s failure to honor the terms
of the Young bonds, and Schroder, the German representative to the BIS was a high
ranking member of the Nazi regime.
269.

The claims of the bondholders Plaintiffs and Class members for redemption and

payment of their bonds are still viable, valid and enforceable today; notwithstanding
Germany’s “unilateral” and misleading “declaration” that bonds certificates are “invalid”
and/or need “validation” and/or false statement by Germany and defendants that the bonds
or claims are “worthless”.
270.

The unilateral declaration by Germany, or defendants, of “invalidity” of bonds

does not affect the claims of bondholders. The obligations of Germany and Defendants
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remain and the claims of Plaintiffs and Class members have not lapsed, and have not
weakened with time, and actually the Plaintiffs claims have become stronger and more
valuable with time, as default and compounding interest under the gold clause of the
bonds, and the payable ounces of gold increases with time. As such, it is presumably to
Germany’s and Defendants’ advantage to resolve the matter, sooner rather than later, and
make the full due payments of interest and principal to Plaintiffs as per the terms of the
gold bonds and the gold clauses.
271.

The unilateral actions or declaration by Germany to “prohibit” Plaintiffs’ claims and to

“prohibit payments” on the bonds is illegitimate, objectionable and/or reversible. And does
not render Germany or Defendants “immune” from the legitimate claims of bondholders,
Plaintiffs or Class members for payment of the principal and interest on the bonds; and
does not render Germany or Defendants immune from suit in the US district courts.
272.

The merits and value of the claims and the worth of the bonds, or the fate of

Plaintiffs’ bonds herein - does not depend on Germany or Defendants “unilateral”
“actions” or “declarations” - which are in violation of the applicable treaties and/or in
violation of United States and international law. Germany has fraudulently and unlawfully
and continuously attempted to “prohibit” legitimate payments from being made to
Plaintiffs and Class Members for the bearer bonds, and For example: Germany has an
Article 14 “Prohibition of Payment” in the German “Validation” Law 1952, (See
Defendants Exhibit, filed 03/27/2009, Document 62-2, incorporated by reference herein),
whereby Germany unilaterally declares a “prohibition of payments” being made to
bondholders, from Germany or the issuers, redemption or paying agents and trustees unless
bonds are “validated” pursuant to the spurious and artificial requirements of the German
“validation” “law” - which is contrary to the terms of the bonds, as the bonds’ terms do
not allow any “prohibition” or restriction of creditors’ right to payment or right to sue.
273.

The “prohibition of payment” is contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds, the treaties,

and applicable laws, as the bearer bonds are the “unconditional obligations” of the
Defendants, and the bonds specify that the bondholders’ and Plaintiffs’ rights to payment
of principal and interest under the bonds cannot be “prohibited” or restricted or limited in
any way whatsoever under any circumstances and that the Plaintiffs and bondholders are at
all times, in peace or war, entitled to the full specified amount under the bonds, and even
the United States Congress and the US President, Dwight D. Eisenhower, stated and
recognized that the treaty: “does not nullify the legal rights of creditors. Moreover their
right to sue in non-German courts is not impaired.”
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Furthermore due to the absence of Foreign Representative of Germany, and the

bondholder or registrant sojourns outside the area of “applicability of the law” under
Article 18 of the German Validation Law 1952, the registrant or bondholder may submit
bonds or statement of claim to “German consular agency”, and need not necessarily
submit to any “examining agency” in Germany. Furthermore under Article 22 or Article
40 of the German Validation Law of 1952, the Foreign Representative or “Examining
Agency” – “shall promptly notify the issuer, trustee, redemption and paying agents of a
registered bond and serial numbers and characteristics and send copies” (See Document
62-2, incorporated by reference herein).
275.

Under Article 33 of the German Validation Law 1952 – the Plaintiffs or Class

members or bondholders may apply to a “Court in the Country of Offering” of the
bonds, i.e. the United States, relative to redemption and payment of their bonds in the
event of refusal of redemption and denial of “validation” and payment. And neither the
Foreign representative nor Issuer may object to exercise of jurisdiction by the courts of the
Country of Offering.
276.

Plaintiffs, e.g. Elfriede Korber, has been denied redemption, payment, “validation”

after submitting her bonds to Commerzbank “Examining Agency” in Germany, and may
apply to the Courts in “Country of Offering”, the United States for protection of her rights.
277.

Alternatively, Plaintiffs Elfriede Korber, Christopher Mark and Richard Bleier have

been denied redemption, payment and “validation” - de facto and/or de jure - due to the
absence of any “Validation Board” in Germany or the United States, in violation of the
1953 Treaty and Second Implementing Ordinance, and due to the unavailability of viable
or legitimate “validation” procedures and lack of any proper or competent “examining
agencies” for the purpose of “validation”- also in violation of Germany’s obligations under
the Treaty and Second Implementing Ordinance and “Validation” laws.
278.

Alternatively, Defendants have denied “validation” to Plaintiffs – as Defendants have

intentionally or recklessly disregarded the rights of Plaintiffs to payment, and/or have
been “grossly negligent” and/or “incompetent” and have failed to provide proper and
meaningful redemption procedures and suppressed “validation” and payment information,
in order to foreclose redemption and “prohibit” payment, and concealed the Plaintiffs’
claims and concealed the right to sue in the US, and misrepresented the “worthlessness” of
bonds, in various instances of mail and wire fraud, and generally intimidated bondholders,
and/or infringed essential procedural requirements in the so-called “validation” process,
misappropriated bonds, and breached the treaties, contracts, and breached their fiduciary
64

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 65 of 241

duties. All Plaintiffs and Class Members may apply to the Courts in the Country of
Offering of the bonds i.e. the United States, for enforcement and payment of their bonds.
279.

Germany or Defendants have not provided any reliable or competent procedures or

mechanisms or agencies for redemption and validation of bonds; and Germany and
Defendants cannot require “validation” as a precondition to payment or adjudication
due to their own breaches and failures to provide proper “validation” procedures, and their
fraud, mail and wire fraud, racketeering activity, misrepresentations, and misappropriation
of bonds, and uniform and systematic denial of Plaintiffs/class Members rights to payment,
and intimidation of bondholders with threats of prosecution or defamation, which have
eroded the reliability, functionality, integrity, credibility, standing and trustworthiness of
the “examining agencies” which are not competent for “validation”.
280.

The 1953 Agreement on German External Debt Treaty and First and Second Implementing

Ordinances 1953, and First and Second Agreement on certain Matters Arising from the
Validation of German Dollar Bonds, and the Validation Law for Foreign Currency Bonds 1952
- obligate Germany to make payments to Plaintiffs for the bonds - the unilateral acts taken by
Germany constitute breaches of the treaties and agreements.
281.

Germany has impaired the validity of its own agreements and must redeem and pay for the

bonds according to the terms of the debts. The terms of the treaties or the bonds may not be
unilaterally changed by Germany. Only through bilateral agreement with the United States can
provisions of the US-German agreements be modified. Germany has failed to provide Plaintiffs
and Class Members with a proper and viable “Validation Board” in the “territorial jurisdiction
of the United States” consisting of “one American, One German, and one neutral person” in the
event of disagreement, and Germany has shut down the US Validation Board, contrary to the
London Debt Accord 1953, and related agreements between Germany and the United States.
282.

Germany has failed to provide a proper validation process or the required Validation

Board, in the United States and Germany, and the process is no longer available, and without
such a process, “validation” cannot be prerequisite for adjudication, or payment of bonds.
283.

The “Validation Boards” are “no more”, and are obsolete, and there are no competent

“Examining Agencies” or “Zivilkammers” in Germany for the purpose of “validation”. (See
Declaration Hassan A. Abbas, Document 65-2, filed 04/10/2009 incorporated by reference
herein) and (See also Document 77-2, filed 05/26/2009, incorporated by reference herein).
284.

Germany has failed to provide “competent authority for the purpose of validation in

Germany”, and Germany has improperly removed its Foreign Representative from the United
States which it is required to have pursuant to Article 8 of the Law for Validation of German
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Foreign Currency Bonds 1952 (Doc. 62-2 filed 03/27/09), and Germany has improperly shut
down the “Validation Board” in the United States. ( The “Examining Agencies” are
incompetent in Germany – and have admitted that they cannot and/or are unwilling to
“validate” bonds and a court procedure is necessary. German courts do not have exclusive
jurisdiction to hear claims on bonds and other related claims, such as fraud, RICO, etc. The
violations by Germany, Examining Agencies, Defendants banks and trustees and redemption
and paying agents are contrary to the London Debt Accord 1953, treaty and related agreements
between Germany and the United States, and contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds.
285.

Germany has failed to provide and/or maintain an “Arbitration Board” - Article 34

35(1) Law for Validation of German Foreign Currency Bonds 1952 (Doc. 62-2 filed 03/27/09,
incorporated by reference herein), and as required by the Treaty, and Implementing Ordinances
and bilateral Agreements, regarding validation of Bonds; to have proceedings in English.
286.

Germany has failed to provide and/or maintain the “VALIDATION BOARD” in

United States or Germany in breach of its treaty obligations. The Agreement on Validation
Procedures of February 27, 1953, is an executive agreement between the United States and
Germany which requires “mutually satisfactory” provision of the validation “procedures within
the territorial jurisdiction of the United States”. Pursuant to Article 3 of the Second
Implementing Ordinance under the Validation Law of German Foreign Currency Bonds 1953
(Document 62-4, filed 03/27/2009, incorporated by reference herein) which states that:
“Pursuant to Article 9(5) of the law, the functions of the Foreign Representative … are hereby
transferred to Board for the Validation of German Bonds in the United States established by the
agreement between the Federal Government and the Government of the United States dated
February 27, 1953, herein referred to as the “Validation Board”).” Defendants have conceded
that the Validation Board in New York has been shut down, and also in Germany shut down.
287.

There no longer exists “in the territorial jurisdiction of the United States”, nor in

Germany, any “Validation Boards” - contrary to the treaty and no procedures in the English
language are available contrary to the treaty terms. And Germany has failed to provide the
“Arbitration Board” in English language proceedings.
288.

Ms. Ingrid Jaeger of the Prufstelle in Berlin has confirmed by email sent to Plaintiffs

counsel on 11 May 2009, that the “Validation Boards “ do not exist anymore. Not in Germany.
Not in the United States. Germany has breached its treaty obligations and the Validation Board
and validation procedures are obsolete and cannot be a prerequisite to adjudication.
289.

The “validation” procedures are required by law and treaty and bilateral agreements

between US and Germany to be made available at No Cost to the bondholders in the United
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States and in the ENGLISH language and the texts of the laws and regulations and
proceedings in ENGLISH. Germany infringed the essential procedures and/or failed to provide,
and imposes court costs in Germany, or the United States, and other costs, on bondholders and
Plaintiffs and Class Members seeking redemption - contrary to the applicable treaties and laws.
290.

In breach of its treaty obligations, and in breach of the terms of the bonds, Germany now

requires or wants to compel Plaintiffs and Class Members and bondholders to go to Germany,
to submit to Examining Agencies and court proceedings in German and requires that
bondholders must pay costs of procedures. Article 61 of the Law for Validation of German
Foreign Currency Bonds 1952 (Doc. 62-2 filed 03/27/09) states that “(1) No costs shall be
charged for proceedings before the Foreign Representative and the Examining Agency.”
291.

The terms of the bonds contain no choice of law provision that obligates bondholders to go

to Germany, or learn German, or to submit to German law or court procedures in Germany.
The Treaty does not obligate bondholders or Plaintiffs to speak German, or submit to
proceedings in German, or to send bonds to Germany to unidentified individuals or
incompetent “Examining Agencies” who have No capability and No competency and No
expertise in bond authentication or validation and misappropriate bonds and deny redemption.
292.

The “Examining Agencies” or “ZivilKammers” have no competency for “validation” of

bonds, and have no expertise or disclosed experts in authentication of bonds, and have no
“insurance” in the event bonds are lost or damaged, or relevant coupons go missing. Plaintiffs
are not obligated to submit bonds “blindly” and “naively” to Germany with no proper procedure,
and no assurance or safeguard for the bonds, and/or to surrender them to “incompetent” entities.
293.

The alleged “Examining Agencies” in Germany for the “validation” of bonds are

incompetent and fraudulent, as demonstrated by the first-hand experience of Plaintiffs. For
example Plaintiff Elfriede Korber complied with the “validation” procedures in
Germany by submitting her bonds to the “Examining Agency” in Commerzbank,
Dusseldorf, as directed by the agents of the German government at the Deutsche
Bundesbank and German Finance Ministry, and she was promised payment on her
bonds – but after submitting her bonds and the bonds sitting over 18 months in the
Commerzbank, she was unfairly defrauded and denied “validation”, and denied
redemption and denied payment for no legitimate reason. And no letter was provided
to her relative to the reasons for denial and no explanation given in writing as was
required by the “Validation Law” which would have enabled her to properly respond
or appeal. Ms. Korber was fortunate enough to be able to obtain the return of her
bonds intact, while many other bondholders have never received their bonds back, or
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received bonds perforated or voided or tampered with. Plaintiffs have standing to sue
individually and on behalf of, and as representatives of the Class. See Declaration of
Elfriede Korber, (Document 42-2, filed 02/04/09 incorporated herein).
294.

On behalf of Plaintiffs and clients, the Plaintiffs’ counsel in Belgium, on or about

December 2005, and March 2006, contacted Commerzbank for “validation” and
payment of the bonds, but encountered misrepresentations and fraud by the
“Examining Agency” – Commerzbank – during the process and request for
redemption.
295.

Hermann Stahl and/or Julius Kimmle, employees of Commerzbank,

misrepresented to Plaintiffs, on or about March 2006, material facts such as by stating
that: one had to be “Jewish” to obtain redemption and payment of the bonds, and that
was the “only chance to get redemption and payment of the bonds” to be “Jewish” and
“to show where the bonds were in 1945 outside Germany”. By inference that it was
pointless to submit bonds unless you are “Jewish”, and even that was a false
statement by Commerzbank - as Plaintiff, Elfriede Korber’s, acquaintance, who is
Jewish, submitted bonds to Dresdner Bank for “validation” and was defrauded and
his bonds perforated or marked improperly and voided for no legitimate reason.
296.

Defendants have suppressed critical information and meaningful redemption and

payment procedures. It is Defendants who have failed to comply with the Validation
law and procedures, and thus they have impaired the validity of their own agreement,
and it fails to impose their “validation” scheme on Plaintiffs. It is Defendants who
have defaulted and breached the contractual and pecuniary obligations under the
bonds and breached their fiduciary duties and defrauded Plaintiffs and bondholders.
297.

The bonds have extremely high value and are enforceable regardless of the

spurious or bogus “validation” scheme - or the arbitrary and capricious requirements
of Defendants. Simply because Defendants have not “validated” the bonds does not
render them “invalid” or “unenforceable” or “worthless”. The fact is that Defendants
defraud Plaintiffs by refusing to “validate” even authentic bonds – and by refusing to
provide critical information, or meaningful redemption and proper payment
procedures, and this simply confirms - Defendants do not want to pay – “not one red
cent” – and will use any expedient means by “hook or by crook” to avoid their
obligations for payment of the bonds, and this only invites litigation.
298.

PLAINTIFFS’ counsel in Belgium, on May 12, 2009, requested from Defendants to

JP Morgan, Commerzbank Citibank, Bank of New York, Mizuho, Credit Suisse,
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Deutsche Bank AG, Deutsche Bankers Trust, and Schroders, and Commerzbank,
on behalf of Plaintiff, CHRISTOPHER MARK, and/or the other Plaintiffs, and/or Class
members, and/or clients and/or bondholders, requesting the redemption of bonds and for
Defen,dants to make payment of the bonds - with letters addressed particularly to each
Defendant via their counsel, who have appeared in this matter, to avoid any discussion
that they did not receive the demand for redemption and payment of the bonds.
299.

Similarly done on behalf of Plaintiffs, and/or clients and/or bondholders, class

members, two months earlier on March 12, 2009, letters were sent to Defendants by
Plaintiffs’ counsel seeking redemption and payment of the bonds (Document 65-4,
previously filed on April 10, 2009, as “Exhibit H” and incorporated by reference herein).
300.

The Plaintiffs’ requests for redemption and payment of the bonds and requests for specific

information was sent to Defendants JP Morgan Chase, Mizuho Corporate Bank, UBS,
Commerzbank Ag, Citibank, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Bank of New York Mellon,
Credit Suisse, Schroders on March 12, 2009 (Document 65-4, previously filed on 04/10/2009,
as Plaintiffs’ “Exhibit H” and incorporated by reference herein) and again the Plaintiffs’ request
for proper redemption information and payment of the bonds was sent to the Defendants abovementioned on May 12, 2009. There has been no adequate response from Defendants.
301.

The Plaintiffs’ request for redemption information and payment of the bonds was sent to

Dresdner Bank Ag on June 12, 2009, by email and by registered mail and there has been no
response to the request for redemption other than an acknowledgement of receipt by email.
302.

The request for redemption and/or payment of the bonds was sent to Skandinavika

Enskilda Banken in February 2009, and/or on September 1st , 2009 and there has been no
response whatsoever, and further the request for redemption and payment of the bonds was sent
by Plaintiffs’ counsel to Mats Beckman of SEB Stockholm, Sweden, and August Carfano of
SEB New York, requesting prompt payment of the bonds and requesting specific information
relative to redemption and payment procedure relative to SEB and the United Steel Works
Corp. bonds, but Plaintiffs have not received any response to the requests aforementioned.
303.

PLAINTIFFS in their letters to all Defendants above-mentioned (and to Dresdner Bank on

June 25, 2009) requested the following critical information: (a) To name and identify the
individuals (and provide their contact information such as telephone, fax, email, street
address) (at the respective financial institutions, and/or Examining Agencies, and/or
other entities, redemption or paying agents or trustees), who are currently responsible
for treating the claims and redemption and payment of the German Gold bearer bonds
– Rheinelbe Union, and/or Dawes or Young, or Free State of Bavaria, or United Steel
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Workers Corp; and (b) To provide the proper payment procedures; and (c) To disclose
the insurance Defendants’ have in the event of loss or damage to the bonds when sent
to them for redemption and payment, and the amount of insurance and what is
covered? And where are the bonds kept, and (d) what are the safekeeping procedures
for the bonds and authentication procedures; and a host of other important questions.
304.

To this date, NONE of the Defendants have named and/or identified the actual

individuals who authenticate the bonds and are responsible for “validating” and/or for
treating claims for redemption and payment of bonds.
305.

And NONE of the Defendants have provided what is the legal authority of the

“Examining Agency” - and how was each appointed; and how were the members of
the “Examining Agency” appointed? And who appointed them? And who pays
them for their services; and how much compensation?
306.

And NONE of the Defendants have disclosed what are the responsibilities and

nationalities of the members of the Examining Agency or the persons charged with
redemption and authentication of the bonds? Do the “Examining Agents have other
functions? What are those? What is their competency? What is their expertise and
background? Are they experts in bond authentication? The “Examining Agency is
required to be “competent authority” and fair and transparent and cannot consist of
any bias or unfairness against bondholders.
307.

And NONE of the Defendants have disclosed what are the safekeeping

mechanisms for protecting and safeguarding the bonds? Where are the bonds kept
and examined? Who signs the receipt for the receiving of the bonds?
308.

And NONE of the DEFENDANTS have provided the possibility for security and

access to the bonds for Plaintiffs and their experts as an independent observer and
expert during the authentication, redemption and payment procedure.
309.

And NONE of the Requested Defendants have disclosed what – “ZTB M 3.4”

stand for and what does it signify? This entity was mentioned in a letter by counsel for
Commerzbank of April 20, 2009 stating that Rheinelbe bonds should be sent to an
agency denominated ZTB M3.4.
310.

And NONE of the Defendants have disclosed, Who are the individuals that

handle the bonds from receipt to payment? Who are the persons that examine the
bonds? What are the exact authentication procedures involved that these individuals
use - and they should not contain any fraudulent, arbitrary and capricious criteria that
are contrary to the explicit terms of the bonds.
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And NONE of the Defendants have disclosed whether the “Examining Agency”

consist of one American, One German and one neutral who acts as an “umpire”
as did the “Validation Board” pursuant to the Treaty of 1953 and the Second
Implementing Ordinance (mentioned extensively in Defendants’ motion to dismiss).
312.

Plaintiffs and bondholders and class members, are not required by law to send

bonds to unidentified individuals or amorphous or incompetent entities in
Germany and are not required to speak German or pay costs or taxes in Germany
pursuant to the terms of the bonds - and furthermore all proceedings should be made
available in English, and made available to bondholders freely.
313.

The Treaty between Germany and the US required the establishment of a proper,

functioning, viable, fair and transparent Validation Board in the “Country of
Offering” being the United States, and gave the bondholder the option to validate
bonds in the United States, and not be forced to go to Germany.
314.

The Defendants have breached the treaty, by failing to provide any proper and

viable “Validation Board” in the US or otherwise. Indeed, there is no valid or proper
or functioning Validation Board in the United States or Germany. “BADV” or
“Prufstelle” in Germany as “Examining Agency” in Berlin for Dawes or Young or
bonds have confirmed “Validation Boards” are “no more” and thus obsolete.
315.

The Defendants’ failure to provide proper and functioning “Validation Board”

with its 3 members, one American, one German, and one” acting as “umpire” – and
this is a violation of the treaties and Second Implementing Ordinance and discussion
about the “Validation Board” in Defendants’ motion to dismiss has been incorrect and
misleading, and fails to impose the “validation schemes” on Plaintiffs. In addition the
German Amendment to the “Validation” law of 2006, discussed in the Reply brief is a
unilateral action by Germany and was not assented to by the United States in a Treaty.
Furthermore, no authority for the appointment of the “Prufstelle” as the “Examining
Agency” was provided, nor the legal standing of BADV or “Examining Agencies”.
316.

The refusal by DEFENDANTS to respond with specific information as to the

identity of the individuals who are designated to handle the bonds’ claims or who
comprise the redemption and paying departments at their respective institutions, or
who comprise the “Examining Agency” and their background and their authority and
expertise and competency and appointment and the refusal to provide proper and
correct and complete and detailed information about the “safe-keeping” mechanisms
for the bonds; and refusal to provide fair and transparent and prompt and correct
71

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 72 of 241

redemption procedures for validation and payment of the bonds, renders the process
and “Examining Agencies” untrustworthy, unreliable, incompetent and not viable
entity, and constitutes a breach of the fiduciary duties and contractual obligations and
breach of redemption and payment obligations of the alleged “Examining Agencies”.
317.

Further CHRISTOPHER MARK, and other Plaintiffs, not wanting to jeopardize

the bonds via the so called fraudulent “Examining Agency” or other incorrect entities,
requested (via counsel) full access to bonds during the process of redemption, and
validation and/or payment, and requested assurances the bonds will not be tampered
with and will be delivered upon request at any time, but no response was forthcoming.
318.

According to Article 40(2), Submission of the Registered of the Bond (Validation

law 1952) the bond may be also deposited with a suitable institution (not necessarily
the “Prufstelle” or BADV or “Examining Agency”. Furthermore, Plaintiffs, such ad
Christopher Mark, and others, requested independent observers and own expert/s
during the examination proceedings of their bonds. And under Article 40(4) with the
consent of the Bank Control Authority the “Examining Agency” may approve
procedures deviating from paragraphs (1) to (3).
319.

In light of the unpleasant history, and fraudulent practices of the “Examining

Agencies” in Germany of unfairly and improperly denying redemption and payments
of the bonds for no legitimate reason, and/or confiscating bonds, perforating bonds,
converting and misappropriating bonds, voiding or damaging bonds, all to the
detriment of bondholders, the information requested by PLAINTIFFS, in the letters
sent to DEFENDANTS is critical to the claims.
320.

Defendants have chosen to intentionally foreclose redemption and suppress the

meaningful and critical information necessary for Plaintiffs to be able to redeem and
obtain payment of their bonds. Defendants seek to unlawfully “prohibit” payments to
Plaintiffs and keep the “Examining Agency” and so-called authentication “experts”
under a cloak of secrecy and obscurity, concealing the fraudulent entities/persons
which are involved in pattern of racketeering activity, mail and wire fraud and a
conspiracy to defraud bondholders, and to breach fiduciary and contractual obligations.
321.

The Defendants’ continuing default, and (a) failure to redeem and pay the bonds

according to the terms of the bonds and (b) failure to provide complete and correct
information and (c) failure to institute fair and meaningful redemption and payment
procedures for payment of the bonds - is an ongoing Violation of the 1953 Treaty,
Bonds, and/or applicable laws and is a deceptive and manipulative practice.
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Bondholders, in general, have been dissuaded from pursuing claims on bonds and made to

forfeit claims and defrauded by DEFENDANTS for the past sixty years and more. And
Plaintiffs were not permitted to seek redemption and obtain payment for their German Gold
Bonds for decades. It was impossible for non-assenting bondholders to pursue their claims in
the past due to the moratorium on payments by Germany and Defendants to Plaintiffs, and the
Defendants’ breaches of fiduciary duty, breaches of contractual obligations, and fraud, etc.
323.

And Plaintiffs could not bring their claims before 2006 and/or 2009 as the causes of

action accrued in 2006 and/or 2009, and the Defendants’ violative acts of omission and/or
commission, and misconduct, and violations of the RICO Act, and misrepresentations, and
mail and wire fraud, etc., were directed to Plaintiffs in 2006 and later, such as in 2009.
324.

The Plaintiffs discovered the fraud and breaches of contractual obligations and breaches

of fiduciary duty or injuries etc and other causes of action in 2006 and/or later, such as in
2009, when the misrepresentations and fraud and misleading statements and letters containing
false statements were sent and/or directed to them. Furthermore, Plaintiff CHRISTOPHER
MARK, could not have asserted various claims prior to 2009, as he has acquired various
German gold bearer bonds at issue, such as Dawes and Young bonds, in 2009.
325.

In May 2009 Plaintiffs’ counsel, sent to Defendants, JP Morgan, UBS, Citibank, Bank

of New York Mellon, Mizuho, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Citibank, Schroders,
Commerzbank, Dresdner Bank, Landesamt fur Finanzen Dienstelle Munchen, BADVPruftstelle fur Auslandsbonds Berlin, and each respectively received requests for redemption
and payment of the bonds, directed to them via their counsel or representatives, and from
Plaintiff Christopher Mark, and other bondholders, on May 12, 2009 (E.g. Document 77-4
filed 05/26/2009 herein and incorporated by reference) and none of the Defendants abovementioned have responded to the specific inquiries for specific and relevant information.
326.

Defendants have engaged and continue to engage in a long-running and concerted

scheme to defraud bondholders, and engage in process of concealing viable redemption
information and concealing the identities of the “alleged” persons or “examining agents” for
bonds at their respective institutions, and conceal insurance or safe-keeping and payment
information, so as to deter and dissuade Plaintiffs from taking action to enforce redemption or
payment of the gold bearer bonds. Defendants implement a strategy to foreclose redemption.
327.

Defendants further falsely state to the effect that “no legal action can be taken in the

United States for payment of the bonds” without “validation”, and all this contrary to the
terms of the bonds. As was sent in the letter by BADV- Prufstelle from Berlin, May 11, 2009
(Previously filed 05/26/2009 - Document 77-2, incorporated by reference herein.).
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In 2009, the Defendants JP Morgan, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Credit

Suisse, Mizuho, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Citibank, Schroders, Commerzbank
falsely asserted in their motion to dismiss, (filed March 27, 2009, Document 62,
incorporated by reference herein) that Plaintiffs or bondholders had to submit their
bonds to a three-member “Validation Board” in the United States, but when pressed to
identify the members of the US Validation Board, the Defendants conceded that the US
Validation Board is obsolete (Defendants Reply brief, filed May 8, 2009, Document
67, and incorporated by reference herein).
329.

In their Reply brief, page 3, (Document 67 - filed 05/08/2009, and incorporated by

reference herein) Defendants JP Morgan, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Credit Suisse,
Mizuho, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Citibank, Schroders, Commerzbank, falsely stated,
“Nevertheless the Validation Board exists in Germany” when it clearly does not, and
is another fraudulent and misleading statement in a series of false statements and
misrepresentations by Defendants. This was squarely refuted by Prufstelle fur
Auslandsbonds in Berlin, in a letter to Plaintiffs counsel, May 11, 2009, stating “The
Validation Boards are not anymore” and the only way to “validate” bonds is through
court procedure (See Document 77-2, filed 05/26/2009 and incorporated by reference).
330.

The false statements by Defendants in March and May 2009, in trying to escape

liability and mislead the Plaintiffs (and/or to mislead the Court in order to obtain early
dismissal of the case) are part and parcel of the ongoing scheme to defraud and injure
Plaintiffs and Class members by making false statements, not only to the Plaintiffs’ but
even to the Court, through electronic filings or by mail, and constitutes mail and wire
fraud, and is actionable by the Plaintiffs, Class Members, through RICO Act, for
Defendants engaging in a pattern of racketeering activity, and mail and/or wire fraud.
331.

Plaintiffs and Class Members and bondholders were injured in their business or

property by reason of the Defendants pattern of racketeering activity, and under Bridge
v. Phoenix Bond & Indemnity Co., 128 S.Ct. 2131 (2008) even first party reliance by all
the Plaintiffs and/or Class Members upon the mail and wire fraud or predicate acts is
not required, and need not be shown, as they are the immediate targets, and/or direct
victims, and Plaintiffs and Class members have been injured in their person or property
by reason of Defendants RICO violations, and the injury to each Plaintiff or Class
Member does not have to independently consist of a pattern of racketeering activity, it is
not only the number of predicate acts per se, but the scheme to defraud, and pattern of
racketeering activity and RICO violations which has injured Plaintiffs and entitles them
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to recover through RICO, even if they were not the direct recipient of the fraud, or false
statements, but in this case, in various instances, Plaintiffs have been direct recipients.
332.

The Defendants Germany, Deutsche Bundesbank, German Finance Ministry, JP

Morgan, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Credit Suisse, Mizuho, Deutsche Bank/Bankers
Trust, Citibank, Schroders, Commerzbank, SEB, Bank for International Settlements,
Dresdner Bank, Landesamt fur Finanzen, BADV-Pruftselle, have violated 1962(c) of
the RICO Act, in that Defendants as “persons” herein are “employed by or associated
with an enterprise”, and/or are “operating and/or managing” an “enterprise” through a
“pattern of racketeering activity”, and mail and wire fraud, in a scheme to defraud, and
injuring Plaintiffs, business or property, from the pattern of racketeering activity.
333.

Defendants are benefitting from their pattern of racketeering activity and fraud and

benefitting from the default on redemption and payment of the bonds, and benefitting
from their conspiracy to conceal the truth about the fabricated and false account of
“looting” of bonds requiring spurious “validation” schemes and spurious conditions
contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds, in order to wrongfully foreclose redemption.
334.

In this case, and there are presumably many other cases of bondholders, wherein the

Defendants unlawfully foreclose redemption, and specifically fail to identify viable
procedures for payment and/or refuse to identify persons for redemption and payment
of the bonds, and do not provide any adequate responses to inquiries of Plaintiffs or
bondholders in a systematic suppression of meaningful redemption information. For
example, Germany has “concocted” a list of “bad bonds” from which it “claims” and
“makes believe” or pretends that it can easily determine the status of bonds - i.e.
whether bonds have been “looted by Russians in 1945” or not; and yet Germany has
concealed and systematically failed to produce the “black list” so that no Court of law,
and no bondholder or Plaintiff, can ever view the contents of the alleged “black list” or
check which bonds or serial numbers are on the alleged or fabricated “black list”.
335.

Defendants are benefiting from the ongoing default, and fraudulent nature of their

statements, and the fraud and incompetence of the alleged “Examining Agencies”, by
which Defendants use to do the “dirty work” to confiscate bonds, void, improperly
mark and/or tamper with bonds, steal or convert bonds, and deny redemption and
validation, and deny payment arbitrarily and capriciously, for no legitimate reason.
336.

Defendants have been, and are being, unjustly enriched and benefitting from their

breach contractual and fiduciary obligations and scheme to defraud bondholders and the
failure to provide meaningful and safe and secure and viable redemption and payment
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procedures. Plaintiffs have been injured in their “persons and property” by reason of
Defendants RICO violations and operation of the enterprise through a pattern of
racketeering activity which has also affected interstate commerce.
337.

The Defendants as an “association in fact” enterprise under the statute 18 U.S.C.

1961(4) possess the characteristics of ascertainable or continuity of structure and
ongoing organization, formal or informal, and share a common purpose to maximize
profits and avoid payment of the Plaintiffs’ and class members bonds, and to be unjustly
enriched, and to injure Plaintiffs by taking their bonds or withholding Plaintiffs’ money
and by maintaining the “status of default” and failing to provide meaningful redemption
and payment and refusing to redeem and pay principal and interest owing to Plaintiffs
for their bonds according to the explicit terms and conditions of the bearer bonds.
338.

The Defendants, as members of the “enterprise”, are not a wholly criminal

“association in fact” enterprise, in the members of the enterprise operate as “legitimate
entities” e.g. private financial banks, or governmental banks, or sovereign entities,
operating in various areas of business and governmental functions, which is unrelated to
the pattern of racketeering activity, herein, but on the other hand have engaged in
pattern of racketeering violations of RICO. And Defendants also engage in a pattern of
racketeering activity through entities within or beyond their control such as law firms.
339.

Due to Defendants RICO violations of mail and wire fraud, sending letters or

messages, with fraudulent statements, via post, fax, email, etc., which affects interstate
commerce, and Defendants’ operation and management of the enterprise through a
pattern of racketeering activity, the Plaintiffs and class members and bondholders have
been injured in their business or property.
340.

The Defendants common purpose is (a) maximize profits, (b) avoid joint liability

or payment of bonds and avoid multi-billion dollar obligations (c) defraud bondholders,
(b) breach their contractual and fiduciary obligations, (c) to confiscate bonds or
improperly mark or void or tamper with bonds, (d) to be unjustly enriched, (e)
wrongfully “prohibit” payments to Plaintiffs/Class Members, (f) improperly maintain
the status of default, f) foreclose or deny meaningful redemption or payment of bonds.
341.

The victims are similar - the bondholders of the German gold bonds. The

Defendants use similar methods of commission of mail and wire fraud, and fraudulent
statements of “looting of bonds by Russians” - where no such looting ever occurred –
and use the same false “requirements” that bondholders prove that their bearer bonds
“were outside Germany in 1945” – where such a condition does not exist in the terms
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of the bearer bonds which are payable to the bearer in the United States.
342.

The Defendants know that spurious pre-conditions of “validation” by obsolete

“validation board” or fraudulent and incompetent “examining agency” are not required
per the terms of the bonds. Defendants’ “pattern of racketeering” activity through
various misrepresentations and/or “mail and wire fraud” - to fraudulently insist on the
scheme that bonds have to be sent to obsolete “validation boards” or incompetent and
fraudulent “examining agencies” before they make payment on the bonds.
343.

Defendants’ “pattern of racketeering activity” through misrepresentations and

“mail and wire fraud” is designed to fraudulently mislead the Plaintiffs and/or courts
and/or governments and bondholders and to falsely state that the German “validation”
schemes are mandatory, when in fact they are optional.
344.

Defendants’ purpose via the pattern of racketeering activity is to force bondholders

“to go to Germany”, to obtain their bonds,when the terms of the bonds do not require
that, and/or cause forfeiture of claims. Defendants have also engaged in a pattern of
“intimidation” and “coercion” of bondholders - to dissuade from asserting their rights,
and/or extortion, threats of prosecution, defamation, and/or money laundering, and
embezzlement of Plaintiffs’ monies, conversion and misappropriation of bonds.
345.

Defendants’ “pattern of racketeering” activity includes misrepresentations and

“mail and wire fraud” to try to defraud plaintiffs, bondholders and others that the bonds
are “worthless” or “invalid” or “unenforceable” and that “nobody can take legal action
not even in the USA” unless Defendants “sanctify” or “bless” the bonds with their
“validation” schemes. All this contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds.
346.

Germany or Defendants, in the past, have threatened bondholders with criminal or

regulatory prosecution, and/or malicious prosecution, and have falsely accused
bondholders and class members to be in possession of “stolen bonds” or to be
“swindlers” when no such evidence or proof is available and Defendants have used the
FBI to confiscate bonds and coerce bondholders to give up their claims and to obtain the
property of bondholders.
347.

Germany has falsely stated there is a “Black/Bad List” of stolen bonds but when

requested by the SEC or the US federal courts to produce such a list they have refused
claiming it is not in their “interest” to produce the list. This is contrary to the
statements made by Germany during congressional hearings in the 1950’s in connection
with the Agreement on German External Debt, or London Debt Accord 1953, where
Germany admitted it had no sufficient or no credible and practically no information
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about the alleged “looted bonds” as they were bearer bonds, and that records were
fragmentary and/or inconclusive and/or the records had been destroyed or also “looted”.
348.

Germany and/or Defendants’ violative “pattern of racketeering activity” and

fraud, has been ongoing for decades, over 50 years, and the predicate acts of “mail and
wire fraud” have extended over a substantial period of time, and the Defendants’
injurious conduct and RICO violations is specifically threatened to be repeated and/or to
continue indefinitely into the future. The pattern of racketeering activity and RICO
violations is related and similar in the methods of commission and similar in victims.
349.

The Defendants have violated the “mail and wire fraud” statutes by using the

mails or wires to advance a “scheme to defraud”. The Defendants’ multiple fraudulent
acts and statements relative to bonds, past and present, have been advanced to further
the scheme to defraud, by use of mails or wires, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1341, 1343.
350.

The Plaintiffs injuries, and class members injuries, have been caused by the alleged

RICO violations by Defendants; and the Defendants “predicate acts” and “pattern of
racketeering activity” and injurious conduct which makes Defendants liable for
“treble” damages to those Plaintiffs and class members they have injured.
351.

Plaintiffs and class members further request equitable relief pursuant to the 18 USC

§ 1964 (a) in order to “prevent and restrain” Defendants ongoing RICO violations and
those threatened to continue into the future, and/or to disgorge profits. Plaintiffs and
class members have been injured as a result of the Defendants’ receipt of racketeering
income, and Defendants’ use and/or investment of racketeering income - distinct from
injuries caused by the predicate acts in violation of 18 USC §1964(a).
352.

Plaintiffs and class members have been injured as a result of Defendants acquisition

or control of an interest in RICO enterprise/s in violation of 18 USC §1964(a).
353.

Defendants engaged in a RICO conspiracy in violation of §1962(d), and agreed or

conspired to pursue the same illegal objectives and violations of RICO, and the
Defendants as conspirators perpetrated the violations of RICO or provided support to
the perpetrators. The supporters are as guilty as the perpetrators, and furthermore the
Defendants’ made efforts to promote the violative and unlawful endeavor, and/or to
foreclose redemption, and/or conceal the conspiracy and or advance the scheme to
defraud bondholders, plaintiffs and/or class members by the Defendants’ acts of
racketeering activity and predicate acts and unlawful RICO violations.
354.

Defendants have engaged in a concerted scheme to defraud the American investors

and bondholders world-wide, through an ongoing course of fraudulent conduct
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including actionable omissions, half-truths, and misrepresentations of fact, e.g. relating
to the “looting of bonds by Russian soldiers in 1945”, and the “necessity” for validation
in Germany via a “Validation Board” and by “proof of ownership” the bonds “were
outside Germany in 1945”, or by otherwise understating the value of the bonds or
asserting bonds are “worthless; and Defendants collective refusal to identify the
members of the so-called Examining Agencies or their expertise, and Defendants’
failure to provide insurance or safe-keeping for the bonds against damage or
tampering or loss by the Examining Agency, which has defrauded bondholders and
confiscated bonds to avoid payment. Such a massive deception, extending over several
decades and yielding billions of dollars for Defendants, at the expense of Plaintiff could
only be possible by the coordinated and cooperative effort of Defendants to conceal
truth and maintain a fraudulent scheme.
355.

On or about 11 May 2009, Plaintiffs have communicated and corresponded with Ms.

Ingrid Jaeger at the “Federal Office for Central Services and Unresolved Property
Issues” and “Prufstelle fur Auslandbonds”, ostensibly or hypothetically an “Examining
Agency” for Dawes and Young bonds, Ms. Ingrid Jaeger, alleged contact person for the
Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienst und Offene Vermongsfragen (“BADV”) and Prufstelle
fur Auslandsbonds, in Berlin, Germany, has unequivocally confirmed in writing by an
email to Plaintiffs’ counsel, dated 11 May 2009 that “There are no Validation Boards
anymore”, and “Today there is only the possibility of a subsequent validation in court
procedure.” (See Document 77-2, filed 05/26/2009 and incorporated by reference herein
– Correspondence with Prufstelle Fur Auslandbonds).
356.

This confirms - it is not possible to validate bonds via a “Validation Board” in

the United States or Germany; and the remaining feasible and legitimate way to
protect and enforce the Plaintiffs’ rights for redemption and payment of the bonds is via
the US courts, and in particular the United States Federal Courts, as the bonds were sold
in the United States and are subject to United States law, and Plaintiffs are in Chicago.
357.

The Terms of the Bonds, and the General Bond - do not have a choice of law

clause that obligates bondholders to “go to court” in Germany or submit to German
law. The bonds were sold to Americans in the United States, and are domestic securities
in the “country of offering”, the United States, and the bonds were sold via American
financial institutions who are “redemption and paying agents” and American trustees,
and are payable in Gold dollars in the United States - and even the paper used to print
the bonds is presumably of American origin - the bonds are subject to United States law.
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The place of issue of the bonds is the United States (New York) and the place of

performance (New York) and redemption and payment is in the United States, and
Plaintiffs have legitimately filed their lawsuit in this United States Federal Court, ND
Illinois, in order to enforce their rights, and obtain redemption and payment of their
bonds, and two of the Plaintiffs herein are resident in Chicago, Illinois and American
citizens, and have right to litigate in a forum of their choice.
359.

Plaintiffs are not obligated by any Treaty, or Implementing Ordinance, or law, to

litigate their claims, e.g. claims arising in 2006, or 2009 in Germany. Even United States
President - Dwight D. Eisenhower - recognized the right of bondholders and creditors to
sue in Non-German courts and so stated in a message to the Senate.
360.

In an April 10, 1953, Message from the President to the SENATE, Enclosure 7(a)

annexed to the Hearings before the Committee on Foreign Relations - United States
Senate Eighty Third (83rd) Congress, 1st Session on Executives D, E, F, G, June 17,18,
1953 P.204 PRESIDENT of the UNITED STATES - DWIGHT D. EISENHOWER
stated: “It is important to note that the Agreement does not nullify the legal rights of
creditors. Moreover, their right to sue in Non-German courts is not impaired.”
361.

The 1953 Treaty set forth optional “validation” procedures through a “Validation

Board” – but that “presupposes” the existence of a “Validation Board” - which
Defendants conceded is now obsolete in US - and thus the contemplated “validation”
schemes and procedures are null and void - and this cancels out Defendants arguments
relative to bondholders requirement for “validation” with defunct “validation boards”
before filing suit. Congress, and the Corporation of Foreign Security Holders Act, 1933
(15 USC 77bb-77mm), and the Treaty 1953, and Abrey v. Reusch, 153 F. Supp. 337
(S.D.N.Y. 1957) case confirms the US federal courts have power and jurisdiction to hear
matters relative to bonds, securities in default, to protect the interests of bondholders.
Plaintiffs’ claims against Defendants for conspiracy, fraud, unjust enrichment, default on
payment of bonds, promissory estoppels, misrepresentation, breach of contractual and
fiduciary obligations, and RICO or international law violations, and other causes of
action set forth in the complaint, which may be heard by this Court.
362.

Therefore, contrary to Defendants’ contentions which are based on disputed factual

allegations, it is impossible to validate bonds according to the applicable terms and
conditions of the 1953 Treaty or Second Implementing Ordinance. Validation is
impossible in the United States or Germany with any “Validation Board” or “Examining
Agency” or “ZivilKammer”. Due to the fraud and lack of competency and lack of
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proper authority of the “examining” entities in Germany – “validation” is not possible
within any reasonable meaning of 1953 Treaty or law, in Germany, or United States.
363.

An “EXAMINING AGENCY” is not the same as a “VALIDATION BOARD”. The

“Validation Board” was required to have an “American”, a “German” and a “third”
member acting as “umpire” – in order to preserve the neutrality, and impartiality, and
fairness of the “Validation Board” hearings, and were conducted in the United States in
English. These essential procedural elements are wholly lacking in the alleged
“Examination Agencies” such as Commerzbank, Dresdner, Prufstelle, or any other.
364.

The alleged “Examining Agencies” presumably consists of German members, or

employees of the German government, and do not have the neutrality and fairness as the
“Validation Board”.
365.

Plaintiffs did not receive a fair procedure before a neutral “Examining Agency” and

were defrauded. In 2006 and 2009, Plaintiffs discovered that Deutsche Bundesbank, and
Commerzbank, engaged in fraud and numerous false misrepresentations directed to
Plaintiffs, and cannot “validate” bonds; and even now in 2009, the Defendants, and
Prufstelle, do not provide meaningful redemption information, secure and viable or
competent payment procedures of bonds and do not properly engage the redemption and
payment of the bonds and care little for bondholders and instead apply whatever bias or
rationale they can muster to justify a predetermined outcome and to ultimately foreclose
and wrongfully deny redemption and “prohibit” payment of bonds and the “Examining
Agencies” use misrepresentations, fraud, and arbitrary and capricious criteria.
366.

Furthermore, there is no “Examining Agency” available in the territorial

jurisdiction of the United States, i.e. “the country of offering” as required (the Validation
Board used to be in New York but no more). The “Examining Agency” is not available
in English, and does not comply with the Treaties or Second Implementing Ordinance/s.
367.

Ms. Jaeger also indicates the existence of numerous other “Examining Agencies” –

e.g. “Dresdner Bank” in Dusseldorf for the United Steel Works Corp. bonds, where
according to Plaintiff Elfriede Korber’s declaration, a Jewish acquaintance of hers,
submitted his bonds and they were improperly marked or voided, (and in other instances
bondholders had their bonds confiscated by alleged German authorities at banks), and
“Landesamt fur Finanzen” Dienstelle Munchen, for Free State of Bavaria bonds, and
Prufstelle in Berlin for Dawes and Young bonds, refuse to conduct process in English.
368.

However, significantly, to this date, despite numerous requests, neither Defendants

nor Ms. Jaeger, have identified any specific members of the “Examining Agency”, nor
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provided their background, credentials in bond authentication, employment contract,
position or competency at the alleged “Examining Agency”, and moreover, no insurance
policy to cover loss or damage to bonds at the “Examining Agency has been provided,
and no safe-keeping measures provided.
369.

As a matter of fact, there is no “competent authority” in the Federal Republic for

“validating” bonds and neither the “Prufstelle” nor Defendants have shown
“competency” or “authority” of the entities described. For the “Examining Agency” to
be “Competent”, at the minimum, it should be knowledgeable, experienced, proficient,
fair, impartial (with an American, German, and neutral member third acting as “umpire),
and have experts and capable of validating bonds. Ms. Jaeger admits in her letter of the
alleged “Examining Agency” “Prufstelle” in Berlin, is incapable and cannot validate
bonds and therefore by definition is not “competent authority”.
370.

The letter of May 14, 2009 (previously filed Document 77-3 on 05/26/2009 and

incorporated by reference herein) by Ms. Jaeger to Plaintiffs’ counsel is inexplicably
again in German, a language that Plaintiffs and/or counsel, or bondholders do not
understand, and a fact to which she had been alerted to in prior emails – and notably her
letter contains the same false account of the “looting” of bonds as other letter/s, and
contains the spurious criteria that the bonds “ownership or whereabouts in 1945” must
be “proven”- which is contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds payable to the “bearer”.
371.

A prior letter on May 11, 2009 (Document 77-2 filed 05/26/09 incorporated by

reference herein) by Ms. Jaeger also contained some material misrepresentations, E.g.
“nobody can take legal action in order to gain payment for Dollar bonds without this
previous validation, not even in USA”. This is a False and/or Misleading statement.
372.

The Defendants’ continue to make misleading statements, with false premises,

incorrect conclusions, and improper procedures, and fraudulently conceal, the Plaintiffs’
and bondholders’ right to sue or assert claims in the US. These false statements were
also made and misrepresented by Ms. Jaeger and were objected to by Plaintiffs’ counsel,
in a response on May 12, 2009 addressed to Ms. Jaeger at Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds.
373.

The request for information and details and prompt and fair redemption and payment

procedures for the bonds of Plaintiffs’ and bondholders was reiterated on May 26, 2009
(previously filed Document 77-4, on 05/26/2009 and incorporated by reference herein)
because the BADV- Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds refused to provide complete and
proper information for redemption and payment of the bonds.
374.

The “Prufstelle” or “Examining Agency” supposedly only look at bonds and the
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coupons and then must transfer them to a “court” - where bondholders are required to
pay fees and court costs, to apply and/or if the bonds are not redeemed or “validated”,
and the American class members are to be subject to proceedings in German. All these
measures are of course in Breach of the 1953 Treaty, including the 2006 unilateral
amendment by Germany to the “Validation” law, was not agreed to by the United States
in a formal Treaty, and the bonds remain the unconditional obligations of Defendants.
375.

These incompetent and inadequate measures and fraudulent entities that Defendants

describe and contend that Plaintiffs must “blindly” follow and send bonds to unknown
individuals at incompetent or fraudulent agencies do not meet the terms of the Treaty and
are not viable, not competent, not trustworthy, and operate under a cloud of secrecy and
for example do not even provide the names, expertise, and backgrounds of the
“Examining Agents” who allegedly examine the bonds. Germany has violated its own
Treaty and law. The Agreement on German External Debt 1953, and/or Second
Implementing Ordinance, and/or Abrey v. Reusch case, emphasize that a “Validation
Board” be established in the territorial jurisdiction of the United States, with an
American, a German, and third member as “umpire”.
376.

There has been no response to Plaintiffs’ question of “Who is responsible for the

‘Examining Agencies?’” There is apparently no control or supervision over the
members of the “Examining Agency” - and they can detach coupons from submitted
bonds, or lose bonds or coupons, whether intentionally or negligently, or void or
perforate or deny bonds for no legitimate reason, and there is no insurance available to
cover the loss or damage of bonds by the “Prufstelle” or “Examining Agency” and no
safe-keeping measures provided for the bonds, and the “Examining Agency” can use
arbitrary and capricious criteria at whim to foreclose redemption and deny “validation”.
377.

Plaintiffs have recently requested on May 12, 2009, from Defendants the insurance,

and/or safe-keeping measures for bonds, and/or identities information, and/or prompt
payment, and that appropriate and fair criteria be used in redemption and payment, from
Defendants, and Prufstelle “Examining Agency”. No such information has been
forthcoming. Neither Defendants, nor Ms. Ingrid Jaeger of the Prufstelle, have identified
“Who are the individuals responsible at their respective institutions for redemption
and payment of the bonds. There is no information as to who are members of
Defendants, or the “Examining Agency”, that examine the bonds - what are their names,
and functions, and competency, and background and expertise, and position, and
contacts.
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The fact the Germany decided to withdraw its “Foreign Representative” from the

United States and shut down the “Validation Boards” to try and force bondholders’
registration of bonds by a certain date and to compel bondholders to go to Germany when bondholders were not obligated to do so - in order to deprive bondholders and
class members of a neutral, valid, viable, fair, functioning, or competent “Validation
Board” in the United States - means that the Treaty has been violated by Germany.
379.

Defendants argument that Plaintiffs must subscribe to obsolete “validation

procedures” with obsolete “validation boards” or submit to “incompetent or fraudulent”
entities called “Examining Agencies” before seeking their rights and seeking redemption
and payment of their bonds in a United States court is incorrect, and fatally flawed.
380.

The Defendants assert in their Reply Brief - Page 3 – that “Nevertheless, the

Validation Board still exists in the Federal Republic of Germany”. That is a false and
misleading statement and squarely refuted by Ms. Ingrid Jaeger of the “PRUFSTELLE”
or ostensible “Examining Agency” in Berlin by letter of May 11, 2009, she states:
“There are no Validation Boards anymore”.
381.

There are no more “Validation Boards” in the United States or Germany, and the

“validation” process is no longer available for bonds, and without the process, the
“validation” cannot be a prerequisite for adjudication or payment of the bonds.
382.

In addition, the bonds are bearer bonds and the terms of the bonds have absolutely

NO requirement that they need be presented to any of the “Examining Agency” in
Germany, as the “Examining Agencies” are incompetent and fraudulent.
383.

The 1953 treaty states that the bonds, at the option of the bearer, may be submitted to

the “Board for Validation of German Bonds in the United States” or the “authorities
competent for that purpose” in the Federal Republic. The choice lies with the
bondholder, but, in this case there is NO “Validation Board” and furthermore there is no
“competent” examining agency or authority for the purpose of “validation” in Germany.
384.

There is no “validation board”, and there is no “competent authority”, and no

competent “Examining Agency”, and no competent “Zivilkammers”, and no competent
“Settlement Chambers” for the purpose of “validation” of the German bonds held by
Plaintiffs - and a United States court procedure is required to enforce the bonds because
Germany and Defendants are unwilling and/or incapable of “validating” any bonds for
the benefit of bondholders.
385.

“Validation” of the bonds is not possible in Germany. There is no viable, proper,

fair or competent “validation” pursuant to any meaning of the Treaty 1953, or Second
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Implementing Ordinance or law in Germany, and significantly Germany has violated its
own treaties and laws relative to “validation” and infringed its essential procedures.
386.

The court procedure in the United States is authorized by the United States law to

enforce the obligations of Germany and the redemption and paying agents, the Uniform
Commercial Code, the explicit terms of the bonds, which are sold in the United States
and payable in “gold coin” of the United States, and the Federal courts have jurisdiction
to hear the claims of Plaintiffs, and in English, required by law and treaty, Not German.
387.

Also, according to Article 40(2) - Submission of the Registered Bond of the

Validation law 1952, Document 62-2 (Defendants’ Exhibit) the bond may be also
deposited with a “suitable institution” (not necessarily the “Prufstelle” or “BADV” or
other “Examining Agency”. Also, Plaintiffs may request the presence of independent
observers and their own expert(s) during the examination of their bonds. Under Article
40(4) - with the consent of the Bank Control Authority the “Examining Agency” may
approve procedures deviating from paragraphs (1) to (3).
388.

Under Article 42 - “Lack of Competency of the Examining Agency” requires the

bonds be transferred to a competent Examining agency or Foreign Representative. No
“competent examining agency” has been properly identified with its individuals
named by the Prufstelle in Berlin or other agencies or provided by Defendants relative
to their respective financial institutions.
389.

Dresdner Bank, which is part of Commerzbank, and is responsible for the United

Steel Works bonds is not “competent” for the purpose of validating bonds and in fact
refuses to respond to inquiries from bondholders as a letter was sent to Dresdner bank
on June 25, 2009, via Email and by registered mail to its headquarters in Frankfurt and
the alleged “Examining Agency” in Dusseldorf and no adequate response has been
forthcoming and no fair and competent “validation” procedure provided by Dresdner.
390.

Dresdner bank is a fraudulent and incompetent “Examining Agency” and has

tampered with bonds of bondholders, and perforated the bonds or marked them
inappropriately as “void” after they had been authenticated, as was done to an Jewish
acquaintance of Plaintiff Elfriede Korber. Dresdner bank unlawfully and wrongfully
voided or improperly marked bonds as stated in the Declaration of Elfriede Korber.
391.

Proper “Validation” is NOT Possible in Germany – not by any “Examining

Agency” or “Zivilkammer” or court in Germany. There is no competent authority for
the purpose in the Federal Republic of Germany. And Germany’s “internal laws”
relative to bonds are not binding on Plaintiffs /Class Members, or US courts, and
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Plaintiffs herein are not bound by the prior discriminatory decisions of German courts.
392.

Notably, there is no choice of law clause in the bonds that obligates Plaintiffs and

Class Members to go to Germany. To the contrary, the bonds are subject to United
States law, and are issued in America, and mostly have American trustees, redemption
and paying agents, and the place of performance is New York.
393.

The German gold Bearer Bonds themselves prohibit the German government

from renunciation or diminishment of the claims or modification of its obligations visà-vis bondholders as in the bonds state these are “unconditional” obligations and
cannot be repudiated by treaty or convention or any act of the German government.
394.

The German banks acting as “Examining Agencies” have admitted they are

incapable of “validating bonds” and only “look” at them and render an “opinion” and
the Plaintiffs have to pay fees and costs in court in Germany and be subject to process in
a language that is alien to them and do not understand - and Germany has refused to
“validate bonds” despite Germany’s acknowledged liability for payment on the bonds.
395.

The “Examining Agency” Commerzbank is fraudulent and incompetent and

engaged in knowing misrepresentations and is unwilling and incapable of validating
bonds, and the other “Examining Agencies” such as Landesamt fur Finanzen in
Munchen, Dresdner bank in Dusseldorf, Prufstelle fur Auslandbonds in Berlin, are
fraudulent and incompetent and incapable of “validating” bonds.
396.

Ms. Ingrid Jaeger, of the “Prufstelle”, has confirmed in writing that the

“Validations Boards” are “no more”. There is no “Validation Board” in the United
States or Germany. As such, the Defendants adamant position that bondholder’s are
obliged to “validate” their bonds through an obsolete “Validation Board” before seeking
relief in a United States federal court has been incorrect, false and misleading to the
Plaintiffs and conceivably the court.
397.

Defendants, in their memorandum in support of their motion to dismiss and Reply

brief made false statements about the “Validation Board” - and initially Defendants
chose not to disclose the lack of existence of “Validation Boards” to the plaintiff or the
court – and made false statements to the court and plaintiffs that “the Validation Board
exists in Germany” and made misleading arguments about the Plaintiff being required
to submit bonds to an obsolete and defunct “Validation Board” before taking legal
action in court, but when Plaintiffs pressed for identification of members of “Validation
Board”, Defendants conceded “Validation Board” in New York is obsolete, and
confirmed from Ms. Jaeger at Prufstelle in Berlin, does not even exist in Germany.
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STATUTE OF LIM ITATI ONS and /or EQUITABLE TOLLING
398.

The applicable statutes of limitations for the instant claims on the default on bonds or

other causes of action herein have not expired. All the claims are timely - and
accrued in 2006 and/or later, and in 2009, and under Illinois law, New York law,
federal law and international law, the maintenance of the causes of action herein is
timely and appropriate.
399.

Bondholders legal rights to seek compensation for redemption and payment of their

bonds and to obtain principal and interest for the defaulted bonds was deferred by the
London Debt Accord 1953 (“LDA”) or (Agreement on German External Debt 1953) and
by German statutes and/or courts and/or by the treaty until - “all conversion bonds of the
bondholders who exchanged their bonds under the settlement terms of the LDA had been
paid. Accordingly, the statutes of limitations upon claims for redemption and payment of
the German bonds were tolled by operation of the treaty, the London Debt Accord 1953
Treaty and German laws from 1953 onwards.
400.

Alternatively, Plaintiff Elfriede Korber’s rights to make claims pursuant to the explicit

terms of the bonds, and for the full specified amount, are preserved by the Convention on
the Non-Applicability of Statutory Limitations to War Crimes and Crimes Against
Humanity (26 November 1968).
401.

The causes of action herein accrued in 2006 and accrued in 2009, and therefore are of

recent origin, and the lawsuit is filed in a timely manner.
402.

Alternatively, Plaintiffs causes of action are tolled because the acts complained of have

no statute of limitations, or which could or were only recently discovered and/or ongoing
acts and/or continuing wrongs, and/or the applicable statutes of limitations are tolled
because of Defendants’ fraudulent concealments, statutory prohibitions, or denials of the
facts alleged herein.
403.

Alternatively, Defendants are estopped from relying on any statute of limitations

because of their own fraud, misconduct, extortion, threats of prosecution, intimidation,
misrepresentations, fraudulent concealments, etc. which dissuaded and/or prevented
Plaintiffs and Class members, bondholders from making claims - and Defendants are further
estopped due to the Agreement on German External Debt of 1953, and the Defendants’
instituted moratorium on payment of the bonds which stated in the Treaty that the “Non
assenting bondholders” could not be paid and could not present any bonds or claims for
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payment until Germany had paid all “conversion bonds” of the “assenting bondholders”
(i.e. those who accepted the offer pursuant to the London Debt Accord 1953).
404.

Further, Defendants’ are estopped from relying on any statute of limitations because of

the ongoing Breach of Treaty, Breach of fiduciary duties, Breach of contractual obligations,
Misrepresentations, Failure to provide secure, fair and proper redemption, or validation or
payment procedures, and the Defendants’ concealment of the fraudulent nature of their
schemes, and Defendants’ concealments of Plaintiffs’ “right to sue” in US courts.
405.

The terms of the bonds specify they are and shall be the “unconditional

obligations of the obligor” (e.g. Dawes Bonds and others) and/or the bonds are
“payable at all times, and under all circumstances” (e.g. Rheinelbe Union Bonds)
and therefore no statute of limitations applies according to the terms of the bonds
which were intended to be unconditional obligations by the Foreign issuer, Germany,
and the Redemption and Paying Agents and Trustees, and the bonds specify that the
person or entity entitled to receive payment “shall in every case receive the full
specified amount” and interest is always payable until full payment of principal
406.

There is no Statute of Limitations for the “Young Loan” bonds as they were issued

under the Hague Agreement 1930, and therefore are governed by the Law of Nations, and
payment cannot be statute barred.
407.

The Young Bond specifies that “Nothing in the General Bond or in the Hague

Agreement or “elsewhere” limits restricts or varies, or shall be deemed to limit restrict
or vary the rights of holder of this bond, which bond is and shall be the direct and
unconditional obligation of obligor.
408.

The German government cannot repudiate the Young loan, and there are no statutes of

limitations under international law for the Young loan bonds. The Young bonds are
unconditionally guaranteed by the Bank for International Settlements in Basel, Switzerland
as the Trustee. Also when the Bank for International Settlements was established, among the
American entities that contributed capital was JP Morgan & Co., as the American private
corporation, and other nations contributed capital.
409.

Alternatively, redemption and payment of the bonds should be enforced under jus

cogens, and higher, or compelling law principles, and in light of the primary objective of the
Agreement on German External Debt 1953, and the unequivocal acceptance of liability and
categorical commitment by Treaty, and otherwise, for Germany to “end the status of
default” on the bonds - which set no outer time limit to this obligation, pledge or promise, as
no one knew when Germany would reunify which would trigger additional obligations for
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repayment of the debts and bonds by Germany, and the Treaty obligated Germany to
eliminate the “status of default” and no time limit was set forth to that objective, and the
debts remain Germany’s and Defendants obligation.
410.

Germany maintains to this date explicit liability for the bonds, as confirmed in the letter

incorporated into the Treaty by the Chancellor of Germany Konrad Adenauer. And
Since the plaintiffs’ and Class members’ bonds remain in “default” the German obligation to
“eliminate the status of default” and redeem and pay the bonds - has not yet been met - and
is therefore ongoing pecuniary obligation, and should be met and enforced.
411.

Alternatively, federal choice of law principles, and analysis relative to the bonds claims,

and as provided by Restatement Second of Conflict of Laws, and/or Restatement §142,
which is adopted in Illinois, and indicates that the forum state should not apply its own
statute of limitations, that would otherwise treat a claim, if another state has a more
“significant relationship” to the claim, and applying the “most significant relationship” test
as to the statute of limitations on bonds points to New York statute of limitations on bonds.
412.

Here, New York, has more “significant relationship” to the bonds claims, as New York

is the place of issuance of the bonds; and New York is the designated place for redemption
and payment of the bonds of principal and interest; and the redemption and paying agents in
New York and trustees being in New York. Some, but not all, of the bonds, have extra
options, for bearers to redeem, and collect principal and interest, and obtain payment of their
money, in London, Zurich, or Stockholm, as well as New York as the primary place.
413.

If the Court determines that the law of the place of issuance of the bonds, and/or the law

of the place of performance of the bonds, and/or the law of the place intended by the parties
to the bonds, is controlling, for statute of limitations purposes, then New York statute of
limitations would be most applicable to the bonds; as determined in accordance with the
principles in Restatement Second of Conflict of Laws, §6 (2); which sets out various factors
for consideration including, but not limited to; the (i) needs of interstate and international
systems; (ii) relevant policies of the forum; (iii) relevant policies of other interested states;
and (iv) the protection of justified expectations, (v) basic policies underlying particular field
of law, (vi) certainty, predictability, and uniformity of result; (vii) ease of determination and
application of the law to be applied.
414.

The Statute of limitations under New York law on the bonds would not run out until

2014 taking into account Article 2, Sec. 211 & Sec. 204., New York State Consolidated
Laws, Civil Practice Law and Rules, and taking into account the various “stays” applicable
to the Plaintiffs and Class members’ bonds, tolling , and Germany’s moratorium on
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redemption and payment of Plaintiffs’/class members bonds, and Germany’s law or statutory
prohibition against payment of Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ bonds, which legally
prevented non-assenting bondholders from redeeming their bonds or proceeding to obtain
payment until the “conversion” bonds were paid which took decades.
415.

Under the 1953 London Debt Accord, Germany was committed to adopt legislation

setting forth the time at which bondholders would be paid off. However such legislation
stipulated that Germany make no payments to “non-assenting” bondholders - until such time
that the conditions and payments relative to the assentees’ “conversion” bonds (i.e. of those
bondholders who “accepted” the settlement “offer” of “pennies on the dollar”) had been
completed. Thus, there is no Statute of Limitations under international law, and/or the Hague
Agreement 1930, which are applicable to the bonds, and/or time limits have been extended
until 2014 by Defendants actions, applicable stays, and by operation of treaty, and/or New
York law. For over 40 years, Germany made no payments to “non-assenting” bondholders’
for the bonds, and “prohibited” payments, by treaty, but now that Plaintiffs have the right to
sue and enforce the bonds, Defendants foreclose and “prohibit” payment by unlawful means.
416.

Plaintiffs, Class Members, Bondholders have the unequivocal right to redeem and obtain

full payment and full value of their bonds according to the Gold Clauses. The filing of suits
for collection of debts payable under gold clauses or in gold coin is long-established in law,
courts and treaties and/or various obligations and authorizes the use and enforcement of the
gold clauses in these kind of private obligations owed to bondholders.
417.

According to New York State Consolidated Laws, Civil Practice Law and Rules

ARTICLE 2 – Limitations of Time – Sec. 211 states: “Actions to be commenced within 20
YEARS . (a) ON A BOND. An action to recover principal or interest upon a written
instrument evidencing an indebtedness.... must be commenced within twenty years after the
cause of action accrues.” Moreover, Under New York State Consolidated Laws, Civil
Practice Law and Rules ARTICLE 2 – Limitations of Time – Sec. 204, it states: “Stay of
commencement of action; demand for arbitration. Where the commencement of an action
has been stayed by a court or statutory prohibition, the duration of the stay is not part of the
time within which the action must be commenced.”
418.

Plaintiffs causes of actions are timely and accrued in 2006, and in 2009, and of recent

origin, and the claims could not have been brought before 2006 and/or 2009, as the breaches
misconduct, fraud, negligence, misrepresentations, and RICO violations, and unlawful
activity by Defendants, which was directed to Plaintiffs, and injured the Plaintiffs/Class
Members, was in 2006, and later, and/or 2009, and only recently discovered. Accordingly all
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the claims and causes of action which are filed herein are timely filed and meet all the statute
of limitations in Illinois and/or New York and/or United States.
419.

Furthermore Americans and others who were the “non-assenting” bondholders, like

Plaintiffs, Class Members were prevented by Germany from filing suit against German
government and/or Defendants for collection on German bonds by the 1953 treaty and the
German laws or statutes which stated that “assenting” bondholders who had exchanged their
bonds had to be paid first and Germany had a grace period of more than 40 years in order to
pay the “conversion bonds” before any of the “non-assenting” bondholders could be paid.
420.

PLAINTIFF or CLASS MEMBERS have recently discovered the DEFENDANTS’

conspiracy and Scheme to Defraud as well as the wrongful seizure, expropriation,
concealment, withholding and/or retention of Plaintiffs monies, and/or tampering with THE
BONDS, and/or refusal to pay, THE BONDS of bondholders, Plaintiffs, Class Members.
Facts related to The Scheme to Defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members and bondholders
have only recently come to Plaintiffs possession and knowledge, that show some of the
ways how GERMANY and DEFENDANTS executed The Scheme to Defraud Plaintiffs
and/or CLASS MEMBERS, out of THE BONDS, or out of payments thereof.

CAUSES OF ACTION
421.

The allegations and counts and causes of action previously filed in the First Amended

Complaint (Document 42, filed 02/04/2009), relative to Equitable Disgorgement (Count X),
Imposition of Constructive Trust (Count XI), and Preservation and Production of
Documents (Count XV), and Spoliation of Evidence (Count XIV), which are contained in
the First Amended Complaint, will not be re-pleaded for purposes of brevity, and
incorporated by reference herein.
422.

The Plaintiffs/Class Members do not waive any of the rights or claims relative to those

claims and causes of action mentioned above or any other claims or counts, or causes of
action which are not re-pleaded in the Second Amended Complaint.
423.

By not re-pleading some of the counts previously filed in First Amended Complaint, the

Plaintiffs and Class Members will not be deemed to have waived them.
424.

To the extent appropriate and/or necessary, the causes of action are pled in the

alternative as permitted by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
425.

The prior documents/exhibits filed by Defendants or Plaintiffs, in this case, are

incorporated by reference herein, including declarations, agreements, faxes, emails letters
etc, and/or other documents contemporaneously filed, or subsequently to be filed.
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COUNT I
CONSPIRACY TO DEFRAUD AND/OR
CONSPIRACY BREACH CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND/OR
CONSPIRACY TO BREACH GOOD FAITH OBLIGATIONS AND/OR
CONSPIRACY TO BREACH FIDUCIARY DUTIES
Against all Defendants
And
JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, Deutsche Bank/Bankers
Trust, Credit Suisse, Bank of New York Mellon, UBS, and Commerzbank

426.

PLAINTIFFS, and Class Members, repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and

every one of the allegations which are contained in the preceding paragraphs, as if
the same were set forth fully and at length herein.
427.

DEFENDANTS agreed, directly or indirectly, and by concerted action, conspired to

defraud, Plaintiff/Class Members, and bondholders and the courts and the public, with a
false campaign about the “Validation” scheme, and false campaign about “Looting of
Bonds” and requirement to submit bonds to “Validation Board”- when none exist.
Defendants submitted their Memorandum in Support Motion to Dismiss (Document 62,
filed 03/27/2009, incorporated herein) with the false and misleading statements.
428.

DEFENDANTS JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, Deutsche

Bank/Bankers Trust, Credit Suisse, Bank of New York Mellon, UBS, and
Commerzbank, conspired to defraud, and conspired to breach their contractual and
good faith obligations and conspired to breach their fiduciary duties, and as a further
example of the conspiracy in this case, on May 8, 2009, Defendants agreed, directly
or indirectly, and by concerted action, in signing a joint document with false
statements contained therein, to defraud and mislead Plaintiffs and the Court, as the
false statements contained in the Defendants’ Joint Reply brief (Document 67, filed
by Defendants on 05/08/2009, Page 9 of 25, Section C; and incorporated by reference
herein) which was filed with the Court.
429.

Defendants jointly and falsely conspired stated in their Reply brief with required

scienter, and with intent to defraud and to breach their fiduciary duties and to breach
their contractual obligations – and he Defendants falsely misrepresented that the
“Validation Board in exists in the Federal Republic of Germany” in order to convey
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the falsehood and misleading statement that “validation is possible” in Germany with
an “existing” “Validation Board” when in fact the “Validation Boards” are
obsolete, and no “validation board” or procedures exist, and no “validation” is
possible in Germany as there are no competent authorities for the purpose, and
Defendants knew the falsity of their statement but that did not prevent them from
making the statement or conspiring to defraud.
430.

The false statement was a product of the “meeting of minds” of Defendants

above-mentioned, and it was agreed to by the Defendants, and signed and/or joined
by the Defendants counsel, in unison, and submitted to court, and submitted to
Plaintiffs, and so constituted common law fraud, and constituted “mail and wire
fraud” which will be addressed in the RICO violations causes of action, and
constituted violations of 18 U.S.C §1001 which will also be discussed in a separate
cause of action.
431.

This amply demonstrates with particularity fraudulent statements directed to

Plaintiffs and the court, and specifies as to whom, when, where, time and place, and
content of the fraudulent statements and concerted action, following a plan for an
unlawful purpose, to defraud Plaintiffs, and deny payment and deny redemption of
bonds, and this action was committed in May 2009, by Defendants JP Morgan Chase,
Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, UBS, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Bank of New
York Mellon, Credit Suisse, and Commerzbank, to deceive Plaintiffs and the court.
432.

And invariably when bondholders contact the Defendants, presently and over the

past years, to request meaningful and proper redemption and payment procedures and
information, the Defendants, in furtherance of their ongoing conspiracy to defraud
bondholders, will make false statements and misrepresentations to deceive the
bondholders and courts, to give false information and wrong impressions about the
so-called “validation” scheme or bogus procedures to obtain bondholder property and
confiscate and/or deny payment and deny redemption and cause forfeiture of claims.
433.

DEFENDANTS, preconceived a plan, for an unlawful purpose, and conspired or

agreed, to do unlawful acts, by unlawful means or omissions, and to commit actual fraud
or constructive fraud, or Rico violations such as engaging in racketeering activity and
mail and wire fraud, upon bondholders, Plaintiff/Class Members. Even though the
“Validation Board” is defunct and non-existent, and Defendants improperly asserted that
it did, in order to reinforce their false and specious argument about “validation”.
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DEFENDANTS, by acquiescence or active participation, also engaged in a

conspiracy to breach contractual obligations, and to breach their fiduciary duties, and
Defendants did breach their contractual and fiduciary obligations and duties of fair
dealing and defaulted on payment of the bonds. Defendants have conspired to and have
refused to deal fairly with Plaintiffs or demonstrate good faith in treating the claims of
Plaintiffs.
435.

DEFENDANTS by support and/or request and/or collaboration, collectively

promoted, aided and abetted, ratified or endorsed the intentional or negligent
misrepresentations or omissions or fraud or constructive fraud against Plaintiff/Class
Members, and conspired to defer, deter, diminish, or deny the legitimate bondholders
claims for redemption and payment of the bonds.
436.

DEFENDANTS’ conspiracy caused forfeiture of rights or claims or bonds, and/or

caused misappropriation of bonds, and a deprivation of PLAINTIFFS and CLASS
MEMBERS property interests, and vested rights, and Defendants refused proper
redemption or payment on the bonds, and caused economic harm and injury to
Plaintiff/Class Members, and bondholders.
437.

In furtherance of the conspiracy, the DEFENDANTS knowingly made, or continue

to make, false and/or misleading statements, and/or continue to make fraudulent
misrepresentations, or make omissions of objective facts, in connection with the bonds,
whether individually or by combination, in furtherance of the conspiracy, to perpetuate
the false myth of “looted bonds”, to perpetuate the myth as to the “worthlessness” or
“lack of value” or “invalidity” of the bonds, (false or misleading statements such as,
among others, the bonds or claims are “worthless” or “cannot be paid” or the only
chance for payment is if you are “Jewish”), all the acts, statements, or omissions, were to
the detrimental reliance of the Plaintiff/Class Members, and Defendants have caused
injury to business or property, economic, or other harm to Plaintiffs/Class Members.
438.

The conspiracy to defraud, and conspiracy to breach contractual obligations, and

conspiracy to breach good faith or fiduciary duties by DEFENDANTS is ongoing, and
it is systematically being committed against the Plaintiff/Class Members, and
bondholders, in that: GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, by one, or more, or all of
the participants, in the conspiracy, actively or by compliance, have engaged or done,
or do the following, but not limited to:
(a) Continue to conceal their wrongful acts, from and/or to;
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(b) Continue to misrepresent their obligations for payment of bonds; from and/or to;
(c) Continue to misrepresent material facts or conceal the real worth or value of the
bonds pursuant to the Gold Clause payment terms, from and/or to;
(d) Continue to falsely and misleadingly assert the existence of a “Validation Board”
when none exist, such as by filing misrepresentations in court documents about the
existence of “Validation Board” in Germany which they know to be obsolete,
(e) Continue to fraudulently insist upon the “need” for “validation” scheme before
payment of bonds even though no competent authority for the purpose exists and
no validation boards exist, and to use the mail and wire fraud in violation of RICO
statute, and/or to;
(f) Continue to use “validation” scheme with spurious requirements as an
instrumentality of fraud, or constructive fraud, in order to thwart bondholder’s
rights, or confiscate or misappropriate or tamper with bonds and/or to cause
forfeiture or deny claims, from and/or to;
(g) Continue to operate with bad faith, from and/or to;
(h) Continue to breach their contractual obligations (express or implied), and continue
to breach their fiduciary duties, from and/or to;
(i) Continue to misrepresent or conceal material facts relative to the procedures for
redemption or payment of the bonds, from and/or to, among others, the Plaintiff,
and the Class Members, and bondholders, and other Victims’ Representatives,
Lawyers, Politicians, Courts, Historians, and Interested parties to whom
DEFENDANTS, are and have been, under an obligation: (i) to pay for BONDS
and property of bondholders, and (ii) to truthfully and fully disclose the
existence of the real value, and/or records, and/or information, and/or legitimate
redemption procedures, relative to THE BONDS.
439.

The acts of one or more of the conspirators herein, are the acts of all the

DEFENDANTS within the conspiracy, who are jointly and severally liable for the
economic harm and damages sustained by Plaintiff/Class Members.
440.

The aforesaid acts or omissions DEFENDANTS were part of a scheme

to defraud and conspiracy designed to dispossess and deprive the rightful
owners or bearers of bonds, including Plaintiff/Class Members of their
property, their bonds, and the payment rights and interests therein; and to cause
the prevention, diminution, deferral, denial and/or forfeiture of legitimate
bondholders’ claims, and to deprive Plaintiff/Class Members of payment.
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The aforesaid fraud and other acts directed at Plaintiffs and Class Members

and bondholders and were motivated by DEFENDANTS and GERMANY's
desire to avoid its multi-billion US dollar obligation, for payment to
bondholders.
442.

The aforesaid conspiracy, fraud and other acts by DEFENDANTS and GERMANY

were wrongful. The aforesaid conspiracy, fraud and other acts were in violation of
applicable laws and regulations governing DEFENDANTS’ and GERMANY's
conduct, actions and obligations related to Plaintiffs and Class Members property and
rights, THE BONDS and marketable securities.
443.

As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS and GERMANY's aforesaid

breaches, conspiracies, fraudulent activity and misleading statements, and/or other
wrongful acts, to the detrimental reliance of Plaintiffs and Class Members, and/or
which amount to positive or constructive fraud, and have had a detrimental effect
upon Plaintiff/Class Members and upon their private property, bonds or payment
rights there under, and private interests and/or public interests, the Plaintiffs and Class
Members have suffered monetary and other damages.
444.

As a further direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS’ conspiracy to defraud, and

conspiracy to breach contractual obligations and conspiracy to breach good faith and
conspiracy to breach the fiduciary duties, PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS have suffered
economic harm.
445.

WHEREFORE PLAINTIFFS and Class Members, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against Defendants jointly and/or severally for (i)
compensatory damages, which meet the jurisdictional requirements of this court,
of which the Plaintiffs/Class Members shall leave to the determination of the
ultimate Trier of fact which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs and Class
members HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS, and (ii) interest, and
attorney fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of action, and such
other relief as the court deems just and proper.
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COUNT II
NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS
446.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat and incorporate the allegations as

contained in the foregoing paragraphs, as if the same were set forth fully and at length
herein.
447.

DEFENDANTS, as Trustees, and/or Obligors, and/or Guarantors, and/or Redemption

and Paying Agents, or Successors thereof, on the PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS’
BONDS, had, and have legal and/or equitable duties, and special and/or fiduciary
relationships, and have duties owing towards Plaintiff or Class Members, as legitimate
bondholders seeking redemption and payment of the bonds.
448.

DEFENDANTS owe a duty to communicate proper and accurate information to the

Plaintiff/Class Members, bondholders seeking to redeem and obtain payment of their bonds,
upon which they could reasonably rely in the conduct of their affairs relative to the bonds,
and DEFENDANTS had/have a duty NOT to conceal or suppress information, relative to
redemption and/or payment of the bonds, to which they had exclusive possession of, and
enjoyed a superior position to bondholders, Plaintiff/Class Members. DEFENDANTS
breached their duties, and acted negligently, recklessly, and/or fraudulently.
449.

Throughout the years, DEFENDANTS have received multiple inquiries from

bondholders seeking redemption of their bonds, but have intentionally or negligently failed to
provide proper redemption or payment information. For example, on or about March 2006,
and recently March 12, 2009, and May 12, 2009, PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS, by
themselves or through their representatives or counsel herein, contacted the DEFENDANTS,
and made inquiries (verbally by telephone, or in writing by letter or fax, or by email) about
“where” and “how” and “with whom” to redeem the bonds and how to obtain the payments
due on the bonds, and what “insurance policies” were available for lost or damaged
bonds, or “safe-keeping measures” and what was the identity of the individual and
“expertise” of the “examining agents” in authenticating bonds, and host of other
pertinent questions, but did not receive adequate responses or proper information.
450.

DEFENDANTS, through their employees, working in their offices, acting within the

scope of employment or authority for their respective Defendants’, consistently failed, or
refused to give adequate responses to the questions relative to the bearer bonds.
451.

Defendants negligently Misrepresented – the following: (a) bonds are “worthless”

(Deutsche Bundesbank, Commerzbank, all defendants that submitted the Motion to Dismiss)
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or (b) that “Validation” was required with existing “Validation Board” in Germany (All
Defendants that submitted the Reply Brief, May 8, 2009); or (c) “did not have” or “did not
know” or “would get back” to Plaintiffs’ with information on how to proceed but never did
(UBS, Dresdner, Mizuho), and (d) that “bonds were looted” (All Defendants that submitted
Reply Brief and Motion to Dismiss) or (e) Plaintiffs’ had to “prove ownership in 1945” (All
“Examining Agencies, Prufstelle, Commerzbank, Landesamt fur Finanzen, and Defendants)
or “had to be Jewish” to have any chance of redemption or to get payment
((Commerzbank).
452.

NO meaningful, or adequate or proper or complete information about the value of the

BEARER bonds - and NO meaningful redemption or payment procedures on German gold
bonds was forthcoming by any Defendants - contrary to their contractual obligations and
fiduciary duties under the terms of the bonds.
453.

On March 12, 2009, (See Document 65-4, filed 04/10/2009, and incorporated by

reference herein) - Plaintiff through counsel, sent letters addressed to DEFENDANTS, such
JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Credit
Suisse, Bank of New York Mellon, UBS, and Commerzbank, and recently on September 1st
2009, to Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken, to follow up prior letters and requests - and the
Plaintiffs specifically requested redemption and payment of the bonds and that Defendants
disclose the proper information, but Defendants failed to redeem or pay cash for the bonds
and Defendants failed to provide adequate and meaningful information when they had/have a
duty to disclose such, and/or failed to provide any meaningful procedure for redemption and
payment of the bonds to the bondholders, whether privately or publicly, and failed to identify
any individual responsible for handling the claims.
454.

Defendants either acted intentionally to provide false or misleading information, or were

negligent in ascertaining the truth of their statements, and Defendants failed to verify,
disclose, or institute proper and fair procedures for redemption and payment of the bonds,
while knowing they had a legal or contractual obligations, and/or fiduciary or equitable
duties to provide the information, and to redeem and pay for the bonds.
455.

These acts, failures and/or omissions, and/or negligent misrepresentations, were in direct

violation of the DEFENDANTS’ duties, which existed by virtue of the special or fiduciary
relationships, and by virtue of the special, legal and equitable obligations, and/or fiduciary
duties, between the parties.
456.

Under the circumstances, the Defendants’ acts, negligent misrepresentations, failures

and omissions also amounted to constructive fraud, and were to the detrimental reliance of
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PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, who were injured by the Defendants’ misrepresentations
and/or were injured by Defendants’ failure to provide proper information or redemption
procedures, and as a direct and proximate result of such misconduct, PLAINTIFF/CLASS
MEMBERS suffered economic harm.
457.

As a further direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS’ breach of duty, and

misconduct, Plaintiff/Class Members were not able to redeem their bonds pursuant to their
legal rights, and were not able to obtain payment from Defendants according to the terms of
the bonds, and PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS had to forfeit claims, and suffered
economic damages.
458.

As a further direct and proximate result of the breaches and omissions, DEFENDANTS

have gained an Unconscionable Advantage, over the Plaintiffs/Class Members, and have
evaded their redemption and payment obligations, and have been Unjustly Enriched, by
withholding adequate information, and preventing meaningful redemption of the bonds, and
by refusing payment of the PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS bonds, for which payment is
due and owing.
459.

WHEREFORE PLAINTIFFS, and Class Members, hereby demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against Defendants jointly and/or severally for (i)
compensatory damages, which meet the jurisdictional requirements of this court, of
which the Plaintiff/Class Members shall leave to the determination of the ultimate
Trier of fact which should be permitted to award Plaintiff and Class Members
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS of DOLLARS and (ii) interest, and attorney fees,
exemplary or punitive damages, costs of action, and such other relief the Court deems
just and proper.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank – continued next page)
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COUNT III
CONSTRUCTIVE FRAUD
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS
460.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat and incorporate the allegations of the

foregoing paragraphs, as if the same were set forth fully and at length herein.
461.

DEFENDANTS, as Trustees, and/or Obligors, and/or Guarantors, and/or

Redemption and Paying Agents, and/or Successors thereof, on the
PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS’ BONDS, have legal, and/or equitable duties, and
have special and/or fiduciary relationships or obligations, and owe duties towards
Plaintiff/Class Members seeking redemption and payment of the bonds.
462.

DEFENDANTS had/have duties to maintain proper redemption and payment

procedures for the PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS’ bonds, and Defendants had/have
a duty to communicate accurate information to the Plaintiff/Class Members and
bondholders seeking to redeem and/or obtain payment of their bonds, upon which they
could reasonably rely in the conduct of their affairs relative to the bonds, and
DEFENDANTS have a duty NOT to conceal or suppress relevant and proper
information, and Defendants have duty to act with GOOD FAITH, and not to act in
ways adverse or detrimental to the PLAINTIFFS’ rights.
463.

DEFENDANTS received questions and inquiries from bondholders,

Plaintiff/Class Members, concerning the redemption and payment of their bonds.
Specifically Defendants received questions as to “how” the bonds could be redeemed
and “where” and with “whom” and “how” payment could be obtained, and what
“insurance policies” were available for lost or damaged bonds, or “safe-keeping
measures” and what was the identity of the individual and “expertise” of the
“examining agents” in authenticating bonds and other pertinent questions.
464.

When Defendants received the requests and inquiries, the DEFENDANTS knew

and realized, in light of their equitable, legal or fiduciary duties or obligations, or in
light of the confidential or special relationships between the parties, that they had/have
duties to PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS, and to provide adequate and meaningful
responses. (See e.g. Document 65-4, filed 04/10/2009 – previously filed in this case
as “Plaintiffs Exhibit H” and incorporated by reference herein containing the
Bondholder’s Requests for Redemption and Payment of the German Gold Bonds).
465.

Numerous other requests for redemption and payment of the bonds were made by

Plaintiffs such as in May 12, 2009 - and included request for pertinent information,
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such as the identity of the individuals responsible for examining bonds and
authenticating and what is their “expertise” and nationality, and by whom are they
employed, and what is the insurance if bonds are lost or damaged while in custody of
Defendants and what are the safe-keeping measures for the bonds, and whether the
Plaintiffs’ independent observers and experts can be provided during the process of
redemption and examination, among other critical questions.
466.

The Defendants’ either failed to answer and failed to provide any meaningful

information, or provided false and misleading information, or provided less than they
should have provided, when it was their duty to speak and to provide full and adequate
and proper responses and/or answers to the Plaintiffs’ questions, and/or the
Defendants responses relative to redemption and payment procedures, were lacking,
or lacked transparency, and were negligently, or intentionally, deceptive, spurious, or
ambiguous and/or unsubstantiated. So as to prevent Plaintiffs from redeeming their
bonds and obtaining payment of principal and interest.
467.

The Defendants in bad faith and in breach of their duties have failed to provide the

meaningful fair and proper redemption information and payment procedures.
468.

PLAINTIFFS and/or CLASS MEMBERS, by themselves, or through their

representatives, successors, agents, or assigns, have demanded redemption and
payment of their bonds by DEFENDANTS, as in March 2006, and also repeated in
the Plaintiffs’ requests on various occasions, for example in this case, on March 12,
2009, (Document 65-4, filed 04/10/2009, and incorporated by reference herein)
(Plaintiffs’ by way of letter via email to all Defendants’ counsel who have appeared
herein) addressed to the Defendants as the redemption and paying agents, and/or
trustees, and/or guarantors, and/or selling brokers, and/or successors in interest, and/or
parent or subsidiary companies, or principals or agents of the Defendant and specific
letters addressed to: JP Morgan, UBS, Citibank, Bank of New York, Mizuho,
Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank AG, Deutsche Bankers Trust, and Schroders, and
Commerzbank.
469.

In February 2009 a telephone call was made to Sweden and New York to discuss

redemption and payment of bonds with SEB, and documents sent relative to the
complaint, and again in September 2009, requests were made via email to SEB for
redemption and payment of the bonds but no response was forthcoming and therefore
SEB has breached its fiduciary duties and intentionally decided to suppress critical
information and failed to provide meaningful redemption or payment information.
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Plaintiffs have demanded redemption and payment of the bonds from these parties

mentioned herein - responsible for payment of the bonds, but the Defendants JP
Morgan, Citibank, Bank of New York, Mizuho, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank AG,
Deutsche Bankers Trust, SEB, and Schroders, and from Dresdner in June 25, 2009 did not provide proper redemption payment procedures and NONE of the Defendants
above-mentioned have responded with appropriate and full disclosure and meaningful
redemption and payment information.
471.

Defendants have wrongfully refused to disclose critical information and

wrongfully refused to redeem or to pay cash for the bonds, and/or have provided no
information or wrong or misleading information, or provided less than they should
have provided, or provided incomplete or false information, and all these acts of
commission and omission are designed to prevent Plaintiffs from redeeming their
bonds or obtaining payment and are designed to defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members
and were to the detrimental reliance of Plaintiffs who were not able to redeem the
bonds and were not able to obtain payment according to the explicit terms of the
bearer bonds which is the responsibility and unconditional obligation of the
Defendants to redeem and make payment.
472.

PLAINTIFF have stated fraud with particularity as to the DEFENDANTS herein

and provided specific example of an instance of fraud or misleading statements with
particularity regarding JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, Deutsche
Bank/Bankers Trust, Credit Suisse, Bank of New York Mellon, UBS, and
Commerzbank, that occurred recently, and furthermore n this case, on May 8, 2009,
contained in the Defendants Joint Reply brief (Document 67, filed by Defendants on
05/08/2009, Page 9of 25, Section C and incorporated by reference herein) which was
filed with the Court, and Defendants falsely stated with required scienter and intent to
defraud - that the “Validation Board still exists in the Federal Republic of Germany”
in order to convey the falsehood that” validation is possible” in Germany with
“existing” “Validation Boards” when in fact the “Validation Boards” are obsolete.
473.

The false statement was a product of the “meeting of minds” of Defendants and it

was agreed to by the Defendants and signed and/or joined by the Defendant’ counsel
in unison, and submitted to court and plaintiffs, and so as well as common law fraud,
also constitutes “mail and wire” fraud which will be addressed in the RICO violations
cause of action.
474.

This amply demonstrates with particularity the fraudulent statements and
102

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 103 of 241

misrepresentations directed to Plaintiffs and the court, and specifies as to whom,
when, where, time and place, and content of the fraudulent statements made in May
2009, by JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, UBS, Deutsche
Bank/Bankers Trust, Bank of New York Mellon, Credit Suisse, and Commerzbank to
deceive Plaintiffs and the court.
475.

Invariably when bondholders contact the Defendants, presently and over the past

years, to request meaningful and proper redemption and payment procedures and
information, the Defendants, in furtherance of their ongoing conspiracy to defraud
bondholders, will make false statements about “looted bonds” and misrepresentations
to deceive bondholders and courts, to give false information and wrong impressions
about the so-called “validation” scheme or try to impose bogus requirements such as
“proof of ownership in 1945” to bearer bonds or defunct procedures in Germany to
obtain Plaintiffs property, the bonds, and confiscate and/or deny payment and deny
redemption and cause forfeiture of claims.
476.

DEFENDANTS further realized that bonds from PLAINTIFFS/CLASS

MEMBERS were still unpaid and/or in default, and that Plaintiffs’ claims were in
good faith and forthcoming, and DEFENDANTS had/have a duty to be transparent,
and open, and fair, and reasonably prompt and efficient, in dealing with the
Plaintiffs/Class Members’ claims, and to pay according to the terms of the bearer
bonds, and DEFENDANTS had/have a duty NOT to impose unreasonable, or arbitrary
and capricious, or extracurricular requirements (such as “proof of ownership” in
1945), which was not within the plain language of the bonds. The terms of the Bearer
bonds explicitly reject and disallow any restrictions or limitations on the rights of the
creditors to assert claims on bonds and do not permit Defendants to avoid obligations
by artificial impairments, treaty, laws, conventions or otherwise.
477.

Defendants failed to do the necessary duties as was required pursuant to the

special and fiduciary relationships with Plaintiff/Class Members, and DEFENDANTS
breached their legal and/or equitable duties and/or fiduciary obligations.
478.

DEFENDANTS knew that bonds were in default, and that bondholders, such as

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS would, sooner or later, demand payment of their
bonds, and Defendants had/have a duty to institute proper redemption mechanisms,
and Defendants had/have a duty to make payment according to the terms of the bonds,
and had/have a duty to maintain proper information and implement fair and proper
procedures for redemption and payment of the bonds.
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Further DEFENDANTS had/have a duty to make such redemption information,

and to make fair procedures for redemption and payment of bonds according to the
terms of the bonds, AVAILABLE to Plaintiffs, in the United States, as well as
Germany, and in English, at no cost to Plaintiffs, in order to safeguard
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS’ investments or monies held in trust by
DEFENDANTS. And Defendants had/have a duty to provide the bondholders a fair
and reasonable opportunity to redeem their bonds, without prejudice or discrimination,
and to effectively obtain just and proper payment.
480.

DEFENDANTS negligently or intentionally failed to fulfill their fiduciary

obligations, and failed to meet their duties of providing adequate information, and
failed to meet their obligations to provide meaningful redemption and payment of the
bonds to Plaintiffs/Class Members, all of which operated as a constructive fraud.
481.

DEFENDANTS did not provide proper information and reasonable redemption

and just payment to Plaintiffs/Class Members. Further, the DEFENDANTS adopted
contrary measures, completely adverse to Plaintiffs’ rights and interests, in that the
DEFENDANTS, directly or indirectly, endorsed, approved, acquiesced to, participated
in, or conducted an improper and/ or unlawful “validation” scheme, which functioned
as a deceptive ruse, and by definition, and operation, was constructive fraud.
482.

The deception was designed to deprive Plaintiff/Class Members of their rights,

and/or claims, and/or bonds and/or monies, all of which was in direct breach of the
Defendants’ special relationships and/or equitable or legal duties or fiduciary
obligations, and all of which, operated as a constructive fraud, for which
DEFENDANTS are accountable, and liable for the damages caused to Plaintiffs/Class.
483.

DEFENDANTS breached and violated their duties, and/or acted negligently or

recklessly, by failing to provide meaningful redemption procedures for payment of the
bonds, and/or by failing to provide adequate information, and/or, by concealing
redemption or payment information or promoting deceptive standards (such as
concealments relative to the “validity” and “value” of bonds under the Gold Clauses
payment terms), or by providing false or misleading information or statements, such
as the bonds are “worthless” or “cannot be paid”, all to the detrimental reliance of
Plaintiff/Class Members, who suffered economic injury as a result of the Defendants’
acts or omissions, which amount to positive or constructive fraud, and have
detrimental effect upon Plaintiff/Class Members and on private and/or public interests.
484.

The acts or omissions, false statements or misrepresentations, of Defendants’
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relative to the bonds, had/have a systematic propensity to deceive bondholders and the
public, and had/have a systematic tendency to foster, and further, and operate as a
fraud upon Plaintiff/Class Members, and bondholders, irrespective of the moral guilt
of the wrongdoers, or intent to deceive or actual dishonesty.
485.

DEFENDANTS solicited the Plaintiff/Class Members’ monies, and Defendants

solicited investment in the bonds, under circumstances where these monies or
investments from Plaintiff/Class Members, were not gifts, and could not be considered
as gifts; and DEFENDANTS solicited trust and confidence, by holding themselves out
as reliable, creditworthy, trustworthy, sovereigns and banks, and expert financial
institutions, and by holding themselves out as reputable, Trustees, or Obligors, or
Selling Brokers, or Redemption and Paying Agents, and/or Guarantors, or successors
thereof, and by holding themselves out as dependable entities, for repayment of the
bonds, to the detrimental reliance and injury of Plaintiffs.
486.

As such, DEFENDANTS established equitable, legal, or fiduciary duties and/or

special or confidential or fiduciary relationships with Plaintiff/Class Members,
bondholders, and thereafter, DEFENDANTS breached their legal, equitable or
fiduciary duties and/or obligations causing harm to Plaintiff/Class Members.
487.

As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS’ constructive fraud, and

breach of legal, equitable, or fiduciary duties, Plaintiff/Class Members suffered monetary
damages and were not able redeem their bonds and were not able to obtain payment
according to the terms of the bonds.
488.

And as a direct and proximate result of said DEFENDANTS’ constructive fraud,

the DEFENDANTS have gained an undue and Unconscionable Advantage and have been
unjustly enriched by withholding proper information or redemption and by refusing
payment of the bonds, and by keeping all the bond monies due to PLAINTIFF/CLASS
MEMBERS, of principal and interest, which are due and owing to the Plaintiffs, and
DEFENDANTS’ have unjustifiably evaded payment of the bonds.
489.

WHEREFORE PLAINTIFFS, and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against Defendants jointly and/or severally for (i) compensatory
damages, which meet jurisdictional requirements of this court, of which Plaintiffs/Class
Members shall leave to the determination of the ultimate Trier of fact which should be
permitted to award Plaintiffs and Class Members HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS of
dollars,(ii) interest, attorney fees, exemplary, and or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief the court deems just and proper.
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COUNT IV – FRAUD
AGAINST COMMERZBANK AG & DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK
AND THE OTHER DEFENDANTS
490.

PLAINTIFFS AND CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and

every one of the allegations as contained in the preceding paragraphs, as if the same were set
forth fully and at length herein.
491.

On or about, February 6, 2006, Plaintiffs, by themselves, or through their representatives,

made inquiries with BAFIN, the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority in Bonn, Germany,
relative to redemption and payment of the German gold bonds, such as the Rheinelbe Union, and
were informed by one of the employees who works at BAFIN, Mr. Stephan Neuburg, and he
indicated and confirmed in his official capacity and/or within the scope of his employment,
and/or agency, and/or authority for BAFIN, that he personally spoke with DEUTSCHE
BUNDESBANK, and they confirmed to him that the DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK was an
appropriate partner for redemption and payment of the bonds, and the thing to do was to send the
German gold bonds to the DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK for applicable redemption and
payment of the bonds.
FRAUD ALLEGATIONS AS TO DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK
492.

On or about, February 7, 2006, DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK in Frankfurt,

Germany, was contacted by Plaintiffs, or Class Members, by themselves, or through
their representatives, or agents, relative to redemption of the bonds and in order to get
payment of cash for the bonds.
493.

The employees of Deutsche Bundesbank, know, or KNEW, of the Falsity or

Misleading nature of their misrepresentations, and they know, or KNEW, the German
gold bonds are BEARER BONDS, and are payable upon demand to the bearer
(regardless of “proof of ownership” or irrespective of location of the “bonds in 1945”),
and they know, or KNEW, of the terms of the bearer bonds, required no proof of
ownership in 1945, or any other artificial conditions which were not within the terms
of the bonds. For bearer bonds “possession is the proof” and “possession is the law”
and Deutsche Bundesbank employees knew that these were Bearer bonds requiring no
such proof of ownership in 1945, and that the bonds have great worth.
494.

The employees of Deutsche Bundesbank, know, or KNEW, of the Falsity or

Misleading nature of their misrepresentations, and they know, or KNEW the bonds
were NOT “worthless” and contain the GOLD CLAUSE payment terms of the bonds,
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which render the bonds of great worth and highly valuable. And the Deutsche
Bundesbank employees, Schmidt and Gierenstein, knew that the gold clauses was
clearly set forth and was consistent with the stated intentions expressed by all the
parties to the bonds, and/or participating in the bonds contracts.
495.

The misrepresentations or false and misleading statements or omissions made by

GERMANY, and/or its agent, DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, and/or any of its
employees, were maliciously designed to deceive, defraud and/or deprive the
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS of their rights to payment, and to deny the
bondholders of any meaningful opportunity to present their legitimate claims, and to
deter Plaintiffs from seeking redemption and payment of their bonds.
496.

Further, the false statements or misrepresentations by Deutsche Bundesbank

and/or its employees, were intended to deceive, or had an effect of deceiving, the
Plaintiffs, bondholders, into deeming their bonds were “WORTHLESS”, or into
believing that the bonds are worth less than what they actually are worth. The
misleading statements were designed to discourage, deter or prevent legitimate claims.
497.

The false or misleading statements or misrepresentations by DEUTSCHE

BUNDESBANK were to the detrimental reliance and injury of PLAINTIFFS, and/or
caused forfeiture of Plaintiff/Class Members’ claims, and caused economic harm and
damages to Plaintiffs or Class Members.
498.

And such false and misleading statements were also made for the benefit or unjust

enrichment of GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, and to secure an unconscionable
advantage for Germany and Defendants, and to cause Plaintiff or Class Members or
bondholders to forfeit their claims and/or have the claims denied. And GERMANY
and/or DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK are vicariously liable for the torts or
misrepresentations or fraud or misleading statements or omissions of its employees or
representatives or agents acting within the scope of employment and/or agency and/or
authority for the DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK and GERMANY.
499.

Furthermore, In a fax dated 28 MARCH 2006, sent by Dr. Schmidt and

transmitted with Deutsche Bundesbank letterhead, by fax transmission to the
Plaintiffs’ counsel Hassan Abbas in Belgium, from German fax no. +49-69-95664458, on 28/03/2006, at 14.54, designated from: BBK Zentrale M 41-1, signed by Dr.
Schmidt on behalf of the Deutsche Bundesbank, again the letter containing material
misrepresentations of fact and falsely stating that: Germany did not accept unlimited
responsibility for repayments of any prewar obligation in the London Debt Accord
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and in particular not to repay bonds issued by private companies such as the
Rheinelbe Union but in fact stated responsibility for certain bonds issued by the
German Reich or Prussia only.
500.

Dr. Schmidt realized that this statement was false and misleading as the

RHEINELBE UNION bond was listed in the Schedule of the Validation Law for
German Foreign Currency Bonds under said law which described the United States
as the “Country of Offering” and clearly Germany HAD accepted liability for and
responsibility for repayment of the Rheinelbe Union bonds, contrary to the false
assertions by Dr. Schmidt with intent to defraud and prevent redemption and payment
of bonds of Plaintiffs.
501.

Again the misrepresentations or false and misleading statements or omissions

made by GERMANY, and/or its agent, DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, and/or any of
its employees, were maliciously designed to deceive, defraud and/or deprive the
PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS of their rights to payment, and to deny the
bondholders of any meaningful opportunity to present their legitimate claims.
FRAUD ALLEGATIONS AS TO COMMERZBANK AG
502.

On or about MARCH 16, 2006, COMMERZBANK AG in Frankfurt, Germany,

was contacted by Plaintiffs, or Class Members, by themselves, or through their
representatives, or agents, relative to redemption and payment of cash for the bonds.
503.

On or about MARCH 22, 2006, COMMERZBANK AG in Frankfurt Am Main,

by its representatives and/or employees and/or agents or representative departments,
including, but not limited to, Zentraler Service Bereich Transaction Banking, or the
Zentraler Stab Recht, confirmed they function as an “Examining Agent” for the
redemption and payment of the Plaintiff and/or Class Members gold bonds. This was
indicated or confirmed by Hermann Stahl and/or Julius Kimmle who are employees of
Commerzbank, acting within the scope of employment, and/or authority, and/or
agency for COMMERZBANK AG. (See Declaration Hassan A. Abbas, Document
65-2, previously filed 04/10/2009 and incorporated by reference herein).
504.

On or about March 22, 2006, material misrepresentations of fact and false and

misleading statements were made by COMMERZBANK AG to Plaintiffs, and the
misrepresentations and false and misleading statements were made verbally by
telephone, through Commerzbank employees and/or representatives, ostensibly
responsible for redemption and payment of the bonds, Hermann Stahl and/or Julius
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Kimmle, who negligently, or recklessly, or intentionally, misled Plaintiffs and/or Class
Members, relative to the redemption or “validation” scheme, as follows and stated to
the Plaintiffs’ counsel, various intentional or negligent misrepresentations and false
and misleading statements with intent to deceive and defraud, and malice
aforethought, to the effect THAT:
(A) “BONDS are “INVALID”, and “WORTHLESS”, and;
(B) There is ““NO CHANCE” to get the bonds redeemed or “validated” and “NO
CHANCE” to receive payment, “EXCEPT”, if you are “JEWISH”, and prove
“Where the bonds were in 1945” outside Germany.
505.

These misleading and/or false or deceptive statements were made by Julius

Kimmle and/or Hermann Stahl, in the scope of employment or authority for
COMMERZBANK AG, when they KNEW, the falsity or misleading nature of their
statements, and/or knew they were misrepresentations of material fact, and they
KNEW the BEARER BONDS did NOT require the Bearer or Bondholder to be
“JEWISH”, and they KNEW the terms of the BEARER BONDS themselves had NO
requirement whatsoever, that MANDATED the Bearer of the bond “to prove the
bond’s location in 1945”, outside Germany, or prove a “chain of custody to 1945”.
506.

COMMERZBANK AG is vicariously liable for the torts or intentional

misrepresentations or misleading statements or fraud of its employees or
representatives or agents, acting within the scope of employment, or authority, or
agency for Commerzbank. In addition COMMERZBANK AG is responsible for the
actions or omissions of its designated department for German gold bonds, and the
“Examining Agents”, making fraudulent or misleading statements.
507.

The deceptive and false and misleading statements by COMMERZBANK AG

were to the detrimental reliance and injury to PLAINTIFF and/or CLASS
MEMBERS, and/or bondholders, and caused economic loss to Plaintiff and/or Class
Members or bondholders, and such fraud, misleading statements and
misrepresentation of material fact was perpetrated by COMMERZBANK AG, for its
benefit and that of its co-conspirators, DEFENDANTS, in order to diminish claims, or
deter, or deprive bondholders’ rights, or prevent, or deny, or cause forfeiture of the
PLAINTIFF or CLASS MEMBERS or bondholders’ claims; and/or to impermissibly
alter payment conditions of the bonds, on an arbitrary and/or capricious basis, so as
NOT TO PAY on the bonds to bondholders, and/or to unjustly enrich Defendants, and
to secure for Commerzbank and Defendants an unconscionable advantage.
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Based on the statements by DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK’S representatives or

employees or officials; and the statements by COMMERZBANK AG employees,
officials, or representatives; and based on the declarations of bondholders, or CLASS
MEMBERS’, who submitted bonds for “validation”; it is evident that GERMANY,
and the GERMAN redemption and/or paying agents, such as Bundesbank or
Commerzbank, had/have NO intention to pay for the Plaintiffs/Class Members’ bonds.
509.

The “validation” scheme and redemption and payment process employed by

GERMANY and COMMERZBANK AG, provides no source of due process, and no
source of fairness in treating the claims, and no source of legal relief, and no chance
for payment for Plaintiffs or legitimate bondholders, who submit claims, due to the
unreliable and fraudulent nature of the “validation” scheme in GERMANY, which can
change at any moment, according to the “Examiner” whim or caprice, in that:
510.

GERMANY and/or COMMERZBANK AG, as redemption and paying agent for

the bonds, have included and/or use bond redemption or payment criteria which have
absolutely nothing to do with the payment terms of the original Bearer Bonds sold and
payable in the United States; the BONDS require no “Proof of Ownership”, or
“location of the bonds in 1945”, or being “JEWISH”.
511.

Some PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS or bondholders, are in fact JEWISH,

and such legitimate JEWISH bondholders are entitled to redemption and payment of
their bonds by GERMANY, COMMERZBANK or the obligor DEFENDANTS.
Similarly, some Plaintiffs/Class Members or bondholders, are in fact NON-JEWISH,
and have their own sets of beliefs, and such legitimate NON-JEWISH bondholders,
are also entitled to redemption and payment of their bonds by GERMANY, or the
paying agents, COMMERZBANK AG, and/or other obligor DEFENDANTS, in
accordance with the terms of the bonds.
512.

The religious background, or beliefs of a bondholder, as one of the purported

factors employed by DEFENDANTS, or GERMANY or the redemption and paying
agents, such as DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, or COMMERZBANK AG, for
redemption and payment of the bonds, is a religious and/or ethnic and/or cultural
factor, and is an unconstitutional and/or unlawful factor to utilize in the redemption or
payment of the German gold bonds, and it is not a relevant criterion, nor a condition
precedent, for payment of the bonds, which are Bearer Bonds.
513.

GERMANY, DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, COMMERZBANK and

DEFENDANTS have taken the position that they will NOT pay on the bonds, even if
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bonds are legitimate and authenticated by experts, and they will never honor the
Plaintiffs or Class Members’ rights, or comply with their legal, equitable, fiduciary
obligations, or the redemption and payment terms of the bonds, unless, bondholders
obey them and send the bonds to incompetent agencies or submit to illegal, obsolete,
or bogus “validation boards” and spurious validation schemes, where the bonds can
disappear or be perforated or damaged or tampered with and improperly voided. It
appears the only way, Commerzbank and Germany and Defendants will honor their
obligations and meet their responsibilities to Plaintiffs and Class Members and
bondholders is if they are ordered to pay by the Court.
514.

Declaration of Ms. Elfriede Korber, Document 42-2, previously filed 02/04/2009,

is incorporated by reference herein), and Plaintiff Elfriede Korber, is a bondholder,
who has possession of hundreds of German gold dollar bonds, such as Rhienelbe
Union, Young, Dawes, and/or others, and experienced the “validation” scheme in
GERMANY first-hand, and was falsely told her bonds would be redeemed, and she
authenticated her bonds via expert, and she deposited her bonds at COMMERZBANK
in Dusseldorf, according to the instructions given to her by German government
agencies, such as the Deutsche Bundesbank and German Finance Ministry, and was
defrauded and lied to and exhausted the administrative avenues or remedies in
Germany and complied with the procedures of the alleged “Examining Agency”
Commerzbank, and plaintiff Elfriede Korber sustained significant costs and incurred
injury to her business or property and suffered financial losses as she spent over
$100,000 USD over the years to obtain redemption and payment of her bonds as a
result of the fraud.
515.

Commerzbank and Germany and Deutsche Bundesbank fraudulently induced

Plaintiff Elfriede Korber, (and others), to send bonds to “Examining Agencies”
relative to the bogus “validation” schemes, and to meet the spurious requirements of
having to prove “ownership outside Germany in 1945” and other arbitrary and
capricious and artificial conditions by Germany and then Plaintiff Korber was denied
compensation and deprived of payment of the owing principal and interest for no
legitimate reason, and no letter was given to her by Commerzbank with any
explanation for the denial of “validation” or redemption or payment, as is required by
“Validation Law 1952.”
516.

There was a Mr. Herlinger, with whom Ms. Korber was communicating, and she

did what was requested of her to satisfy the “requirements” for “validation”, and she
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was told that money would be paid to her, or her beneficiary’s account in
Commerzbank Dusseldorf. But no monies were paid. The statements made to her
were false and they strung her along, and ultimately, the German government, and
Commerzbank, for no legitimate reason, reneged on their statements, or promises, or
agreements or obligations to redeem and pay her bonds, and she had no option but to
demand the return of her bonds.
517.

False and misleading and deceptive statements, with malice aforethought, were

made by defendant COMMERZBANK AG in Frankfurt, and transmitted via the fax
on December 21, 2005 (See Document 65-5, previously filed 04/10/2009,
incorporated by reference herein) to Plaintiffs’ counsel in Belgium, through its
employees and/or representatives, responsible for redemption and payment of the
bonds, Hermann Stahl and/or Julius Kimmle, who negligently, or recklessly, or
intentionally, misled Plaintiffs and/or Class Members, and made misrepresentations of
material facts, or omissions thereof to Plaintiffs’ counsel, and in writing, by fax, on or
about 21 December 2005, and Falsely and Misleadingly stating: “First of all, it has
been established that ALL BONDS IN QUESTION have in the mean time been
declared invalid and have therefore become “WORTHLESS” in order to defraud
Plaintiffs and cause forfeiture of claims, and deter the redemption and deny payment
of the bonds. The bonds have never been “worthless” and the claims have never been
“worthless” - and in fact the bonds have extremely high value, irrespective of any
unilateral “declaration” of “invalidity” by Germany.
518.

The bonds were not “worthless” when Germany and Defendants sold the bonds

and took hundreds of millions of dollars from Class Members, Plaintiffs and/or
bondholders who purchased the bonds, and the Plaintiffs bonds and claims are not
“worthless” at present.
519.

Under Art. 52 of the Validation Law, Plaintiffs are entitled to compensation, if the

bonds would have been validated if submitted in time, and if the failure to meet the
application timetable was not due to “gross negligence”. In this case, there has been
no “gross negligence” by Plaintiffs, and they have acted in a proper and timely
manner, and they are entitled to full “validation” and redemption and payment of their
bonds, and all due principal and interest owing to them, pursuant to the terms of the
gold bearer bonds.
520.

Further Commerzbank has misleadingly stated that “ALL German Foreign

Currency bonds HAVE TO BE explicitly validated by an appointed competent
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Examining Agency”. First Commerzbank is not a competent “Examining Agency”
as it is engaged in defrauding bondholders and Class Members and Plaintiffs, and
making false misrepresentations, and converting or misappropriating bonds, and it is
incapable and unwilling to “validate” bonds and has systematically denied
“validation” for no legitimate reason.
521.

Commerzbank has no experts in bond authentication, and/or has not identified

AND REFUSES TO IDENTIFY any person handling the claims or with expertise in
bond authentication at Commerzbank.
522.

The Bearer Bonds herein are payable to the Bearer without restrictions,

limitations, or any prerequisites of “validation” - and therefore the bonds do not
HAVE TO BE explicitly “validated” by an “Examining Agency” because Bearer
Bonds are presumably self-authenticating and can be verified and authenticated by
independent experts; and because the entire premise of the German “validation”
scheme and “Examining Agency” is based on a fabrication and fraud and there was
NOT and/or NO PROOF of any “theft of 300,000 bonds by Russian soldiers in
1945” as alleged by Germany and Defendants - which Commerzbank fails to state and these are material omissions of material facts in order to mislead Plaintiffs about
their rights for redemption and payment of the bonds. And because treaties required
the establishment of a “Validation Board” in the United States for the purpose of
“Validation” for bondholders and in English
523.

And Commerzbank intentionally suppressed and concealed and failed to state as it

had a fiduciary duty to disclose that the” Validation Boards” are obsolete and do not
exist in Germany or the United States, and the validation procedures are no longer
available. And Commerzbank is incompetent for “validation” purposes because it
cannot “validate” bonds - and a court procedure is necessary, and the United States
federal courts have power and jurisdiction to hear the claims on bonds.
524.

Plaintiffs are not required pursuant to the terms of the bearer bonds to “prove

ownership outside Germany in 1945” or establish a “chain of custody to 1945” and it
is false and misleading for Defendants, and Commerzbank and Germany to assert that
Plaintiffs must obtain “validation” in Germany.
525.

Additional misrepresentations and false statements were sent by email to

Plaintiffs’ counsel, on or about 22 March 2006, by Julius Kimmle of Commerzbank,
and including “leaflet” or “brochure” by Commerzbank, entitled “Swindles with old
bonds” in order to falsely portray bondholders as “swindlers”; and/or to falsely convey
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that persons dealing with the bonds and who may want to use them as collateral or
assets as having “dubious dealings”; and to falsely promote the misleading campaign,
that reiterates the false story of “looting of bonds by Russian soldiers in 1945” and the
spurious requirements of “proving ownership outside Germany in 1945”, and having
the “coupons 1941 to 1944”, which is another arbitrary and capricious requirement to
deter, defraud, deny, dissuade Plaintiffs, bondholders from making claims, to foreclose
redemption and payment of bonds, by imposing false and artificial preconditions.
526.

Throughout the brochure, Commerzbank gives the false impression that one has

to be “wary” of bonds or “individuals dealing with bonds”; or that “if necessary” one
should contact the “FBI” in connection with the bonds. When in fact, the contrary is
true, bondholders and Plaintiffs and Class Members have to be “wary” of Germany
and its Examining Agencies, and Defendants - and having bearer bonds is legitimate
and seeking redemption and payment of the bonds is legitimate.
527.

Commerzbank, Defendants, Germany take active steps to defraud and dissuade

and deter Plaintiffs from redemption and to deprive and deny payment of their bonds
and cause forfeiture of claims - when in fact Germany and/or Defendants are involved
in the “Mother of all Swindles” (See “Leaflet” by Commerzbank – attached herein)
FRAUD ALLEGATIONS AS TO BADV - PRUFSTELLE FUR
AUSLANDSBONDS AND LANDESAMT FUR FINANZEN
528.

During MAY 2009, Defendant, Germany and/or its agent, BADV- Prufstelle fur

Auslandsbonds in Berlin, as the redemption and paying agent for Dawes and Young
bonds, or alleged and/or ostensible “Examining Agency” – by Ms. Ingrid Jaeger - sent
letters and communications by post and email internet to Plaintiffs counsel in Belgium
containing some misleading statements, half-truths, and/or material misrepresentations
of fact in a scheme to defraud.
529.

Mr. Huber of the Landesamt Fur Finanzen misrepresented the requirements for

“Validation” and the necessity of “proof of ownership” for bearer bonds and refused to
communicate in English so as to unlawfully foreclose redemption and materially
infringe on Plaintiffs procedural and substantive rights for redemption and payment.
530.

Ms. Ingrid Jaeger misrepresented that a “theft” had occurred relative to German

gold bonds, and that “Russians had looted bonds from the Reichsbank in Berlin in
1945”, when BADV, Prufstelle, Germany and Defendants have no proof of such a
“theft” - and yet keep maintaining the myth over and over again - while knowing that it
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is false and/or speculative historical fact, that even the Treaty admits - is hypothetical.
531.

The false statements and misleading account of “theft of bonds by Russians” is,

wrong, and is false information, or falsely described, by Germany and its alleged
“Examining” agency the BADV - Prufstelle - this falsity was not revealed to Plaintiffs
or the Plaintiffs’ counsel in the relevant letters or communications - but rather,
Defendants, insisted upon the fictitious story or fabricated myth of the “looting of
bonds” - so that Defendants could further their scheme to defraud Plaintiffs through the
mails and wires in violation of RICO, and to further falsely claim that in light of the
“theft” the “validation” of bonds was “required in Germany” prior to enforcement, and
to wrongfully and fraudulently compel plaintiffs and bondholders to surrender their
bonds and send the bonds to fraudulent and incompetent “Examining Agencies” that
would steal or tamper with, or void, or deny redemption and payment of the bonds., or
add their serial numbers to a list that Germany was fabricating, creating and making as
bonds were submitted to the “Examining Agency”.
532.

Ms Ingrid Jaeger falsely stated, among other things in her email, 11 May 2009, that:

“The reason for this validation procedure is that by the end of the war in 1945 a large
number of fixed-interest USD bonds and other non-German currency bonds dating from 1924
to 1930 were deposited not cancelled in the vaults of the Reichsbank or other banks in Berlin.
They had been bought up in large quantities by German investors or by issuers for purposes of
repayment. From these vaults a high number of the bonds were lost due to looting, seizure or
in other ways; later the bonds were unlawfully put back into circulation,” and;
“In the London Agreement on German foreign debts of February 27, 1953 it was therefore
provided (Annex I No. 8 f) that the rightful owners had to convert their bonds into new bonds
(conversion bonds) under the provisions of the German Validation Law (Bereinigungsgesetz
für deutsche Auslandsbonds).”
“According to the German American Agreement of 1 April 1953 nobody can take legal
action in order to gain payment for Dollar bonds without this previous validation, not even
in the USA.”

533.

Furthermore, Ms. Jaeger misrepresented that “nobody can take legal action for

payment of the bonds in USA without validation” - when she knew full well that the
“Validation Boards” are obsolete and do not exist in the United States nor in Germany
and that the BADV and the “examining agencies” lack competency for the purpose of
“validation” and the BADV - Prufstelle in Berlin and is incapable, and unwilling and
incompetent to “validate” bonds, and despite numerous requests she has refused to
identify a single “Examining Agent” or any person at the Prufstelle in Berlin who has
any kind of expertise in bond authentication. Ms. Jaeger, on behalf of the German
government, falsely misrepresented that a condition of “validation” of bonds was “proof
of ownership” and described other conditions relative to redemption and payment such
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as: sending the ORIGINAL bond, and Coupons from 1939 to 1945, and the “hardship”
requirement, and the “no fault” requirement for late registration - when she knew, or
should have known, that a showing of these requirements is not called for by the terms
of the bonds - and proof of the “whereabouts of the bonds in 1945 outside Germany” to
redeem the Dawes bonds and Young bonds or other requirements are contrary to the
terms of the bearer bonds payable to the bearer under the gold clause payment terms and
with no extracurricular conditions and no proof of ownership is required.
FRAUD ALLEGATIONS AS TO DRESDNER BANK AG
534.

PLAINTIFFS by themselves, or through their representatives, successors, agents,

or assigns, have demanded redemption with DRESDNER BANK AG and payment of
the bonds on June 25, 2009, (by way of letter via email from Plaintiffs’ counsel to
Dresdner Bank) which is the redemption and paying agent and “Examining Agent” on
the United Steel Works Corporations bonds.
535.

Plaintiffs have demanded payment from Dresdner bank responsible for

redemption and/or “validation” and/or payment of the bonds, and Dresdner Bank sent
a response email on June 26, 2009 acknowledging receipt of the request for
redemption and payment of the bonds and falsely and misleadingly stating that they
would respond “as soon as possible”. However there has been NO adequate response.
536.

Dresdner Bank requested that Plaintiffs send a written request to the headquarters

in Frankfurt, and Plaintiffs counsel sent registered letters to Dresdner Bank in
Frankfurt, on or about June 26, 2009, but Dresdner has not responded with any
appropriate and meaningful redemption and payment information, in breach of its
contractual and fiduciary duties to bondholders.
537.

Defendant Dresdner Bank has refused to respond, redeem or “validate” or to pay

cash for the Plaintiffs bonds, and/or has provided no information or wrong or
misleading information, or provided less than they should have provided, or provided
false information, and all these acts of commission and omission are designed to
unlawfully foreclose redemption process and prevent Plaintiffs from redeeming their
bonds or obtaining payment and are designed to defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members
and were to the detrimental reliance of Plaintiffs who were not able to redeem the
bonds and were not able to obtain payment according to the explicit terms of the
bearer bonds which is the responsibility and unconditional obligation of the
Defendant/s to redeem and make payment of Plaintiffs and Class Members bonds.
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FRAUD ALLEGATIONS AGAINST UBS AG
538.

On or about January 25, 2006, Plaintiffs by and through their counsel and

representative contacted UBS AG relative to redemption of the German gold bonds,
and were informed by Roger Briggen of UBS, acting within his scope, employment
and authority for UBS, that he had forwarded the request for redemption of the bonds
to “Nadine Cancell at UBS” who is in “compliance” and that “she would find out
what is the best way to proceed” and that he (Roger Briggen) would inform Plaintiff’s
counsel when he “heard back” with the proper redemption and payment procedures
and information.
539.

But that was a false statement by UBS employees or representatives and neither

Nadine Cancell nor Roger Briggen ever provided the proper and complete redemption
information and payment procedures, and did not inform who were the persons
responsible for redemption of the bonds and treating the claims at UBS.
540.

These actions or omissions by UBS were designed to foreclose redemption

process, and “prohibit” or impede payment, and materially infringe on the essential
rights of Plaintiffs and to infringe the procedures, and all this to the detrimental
reliance of Plaintiffs who were not able to redeem the bonds or obtain cash payment
on the bonds, to which they are entitled to receive monies, and full interest and
principal according to the terms of the bonds.
541.

This was a false statement by UBS - and UBS did not provide any meaningful

information as to the persons responsible at UBS for redemption and payment of the
bonds and never “got back” with the pertinent, fair, and meaningful information for
redemption and payment of the bonds.
542.

In May 8, 2009, UBS further made false statements regarding the existence of

“Validation Board” in Germany, when it knew or should have known, that none exist,
and UBS made false and/or misleading and/or reckless statements about the “theft of
bonds” without any reasonable or justifiable basis for making the false and misleading
statements which were designed to deceive Plaintiffs into sending bonds to Germany
where bonds would be stolen, confiscated, damaged, perforated, mutilated and denied
redemption and falsely denied payment, and to mislead the court about the existence of
a “validation board” and the existence of a process with “one American, one German,
and one acting as “umpire” – where no such board, or process exists, in an effort to
obtain dismissal of the complaint by deception and mendacity.
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FRAUD ALLEGATIONS AS TO
JP MORGAN CHASE NA, CITIBANK NA, BANK NEW YORK MELLON
SCHRODERS PLC, DEUTSCHE BANK AG, MIZUHO CORPORATE BANK
COMMERZBANK AG, DEUTSCHE BANK AG/DEUTSCHE BANKERS
TRUST CO. OF AMERICA, CREDIT SUISSE
543.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, by themselves, or through their

representatives, successors, agents, or assigns, have demanded redemption with
DEFENDANTS and payment of the bonds on March 12, 2009, (by way of letter via
email to all Defendants counsel who have appeared herein) addressed to the
redemption and paying agents, and/or trustees, and/or guarantors, and/or selling
brokers, and/or successors in interest, and/or parent or subsidiary companies, or
principals or agents of the Defendant and addressed to JP Morgan, Citibank, Bank of
New York, Mizuho, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank AG, Deutsche Bankers Trust, and
Schroders (and Commerzbank).
544.

Plaintiffs have demanded payment from these parties above mentioned

responsible for payment of the bonds, but Defendants JP Morgan, Citibank, Bank of
New York, Mizuho, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank AG, Deutsche Bankers Trust, and
Schroders, but NONE of the Defendants mentioned have responded with appropriate
and meaningful redemption and payment information.
545.

Defendants above mentioned have refused to redeem or to pay cash for the bonds,

and/or have provided no information or wrong or misleading information, or provided
less than they should have provided, or provided false information, and all these acts of
commission and omission are designed to prevent Plaintiffs from redeeming their
bonds or obtaining payment and are designed to defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members
and were to the detrimental reliance of Plaintiffs who were not able to redeem the
bonds and were not able to obtain payment according to the explicit terms of the
bearer bonds which is the responsibility and unconditional obligation of the
Defendants to redeem and make payment.
546.

PLAINTIFF or CLASS MEMBERS have stated fraud with particularity as to the

DEFENDANTS herein and a clear and specific example of an instance of fraud or
misleading statements with particularity regarding JP Morgan Chase, Citibank,
Mizuho, Schroders, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, Credit Suisse, Bank of New York
Mellon, UBS, and Commerzbank, that occurred recently, and in this case, and for
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example, on May 8, 2009, contained in the Defendants Joint Reply brief (Document
67, filed by Defendants on 05/08/2009, Page 9of 25, Section C and incorporated by
reference herein) which was filed with the Court, and Defendants falsely stated with
required scienter and intent to defraud - that the “Validation Board in exists in the
Federal Republic of Germany” in order to convey the falsehood that” validation is
possible” in Germany with “existing” “Validation Boards” when in fact the
“Validation Boards” are obsolete.
547.

The false statement was a product of the meeting of minds of Defendants and it

was agreed to by the Defendants and signed and/or joined by the Defendants counsel
in unison and submitted to court and plaintiffs, and so as well as common law fraud,
also constitutes “mail and wire” fraud which will be addressed in RICO violations.
548.

This amply demonstrates with particularity the fraudulent statements and

misrepresentations directed to Plaintiffs and the court, and specifies as to whom,
when, where, time and place, and content of the fraudulent statements made in May
2009, by JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, Mizuho, Schroders, UBS, Deutsche
Bank/Bankers Trust, Bank of New York Mellon, Credit Suisse, and Commerzbank to
deceive Plaintiffs and the court, and invariably when bondholders contact the
Defendants, presently and over the past years, to request meaningful and proper
redemption and payment procedures and information, the Defendants, in furtherance
of their ongoing conspiracy to defraud bondholders, will make false statements and
misrepresentations to deceive bondholders and courts, to give false information and
wrong impressions about the so-called “validation” scheme or bogus procedures to
obtain Plaintiffs property and confiscate and/or deny payment and deny redemption
and cause forfeiture of claims.
549.

For plaintiffs and Class members to relate all the instances of fraud with

particularity that happened as to the bondholders and Class Members and occurred
over the years would require extensive and appropriate discovery.
550.

Accordingly, PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, respectfully request the Court,

to the extent applicable and justifiable, to allow Plaintiffs discovery in order to
procure information relative to Defendants interactions, dealings, communications,
connections and contacts with other Class Members and bondholders who have
requested redemption and payment of bonds in order to meet further the particularity
rule relative to fraud, as the documents, evidence, facts are within the
DEFENDANTS exclusive knowledge and control.
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DEFENDANTS are insiders, and/or collaborators, or co-conspirators, or

affiliated, or subsidiaries or parent companies, or alter egos, or related entities,
involved in the massive fraud to cause economic loss to Plaintiffs and which has
caused economic loss to Plaintiff/Class Members, and other victims, and the breach
of contracts, refusal to pay the bonds, and/or deprivation of rights, of the hundreds
and thousands of bondholders at issue, and the sophisticated banks and defrauders
should not be permitted to successfully conceal the details of their fraud, in particular
prior to discovery.
552.

DEFENDANTS, acted to commit the wrongs, and negligence, and fraud, and the

breaches of contractual and fiduciary obligations complained of, and took part in the
conspiracy to defraud bondholders. DEFENDANTS’ participation in the scheme to
defraud was done with active involvement, and/or the knowledge of the fraudulent
statements, actions or omissions of the co-conspirators.
553.

DEFENDANTS acquiesced to, or aided and abetted, the fraud of their co-

Defendants, and have been unjustly enriched, and obtained an unconscionable
advantage, by their acquiescence, and/or purposeful conduct, and default, or refusal to
pay the bonds.
554.

As a direct and proximate result of the fraud by the Defendants herein;

COMMERZBANK’S and DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK’S, and UBS’S, and
MIZUHO’S and JP MORGAN’S and BANK of NEW YORK’s, and CITIBANK’s
and DEUTSCHE BANK AG’s, and SCHRODERS’ and CREDIT SUISSE, and
DRESDNER BANK, and LANDESAMT FUR FINANZEN, and BADVPRUFTSELLE and/or combination of DEFENDANTS, and the fraud, misleading
statements or omissions of material fact, were to the detrimental reliance and injury
and economic injury and harm of PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, who have
suffered monetary damages; were not able to redeem or obtain payment of bonds.
555.

WHEREFORE PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury

trial, damages and judgment against Defendants jointly and/or severally for (i)
compensatory damages, which meet the jurisdictional requirements of this court,
of which the Plaintiff/Class Members shall leave to the determination of the
ultimate Trier of fact which should be permitted to award Plaintiff and Class
Members in the HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS of dollars and (ii) interest, and
attorney fees, exemplary or punitive damages, costs of action., and such other
relief as the court deems just and proper.
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COUNT V
PIERCING THE CORPORATE VEIL/ALTER EGO
RESPONDEAT SUPERIOR OR PRINCIPAL/AGENT LIABILITY
AS TO ALL DEFENDANTS
556.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and

every one of the allegations as contained in the above referenced paragraphs, as if
the same were set forth fully and at length herein.
557.

DEFENDANTS on their own, or jointly, acted through their alter egos, or

subsidiaries, wholly owned, or affiliates, or divisions, or employees, or
representatives, or agents or agencies, or other entities, which were responsible for
redemption or payment of the bonds; AND which subsidiaries, affiliates, divisions,
agencies or agents, employees, or entities that DEFENDANTS controlled, and/or
dominated and/or had unity of interest, and/or had common ownership, or common
name, or common directors or officers, or commingling of funds and assets, of the
various entities, and/or were alter egos of each other; and/or were the
DEFENDANTS’ mere shells, conduits or Instrumentalities, and/or that separate
personalities did not really exist; through which DEFENDANTS acted to commit
various torts, wrongs, or breaches of fiduciary duty or breaches of contract, or bad
faith and/or defaults on payment of the bonds.
558.

These were entities through which DEFENDANTS acted to effect the fraudulent

schemes and conspiracy, AND entities through which DEFENDANTS implemented
deceit and/or caused harm and/or caused economic loss to victims,
PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, and bondholders, and it would inequitable to
permit DEFENDANTS to avoid liability and effect fraud by use of conduits,
instrumentalities, or fictitious forms.
559.

Under established agency law, and/or Respondeat Superior, and/or Piercing the

Corporate Veil, and/or other appropriate legal principles of liability, or law, or public
policy, the DEFENDANTS, and their subsidiaries, and/or affiliates, and/or divisions,
and/or agents and/or principals, and/or parents and/or subsidiaries, and/or other
combinations of DEFENDANTS are jointly and/or severally liable for the acts and
omissions complained of, and for aiding and abetting each other, and PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS request the Court to apply equitable remedies where
appropriate under the circumstances to prevent fraud and injustice.
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These wrongs, torts, frauds, misrepresentations, conspiracies, scheme to defraud,

breaches of fiduciary duty, breaches of contract, or failure to pay the bonds, which
caused economic loss and other harm to PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, was done
and executed at the direction of the DEFENDANTS, and/or their Related entities,
and/or Defendants’ majority shareholders, and accordingly, all are responsible for
payment of the bonds, in order to prevent injustice, and to prevent fraud against the
Plaintiff/Class Members, bondholders, and/or to prevent unjust enrichment of
Defendants.
561.

DEFENDANTS employed manipulative and/or deceptive devices in a scheme to

defraud PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, and/or engaged in acts which operate/d as
a fraud, and/or made untrue statements of material fact, and/or omitted statements of
material fact so as make the statements not misleading, in connection with the bonds,
relative to validity and/or value and/or redemption procedure and/or payment criteria
of the bonds, and did so by negligent or unlawful means and/or by the use of any
means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or the mails or facilities of the
national exchange in violation of the common laws and/or US Securities laws or
international laws.
562.

To the extent that DEFENDANTS may try to limit their liability by means of

fictitious forms, or ambiguous corporate structures or configurations, or other agents
or entities, and to the extent that DEFENDANTS controlled the wrongdoers, the
DEFENDANTS have control person liability, or vicarious liability, as they willfully
and culpably participated in the fraudulent scheme, and controlled the primary
violators, and/or acted in bad faith, and/or aided or abetted the fraud or breaches,
and/or acted to induce the fraud or breaches, whether directly or indirectly, and/or had
knowledge of the fraud or breaches, and did not prevent the wrongdoing.
563.

WHEREFORE PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury

trial, damages and judgment against Defendants jointly and/or severally for (i)
compensatory damages, which meet the jurisdictional requirements of this court,
of which the Plaintiff/Class Members shall leave to the determination of the
ultimate Trier of fact which should be permitted to award Plaintiff and Class
members HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS of Dollars and (ii) interest, and attorney
fees, exemplary or punitive damages, costs of action, and such other relief as the
court deems just and proper.
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COUNT VI
WRONGFUL EXPROPRIATION/TAKING OF PROPERTY
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS
564.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and

every one o f the allegations as contained the above referenced paragraphs, as if the
same were set forth fully and at length herein.
565.

The Defendants have unlawfully and wrongfully misappropriated Plaintiffs and/or

Class Members property, the bonds themselves, or payments due on the bonds which is
also a property interest and right, and Defendants have damaged tampered with, voided,
perforated, confiscated, converted and mutilated the bonds of Plaintiffs and Class
Members, and denied redemption and payment for no legitimate reason.
566.

The acts and/omissions DEFENDANTS and GERMANY constitutes a wrongful

expropriation and/or taking of Plaintiffs and Class members, rights, interests, property,
and specifically THE BONDS, or their rights to payments for the BONDS, which are
the subject of this claim. The aforementioned conspiracy, fraudulent acts or omissions
and wrongful expropriation and/or takings involved GERMANY's and/or
DEFENDANTS’:
a. Transportation, shipment, confiscation, taking and/or other acts related to
THE BONDS in the United States or Germany, or other actions which had an
effect on Plaintiff and Class Members rights and/or property in the US, or the
securities market in the US, or took other actions which had a direct effect on
similar rights and/or commercial market in the US as those are defined by 28
U.S.C.A. §1605(a)(2);
b. Deprivation and/or adversely affecting Plaintiffs and the Members of the
Plaintiff Class', property and rights in the BONDS and/or property that had
been exchanged for property in the US, all of which were taken related to the
commercial securities market and activities related, those are defined by 28
U.S.C.A. § 1605 (a) (3);
c. Wrongful expropriation and/or taking Plaintiffs or the Class Members of the
Plaintiff Class' property in the US and elsewhere in the world, THE
BONDS, which is/are in the custody, possession, control and/or are/were
being stored in DEFENDANTS’ possession, and all of which is and was in
violation of international law as those acts are defined by 28 U.S.C.A. §
1605 (a) (3); and
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d. Damage to and/or loss of Plaintiff or Class Members property or rights in the
US, and these damages and/or losses were caused by breaches or tortious
and/or wrongful act(s) or omission(s) of DEFENDANTS, and/or ministry
officials, employees, agents and or representatives of DEFENDANTS and/or
one of its ministries, departments, organs and/or agencies and while they were
acting within the scope of their office or employment as those are defined
by 28 U.S. C.A. Sec.1605 (a) (5).
567.

As a direct result of GERMANY/DEFENDANTS aforesaid wrongful acts,

omissions and/or wrongful expropriations and/or takings, Plaintiff and Class Members
have suffered monetary and other damages.
568.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury

trial, damages and judgment against Defendants jointly and/or severally for (i)
compensatory damages, which meet the jurisdictional requirements of this court,
of which the Plaintiff/Class Members shall leave to the determination of the
ultimate Trier of fact which should be permitted to award Plaintiff and Class
Members in the HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS of DOLLARS and (ii) interest,
and attorney fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of this action, and
such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
COUNT VII
NEGLIGENCE and/or NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION
Against All Defendants
569.

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and

every one of the allegations of the foregoing paragraphs, as if the same were fully
set forth and at length herein.
570.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS had duties towards Plaintiffs and Class

members, and a duty to provide meaningful procedures and information for
redemption of bonds and a duty to redeem the bonds and duty to make payments to
Plaintiffs of principal and interest on the bonds pursuant to the obligation, and a duty
to exercise diligence with regard to supervision of employees, and redemption
procedures and mechanisms, and a duty of diligence and care for identification,
validation, redemption and/or payment for Plaintiffs/Class Members, bondholders, of
the Plaintiff/Class Members' property, THE BONDS.
571.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS also had an obligation to supervise their agents,

employees, representatives and/or all persons acting within their actual and/or
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apparent authority or scope of employment so as to insure that such persons, acted
properly, and lawfully, and with due diligence, so as not to allow them to make the
improper or false and misleading statements and/or commit unlawful or fraudulent acts
as alleged herein, with regard to validation, redemption and/or payment for Plaintiffs
and the Class Members bondholders, Plaintiff/Class Members’ property, the BONDS.
572.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS were negligent in their obligation to honor

the aforesaid duties, and Germany and Defendants breached their duties herein.
573.

As a direct and proximate result of GERMANY's and DEFENDANTS negligence,

breach of duty, and failure to properly control and/or supervise the individuals, persons
and/or entities for redemption or payment of the bonds; and as a direct and proximate
result of GERMANY's and DEFENDANTS negligence and/or failure to properly
institute and administer fair and lawful procedures for redemption and payment of the
bonds of Plaintiff and Class Members, bondholders, Plaintiff and the members of the
Plaintiff Class and bondholders have suffered monetary and other damages.
WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS, and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial, damages and
judgment against DEFENDANTS, jointly and/or severally for (i) compensatory damages which
meet jurisdictional requirements of this court, and plaintiff shall leave to the determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact which should be permitted to award plaintiff and class members in
the HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) interest, attorneys' fees, punitive
and/or exemplary damages, and costs of this action, and such other relief the Court deems just.
CO U N T V I I I
U NJ US T E N R I C H M E NT
A g a i n s t A l l D e fe n d a n ts
574.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, repeat, reallege and incorporate each and every

one of the allegations of the foregoing paragraphs, as if the same were set forth fully
and at length herein.
575.

By the aforesaid acts, inactions, negligent, fraudulent, wrongful, unlawful, and/or other

improper acts, GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, have been and/or are being unjustly
enriched by seizure, expropriation, taking, retention, withholding principal, interest and
Plaintiffs money, and/or failing to pay Plaintiffs and Class Members for THE BONDS.
576.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS have been unjustly enriched from revenues,

profits, and/or other benefits, including but not limited to: (a) retention of Plaintiffs’
and Class Members’ monies or property, (b) preferred interest rates and/or ratings for
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securities sold in the US and which revenues, profits and/or benefits are directly related to or
the result of GERMANY or DEFENDANTS’ increased market capitalization and assets
predicated upon GERMANY' and DEFENDANTS’ failure to redeem the bonds and failure to
pay the cash amounts due and owing of interest and principal on the bonds to the
Plaintiffs/Class Members, and (c) DEFENDANTS’ failure to redeem the bonds and failure to
provide the cash payments to the Plaintiff and Class Members for the bonds, and for their
property, THE BONDS.
577.

DEFENDANTS’ received monies and made huge profits as a result of

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS’ investments and purchases of the BONDS, and
Defendants wrongfully accepted and retained these monies and benefits and profits to
the detriment of Plaintiffs and Class Members.
578.

DEFENDANTS’ enrichment at the expense of PLAINTIFFS and CLASS

MEMBERS was unjust.
579.

As a direct and proximate result of GERMANY’S and DEFENDANTS’ wrongful

conduct and aforesaid unjust enrichment, Class Members’ and Plaintiff’s property rights and
interests, have been adversely affected, and Plaintiff and Class Members and have
suffered monetary and other damages.
580.

As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS’ wrongful conduct,

PLAINTIFFS are entitled to Restitution from and institution of a constructive trust,
disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained by DEFENDANTS.
581.

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs BLEIER, and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against DEFENDANTS jointly and/or severally for (i) compensatory
damages which meet jurisdictional requirements of this court, and which the plaintiff and
class members shall leave to the determination of the ultimate Trier of fact which should be
permitted to award Plaintiff/Class Members in the HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF
DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from and institution of a constructive trust, disgorging
all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained by Defendants, attorney’s fees,
interest, exemplary damages, and costs of this action.
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COUNT IX
C O N V E RS I O N
A g a i n s t A l l D e fe n d a n ts
582.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and every

one of the allegations of the foregoing paragraphs, as if same were set forth fully and at
length herein.
583.

DEFENDANTS unlawfully converted and deprived, Plaintiffs and Class Members, out of

monies, and/or property, specifically the BONDS, and/or specific chattel, money payments for
the bonds., and principal and interest, held in trust by Defendants, and identifiable. Defendants
conversion of Plaintiffs/Class Members’ property, THE BONDS, and money, was wrongful,
and in violation of international and all applicable laws.
584.

As a direct and proximate result of GERMANY's and DEFENDANTS

conversion of the bonds/property, Plaintiff and Class Members, suffered substantial
and ongoing monetary damages.
585.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS demand jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly and/or severally for (i)
compensatory damages, which meet the jurisdictional requirements of this Court and
which the plaintiffs/class members shall leave to the determination of the ultimate Trier
of fact, which should be permitted to award plaintiff or class members
HUINDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS, and (ii) interest, exemplary
damages, attorneys' fees, and costs of this action.
COUNT X
ACCOUNTING
Against All Defendants
586.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege and incorporate each

of the allegations of the foregoing paragraphs, as if the same were set forth fully
and at length herein.
587.

Defendants have never accounted for or paid the value of Plaintiffs’ property

or the bonds or the principal or the interest or the profits which DEFENDANTS
have derived from Plaintiffs and Class Members’ property and bonds since the
Agreement on German External Debt 1953.
588.

As a result of the full value of their bonds and property and principal and
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interest and their money being unlawfully or forcibly taken and/or withheld from
Plaintiffs and Class Members, against their will and without just redemption and
without just payment by Defendants, the Plaintiffs and Class Members have been
unable to use or invest those assets.
589.

Defendants have actual notice of Plaintiffs’ and Class Members demand for

redemption and payment and/or accounting and Defendants refuse to pay or
conduct an accounting. Defendants converted and/or participated in the
conversion of the Plaintiffs/Class Members property, specifically THE BONDS.
590.

DEFENDANTS’ conversion of PLAINTIFF and/or CLASS MEMBERS’

property, THE BONDS, was wrongful, in violation of all applicable laws.
591.

As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS wrongful acts or

omissions, failure to conduct an accounting, failure to redeem and make payment
on the bonds, conversion of property, Plaintiffs and Class Members, suffered
substantial, and ongoing monetary, and other damages and request the equitable
remedy of accounting and disgorgement of the ill-gotten monies and/or profits.
592.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial

and damages in Hundreds of Millions of Dollars, and judgment against Defendants
jointly and/or severally, and for: (i) an Accounting by Defendants, of all the profits
they made and/or assets and/or monies they retained of Plaintiff/Class Members,
and (ii) interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary damages, and costs of this action, and
such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
COUNT XI
DAMAGES FROM REFUSAL, DELAY and/or
INTERFERENCE WITH DISCLOSURE OF PROPER
INFORM ATION AND/OR RELEVANT DOCUM ENTS
Against All Defe ndants
593.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat, reallege, and incorporate each

and every one of the allegations of the foregoing paragraphs, as if the same were set
forth fully and at length herein.
594.

PLAINTIFFS or CLASS MEMBERS have made numerous requests for

redemption and payment of their bonds, and have made demands for appropriate
information and documents and safekeeping measures and proper and fair and
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transparent redemption procedures and for payment of the bonds.
595.

PLAINTIFFS and/or CLASS MEMBERS specifically sought the following

information and were unable to secure the responses and documents from Defendants.
596.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS reasonably believe that one or more

DEFENDANTS will continue to delay, refuse and/or object to the production of
documents, which are needed to properly make, plead, and prove the claims related to
the bonds. Each and every delay, refusal and/or objection to the production of the
enumerated documents is designed to cause Plaintiff and Class Members to
suffer, incur and/or sustain further damages.
597.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS, and CLASS MEMBERS, demand and prays

for judgment be entered against such of the Defendants, jointly and/or severally,
who delay, refuse and/or interfere with the production of the necessary
documents, for damages in the HUNDREDS OF MILLION OF DOLLARS,
actual and/or punitive, as well as the imposition of attorney’s fees and costs, and
such other relief as the court deems just and proper, and such other relief as the
court deems just and proper.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank – continued next page)
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COUNT XII
BREACH OF CONTRACT AND/OR
BREACH OF EXPRESS CONTRACT AND/OR
BREACH OF IMPLIED CONTRACT
Against All Defendants
598.

PLAINTIFFS and Class Members, repeat and reallege and incorporate the

preceding allegations and prior paragraphs, as if fully set forth and integrated herein.
599.

The German gold bonds are BEARER instruments, BONDS that entitle the holders

to payment upon demand of the full specified amount and pursuant to gold clause.
600.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS had/have EXPRESS contractual obligations; and

liability to redeem and pay for the bonds, and Defendants had/have express contractual
obligations to pay for the gold bearer bonds to the Bearers or holders of the bonds,
such as PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, for the bonds. DEFENDANTS are
obligated to pay the Plaintiffs, in times of war or peace, at all times and under all
circumstances, and in every case, pursuant to the express terms of the original bonds.
601.

The General bond contracts, and the Terms of the Bonds, and the Actions and

Intentions of Defendants, and conduct or relationships between the parties, created
special duties and relationships, and fiduciary duties, and obligations of trust, good
faith, and fair dealing, and DEFENDANTS as Issuer/s, Trustees, as Obligors, or
Guarantors, or Selling Brokers, or Redemption or Paying Agents, on the bonds, or
successors thereof, had/have fiduciary duties and DEFENDANTS were entrusted with
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS’ monies, savings, or investments, and Defendants
are obligated to redeem and pay bondholders.
602.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS also had/have IMPLIED contractual obligations

to pay bondholders; and the express and implied contracts also create IMPLIED duties
of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, and establish liability on Defendants to redeem and
pay for the gold bearer bonds to the holders of the bonds, such as PLAINTIFFS and
CLASS MEMBERS, which were issued and sold in the United States, or elsewhere, to
Plaintiffs/Class Members, and who as investors and/or buyers of bonds, reasonably
expected a return on their financial investments and patience. DEFENDANTS
benefitted substantially from the sale of the bonds, and from monies received from
Plaintiff/Class Members’ purchases, funds or finance, and for which DEFENDANTS
are obligated to redeem and pay the Plaintiff/Class Members’ bonds, pursuant to the
terms of the bonds.
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Further DEFENDANTS have contractual obligations and liability to pay for the

bonds, pursuant to the Core Loan Documents, and/or Trustee Agreements, and/or
Indentures, and/or Mortgages, and/or other Documents relative to the bonds, and/or
DEFENDANTS’ express, or implied, Guarantees for payment for the bonds.
604.

Further DEFENDANTS are obligated to pay for the bonds, pursuant to the BONDS

and their Express Contracts, and terms and conditions, and pursuant to the Defendants’
Express Conduct, or Defendants’ Express Agreements and Defendants’ Express Stated
intentions, such as GERMANY’S stated intention to pay for the bonds and desire to
“end the status of default”.
605.

DEFENDANTS are also liable for payment of the bonds pursuant to the

Defendants’ Assumed or Stated Intentions, and/or special or fiduciary Relationships,
and/or the application of Equity, under the basis of Implied Contracts - where
Defendants have knowingly accepted benefits or monies from Plaintiff/Class
Members, bondholders and accepted the investments and monies, under circumstances
where the monies paid, or investments made by PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS
cannot be considered a gift, and having accepted the benefits, DEFENDANTS are
liable to make payment on bonds, of principal and interest, as “quasi contract”, and the
payment is accordingly due and owing to Plaintiff/Class Members
606.

DEFENDANTS are liable for the outstanding and unpaid principal and interest

under the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS’ Bonds.
607.

DEFENDANTS have breached their contractual obligations (both express and/or

implied) and have not redeemed and have not paid for the bonds upon maturity and/or
upon demand for redemption and payment by Plaintiff/Class members, bondholders,
and DEFENDANTS continue to refuse to pay to PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS
and bondholders, for the bonds, according to the terms and conditions of the bonds.
608.

DEFENDANTS offered the bonds for sale in the American market, and accepted

their duties and obligations to pay when they sold the bonds and received monies and
benefits from the sale of the bonds to the American investors, and by failing to pay for
the bonds when due and owing, have gained undue and unconscionable advantages,
and have been unjustly enriched and kept monies and benefits at the expense of the
PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS and bondholders.
609.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS have also Guaranteed and/or Succeeded and/or

Assumed and/or Agreed to pay for the BONDS, and/or DEFENDANTS are Trustees,
and/or Redemption and Paying Agents, for payment of the outstanding unpaid
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obligations under the bonds, and/or are DEFENDANTS are bound by the original
terms of the bonds and obligations under the bonds.
610.

The bonds had a 20 year term (e.g. Rheinelbe Union) and interest coupons

providing for interest at the rate of 7% per annum, payable on a semi-annual basis June
and December from January 1926 to 1946. Both principal and interest payable United
States, place of issue of the bonds and place of performance being New York, or at the
option of the bearer also, on some bonds, but not all, London, Zurich, Stockholm.
611.

The bonds had different interest rates, Examples: the Young Bonds had 5.5%

interest rate (Issued 1930 due 1965) and the Dawes Bond had 7% interest rate (issued
1924 due 1949), and United Steel Works Corporation had 6.5% interest rate (issued
1927 due 1947), and Free State of Bavaria had 6.5% interest (issued 1925 due 1945).
612.

The bonds have not been cancelled, perforated, voided, or otherwise modified, and

are genuine. Each bond has a $1,000 face value amount, under the Gold Clause in
each bond, represents the equivalent value in gold coin of the United States existing at
the time. Interest amounts are payable in the equivalent value in gold coin of the
United States existing at the time.
613.

The total outstanding and unpaid principal and/or interest is currently estimated for

each bond is $2,000,000 USD (Two million USD per bond), and continues to increase
with the price of gold, and the calculation of compound interest, and default interest,
and the gold clause payment terms, and other relevant factors. Plaintiffs own or
possess hundreds of bonds, and their claims are in the hundreds of millions.
614.

Through its actions and agreements, GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, have

repeatedly tolled and revived the applicable statute of limitations for enforcing the
bonds. These actions and agreements include but not limited to DEFENDANTS’
statements as recently as 1994, acknowledging and confirming the DEFENDANTS
payment obligations renewing the Twenty year statute of limitations at least till 2014.
615.

The DEFENDANTS have breached their contractual obligations (express and/or

implied) by failing to pay the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS according to the
original terms of the bonds, which are due and unpaid, and are in breach and default,
and Defendants have refused to pay upon demand.
616.

Pursuant to the UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE, a bona fide purchaser in good

faith, or successor thereof, may take delivery of a BEARER instrument and enforce
his/her rights and obtain redemption and payment of the bonds (irrespective of where
the bond was located in 1945, and irrespective of the national or racial or religious
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background of the bondholder, such as being “Jewish”) And the DEFENDANTS are
required to honor the payment obligations and respect their pecuniary obligations and
abide by the explicit terms of the bearer bonds, and enforce the intentions of the parties
to the bonds and to meet the objectives of the treaties to “end the status of default”.,
and redeem the bonds and pay the Plaintiffs and Class Members.
617.

As a direct and proximate cause of the DEFENDANTS’ breach of contract (both

express contract and/or implied contract) and DEFENDANTS’ breach of the express or
implied covenants of good faith and fair dealing, and the DEFENDANTS’ the failure
to pay for the bonds, and the DEFENDANTS continuing default, PLAINTIFF AND
CLASS MEMBERS have suffered monetary and other damages.
618.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs and Class Members, demand jury trial, damages, and

judgment against Defendants, jointly and/or severally for (i) compensatory damage which
the plaintiff and class members shall 1eave to determination of the Trier of fact which
should be permitted to award PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS in the HUNDREDS OF
MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary and punitive
damages, and costs of action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
COUNT XIII
BREACH OF FIDICIARY DUTY AND/OR
BREACH OF IMPLIED COVENANTS OF
GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING
Against All Defendants
619.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat and reallege and incorporate the

prior paragraphs 1 to 484, as if fully set forth herein. The German gold bonds are
BEARER instruments, BONDS that entitle holder to payment on demand.
620.

DEFENDANTS had a fiduciary relationship, and fiduciary duty towards

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS and bondholders, who reposed trust and confidence
in DEFENDANTS who had superior knowledge and skill in these affairs, and
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS relied in good faith on DEFENDANTS to do all
that is necessary at all times to protect their rights, interests and investments in bonds.
621.

DEFENDANTS breached their fiduciary duties and did not act in the best interests

of bondholders and failed to honor their fiduciary obligations and failed to honor the
contractual terms of the bonds.
622.

DEFENDANTS further had an express or implied obligation of good faith and fair

dealing relative to the bondholders and PLAINTIFF/CLASS MEMBERS, and to do
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the utmost to be fair and to redeem the bonds promptly and fairly and to pay
bondholders according to the express terms of the bonds.
623.

DEFENDANTS breached their express or implied obligations of good faith and

fair dealing and did not provide any fair or just or meaningful redemption process
and/or did not provide any payment of the bonds of Plaintiff/Class Members.
624.

As a direct and proximate cause of the DEFENDANTS’ Breach of Fiduciary

Duties and Breach of Covenants of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, and
DEFENDANTS’ failure to redeem and pay for the bonds, and the DEFENDANTS
ongoing bad faith, and scheme to defraud, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS,
have suffered monetary and other damages.
625.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages, judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
compensatory damage which the Plaintiffs/Class members shall 1eave to determination
of the Trier of fact which should be permitted to award PLAINTIFFS/CLASS
MEMBERS, in the HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS of DOLLARS and (ii) interest,
attorneys' fees, exemplary and punitive damages, costs of action, or other just relief.
COUNT XIV
CLAIM FOR DAMAGES DUE TO DEFENDANTS DEFAULT AND
FAILURE TO PAY THE BONDS
Against All Defendants

626.

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS repeat and reallege and incorporate the prior

paragraphs, as if fully set forth herein. The German gold bonds are BEARER
instruments, BONDS that entitle the holder to payment upon demand.
627.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS have pecuniary obligations, and contractual

obligations, to pay Plaintiffs and Class Members, and/or bondholders, pursuant to the
express terms of the original bonds, and DEFENDANTS have pecuniary obligations,
and contractual obligations, to redeem and pay for the gold bonds held by
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS, which were issued and sold in the United States,
pursuant to the terms of the bonds, in the United States.
628.

Further DEFENDANTS have pecuniary obligations, and contractual obligations,

pursuant to the Core Loan documents, and/or Trustee agreements and/or Mortgage, or
Indentures, and/or implied contracts, and/or equity, and/or as Guarantors, and/or as
Trustees, and/or as Co- Obligors, and/or as Selling Brokers, and/or Redemption or
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Paying Agents, for payment of the bonds, to the full extent of law, principal and
interest, to Plaintiff/Class Members and/or the bondholders.
629.

DEFENDANTS are liable for the outstanding and unpaid principal and interest

under the Plaintiff’s and Class Members, Bonds.
630.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS offered the bonds for sale in the American

market and accepted their obligations to pay when they sold the bonds and received
valuable consideration and significant amounts of monies and received tremendous
revenues and benefits from the sale of the bonds to the American investors.
631.

GERMANY and DEFENDANTS have explicitly and contractually agreed to pay

the bonds and debts, and/or guaranteed and/or succeeded and/or assumed the
outstanding unpaid obligations under the bonds, and/or are bound by the original terms
of the bonds and obligations under the bonds.
632.

The bonds had a 20 year term and interest coupons providing for interest at various

rates e.g. the rate of 7% per annum, payable on June and December, from January 1926
to 1946. Both principal and interest payable in the United States.
633.

The bonds have not been cancelled, perforated, voided, or otherwise modified and

are genuine. Each bond has a $1,000 face value amount, under the gold clause in each
bond, represents the equivalent value in gold coin of the United States existing at the
time. Interest amounts are payable in the equivalent value in gold coin of the United
States existing at the time.
ϲϯϰ͘

The total outstanding and unpaid principal is currently estimated for each bond at

$2,000,000 (Two million USD per Bond) and continues to increase with the price of
gold.
635.

Through their actions and agreements, GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, have

repeatedly tolled and revived the applicable statute of limitations for enforcing the
bonds. These actions and agreements include but not limited to statements as recently
as 1994, acknowledging and confirming Defendants payment obligations, renewing the
Twenty year statute of limitations at least till 2014.
636.

The DEFENDANTS have breached their contractual obligations by failing to pay

the Plaintiff and Class Members and bondholders according to the original terms of the
bonds, which are due and unpaid and thus are in breach and default and Defendants
have refused to pay upon demand.
637.

As a direct and proximate cause of the DEFENDANTS’ scheme to defraud,

breaches of contract and breaches of fiduciary duties, and DEFENDANTS’ failure to
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redeem and pay for the bonds, and as direct result of the DEFENDANTS default, the
PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered monetary and other damages.
638.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
compensatory damage which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to
determination of the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs
/Class Members HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS DOLLARS and (ii) interest, attorneys'
fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and/or costs of this action, and such other relief
the court deems just and proper.
COUNT XV
PROMISSORY and/or EQUITABLE ESTOPPEL
Against All Defendants
639.

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS repeat and reallege and incorporate the prior

paragraphs, as if fully set forth herein.
640.

The GERMAN government, and DEFENDANTS, promised to redeem and pay for

the gold bonds to the BEARERS OF THE BONDS (such as Plaintiffs) and Defendants
promised to hold the funds of the Plaintiffs/Class Members’ in Trust, verbally, and/or
in writing, and/or in the bonds language, according to the terms of the bonds, or the
terms of the General Bond, until such time that Plaintiffs and/or Class Members and/or
bearers of the bonds made their demand for redemption and payment of the bonds.
641.

GERMANY further promised additional payments to bondholders, verbally, and/or

in writing, and/or in the agreements, upon the reunification of Germany, and also
promised payments of the bonds after 1994 - all which entitles the bondholders to
present payment upon demand according to the terms of the bonds.
642.

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS reasonably relied on the promise of redemption

and payment of the Bonds by DEFENDANTS; and it was also foreseeable and
expected, that the non-assenting bondholders (those who did not accept the settlement
“offer” under the London Debt Accord) would reasonably rely on the promises of
redemption and payment from GERMANY and DEFENDANTS, Obligors/Guarantors.
643.

Plaintiffs/Class Members’ reasonably relied on the guarantees of the Defendants,

Trustees, and Selling Brokers, and/or Redemption and Paying Agents, or successors
thereof, and therefore Plaintiff/Class Members were induced into substantial
forbearance to their detriment, and had to forego redemption/payment, and wait for 40
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years or more, in order to be able to redeem their bonds, according to the full terms of
the bonds.
644.

DEFENDANTS should be equitably stopped from reneging on their obligations,

and/or promise of redemption, and/or promises or obligations of payment of the bonds,
and it would be unconscionable and unjust for DEFENDANTS to deny redemption or
to deny payment to bondholders, and Plaintiff/Class Members who have suffered as a
result of the breaches of trust and fiduciary obligations, and the failure of defendants to
fulfill their obligations or promises of redemption and payment of the bonds.
645.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
compensatory damage which the PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to
determination of the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs
and Class Members HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) interest,
attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and/or costs of this action, and such
other relief as the court deems just and proper.
COUNT XVI
RESTITUTION
Against All Defendants
646.

PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS repeat and reallege and incorporate the prior

paragraphs, as if fully set forth herein.
647.

DEFENDANTS’ received monies as a result of PLAINTIFFS and CLASS

MEMBERS’ purchases of the BONDS, and DEFENDANTS wrongfully accepted
and/or retained these benefits or monies, to the detriment of Plaintiffs/Class members.
648.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS property, and/or bonds, and/or monies (all

principal and interest due to Plaintiffs) have been taken, and or unlawfully withheld or
mutilated or damaged, thus denying the Plaintiffs the use and enjoyment of their money
and/or property, and DEFENDANTS have wrongfully used and profited from Plaintiffs
money and property, and the harm inflicted is significant.
649.

DEFENDANTS’ enrichment at the expense of PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS was unjust.
650.

As a direct and proximate result of GERMANY’S and DEFENDANTS’ wrongful

conduct, acts and omissions, and the aforesaid unjust enrichment, Class Members’ and
Plaintiff’s property rights and interests, have been adversely affected, and Plaintiff and
137

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 138 of 241

Class Members have been injured and damaged and suffered monetary and other
damages, and demand appropriate remedies, including the equitable remedies.
651.

As a result of DEFENDANTS’ wrongful conduct, PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS are entitled to restitution from and institution of a constructive trust,
disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained by DEFENDANTS.
652.

As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS actions or omissions, wrongs,

breaches of fiduciary duty or bad faith, and/or unjust enrichment, the PLAINTIFFS
and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered monetary and other damages.
653.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiff /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, costs of this
action, and for such other relief as the court deems just and proper.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank – continued next page)
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COUNT XVII
RICO CLAIMS - 18 U.S.C. §1961, et Seq.
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act
Against All Defendants
654.

PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS repeat and reallege and incorporate the

prior paragraphs, as if fully set forth herein. The elements for RICO claims have been
met as follows:
A. Defendants are RICO “Persons” and Liable for Violations of the RICO Act
655.

Defendants are liable as “persons” within the meaning of the RICO statute §1962,

and are (1) employed by or associated with (2) an “Enterprise/s” (3) engaged in, or
which effects, interstate or foreign commerce, (4) and Defendants have engaged in a
“pattern” of “racketeering activity” (5) connected to the acquisition, establishment,
conduct, operation, management or control, of such Enterprise/s’ affairs.
656.

Defendants are “persons” liable for violations of 18 U.S.C. §1962 in that (1)

Defendants (2) through the commission of two or more acts of mail and wire fraud or
extortion (3) constituting a “pattern” (4) of “racketeering activity” (5) directly or
indirectly invested in, or maintained an interest in, or participated in (6) an “enterprise”
(7) the activities of which affect interstate or foreign commerce.
B. Plaintiffs are “Persons” and Suffered Injury to their “Business or Property”
By reason of the Defendants RICO violations
657.

Plaintiffs and Class Members are “persons” within the meaning of the RICO statute

(the term “persons” is defined to include, but not limited to, individuals and entities
capable of holding a legal or beneficial interest in property, 18 U.S.C. §1961(3)) and
Plaintiffs can sue Defendants herein because Plaintiffs have suffered direct injury to
their “business or property” within the meaning of RICO §1964 (c), by reason of
Defendants’ RICO violations, and Defendants role in various distinct “prohibited
activities” defined in subsections (a), (b), (c), and (d) of Section 1962, for which civil
remedies are available under Section 1964.
658.

Plaintiffs and Class Members’ sustained direct injury to their business or property

by reason of Defendants Rico violations, and default on the bonds, and Plaintiffs
sustained significant loss of money, loss of interest and loss of principal on the bonds,
by reason of Defendants’ pattern of racketeering activity, mail and wire fraud, and/or
extortion, which has also resulted in Plaintiffs’ loss of bonds by Defendants’
conversion or wrongful misappropriation of the bonds.
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Furthermore, Defendants, through the scheme to defraud and RICO violations,

have intentionally (1) deprived Plaintiffs, Class members, of their – money - which is
of course a form of property, and (2) deprived Plaintiffs of the due payments of
principal and interest, owing to Plaintiffs relative to defaulted bonds.
660.

The Plaintiffs herein are directly injured victims in their business and property and

whose injuries are a direct result and by reason of Defendants alleged RICO violations,
and the Plaintiffs were the intended targets of the RICO offenses. The injury to the
Plaintiffs was reasonably foreseeable, and the injury was caused by the Defendants’
RICO violations. The injuries to Plaintiffs were also a result of the preconceived
purpose and specific-intended consequences of the RICO defendants’ acts, and the
Plaintiffs injuries were a necessary and natural result of Defendants’ RICO violations
and a reasonably foreseeable consequence of the RICO violations, and Defendants
racketeering and predicate acts and RICO offenses are directly and causally connected
to the injuries of Plaintiffs; and the Defendants violative RICO acts are directly
responsible for the injuries to Plaintiffs.
661.

Plaintiffs have suffered injury to their business or property as a result of and by

reason of Defendants past, present and ongoing “racketeering acts”, and/or default on
bonds, and/or scheme to defraud, and by reason of Defendants RICO violations,
because Plaintiffs have been forced to bear the financial losses and costs associated
with Defendants’: (1) pattern of racketeering (2) mail and wire fraud; (3) default and
non-redemption of the bonds; (4) non-payment of the interest and principal on the
bonds under the gold clause, and (5) as a result and by reason of the Defendants’
ongoing breaches of fiduciary duty and contractual obligations and (6) Defendants’
collective failure to provide proper redemption procedures and payment of bonds.
662.

Plaintiffs have also been injured in their business or property by reason of

Defendants RICO violations because Plaintiffs have been forced to (1) incur
substantial financial costs in order to redeem bonds and obtain payment, and (2)
sustained huge bond losses, (3) huge losses of money, interest and principal, and (3)
significant out-of-pocket expenses, in attempting to meet the Defendants’ fabricated,
false, misleading and/or fraudulent criteria for redemption, and/or “validation”, of the
bonds, and arbitrary and capricious conditions such as proving a “chain of custody to
1945” and that “the bonds were outside Germany in 1945” - contrary to the explicit
terms of the bearer bonds, where under the law and Uniform Commercial Code –
for bearer bonds - “possession is the law” and “possession is the proof”.
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The Gold bonds are Payable to the Bearer, in gold coin of the United States at the

standard weight and fineness at the time, and whoever has possession of the bonds is
entitled to make a claim, and no “proof of ownership” is required pursuant to the terms
of the bonds, or the Uniform Commercial Code for bearer instruments.
664.

Plaintiff Elfriede Korber submitted her bonds to the alleged “Examining Agency”

Commerzbank for redemption, payment, and “validation”, and she incurred significant
costs and expenses, and spent about 100,000 USD to meet the false, spurious, arbitrary
and capricious conditions of Defendants, and to authenticate her bonds. Declaration of
Elfriede Korber, incorporated herein, (Document 42-2, filed 02/04/2009).
665.

Plaintiff Elfriede Korber was defrauded, and about 18 months, after depositing her

bonds with Commerzbank, and her bonds sitting in Commerzbank, she was denied
redemption, denied “validation”, and denied payment of her bonds for no legitimate
reason, and no written decision or explanation was provided to her, in breach of
Germany’s and Commerzbank’s obligations under the law and the applicable treaties.
666.

Plaintiff Elfriede Korber complied with the conditions and requirements requested

by Germany and Commerzbank by depositing and/or registering her bonds with the
alleged “Examining Agency” - and Plaintiff Elfriede Korber was defrauded and not
paid for her bonds after the relevant German authorities and officials, such as from the
Deutsche Bundesbank and/or German Finance Ministry and/or Commerzbank had
promised her payment. Declaration of Elfriede Korber, incorporated herein,
(Document 42-2, filed 02/04/2009).
667.

No written letter was provided by Commerzbank to Plaintiff Korber, and no verbal

or written explanation provided by Germany and its related agencies, Deutsche
Bundesbank, German Finance Ministry, or Commerzbank for the refusal to pay her
bonds in contravention of the 1953 Treaty and 1952 Validation Law.
668.

Plaintiffs have been injured in their business or property to the extent that the

value of the bonds has been depreciated and/or diminished, in the private or public
market place, or otherwise, by reason of the Defendants’ RICO violations.
669.

The Defendants concerted scheme to defraud American and international investors

and bondholders, and ongoing default on bonds, has imposed real pecuniary harm on
hundreds of thousands of innocent purchasers of the bonds, including Plaintiffs and
Class Members, who paid money and the prices for the bonds, and are now saddled
with financial losses, and unredeemed and unpaid bonds, and deprived of the principal
and interest owing to them due to the Defendants RICO violations and breach of law.
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Defendants have not only defaulted on redemption and payment of the bonds, but

have schemed to defraud bondholders and Plaintiffs, and Class Members, by continued
deception, and through an ongoing course of actionable acts of commission, and/or
omissions, and half-truths and misrepresentations of fact – e.g. relating to the “theft” of
bonds by Russians, or the “worthlessness” of the bonds, or the “invalidity” of the
bonds, or the spurious “requirements” of “validation” with obsolete “Validation
Boards” that are no longer available.
671.

This scheme to defraud was only possible through the coordinated and cooperative

efforts of the Defendants to fabricate or promote the false myth and false story of
“theft” and to conceal the true worth of the bonds and to conceal their liability and to
conceal the value of the bonds and to conceal the redeem-ability of the bearer bonds,
and to conceal the enforceability of the terms of the bearer bonds payable in the United
States, including the “gold clauses”, and to conceal the bondholders “right to sue” in
United States courts.
672.

The Defendants’ schemed to defraud and to cause a drop in market value of the

bonds through RICO violations; and schemed to prevent bondholders from suing in
United States courts to enforce their rights, and to cause losses of “interest and
principal” and “monies” and “claims” and losses of “rights to sue”, and Defendants’
misconduct has caused real financial injury to Hundreds of Thousands of American
and International Bondholders, and caused real financial injury to Plaintiffs/Class, who
purchased the bonds and paid the prices, and expended funds in purchasing the bonds.
673.

Defendants’ RICO violations have caused injury to the business or property of the

Plaintiffs who are unable to redeem the bonds or obtain payment of their money for the
bonds, or to use the bonds in the business way they see fit and appropriate, and
Defendants have associated in an enterprise which has affected interstate or foreign
commerce, and have engaged in the pattern of racketeering activity in connection to the
conduct, acquisition, operation or management of such enterprises affairs.
674.

Plaintiffs have been further injured in their business or property by reason of

Defendants RICO violations, because they are not able to sell the bonds for the full
specified amount of the bonds and full legal obligation of the bonds.
675.

Plaintiffs, Class Members and bondholders, have been injured in their business or

property and have had to incur financial losses due to the increased litigation costs
imposed by reason of Defendants RICO violations.
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C. THE DEFENDANTS HISTORY OF RICO VIOLATIONS
AND RACKETEERING “PREDICATE ACTS”
MAIL AND WIRE FRAUD
EXTORTION AN/OR MONEY LAUNDERING
676.

The history of Defendants’ conduct relative to the gold bonds is replete with their

RICO “predicate” acts, e.g., of mail and wire fraud and/or extortion, money laundering,
(listed state or federal offenses (18 U.S.C. §1341, §1343, §1951, §1956) over sustained
period of time, intended to further the enterprise/s and scheme to defraud, and
committed with intent to defraud, and by use of the mails or interstate wires to further
the scheme to defraud. Defendants conspired under §1962 (d), to violate various
subsections §1962 of RICO Act, including but not limited to, subsections (a), (b), (c).
677.

Defendants engaged in a scheme to defraud, with intent to defraud, by use of the

mails or interstate wires to further the scheme to defraud, and diverse “predicate” acts
of mail and wire fraud, engaged in by the various Defendants, will be enumerated
below, and constitute a “pattern of racketeering” - however, the list is by no means
exhaustive - and there are countless instances of mail and wire fraud and racketeering
activities that were committed by Defendants vis-à-vis other bondholders and members
of the Class which are not known by Plaintiffs at present and would require extensive
and appropriate discovery.
678.

Defendants have made misleading statements and committed mail and wire fraud

and/or extortion in various contexts and in furtherance of their “enterprise/s” and
scheme to defraud. For example - Defendants have misrepresented the facts, in various
acts of mail and wire fraud about the existence of the “Validation Board” and its
procedures – when in fact, NO “Validation Board” exists and no “validation”
procedures exist - NOT in Germany, and NOT in the United States.
679.

The “Validation Boards” are OBSOLETE and the validation procedures no longer

available – and this constitutes a material breach by Germany of the Treaty 1953, the
Validation Law 1952, the two Implementing Ordinances, and various related
agreements relative to gold bonds.
680.

The “Validation” Board and procedures are no longer available in Germany

or the United States, or anywhere else. Without such a process available, the
“validation” cannot be a prerequisite to adjudication.
681.

There is no secure, viable, fair, neutral, procedure and there is no competent

authority or procedure for “validation”. And there is no competent authority in
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Germany for the purpose of “validation”. The “Examining Agencies” are NOT
“Validation Boards”, and the “Examining Agencies” are fraudulent and incompetent
and have admitted that they have no authority and cannot “validate” bonds.
Furthermore, without any “competent authority” in the Federal Republic of Germany
for the purpose of validation, and without any process in English as required by law
and treaty and the agreements, “validation” cannot be a prerequisite to adjudication.
682.

Furthermore, the lack of availability of competent procedures and competent

authorities for the purpose of validation, and the fact that there are no procedures
available in English in the “Country of Offering”, the United States, constitutes a
breach by Germany of the 1952 Validation law, breach of 1953 Treaty and breach of
the First and Second Implementing Ordinances and other agreements relative to bonds.
683.

The various breaches of the applicable treaties by the Federal Republic of Germany

renders the entire “validation” scheme inapplicable to the bonds as Germany has
impaired the validity of its own contracts and agreements. The enforcement of the
bonds in United States Federal Court is appropriate and justifiable in order to vindicate
the law and vindicate the rights of Plaintiffs and Class members and for them to obtain
the full specified amount of their principal and interest as explicitly stated in the terms
of their bearer bonds.
684.

Defendants, not only directed their false and misleading statements to the Plaintiffs,

and bondholders – but also directed the misleading statements to the Courts, Congress,
governmental officials, Securities Exchange Commission, and public at large.
685.

Moreover, some of the acts of mail and wire fraud described below occurred in this

case and the misrepresentations and misleading statements were contained in the
Defendants’ joint documents and collective mailings by post or email and filings in
March and May in 2009; and both the Defendants’ Joint Memorandum in support of
their motion to dismiss, and Defendants’ Joint Reply brief in further support of their
motion, were sent by US mail or email to Plaintiffs’ counsel, and/or the Court, and/or
sent via the wires and/or emails to the Courts’ ECF/CM system of electronic filing.
686.

Germany’s and Defendants acts of mail and wire fraud, (such as in specific

misrepresentations on particular dates), and repetition over a sustained and long period
of time, starting in 1952, and over five decades, to countless bondholders, officials,
courts, public at large, SEC, Congress, etc. further the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs,
Class Members, and bondholders, and others, by individual and/or cumulative impact.
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D. THE “RACKETEERING ACTS” AND ELEMENTS
COMMITTED BY DEFENDANTS – PRESENT & RECENT
687.

Racketeering Act No. 1 – Mail and Wire Fraud (MAY 8, 2009)
False Statements made in Judicial Proceedings in this case on MAY 8, 2009
Misrepresentations directed to Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs counsel, and the Court
(Document 67, P. 9 of 25 Section C.) – Defendants Joint Reply Brief
By Defendants: Commerzbank AG, JP Morgan Chase, Schroders, Mizuho
Corporate Bank, UBS AG, Bank New York Mellon, Citibank, Credit Suisse
Group AG, Deutsche Bank AG/Bankers Trust Co. America

688.

Defendants, above-mentioned, have falsely asserted on MAY 8, 2009, by way of

their respective counsel, joining, submitting and/or signing the Reply brief, that:
“Nevertheless, the Validation Board still exists in the Federal Republic of Germany”
- when the Defendants knew and should have known that the “Validation Boards” are
OBSOLETE, and that their joint statement was false and/or misleading.
689.

And by making the misrepresentation their intent was to further the scheme to

defraud bondholders and mislead the Plaintiffs to send bonds to defunct or bogus or
incompetent agencies in Germany, and to mislead the Court relative to the existence of
a “Validation Board”, presumably in order to bolster their contention for dismissal and
their line of argument that bonds require “validation” by a “validation board” in
Germany, which is in reality defunct and validation procedures are unavailable.
690.

The Defendants Joint Reply Brief containing the false statement was intentional

and committed to advance a scheme to defraud and was sent via the mails and wires to
Plaintiffs and/or Plaintiffs counsel and the Court.
691.

The bonds are definite contracts and enforceable according to the terms of the

bearer bonds without submission to defunct and non-existent “validation boards” or
incompetent authorities in Germany.
692.

In fact, there are no more “Validation Boards” anywhere in the world, as

confirmed by Ingrid Jaeger of the BADV - Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds – in Berlin, in
a letter sent May 11, 2009 to Plaintiffs counsel (See: Document 77-2 filed 5/26/2009
and incorporated by reference herein).
693.

There are no “validation” procedures available and no “Validation Boards” with

“one German, one American, and one “umpire” as required by the various
applicable treaties.
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Racketeering Act No. 2 – Mail and Wire Fraud (MARCH 27, 2009)
False Statements in Judicial Proceedings in this case on MARCH 27, 2009
Misrepresentations Directed to Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’ counsel, and the Court
See: Document 62, P. 18 – Defendants Joint Memorandum in Support of their Joint
Motion to Dismiss
By Defendants: Commerzbank AG, JP Morgan Chase NA, Schroder plc, Mizuho
Corporate Bank, UBS AG, Bank New York Mellon, Citibank NA, Credit Suisse
Group AG, Deutsche Bank AG/Bankers Trust Co. America

695.

On March 27, 2009, the Defendants, above-mentioned, jointly misrepresented to

Plaintiffs and the Court, in the Defendants Joint Memorandum of Law in Support of
their Motion, by way of their representative counsel, joining, signing and/or repeatedly
falsely stating or submitting that – “these looted bonds” (See e.g. Page 18 of 52,
Document 62, filed 03/27/2009 and incorporated by reference herein) when
Defendants have no support or proof of a single bond being looted by any person,
Russian soldiers or otherwise, in 1945 or other year.
696.

Defendants knew, and should have known, from their own Exhibits filed here in

this case, and as the Agreement on German External Debt 1953 (Document 65-filed
04/10/2009) and as the Second Implementing Ordinance 1953 and/or the Agreement
on Certain Matters Arising From Validation of German Dollar Bonds 1953 TIAS 2794,
4 U.S.T. 885 1953 U.S.T. LEXIS 1953 (Defendants Exhibit - Document 62-5 filed
03/27/2009) – which states that bonds “may” have been unlawfully acquired during
hostilities in Germany or soon thereafter..”; and as the London Debt Accord 1953
which states that it was a mere “possibility”, and therefore the so-called “validation”
scheme was based on a false premise, speculation, conjecture, and not on actual facts.
697.

Defendants knew from their own Exhibits, that the alleged “looting” was false and

“hypothetical” and the “validation” scheme was based on a false premise of “looted
bonds by Russian soldiers”.
698.

It is highly misleading of the Defendants to omit the material facts and/or to assert

conclusively that bonds were “looted” without any such proof for the assertion, and by
promulgating and disseminating such a false story of “looted bonds” - Defendants are
engaged in fraud and misrepresentation in order to deceive Plaintiffs and the court.
699.

Defendants realized the story of “looting” was actually not truthful, and/or not

proven, and/or hypothetical, and/or conjectural, an imaginary and abstract story,
invented and/or made-up; and yet Defendants have asserted the “looting of bonds” in
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their Joint Memorandum to Dismiss and have repeated the misrepresentation in their
arguments and/or statements, as if it was an undisputable “truth” or “fact”, and
transmitted in various predicate acts of mail and wire fraud in violation of RICO, to
promote the scheme to defraud bondholders and plaintiffs and class members, and to
mislead and injure the Plaintiffs, Bondholders, and mislead the Court about the “theft”.
700.

The Reichsbank’s Berlin headquarters had been destroyed before the

Russians arrived in Berlin, and the Reichsbank took multiple direct hits and was
demolished, and there were no bonds there when the Russians arrived - and all of Nazi
Germany’s assets, gold, precious metals, reserves, deposits cash, currency and bonds,
in the Reichsbank had been removed in February 1945 to a potassium and salt mine, in
Thuringia for safe-keeping, 200 kilometers from Berlin, and it is the Americans that
first went into the salt mines on 7 April 1945, (not the Russians) after Merkers had
fallen to the 90th Division on April 4, 1945.
701.

The Defendants’ misleading statements, half-truths and omissions, and failure to

disclose the material facts, was in furtherance of the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs and
others. Defendants’ misrepresentations were sent via mail and wire fraud, as in this
present instance, and have been ongoing for decades, with countless messages,
statements, letters being sent by mail and wire by Germany and Defendants insisting
on a fabricated story and perpetuating the false myth of “looting” of bonds Russians.
702.

The misrepresentations and false statements and myth was directed not only to

Plaintiffs and Class Members and bondholders but also to the senators, media, courts,
financial regulatory officials world-wide, the Interpol and FBI, all with the same
misleading nature and effect to promote the scheme to defraud investors and
bondholders, confiscate bonds and devalue the bonds, and defraud and deter
bondholders from making claims, so that Defendants’ can avoid payment of the bonds
and the multi-billion dollar obligations to the innocent purchasers of bonds who have
been deprived of their money, both interest and principal and injured to their business
or property by reason of the Defendants’ RICO violations.
703.

Defendants have never been, and are not forthright in their statements - about

“looting” - and are false and/or misleading in their statements. And Defendants even
insisted that the court take “judicial notice” of these speculative and imaginary and/or
false facts, because the story of “looting of bonds” fits their arguments about the
requirements of “validation” before coming to court, without which the entire false
premise for the “validation” scheme is null and void.
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The Defendants’ memorandum containing the misrepresentations, false and/or

misleading statements about “looting of bonds” was sent via the electronic mail and
US mail and international and foreign mail.
705.

Moreover, this misleading and false account of “looting of bonds” has been

repeated by Defendants countless times, over and over again, for decades, to the
public, to congress, to the courts, and to the bondholders and class members, seeking
redemption and payment of their bonds, or to their counsel or representatives of
bondholders, and it has been done through the wires and the mails in violation of RICO
statute, and in furtherance of the pattern of racketeering activity and the scheme to
defraud bondholders, Plaintiffs, Class members, Congress and the courts, and the
public at large.
706.

The bonds are payable to the bearer and the false and misleading story of

“looting of bonds” in 1945 is totally irrelevant under the Uniform Commercial Code
which allows bona fide and/or good faith purchasers, and holders in due course, to
redeem bonds directly and request payment according to the explicit terms of the
bearer bonds payable and enforceable in the United States.
707.

Racketeering Act No. 3 & 4 – Mail and Wire Fraud (MAY 11 & 14, 2009)
Letters sent May 11 2009, by email, and on May 14, 2009 by regular mail by the
German Agency Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienst und Offene Vermogensfragen
(BADV) – the Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds das Deutschen Reichs – by Ms. Ingrid
Jaeger sent to Plaintiffs‘ counsel (Document 77-4 filed 05/26/2009 herein and
incorporated by reference)

708.

During MAY 2009, Defendant, Germany and/or its agent, BADV- Prufstelle fur

Auslandsbonds in Berlin, as the redemption and paying agent for Dawes and Young
bonds, or alleged and/or ostensible “Examining Agency” – by Ms. Ingrid Jaeger - sent
letters and communications by post and email internet to Plaintiffs counsel in Belgium
containing some misleading statements, half-truths, and/or material misrepresentations
of fact in a scheme to defraud.
709.

Ms. Ingrid Jaeger misrepresented that a “theft” had occurred relative to German

gold bonds, and that “Russians had looted bonds from the Reichsbank in Berlin in
1945”, when BADV, Prufstelle, Germany and Defendants have no proof of such a
“theft” - and yet keep maintaining the false myth and misleading assertion, over and
over again - while knowing that it is false and/or speculative historical fact and that
even the Treaty admits - is purely hypothetical and conjectural.
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The false statements and misleading account of “theft of bonds by Russians” is,

wrong, and is false information, or falsely described, by Germany and its alleged
“Examining” agency the BADV - Prufstelle in Berlin and this falsity was not revealed
to Plaintiffs or the Plaintiffs’ counsel in the relevant letters or communications - but
rather, Germany and Defendants, insisted upon the fictitious story or fabricated myth of
the “looting of bonds” - so that Defendants could further their scheme to defraud
Plaintiffs through the mails and wires in violation of RICO, and to further falsely claim
that in light of the “theft” the “validation” of bonds was “required in Germany” prior to
enforcement, and to wrongfully and fraudulently compel plaintiffs and bondholders to
surrender their bonds and send the bonds to fraudulent and incompetent “Examining
Agencies” in Germany that would steal or tamper with, or void, or deny redemption and
payment of the bonds., or add their serial numbers to a list that Germany was
fabricating, creating and making as bonds were submitted to the “Examining Agency”.
711.

Ms Ingrid Jaeger falsely stated, among other things in her email, 11 May 2009, that:

“The reason for this validation procedure is that by the end of the war in 1945 a large
number of fixed-interest USD bonds and other non-German currency bonds dating
from 1924 to 1930 were deposited not cancelled in the vaults of the Reichsbank or
other banks in Berlin. They had been bought up in large quantities by German
investors or by issuers for purposes of repayment. From these vaults a high number of
the bonds were lost due to looting, seizure or in other ways; later the bonds were
unlawfully put back into circulation, and;
“In the London Agreement on German foreign debts of February 27, 1953 it was
therefore provided (Annex I No. 8 f) that the rightful owners had to convert their bonds
into new bonds (conversion bonds) under the provisions of the German Validation Law
(Bereinigungsgesetz für deutsche Auslandsbonds”
“According to the German American Agreement of 1 April 1953 nobody can take
legal action in order to gain payment for Dollar bonds without this previous
validation, not even in the USA.”
712.

The “Validation Agreement of 1953” contained a provision that stated that if bonds

“re-entered circulation” they would be exempt or excluded from the Validation
requirements. Article 6, Amortization Bonds, Agreement between the Government of
the United States and the Federal Republic of Germany regarding the Validation of
Dollar Bonds of German Issue. Bonn, , February 27, 1953, TIAS 2794, Article 6,
Amortization Bonds, “(2) Paragraph (1) shall not apply to bonds which on or before
May 8, 1945, have been pledged, or deposited as collateral in favor of third parties, or
otherwise reentered circulation. Nor shall paragraph (1) apply to bonds confiscated
inside or outside Germany on or before May 8, 1945.”
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Furthermore, Ms. Jaeger misrepresented that “nobody can take legal action for

payment of the bonds in USA without validation” - when she knew full well that the
“Validation Boards” are obsolete and do not exist in the United States nor in Germany
and that the BADV and the “examining agencies” lack competency for the purpose of
“validation” and the BADV – Prufstelle in Berlin and is incapable, and unwilling and
incompetent to “validate” bonds, and despite numerous requests she has refused to
identify a single “Examining Agent” or any person at the Prufstelle in Berlin who has
any kind of expertise in bond authentication.
714.

Ms. Jaeger, on behalf of the German government, falsely misrepresented that a

condition of “validation” of bonds was “proof of ownership” and described other
conditions relative to redemption and payment such as: sending the ORIGINAL bond,
and Coupons from 1939 to 1945, and the “hardship” requirement, and the “no fault”
requirement for late registration - when she knew, or should have known, that a
“showing” of these requirements is not called for by the terms of the bonds - and proof
of the “whereabouts of the bonds in 1945 outside Germany” to redeem the Dawes bonds
and Young bonds or any other requirements are contrary to the terms of the bearer
bonds payable to the bearer under the gold clause payment terms and with no
extracurricular or artificial conditions and no “proof of ownership” is required.
715.

These are spurious requirements of “validation” in Germany and contrary to the

terms of the bonds; and Plaintiffs and Class Members have been injured by the mail and
wire fraud, and false story by Defendants of “looting of bonds by Russian soldiers” and
the unlawful and artificial conditions which Germany and Defendants attempt to
unilaterally impose in contradiction to the terms of the bonds and contrary to the treaties
and terms of the bond.
716.

It has been an economic and financial hardship for Plaintiffs/Class Members to be

unlawfully deprived of their monies, to be wrongfully deprived of their interest and/or
principal on the bonds, and to suffer through spurious and incompetent “validation”
schemes. And it has been hard for bondholders to endure decades with unredeemed and
unpaid bonds, and to suffer in their business or property as a result of Defendants RICO
violations , and to be subject to Defendants “mail and wire fraud”, and/or common law
fraud, and/or breaches and violations of contracts, and breaches of the explicit terms of
the bonds, and Defendants violations of international law, breaches of fiduciary duties,
and/or Defendants’ bad faith in refusing to redeem and pay the Plaintiffs’ bonds for no
legitimate reason, and Defendants circumvention of their obligations under the bonds.
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Racketeering Act No. 5 – Mail and/or Wire Fraud (December 21, 2005)
Letter By Commerzbank Ag to the Plaintiffs’
Counsel - Sent by fax on December 21, 2005

718.

Defendant Commerzbank in Germany sent an unsigned letter on December 21,

2005 by fax to Plaintiffs’ counsel in Belgium (Document 65-5, filed 04/10/2009 as
Plaintiffs’ Exhibit B to the First Amended Complaint) incorporated by reference
herein, to the Second Amended Complaint. The letter indicating that Commerzbank
function as “Examining Agency” but the letter did not identify “who” were the
“Examining Agents” and misleadingly stated that:
“First of all it has been established that all bonds in question have in the meantime
been declared invalid and have therefore become worthless.”
“Today the legal owner possesses only the chance of submitting a claim according to
the Validation law for German Foreign Currency Bonds, dated 25 August 1952.” And
the “only course for the claimant left open is a precautionary application under Art.
52 of the Validation law with respect to a compensation”.
719.

These were misleading statements by Commerzbank because the bonds have never

been “worthless” no matter if Germany has “unilaterally declared” the bonds to be
“invalid”. The bonds are extremely valuable and have great worth.
720.

The bonds were not “worthless” when Defendants took Hundreds of Millions of

Dollars from over a million investors, bondholders, class members, and/or Plaintiffs
who purchased the bonds – and the bonds and claims are not “worthless” today.
721.

The bonds have an estimated value of 2,000,000 USD per bond given the gold

clause payment terms and the many years of interest and principal due to which
Plaintiffs and the Class are legally, morally, and justly entitled to receive their money.
722.

Furthermore, the claims on the bonds cannot be and are not extinguished by

Germany’s unilateral declaration of “invalidity” or “worthlessness” - or Germany’s
fraudulent and spurious and bogus “validation” criteria, and the Plaintiffs can seek
compensation in the United States District courts.
723.

The “precautionary application” for compensation under Article 52, is not the “only

course for claimants left open” as misrepresented by Commerzbank.
724.

Plaintiffs have the right to sue in the United States courts to obtain compensation

for the various breaches and violations of law by Defendants and given the fraudulent
schemes being perpetrated by Defendants against Plaintiffs, Class Members and
bondholders.
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Notably, there are no choice of law clauses in the bearer bonds which were sold

in the United States to Americans, and other investors, through American financial
institutions, redemption and paying agents, and American trustees, and the bonds are
subject to US law, and place of issue and performance is Manhattan, New York.
726.

There is absolutely nothing in the terms of the bonds which obligate Plaintiffs to go

to Germany (or to submit claims under Article 52 of the German Validation Law) and
therefore that is NOT “the only course for the claimant” left open - as it may be an
option that is open, but is certainly not the “only” option for Plaintiffs and Class
Members to obtain compensation for their bonds, as the owners of bonds and those in
possession of the bearer bonds have adjudication in United States federal court as an
option to obtain redemption and payment of their bonds due to Defendants lack of
redemption and violations of law and failure to honor their respective obligations under
the terms of the bonds or applicable treaties.
727.

Bondholders and plaintiffs have the right to make their legitimate claims for

compensation in the United States - where the bonds were sold - and in particular the
Federal courts, who have jurisdiction over matters relative to the German bonds. The
terms of the bearer bonds clearly state that the bonds are redeemable with the
redemption and paying agents and trustees in the United States, particularly New York.
728.

Moreover, Germany has breached its own Validation laws, and Germany has

breached its own Treaty obligations relative to its External Debt vis-à-vis the Class
Members and Plaintiffs, and Germany has attempted to unilaterally change the Treaty
terms - and therefore Defendants cannot compel American or other bondholders or
Plaintiffs to go to Court in Germany or submit to incompetent “Examining
Agencies” or ZivilKammers in Germany - as plaintiffs and class members and
bondholders have the right to sue in America, and to litigate in the forum of their
choice, and the “Examining Agencies” in Germany, are incompetent and/or fraudulent,
and not competent authorities for the purpose as they are incapable of validating bonds
as admitted by the BADV and Commerzbank and Landesamt Dienstelle Munich.
729.

Racketeering Act No. 6 – Mail and/or Wire Fraud (March 2006)
Misrepresentations by telephone by Herman Stahl and/or Julius Kimmle of
Commerzbank Ag that bondholders must be” Jewish” to Obtain any Chance of
redemption or payment of bonds and Misrepresentations that bonds are invalid
and/or “ worthless”- March 2006 – By Commerzbank Ag

730.

On or about March 2006, COMMERZBANK AG in Frankfurt Am Main, by its
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representatives and/or employees and/or agents or representative departments,
including, but not limited to, Zentraler Service Bereich Transaction Banking, or the
Zentraler Stab Recht, confirmed they function as an “Examining Agent” for the
redemption and payment of the Plaintiff and/or Class Members gold bonds. This was
confirmed by Herman Stahl and/or Julius Kimmle who are employees of
Commerzbank, acting within the scope of employment, and/or authority, and/or agency
for COMMERZBANK AG.
731.

False or misleading or deceptive statements, with malice aforethought, were made

by defendant COMMERZBANK AG, through its employees and/or representatives,
responsible for redemption and payment of the bonds, who negligently, or recklessly,
or intentionally, misled Plaintiff and Class Members, and who made
misrepresentations of material facts, or omissions thereof, to Plaintiffs counsel in
Belgium verbally by telephone relative to the redemption or “validation” scheme, as
follows, and to the effect THAT: (A) “BONDS are “INVALID” and “WORTHLESS”,
and (B) There is “NO CHANCE” to get the bonds redeemed or “validated” and “NO
CHANCE” to receive any payment, “EXCEPT”, if you are “JEWISH”, and (C) prove
“Where the bonds were in 1945” outside Germany.
732.

These misleading and/or false or deceptive statements were made by Julius

Kimmle and/or Herman Stahl, in the scope of employment or authority for
COMMERZBANK AG, when they KNEW, the falsity or misleading nature of their
statements, and/or knew they were misrepresentations of material fact, and they
KNEW the BEARER BONDS did NOT require the Bearer or Bondholder to be
“JEWISH”, and they KNEW the terms of the BEARER BONDS themselves had NO
requirement whatsoever, that mandated the Bearer of the bond “to prove the bond’s
location in 1945”, outside Germany, or to demonstrate a “chain of custody to 1945”.
733.

The misrepresentations were made to Plaintiffs counsel via the wires and telephone

and in a scheme to defraud Plaintiffs, to cause them to forfeit their claims, and/or
abandon efforts at collection of the debt, in order to avoid payment of Germany or
Defendants’ obligations and to discourage any attempt by Plaintiffs or other
bondholders for redemption and payment; Commerzbank employees false statements
that there was “no chance” to get bonds redeemed or validated, and “no chance” to
obtain payment unless you are “Jewish”, and these misrepresentations, were directed to
Plaintiffs, via their counsel in Belgium, who made contact with Commerzbank, on
behalf of Plaintiffs, for redemption and payment procedures on their bonds, and spoke
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with representatives of Commerzbank Ag, Julius Kimmle and Herman Stahl, who
engaged in mail or wire fraud and misrepresentations in violation of RICO Act in
furtherance of a scheme to defraud which caused injury to the business and property of
Plaintiffs who were not able to redeem and obtain payment of their bonds.
734.

COMMERZBANK AG is vicariously liable for the torts or intentional

misrepresentations or misleading statements or fraud of its employees or
representatives or agents, acting within the scope of employment, or authority.
735.

In addition COMMERZBANK AG is responsible for the actions or omissions of its

designated department for gold bonds, and the “Examining Agents”, making fraudulent
or misleading statements. The fraud and false and misleading statements by
COMMERZBANK were to the detrimental reliance and injury to PLAINTIFF and/or
CLASS MEMBERS, and/or bondholders, and caused economic loss to Plaintiff and/or
Class Members or bondholders, and such fraud, misleading statements and
misrepresentations was perpetrated by COMMERZBANK, for its benefit and that of
its co-conspirators, DEFENDANTS, in order to diminish claims, or deter, or deprive
bondholders’ rights, or prevent, or deny, or cause forfeiture of the PLAINTIFF or
CLASS MEMBERS or bondholders’ claims; and/or to impermissibly alter payment
conditions of the bonds, on an arbitrary and/or capricious basis, so as NOT TO PAY on
the bonds to bondholders, and/or to unjustly enrich Germany and to unjustly enrich the
Defendants, responsible for payment of the bonds, and to secure for Commerzbank and
the Defendants an unconscionable advantage trough the scheme to defraud.
736.

Racketeering Acts Nos. 7 & 8 – Mail and Wire fraud (02/10/2006 & 03/27/2006)
Letters by Deutsche Bundesbank sent to Plaintiff’s counsel on 10 FEBRUARY 2006
and 28 MARCH 2006 signed by Dr. Schmidt and/or Mr. Gierenstein

737.

Deutsche Bundesbank made false and misleading misrepresentations in a letter

mailed to Plaintiffs counsel on FEBRUARY 10, 2006, in a scheme to defraud through
the mails and/or wires (Document 65-6, filed 04/10/2009, incorporated by reference
herein) when Dr. Schmidt and Mr. Gierenstein fraudulently misrepresented to
Plaintiffs, in a letter addressed to counsel for Plaintiffs, that:
“As large quantities of German External bonds which had been stored in the vaults of
the Reichsbank, and other banks in Berlin, were taken from their rightful owners by
way of plundering or confiscation as the war drew to a close, and later illegally
brought back into circulation, the London Debt Agreement provided for a review
procedure to take place in accordance with the Act on Validation of German External
bonds to establish rightful ownership before these debts were eligible for servicing.”
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The false statements about “large quantities of German External bonds…taken

from their rightful owners….by way of plundering or confiscation of bonds as the war
drew to a close” are misleading - and were made via the mails in order to further the
scheme to defraud and to injure Plaintiffs and Class Members in their business or
property.
739.

Dr. Schmidt or Gierenstein’s assertions are baseless and they are advanced as part

of scheme to defraud in an effort to compel Plaintiffs to prove “rightful ownership”
before the bonds were “eligible for servicing” - when in fact these are - bearer bonds
and by definition the owner or person who has possession of the bonds is “rightful
owner” and “no proof of ownership” is required.
740.

The false statements are unsubstantiated and intended only to support the

fraudulent German “Validation” scheme to compel Plaintiffs to submit bonds to
defunct “Validation” schemes or fraudulent procedures or incompetent “Examining
Agencies”, which are incapable of validating bonds, so that Germany can get their
hands on the bonds to confiscate the bonds, or deny claims, or deter claimants, or
improperly void or mark or perforate the bonds, or add the serial numbers of the bonds
to their fabricated “bad list” of bonds, and to avoid payment of Germany’s obligations
and debts to Plaintiffs and class members.
741.

Further Dr. Schmidt and Gierenstein falsely stated/misrepresented the bonds were

deemed “worthless” paper due to insufficient “proof of ownership” and “Examining
Agency” “Bezugstelle Inland” at Commerzbank in Frankfurt was “closed”, and they
had “no further information to provide” where bonds could be redeemed and paid.
742.

Defendant Deutsche Bundesbank misleading statements regarding the

“worthlessness” ” is false and misleading, and was also committed through mail and
wire fraud, and is designed to further the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs and Class
members into believing their bonds are “worthless” when in fact the bonds have high
worth and substantial value based on the gold clause and the many years of interest and
principal due and owing to Plaintiffs and Class Members.
743.

Defendants’ scheme to defraud is understate the worth of the bonds in order to

discourage Plaintiffs from pursuing the claims and to cause injury to the property or
business of Plaintiffs by way of loss of interest and principal and/or to cause forfeiture
of the Plaintiffs’ claims and compel them to abandon efforts to obtain full payment for
full value.
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By falsely stating that Deutsche Bundesbank, had “no further information” as to the

“Examining Agency” where bonds could be redeemed or paid, Deutsche Bundesbank
intended to injure Plaintiffs and deprive them of redemption and/or payment on the
bonds, and cause denial, forfeiture of the claims and deny the Plaintiffs meaningful
information for redemption and payment of the bonds. Deutsche Bundesbank’s
misrepresentation and mail fraud to injure Plaintiffs and deprive their money and leave
them without redemption or payment, and/or to injure and mislead the Plaintiffs – by
intentionally failing to disclose the location of a viable, fair and functioning
“Examination Agency” and preventing Plaintiffs from pursuing their legitimate claims.
745.

In a fax dated 28 MARCH 2006, Dr. Schmidt transmitted with Deutsche

Bundesbank letterhead, by fax transmission to the Plaintiffs’ counsel in Belgium, from
German fax no. +49-69-9566-4458, on 28/03/2006, at 14.54, designated from: BBK
Zentrale M 41-1, signed by Dr. Schmidt on behalf of the Deutsche Bundesbank, again
the letter containing material misrepresentations of fact and falsely stating that:
Germany did not accept unlimited responsibility for repayments of any prewar
obligation in the London Debt Accord and in particular not to repay bonds issued by
private companies such as the Rheinelbe Union but in fact stated responsibility for
certain bonds issued by the German Reich or Prussia only.
746.

Dr. Schmidt realized that this statement was false and misleading as the

RHEINELBE UNION bond was listed in the Schedule of the Law German Foreign
Currency Bonds under said law which described the United States as the “Country of
Offering” and Germany had accepted liability for and responsibility for payment
of the Rheinelbe Union bonds, contrary to Dr. Schmidts’ misrepresentations.
747.

Subsequently, the Deutsche Bundesbank, in the face of significant evidence, had to

concede that Commerzbank “Examining Agency” had an address, contrary to its earlier
misrepresentations, when Deutsch Bundesbank falsely stated they “had no further
information to provide” about the “Examining Agency” which was falsely alleged by
Dr. Schmidt, contradicting the earlier false statements by Dr. Schmidt of “no further
information” about the “Examining Agency”.
748.

Again the misrepresentations or false and misleading statements or omissions

made by GERMANY, and/or its agent, DEUTSCHE BUNDESBANK, and/or any of
its employees, were maliciously designed to deceive, defraud and/or deprive the
PLAINTIFFS/CLASS MEMBERS of their rights of redemption and payment, and to
deny the bondholders of any meaningful opportunity to assert their legitimate claims.
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E. THE “RACKETEERING ACTS” AND ELEMENTS
COMMITTED BY DEFENDANTS – PAST EXAMPLES
749.

Racketeering Acts Nos. 9 & 10– Mail and Wire Fraud (1988)
Prospectuses filed by Germany or its agents or German Corporation KfW
International Finance, Inc. with Securities Exchange Commission(“SEC”) with
false and material misrepresentations contained therein

750.

In the case of “KfW International Finance, Inc.” prospectus that was released on

July 6, 1988, offering for sale a total of $300,000,000 worth 9 3/8% Guaranteed Notes
set to mature in 1998, that were “guaranteed unconditionally” as to principal and
interest by Kreditanstalt fur Wiedeaufbau, a corporation under public law of the
Federal Republic of Germany. In that prospectus it stated in part under “Debt Record”
that “neither the company, nor KfW, nor the Federal Republic, has ever defaulted
on the payment of principal, or premium, or interest, on any security issued by
it.” This is another misrepresentation of facts, submitted to the SEC by Germany, and
violates US Securities laws, in a manner that has led to convictions of others in the
United States, but Germany remains free to defraud US investors and Plaintiffs and
Class members with impunity, and maintains its default on the bonds, even though it
assumed and accepted liability for payment of the German gold bearer bonds.
751.

Racketeering Act No. 11 – Mail and Wire Fraud (1952/1953)
False Statements to Congress, the Senate and/or the Various Parties to the
Agreement on German External Debt during the London Debt Conference 1952
and therafter, By Germany and its representatives

752.

Germany fabricated and misrepresented there was a “looting of bonds” when the

Russian soldiers entered Berlin in May 1945 - but Germany waited until 1952 SEVEN YEARS after the fact - to make the fabrication and misrepresentation - and
during the seven intervening years from the time of the alleged “Russian theft in 1945”
to the time of the making of the “false misrepresentation in 1952”, the bonds were
actively being traded in the Swiss stock markets for seven years from 1945 to 1952,
with no complaint from Germany.
753.

The false and misleading statements were first made in 1952, at the time of the

conferences relative to, and signing of the 1953 London Debt Accord, when Germany
accepted liability for payment of the German gold bearer bonds, but wanted to
establish a fraudulent “Validation” scheme to prevent bondholders from actually
obtaining redemption and full payment of their bonds according to the terms of the
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debts by imposing spurious and arbitrary and capricious conditions for “validation”
contrary to the terms of the bonds, however. Without the false story of “looting” of
bonds by “Russian soldiers”, the basis for a “validation scheme” would not be feasible,
and Germany could not obtain, Plaintiffs’ or bondholder’s, or Class Members’
property, bonds and money, and cause the forfeiture of claims. Germany understood
that few people would be able to prove where the bonds were in 1945, and to prove the
bond “were not in Germany in 1945”, as proving a negative is virtually impossible.
754.

Germany has used the mails and wires for decades in furtherance of the scheme to

defraud and to disseminate lies and fabrications to take advantage of the American
public that had invested huge sums of money in bonds and to defraud the bondholders.
755.

Germany in furtherance of the scheme to defraud concocted and fabricated the

story of “looting of bonds” and even misrepresented to Congress or the Bondholders
Protective Councils or other representatives of signatory nations, during the London
Debt Conference in 1953 and even German representatives stated to the US Senate that
they “did not have the serial numbers of the bonds” that were falsely alleged to be
stolen and that the only way to “identify” the “good bonds” from the “bad bonds” was
to determine where the bonds were in 1945, and force bondholders to present “proof of
ownership” that bearer bonds were “held abroad” outside Germany in 1945.
756.

This was contrary to the terms of the debts and the bonds which were definite and

enforceable contracts, and were bearer bonds that require “no proof of ownership”.
Such a requirement defeats the whole purpose of bearer bonds whose primary feature
is that the person in possession can make a claim, no matter the location of the bond.
757.

Germany misrepresented that because the bonds were not only “looted” but also

that “records also missing or looted or lost or destroyed in war” and that Germany
could not tell which bonds were good or not, as Germany had no records and could not
make a list and thus required the “Validation” schemes and laws, to subject
bondholders to stringent “validation requirements”. This was the key of the scheme to
defraud bondholders. The US Department of State confirmed the records were
“fragmentary and inconclusive”, so no one could compile a “list of stolen bonds”.
758.

Racketeering Act No. 12 – Mail and Wire Fraud and/or Extortion (1994, 1997)
False Statements in Judicial Proceedings by Germany and its agents in New Jersey
District Court in 1994 in the (Integrated Equities Case, JeffreyWeston, Grand Jury
Investigation Misc. No.93-7)

759.

In violation of the RICO statute, and pursuant to a pattern of racketeering activity,
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mail and wire fraud, and Extortion in violation of the Hobbs Act - 18 USC §1951,
and Germany threatened Weston not to pursue his claims relative to the bonds or he
would face criminal prosecution and be subject to jail, and caused him fear by the
threats, to obtain his property, and to cause forfeiture of the claims and so he would
relinquish his rights for payment, and Germany misled the FBI regarding the
“worthless” or “looted” bonds in order to have the FBI confiscate the bonds to give to
Gerrmany, so that Germany to obtain the property and bonds of Jeffrey Weston,
Integrated Equities, Inc., and/or Enterprise Development International.
760.

In 1994, Germany misrepresented material facts to the UNITED STATES

DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY (Honorable H. Lee Sarokin, Misc.
No. 93-7), and Germany falsely stated - in an affidavit through its agent Gilbert
Pouget ( a Federal Civil Service employee of the German Federal Government,
Government counselor, Federal Debt Administration) that Germany had “list” of
“bad bonds”, or “list of stolen bonds”, or the “so called “Black list”. The German
agent misrepresented in his affidavit that the German government maintained files of
allegedly “stolen bonds”.
761.

However, Germany steadfastly refused to produce the alleged “bad” list in the

New Jersey District Court which prompted the Court’s order – that the FBI must return
the bonds to their rightful owners and bona fide purchaser in good faith, Jeffrey
Weston and Integrated Equities Inc. As the Government had not submitted any
persuasive evidence of “looting” and the statements by the FBI or Gilbert Pouget were
rumors and hearsay. Jeffrey Weston was entitled to ownership and return of the bonds
as a bona fide purchaser.
762.

Furthermore, Germany has refused to produce the list to the Securities and

Exchange Commission, and in the 1998 Florida case of the SEC and J.W. Korth &
Co. Germany stated to the effect that: “it was not in their interest to produce the
list or comply with the SEC request for production of the alleged “bad list”
because in reality Germany had no list and/or was arbitrarily adding numbers to a list
being made up as it went along.
763.

From the 300,000 bonds alleged “looted” bonds by Germany, the Federal Republic

of Germany has provided no evidence or support for its misrepresentations and
Germany has provided no evidence of any bond by serial number as being stolen.
764.

Mr. Korth refused to provide the serial numbers of the bonds of his clients to the

SEC for fear they would be transmitted to Germany and arbitrarily added to a fake
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“bad list” being created by Germany. J.W. Korth was ordered to pay a fine and he
pursued the matter by collecting signatures and sending letters in a “formal complaint”
to the SEC and the State Department and the Treasury Department relative to the
“secret” list of “bad bonds” and requesting that these United States agencies require or
demand from Germany to make “available for public inspection” the list “including the
date of which, and the circumstances under which all entries were made to the list, so
that objectively and in the open, the status of all bonds can be determined”.
765.

According to an article in The European, in 1997, in an Italian case, a criminal

investigation was undertaken relative to 18 people charged with “fraud” in connection
with the use of “Weimar bonds” as collateral to obtain loans from Banca della Svizzera
Italiana in Locarno and a German bank in Munich. The bonds were confiscated from
the Banca Populare de Novara in Milan, but the person in charge of the case, David
Monti, subsequently admitted, “Many of the gold bonds in circulation are not false,
as we thought at first, they are Authentic.” The bonds were later returned to their
owner, an American business man, with offices in California and London.
766.

These are but a few examples of the threats, extortion, and/or money laundering,

manipulations of the facts and forces of order, and manipulation of regulatory agencies
and national governments and authorities, by Germany, to foster a climate of fear and
intimidation and to defraud bondholders, Class Members and/or Plaintiffs, as part of an
ongoing scheme to defraud, and pattern of racketeering activity, and additional proof is
within the control of Germany and Defendants and proper discovery will likely
uncover additional instances of misconduct.
767.

The United States Government has never officially recognized that 300,000 bonds

were in fact “looted by Russian soldiers” from the German Reichsbank in 1945, or
otherwise, and the United States government has recognized only about 100 bonds of
all types, as being questionable, only 27 Dawes bonds, as questionable.
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F. THE “PATTERN” ELEMENT
768.

The Defendants “racketeering activity” and mail and wire fraud and/or extortion

constitute a “Pattern” of “Racketeering Activity”, and the “Pattern” is present within
the meaning of RICO as the “Pattern” herein reflects “continuity and relationship”.
Continuity
769.

The Pattern of Racketeering Activity herein poses “a threat of continuing in the

future” with no natural end point. The racketeering acts have no obvious termination
point, and are committed in a series which is “open-ended”, and the objective of the
“Pattern of Racketeering Acts”, relative to the defaulted bonds by Defendants, is to
defraud Hundreds of Thousands of investors, and bondholders, including Plaintiffs and
Class Members, to unlawfully deprive bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class Members, of
the interest and principal owing to them on the bonds, and to unlawfully maintain the
default, and for Defendants to achieve and sustain the decades-long and ongoing
scheme to defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members, and foreclose and deny redemption of
the bonds, and prohibit payment, circumventing their obligations, avoiding liability and
not effectuating required payment of the bonds of Plaintiffs and Class Members.
770.

For a substantial period of time, since 1953, from the time of the signing of the

London Debt Accord, and spanning decades, the scheme to defraud and racketeering
acts by Defendants has continued unabated and poses a threat of continuing in future.
771.

The series of racketeering acts can also be considered closed-ended, as there is

five- decades and more of continuity, up to the present, and an implicit threat of
continuing in the future, as Defendants have committed the ‘prohibited acts” of mail
and wire fraud and/or extortion and/or money laundering, for the past 50 years and
more, upon hundreds and thousands of victims, including Plaintiffs herein, and
including the racketeering acts in the present complaint, as detailed in the preceding
paragraphs, and/or others not known and which require discovery. Defendants have
defrauded and directly injured Plaintiffs and Class members in their business and
property to this date, by numerous and/or continuous and/or related acts of mail and
wire fraud, and as recently as this year in May and/or June 2009.
772.

Germany has refused to end the “status of default” on the Plaintiffs and Class

Members bonds to this date, even though Germany’s original and declared intention
and primary objective in signing the 1953 London Debt Accord, was to resume
payments of interest and principal to bondholders, and the entire framework of the
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Agreement on German External Debt was to achieve a “satisfactory and equitable
settlement of pre war debts”, and to “eliminate the state of default of Germany by
suitable treatment of matured and maturing debts and of arrears of interest” relative
to Plaintiffs and Class Members gold bonds.
773.

Germany and Defendants have injured Plaintiffs and Class Members in their

business or property, by reason of the RICO violations, and the Defendants’ Pattern of
Racketeering activity and acts of mail and wire fraud and/or extortion and/or money
laundering relative to the bonds has become a regular “way of doing business”.
774.

Even with the filing of this lawsuit, and prior lawsuits, as in the case filed by

Mortimer Offshore Services in New York (2007), and other cases filed by Ronnie
Fulwood and James Grizzard, in Florida - the Defendants have not been deterred and
have not stopped the ‘systematic and ongoing fraud” and the “pattern of racketeering
activity” and “acts of mail and wire fraud” and this poses a threat to continue in the
future, and unless enjoined will continue indefinitely.
Relationship
775.

The “Pattern” of racketeering, includes at least two acts of racketeering, and at least

two acts of mail and wire fraud, in a related scheme to defraud bondholders, Plaintiffs
and Class Member.
776.

The Defendants’ racketeering acts of mail and wire fraud are related to one another,

as part of a single scheme and/or multiple scheme, to defraud Plaintiffs, deprive
Plaintiffs and Class members of their bonds or money, principal and interest due on the
bonds, maintain a fraudulent “validation” scheme and fraudulent and incompetent
“Examining Agencies” for usurpation, confiscation, conversion and /or mutilation and
denial of Plaintiffs’ bonds - contrary to the terms of the bonds or treaty - and
Defendants failing to provide proper redemption and payment procedures for the
bonds, and to achieve the shared goal to defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members and
unlawfully circumvent their bond payment obligations to Plaintiffs.
777.

The “Pattern” of racketeering, includes at least two acts of racketeering, and at least

two acts of mail and wire fraud, in a related scheme to defraud bondholders, and to
unlawfully deny redemption and payment, to confiscate bonds, to void or tamper with
bonds, to withhold payment of interest and principal from the Plaintiffs and Class
Members for their bonds, and/or the various racketeering acts are related to the affairs
of the “enterprise”, and/or the “racketeering acts” are related to an external organizing
influence and/or distinguishing characteristics relative to the responsible parties and the
162

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 163 of 241

German gold bonds, and redemption and “validation” scheme/s to defraud Plaintiffs
and Class Members, and bondholders.
778.

There is a common purpose of the Defendants to maximize profits, to avoid

payment of the bonds, and the scheme to defraud and pattern of racketeering has
“relatedness” in the (a) same victims (the bondholders, including Plaintiffs, Class
members), and the (b) same methods of commission of the racketeering acts, and of
mail and wire fraud, and of fraudulent “validation” scheme to foreclose redemption
and “prohibit” payment (c) same participants, (Germany, and its related agencies,
Deutsche Bundesbank and German Finance Ministry, and the Examining Agencies,
Commerzbank, Prufstelle etc, the same Redemption and Paying agents on the bond,
and the same Trustees, JP Morgan Chase, UBS, Citibank/Citigroup, Bank of New
York Mellon, Schroders, Deutsche Bank Ag, Deutsche Bank Trust Co. America,
Mizuho, Credit Suisse, SEB etc.(d) same results (confiscation of bonds, denial of
meaningful redemption and payment procedures, forfeiture of claims, depriving
bondholders of their money and withholding due interest and principal payments).
G. THE RICO “ENTERPRISE/S” ELEMENT
779.

The “pattern” of “racketeering activity” by defendants was in the affairs of the

“Enterprise”, and in violation of §1962 (c), and/or other subsections.
780.

For decades and continuing up to the present including the date of filing the

complaint or amended complaint , the Defendants - Germany, Deutsche Bundesbank,
German Finance Ministry, BADV- Prufstelle, Dresdner Bank, Landesamt fur
Finanzen Dienstelle Munchen, Commerzbank Ag, Deutsche Bank Ag,
Deutsche/Bankers Trust of America; Citibank/Citigroup; JP Morgan Chase;
Schroders; Warburg Dillon Read, Bank for International Settlements, a/k/a
“BIS”; UBS; Mizuho; Bank of New York Mellon; Credit Suisse Group;
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken - served as the requisite “Persons” for RICO
purposes and formed an “Association-in-Fact” “Enterprise” for a common purpose of
defrauding bondholders, making money from the alleged scheme, expropriating bonds,
and denying redemption/payment of bonds, and avoiding their pecuniary obligations.
781.

The “Enterprise” has the three “structural” features stated by the Supreme Court

in Boyle v. United States, 129 S. Ct. 2237 (2009) and which require the enterprise have
(a) common purpose; (b) relationship/s amongst those associated with the enterprise;
and (c) longevity sufficient to permit the associates to pursue the enterprise’s purposes.
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Defendants above-mentioned were Associated together for a Common Purpose of

(a) making money, (b) maximizing profits from the bonds, at the expense and
detriment and injury to Plaintiffs, (c) withholding payment of the bonds at issue, and
(d) engaging in an unlawful course of conduct, and mail and wire fraud, in a scheme to
defraud Plaintiffs, Class Members, (e) foreclose redemption and prevent payment of
Plaintiffs bonds, and “prohibit” payment of principal and interest owing to Plaintiffs.
783.

Defendants had/have a further common purpose to circumvent their bond payment

obligations to Plaintiffs – and a common purpose in maximizing their profits and
money from the bonds sold to Plaintiffs – which bonds have been and are in default.
784.

Defendants also had a common purpose of defrauding Plaintiffs and Class

members by unlawfully denying redemption and payment of their bearer bonds in their
possession, and without legitimate justification depriving them interest and principal to
which money Plaintiffs and the Class Members are fully entitled.
785.

Defendants had/have a common purpose of “money laundering” the proceeds of

their unlawful activity, (i.e. interest and principal and profits on the bonds they have
unlawfully expropriated, taken, robbed, and/or withheld from Plaintiffs) and
Defendants knowingly engaged in financial transactions knowing that the property
and/or money involved were the product of their unlawful activity, or attempted to
conduct such activity, in violation of 18 USC §1956, and with intent to promote the
carrying on of the specified unlawful activity, and/or to conceal or disguise the nature,
the location, the source of ownership, or the control of proceeds of unlawful activity.
786.

Defendants had/have a common purpose to maintain profits or make money from

the bonds, and to maintain their unjust enrichment, and to preclude and avoid their
joint and several liabilities for payment on the Plaintiffs bonds of principal and interest,
and for which Defendants are unconditionally responsible for redemption and payment
to Plaintiffs.
787.

As defined by, 18 USC Section 1961 (4), an “enterprise includes any individual,

partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity, and any union or group
of individuals associated in fact although not a legal entity”.
788.

Defendants herein being “persons” “employed by and associated with the

“International Enterprise” did unlawfully and knowingly and intentionally “conduct
and participate, directly and indirectly, in the conduct, management, and operation of
the affairs of the aforementioned Enterprise/s, which were/are engaged in, and the
activities which affect or affected, interstate and foreign commerce, through a pattern
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of racketeering activity consisting of numerous acts of racketeering in the United States
and Germany and elsewhere, in violation of and indictable under various sections
including but not limited to, 18 U.S.C. §§1341, 1343 (mail and wire fraud), and §1951,
§1956 (extortion and money laundering) and/or other acts of racketeering alleged in the
preceding paragraphs and incorporated by reference.

FIRST RICO CLAIM
Defendants RICO violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (c)
Association-in-Fact “Enterprise/s”
789.

Section 1962 (c) states that it is “unlawful for any person employed by or associated

with any enterprise engaged in… interstate or foreign commerce, to conduct or
participate, directly or indirectly, in the conduct of such an enterprise’s affairs through
a pattern of racketeering activity or collection of unlawful debt.” 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (c).
790.

A RICO enterprise (which may be referred to as here “International Enterprise”)

exists and which consists of and is identifiable as the group of “Persons” - the
Defendants herein who form an “Associated-in-Fact” “enterprise” consisting of Germany, and Deutsche Bundesbank, and German Finance Ministry, and Deutsche
Bank Ag/Deutsche Bank Trust Co. America; and Citibank/Citigroup; JP Morgan
Chase; and Schroders; and Warburg Dillon Read, and Bank for International
Settlements, and UBS Ag; and Mizuho Corporate Bank; and Bank of New York
Mellon; and Credit Suisse Group; and Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken, (and/or
their liable affiliates, subsidiaries, branches, divisions) (and/or other unknown entities
that may be liable herein referred to as Does 1-50, which may be added at a later time).
791.

A RICO Enterprise (which may be referred to as “German Domestic Enterprise”

exists between the specific-bond redemption and payment entities, known as
“Examining Agencies”, such as BADV-Prufstelle, (relative to Dawes and Young
bonds), and Commerzbank Ag (relative to Rhienelbe Union Bonds), and Dresdner Bank
(relative to United Steel Works Corporation Bonds), and Landesamt fur Finanzen
Dienstelle Munchen (relative to Free State of Bavaria Bonds), and Germany, and
Deutsche Bundesbank, and German Finance Ministry.
792.

A RICO enterprise exists for each type of bond between the foreign issuer and the

redemption and paying agent and trustees on each type of bond. The “Rheinelbe
Union Bond Enterprise” consists of UBS, Schroders, Mizuho, Bank of New York
Mellon and Germany. The “Dawes Bond Enterprise” exists between JP Morgan
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Chase Bank NA, Deutsche Bank Ag, Deutsche Bankers Trust Co. of America, and
Germany. The “Young Bond Enterprise” consists of JP Morgan Chase Bank NA,
Citibank NA, Citigroup, and Bank for International Settlements, Germany. The
“United Steel Works Corporation Bond” consists of Credit Suisse, Skandinaviska
Enskilda Banken, Bank of New York Mellon, and Germany.
793.

Defendants have violated the RICO Act at 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (c), in that they

associated together in the “International Enterprise” for a common purpose of engaging
in an unlawful course of conduct and with a common interest and common purpose of
making money, maximizing profits from the bonds, denying redemption and payment
of the Plaintiffs bonds, confiscation, usurpation, conversion or mutilation of Plaintiffs
and Class members bonds’, through the alleged scheme to defraud bondholders, and
avoiding their multi-billion dollar liability to Plaintiffs, and Class Members.
794.

Each Defendant is a liable “Person” in the “International Enterprise” and are joined

in purpose, and are part of the “Association-in-Fact” enterprise.
Common Purpose
795.

Defendants in the “International Enterprise” had a common purpose of making

money, by way of the bonds herein, and/or maximizing profits, and/or maintaining the
huge revenues generated by the bonds, and improperly misappropriating bonds and
withholding the principal and interest payments due to Plaintiffs and Class Members,
and withholding the Hundreds and Millions of US Dollars that are owing to their
rightful owners and to the bondholders, including the Plaintiffs and Class Members.
796.

Defendants had a common purpose in foreclosing redemption, confiscating or

voiding bonds, denying payment, and misappropriating bonds sent to Germany to the
fraudulent and incompetent “Examining Agencies” under bogus “validation” schemes
developed, established, conducted, directed, promoted, and participated by Defendants.
797.

Defendants had a common purpose and shared goals in making money from the

bonds and – “by hook or by crook”- foreclosing and denying redemption and
“prohibiting” payment and significantly benefitting at the expense and substantial injury
of bondholders, including Plaintiffs and Class members.
798.

The Defendants for decades have conducted the affairs of the enterprise through a

pattern of racketeering activity relative to the bonds, including but not limited to, when
they sold the bonds - and conned over a million investors to buy billions of dollars
worth of the German gold bonds, and used the mail and wires to defraud investors, to
mislead investors of the “safe haven” and “low risk” aspects of the bond investments,
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and used ambiguous prospectuses of loans which were false and misleading designed to
deceive, and used their reputations as “respected business and financial institutions” and
used their reputation as “international bankers and financiers”, and used “no contest” or
“no objection” letters given by the US government to convey the impression of “safety”
- that the bond instruments were sound investments guaranteed by the United States and
sovereign governments and guaranteed by reliable trustees and redemption and paying
agents - when in reality – Defendants exposed the purchasers of the bonds to a far
greater bond risk and exposure then what the investors were led to believe.
799.

The bonds were guaranteed by the German government, and backed by the trustees

like the Bank for International Settlements, and JP Morgan and Citibank. The leading
banks like JP Morgan and Citibank and Bankers Trust in the United States were
underwriting and promoting these bonds and although the banks had warnings about the
bonds and the loans they did not warn their customers, or bondholders, and/or Class
members. Defendants received significant profits and revenues from the sale of the
bonds to bondholders, Plaintiffs, and/or Class Members.
800.

Since 1953 Defendants have associated together in a conspiracy against the Non-

Assenting bondholders, those who did not accept the London Debt Accord 1953, and
Defendants have a common purpose of maintaining the default and depriving these
bondholders like the plaintiffs and class members of any redemption or payment of their
bonds, and defrauding bondholders and Plaintiffs and Class members and increasing the
injury to bondholders by racketeering acts and Rico violations.
801.

Defendants have a common purpose and common interest to maintain the “status of

default” and not to pay for the Plaintiffs bonds and Class Members’ bonds, and to
maintain the scheme to defraud, and to injure Plaintiffs and Class Members by mail and
wire fraud. Defendants by the “Validation” scheme to defraud were able to breach their
treaty obligations and/or breach their contractual and fiduciary obligations on the bonds
and have never paid back the obligations and debts and money, principal and interest
owing to Plaintiffs and Class Members.
802.

Defendants also shared a common purpose of committing mail and wire fraud in

furtherance of the scheme to defraud in order to persuade Plaintiffs relative to the false
story “looting” and the bogus “validation” requirements so as to compel Plaintiffs to
send bonds to Germany (1) unjustly confiscate, or void, or convert bonds, and
unlawfully withhold payment of Plaintiffs and Class Members’ interest and principal
and monies for the bonds, (2) improperly obtain the property of Plaintiffs and Class
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Members without payment for such and to (3) permanently deprive Plaintiffs and Class
Members of their bonds and/or vested rights to redemption and payment thereon, (3) to
defraud bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class members, (4) to continue the Defendants’
default on their obligations to redeem and pay for the bonds, and (5) to continue the
scheme to defraud, (6) to breach their contractual obligations and breach their fiduciary
duties, (7) to maintain their unjust enrichment.
803.

Defendants also had a common purpose in the scheme to defraud and common

purpose in the enterprise to maximize their profits from the bonds - to disregard the
terms of the bearer bonds – to disregard the rights of the bondholders, Plaintiffs, and
Class members, ignore the gold clause payment terms of the bearer bonds - so as not to
pay principal and interest on Plaintiffs and Class members’ bonds; and continue the
default on the bonds and scheme to defraud through a pattern of racketeering and mail
and wire fraud and extortion.
804.

Defendants had a common purpose in foreclosing meaningful redemption and “not

providing” proper payment procedures or information, and by failing to provide proper
and fair and meaningful redemption, and by failing to provide proper and fair payment
procedures, and withholding critical information for redemption and payment of
principal and interest; they avoided liability for payment, and made huge profits, and
deprived Plaintiffs of interest and principal due on the bonds, and injured Plaintiffs.
805.

Defendants’ associated in the “International Enterprise” which has the requisite

“structure” and “continuity” and “common purpose” and also has the requisite
“longevity” and “relationships” amongst the “associates-in-fact” who function as an
“ongoing organization” and/or as a “continuing unit”, formally, or informally, with a
common purpose and who have conspired together and/or aid and abet each other to
maximize profits, to avoid redemption and payment of Plaintiffs bonds, and maintain
the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs, and Defendants have schemed to keep their illicit gains
and injure Plaintiffs and Class Members in their business or property, and by use of, and
result of mail and wire fraud and pattern of racketeering activity.
806.

The “Associated-in-Fact” - “International Enterprise”, being formal and/or

informal, is identifiable and consists of: Germany and the “Corporation-Banks” who
consist of the Redemption and Paying Agents, Trustees, and/or successors; including:
Deutsche Bank AG/Deutsche Bankers Trust Co. America, SEB, BIS Commerzbank
AG, JP Morgan Chase NA, Schroders plc, Mizuho Corporate Bank, UBS AG, Bank
New York Mellon, Citibank NA/Citigroup, Credit Suisse Group AG.
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The Foreign Issuer - Trustees/Redemption/Paying Agents - Relationships
807.

There are various “Relationships” between the “Associates”, within the known

and/or ascertainable “Structure” of the alleged German Gold Bond “International
Enterprise” between the “Persons” and/or Defendants, in the “enterprise” herein, and
some of which are (a) identifiable legal relationships and/or (b) “continuing”
relationships and/or (c) “ongoing organizations” and/or (d) informal relationships.
808.

There are obvious Legal and/or structural relationships in Germany existing

between: the German Finance Ministry, and the Deutsche Bundesbank, and the
“Examining Agencies”, such as Commerzbank and BADV- Prufstelle, Dresdner Bank
and/or Landesamt fur Finanzen, etc. relative to bonds, whether formal or informal.
809.

There are a series of treaties and/or internal laws and/or German regulations and

active coordination for implementing strategies in Germany relative to the relationships
and functions of each German Defendant “Person” herein in the RICO enterprise.
810.

Alternatively, there is an ongoing “Domestic Enterprise” in Germany and a

“domestic organization and structure” in Germany; and the affairs of which are being
conducted, managed and administered by Defendants and it is a “continuing unit” and
“ongoing organizational scheme”, and the Defendants as “persons” are conducting its
affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity.
811.

There are obvious and legal relationships between Germany, as the FOREIGN

ISSUER of the bonds, and its other “ASSOCIATES” in the “International Enterprise”,
those being the REDEMPTION AND PAYING AGENTS and TRUSTEES and
SELLING BROKERS and UNDERWRITERS, such as, JP Morgan Chase NA,
Schroder plc, Mizuho Corporate Bank, SEB, UBS AG, Bank New York Mellon,
Citibank NA/Citigroup, Credit Suisse Group AG, Deutsche Bank AG/Bankers
Trust Co. America, (also referred to as “Corporation-Banks”, named as “Persons”
and Defendants herein, who sold the bonds in the United States on behalf of Germany,
and acted as the Redemption and Paying agents, and acted as Trustees, and acted as
Underwriters, and acted as Issuing banks and/or Selling brokers.
812.

In addition to the binding and legal and/or formal relationships as evidenced by

the Bonds themselves, and the General Bond, and the Indentures, and the Trustee
obligations, and Redemption and Paying Agent obligations - the Corporation-Banks
have a long-standing symbiotic relationship with Germany and its Central Banks and
“Examining Agencies” and they function as a “continuing” unit relative to the bonds.
813.

Germany operates a “hierarchical organization” and/or exercises authority over its
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governmental agencies and/or operates and/or controls and/or directs and/or aids and
abets the federally designated “Examining Agencies” and/or financial banks and
institutions, and Germany coordinates with those who are designated as the alleged
“instruments of redemption and payment of the bonds” in Germany or elsewhere - and
the Defendants have unlawfully refused to pay the money and obligations to Plaintiffs.
Germany supports the provincial “Examining Agencies” financially, and pays monthly
stipends to the individuals employed by the German government, who control the day to
day affairs, and by virtue of the fact as “Examining Agency” carries out an active
agenda of confiscating bonds, mail and wire fraud, deprivation of payment of interest
and deprivation of payment of principal to Plaintiffs/Class members.
814.

The “Examining Agencies” - have specifically-defined territories in Germany - to

carry out their fraudulent purposes and Germany has divided up bondholders and Class
members according to their type of bonds, and use the “Examining Agencies” as a
conduit to conduct their illicit purposes and practices, e.g. mail and wire fraud,
conversion, extortion, misappropriation of bonds, denial of redemption and payment.
815.

The employees dealing with bonds are controlled and/or obedient to their bank or

”examining agency” employer, and report to the Bank Central Authority, the Deutsche
Bundesbank, and/or German Finance Ministry and other relevant government
organizations in Germany relative to bonds, and regularly correspond with each other.
816.

The bonds are reported on forms which are to be submitted with “ORIGINALS”

and serial numbers and that have other spurious conditions such as “showing that “nonpayment” would be a hardship!! As if bondholders or Plaintiffs have not endured
enough hardship for the past 50 years with Germany depriving them of their money and
denying redemption and payment of principal and interest. The purpose of the
enterprise was/is to prohibit payments and prevent Plaintiffs and Class Members from
getting their bonds redeemed and paid - so as to maximize the profits of Defendants.
817.

Germany, the “Examining Agencies”, and Corporation-Banks have not set up any

“safe-keeping measures for the bonds”, and have misappropriated bonds and money
and continue to hold substantial personal property of Class members or Plaintiffs’ bonds
or monies which have been embezzled, and/or “laundered” or improperly withheld.
818.

There is an “ongoing organization” between the Defendants American and British

and Swiss and German banks and Germany relative to the bonds, and even though
the “Corporation-Banks” are independent legal corporations, they are not acting
independently in the “international enterprise”, and in fact are co-dependent entities in
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the “enterprise” with a common purpose - and who depend on each other and the
“associates-in-fact” herein to achieve their common goals and they have acted
consensually and in concert in committing the RICO violations and default on bonds.
Continuity
819.

There is continuity and differentiation of roles in the participants of the association-

in-fact “International Enterprise” herein and in this situation each corporation bank or
participant in the “enterprise” is a “person” liable under RICO.
820.

The “International Enterprise” structure is provided by the hierarchy of each

corporation bank business, the contractual relationships and formal agreements or
organizations between “associates-in-fact” relative to the bonds and the mutual
exchanges of information, mutually advantageous strategy which Each Defendant
“Person” has knowingly implemented, and Each has had some part in the direction and
conduct of the enterprise, and Each insisting on bogus requirements relative to bonds
redemption, and Each involved in the promulgation of false myths regarding “looting”
by the mutual and collective and consensual insistence on an unfair and fraudulent
“validation” schemes with obsolete “Validation Boards” (as submitted in court) and the
mutual and collective and consensual failure to provide meaningful and secure and safe
and fair redemption and payment procedures by the associates-in-fact and corporations,
and the operation and management of the “enterprise” at the various levels of
management relative to the bonds, and the coordinated and consensual decision making,
to conceal the true worth of the bonds, to defraud the Plaintiffs and Class Members, to
engage in mail and wire fraud, to withhold payment of interest and principal.
821.

The “International Enterprise” herein involves entities, working together to

defraud Plaintiffs, e.g. - JP Morgan Chase, Citibank/Citigroup, Commerzbank,
Dresdner Bank, UBS, Mizuho, Bank New York Mellon, Deutsche Bank Ag/Trust Co.
America, UBS, SEB, Credit Suisse, Schroders, Prufstelle, Landesamt, BIS, Germany,
Deutsche Bundesbank, German Finance Ministry, each play some part and some role in
the scheme to defraud, in their function as trustees, redemption and/or paying agents
and implement decisions to foreclose redemption, and “prohibit” payments to Plaintiffs.
822.

Commerzbank, BADV – Prufstelle, Dresdner Bank, Landesamt Dienstelle Munchen,

and the Deutsche Bundesbank, the German Finance Ministry, and the Bank for
International Settlements, and are each independently an “associate” and part of the
“structure” in Germany, with the Deutsche Bundesbank, the German Finance Ministry,
and “Examining Agencies” and play various roles in the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs.
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The Defendants, Germany, and the co-conspirators in the “enterprise”, such as the

“Corporation-Banks”, the redemption and paying agents and trustees, collectively
“pump blood” into the veins of the “enterprise” and “scheme to defraud”, by mail and
wire fraud, as Defendants have consensually acquiesced, or agreed, to defraud, mislead,
and trap innocent Plaintiffs and Class Members, and impose their arbitrary and
capricious procedures of the incompetent and fraudulent “Examining Agencies” who do
some of the “dirty work” in the association-in-fact “Enterprise” - to confiscate bonds
and deny redemption and defraud the bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class Members, and
deprive Plaintiffs and Class Members of the principal and interest owing to them.
824.

Defendants perpetuate the false myth of the “looting of bonds” by sending out

letters through the mails and wires to mislead bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class
Members, and to misrepresent facts relative to the “worthlessness” of bonds, to compel
bondholders to send bonds to “Examining Agencies” which damage bonds that are sent
to them, deny bonds, foreclose or refuse redemption, withhold and deny and deprive the
Plaintiffs of their money and due payment, and void bonds and mark them improperly.
Structure/Longevity
825.

The “International Enterprise” has longevity to achieve its purposes, i.e. operating

for many decades, and has functioned as an “ongoing organization” and/or “continuing
unit” for decades to achieve shared goals and has an “ascertainable structure” distinct
from the “pattern of racketeering”, and through unlawful means including but not
limited to, the use of the law firms, and the use of mail and wire fraud - in order TO:
(1) Prohibit payments of interest and principal to bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class
Members, and to maintain the unjust enrichment of defendants at Plaintiffs expense.
(2) Maintain the Defendants own profits from bondholders money, regardless of the
truth, the law, or fiduciary and contractual obligations of defendants, or the adverse
financial consequences to the American investors and bondholders world-wide;
(3) Deceive investors and bondholders into believing that bonds had been “looted”
by Russians;
(4) Deceive investors and bondholders that their bonds were “worthless”;
(5) Deceive investors and bondholders and the public and US courts that
“Validation” of the bearer bonds in Germany was required prior to enforcement of the
bonds for redemption and payment and that arbitrary and capricious criteria such as
“proof of ownership in 1945” was required to show “that bonds were held outside
Germany in 1945”;
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(6) Maintain fraudulent “Examining Agencies” which are incompetent and
incapable for the purpose of “validation”;
(7) Suppress vital redemption and fair and transparent payment procedures and
(8) Refuse to identify who are the “examining agents” and their background and
expertise, and
(9) Refuse to maintain insurance in the event of loss or damage to bonds or
coupons; and
(10) Deprive the bondholders, Plaintiffs/Class members of redemption and payment
of their bonds, and deprive them of the principal and interest and monies to which the
Plaintiffs and bondholders are entitled to receive.
Enterprise/Racketeering Activity - Distinction
826.

The “International Enterprise” has an ascertainable structure and a “separate

existence” from the “pattern of racketeering activity”; and/or the “International
Enterprise” has an existence beyond that which is necessary merely to commit the
racketeering acts charged as predicate racketeering offenses.
827.

Germany is a sovereign government, and issuing banks and redemption and paying

agents and trustees are legal entities and banking corporations, with their own separate
corporate structures (and they also conduct other financial legal activities apart from the
“racketeering activity”).
828.

The Defendants “persons” have decades- long, ongoing relationships between them

relative to the bonds at issue, through which they worked together to specifically design
and market the German bonds, and/or worked to satisfy each other’s requirements for
dealing with the bonds, and/or worked together to satisfy each other requirements for
avoiding their joint and/or several obligations for redemption and payment of bonds.
829.

The Foreign Issuer of the bonds, Germany, and the issuing banks in the United

States, and the “Corporation Banks” acting as redemption and paying agents in the
United States and elsewhere, and the banks acting as American trustees, and the Bank
for International Settlements, formed the “association-in-fact” “International
Enterprise” and they have ongoing structures and relationships which exist apart from
the “pattern of racketeering activity” relative to the bonds committed herein in violation
of RICO Act. The “International Enterprise” exists, and will continue to exist, and has
ascertainable structure, and/or ongoing organization and functions as “continuing unit”.
830.

Similarly, each “Person” as Defendant herein, standing alone, has a corporate or

legal or business structure, e.g. Each bank, trustee, redemption and paying agent, or
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government, or governmental agency in Germany, on its own, is a legal entity, and has a
long-standing existence - distinct from the “scheme to defraud” at issue here - and
distinct from “pattern of racketeering activity” and distinct from the “enterprise”.
831.

The Defendants Relationships to and Roles in the “International Enterprise” are

precisely the types of “association(s)-in-fact” enterprises expressly recognized by the
statutory definition of a RICO enterprise. 18 U.S.C. §1961 (4). The §1962(c) violations
are based on the “International Enterprise” which has arisen out of the “association-infact” relationships among the corporate Defendants and Germany and its agencies.
“Persons”/Enterprise - Distinction
832.

The various liable “Persons” herein, i.e. Defendants Germany and/or the various

“Corporation-Banks” and the designated “Examining Agencies” in Germany, and the
Redemption and Paying agents, and Trustees, in America and Europe, are legally
distinct “Persons” from the “Enterprise”.
833.

Germany, as sovereign, is distinct from the “Enterprise”. The legally distinct

Defendants, “Corporations-Banks”, have own legal existence distinct from the
“enterprise” - and separate corporate structure - and the Defendants, “CorporationBanks” exist and function as separate entities with various activities in banking and
investment and financial services, and their separate existence is distinct from their
“association-in-fact” and membership/participation in the “International Enterprise”.
834.

Defendants participated in the “association-in-fact” “enterprise” as distinct and

independent, separately existing legal entities forming the “loose-knit” and/or “closeknit” group, and the “Enterprise” exists apart from the predicate acts of “racketeering”
and mail and wire fraud. Even if the “predicate acts” and “enterprise” were removed
from the equation, the “Persons” would still exist as separate legal entities.
Distinguishing Characteristics of the “International Enterprise”
835.

The Defendants possess the requisite characteristics of an “enterprise” and longevity

of structure to achieve their purposes and continuity - and worked together as a
“continuing unit” with common purpose or alternatively as “ongoing organization”.
836.

Defendants, participants in the “international enterprise”, shared the common

purpose of making money with German bonds in the US, and/or maximizing huge
profits relative to the bonds, and share a common purpose of “prohibiting” payments of
principal and interest, to the same victims, bondholders, using same fraudulent methods,
in order to avoid their liabilities, and same results, with Defendants misappropriation of
Plaintiffs monies, bonds, and sinking funds, and failure to redeem and pay the bonds.
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The “International Enterprise” involves specifically-defined and ongoing

relationships between Germany and various banks and financial institutions with
identifiable corporate hierarchies, that are intertwined relationships and purposes.
838.

The “International Enterprise” possesses a legally cognizable structure and the

Defendants have intertwined relationships relative to the bonds and also have
intertwined obligations pursuant to the bearer bonds, the indentures, general bonds,
and/or trustee agreements, and Defendants, collectively, and each Defendant on its own,
knowingly implemented decisions to unlawfully foreclose redemption, withhold
information and “prohibit” payments of principal and interest owing to Plaintiffs/Class.
839.

The “International Enterprise” has remained stable and/or constant and/or consistent

for decades and the roles of the participants in the enterprise has remained consistent
and/or continuous, and this satisfies the requisite continuity of structure of the
association in fact enterprise.
840.

The Defendant “Banks-Corporations” acting as Selling Brokers, Redemption

Agents and Paying Agents and Trustees, rely upon Germany’s, and each other’s deceitful propagation of the false story of “looting of bonds”, and deceitful
promulgation and insistence on bogus “validation” schemes with obsolete “Validation
Boards” - prior to any payment - (even though Defendants know these are bearer bonds
and no such requirement for German “validation” exists in the terms of the bonds).
841.

Defendants Banks rely on Germany’s maintenance of the fraudulent “Examining

Agencies” in order to divert the bondholders and claimants and Plaintiffs and Class
Members to Germany for “validation” and where bondholders end up being defrauded,
or denied redemption and payment for no legitimate reason, and subjected to arbitrary
and capricious conditions and/or confiscation of their bonds; and for Defendants to
avoid paying according the terms of the bearer bonds in the United States.
842.

Germany relies upon the Defendants “Bank-Corporations” in the “enterprise”,

such as, JP Morgan, Citibank/Citigroup, Schroders, Bank of New York Mellon,
UBS, Mizuho, Deutsche Bank Ag, Credit Suisse, SEB, etc., to invariably deny the
redemption of bonds and “prohibit” payment of the bearer bonds in the United States,
without the “prior” German “validation” - so as to avoid opening the “floodgates” of
liability which would require Germany and/or “Banks-Corporations”, the Redemption
and Paying Agents and Trustees to fully honor the explicit terms of the bearer bonds
and to make payment of principal and interest on all outstanding bonds of Plaintiffs and
the Class Members without any fraudulent “validation” scheme.
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The participants in the “International Enterprise” did not simply agree to commit

“mail and wire fraud” - the Defendants have affirmatively supported each other to
achieve their common purposes - to “maximize profits” from the Plaintiffs and Class
members bonds, and defraud bondholders and to “pay nothing back”, or as little as
possible, of the owing interest and principal, due to Plaintiffs and Class Members.
844.

Each Defendant controls its respective components, and conducts its operations

and/or management and/or participation in the “International Enterprise”, including
but not limited to – (a) control of the bonds which it is responsible for payment,(b)
control of the inquiries relative to redemption and payment, (c) control of its responses
to inquiries for redemption and payment of the bonds, (d) control of its procedures
relative to redemption or payment of bonds (e) control of its departments and personnel
for redemption for payment of bonds, (f) control of its public disclosures relative to
bonds, (g) control of information, and/or letters or communications sent with respect to
bonds to the public, government officials, courts, and Class Members and Plaintiffs, and Defendants knowingly implement decisions to unlawfully “prohibit redemption”
and unjustly “prohibit payments” on bonds to Plaintiffs - in furtherance of Defendants’
scheme to defraud and common purposes.
845.

The scheme to defraud, and acts of racketeering, are not isolated events, but have

persisted for a long time, for many decades, and consist of deceptive and fraudulent acts
or omissions and variety of prohibited RICO practices, to further a scheme to defraud,
engaged in by the Defendants and/or “International Enterprise” within the continuous
ongoing structure, which is distinct from “pattern of racketeering”.
846.

There are significant historical ties and/or ongoing substantial relationships

between Germany and the “Corporations – Banks” as the redemption and paying
agents and trustees banking entities relative to the bonds, and which make up the
“International Enterprise” and which demonstrate they are “organized” and/or an
“association-in-fact” enterprise engaged in a decades-long scheme to defraud Plaintiffs
and Class Members and “mail and wire fraud” to deprive Plaintiffs of their just claims
for redemption and payment of their bonds according to the terms of the debts.
847.

Defendants’ scheme is also to defraud government financial regulators, and courts

and public officials, and politicians, with false myths, false filings and false propaganda
relative to the bonds. The monies received by Germany and Defendant banks from the
sale of the bonds in the United States was considerable and they do not want to
relinquish the profits, or redeem bonds, or return the money to the Plaintiffs.
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Defendants are liable for the RICO violations and have committed more than

two predicate acts which have been alleged with particularity (date and content of
statements and omissions, parties etc.) and Plaintiffs specific quotations of “mail and
wire fraud” support cognizable RICO claims, which contain actionable falsehoods.
849.

Even if there was no “specifically-identified” misrepresentation or omission, (as the

various misrepresentations and false statements identified by Plaintiffs and contained
herein and alleged to be fraudulent), the Defendants would still have RICO liability
for the “scheme to defraud” Plaintiffs and Class Members and bondholders
herein, and Plaintiffs have alleged the general outline of the scheme to defraud, and
how the scheme operated, and the roles of Defendants.
850.

The transactions involved here are complex and cover a long period of time and the

Defendants know the misrepresentations that were directed to bondholders, and
Plaintiffs have alleged those misrepresentations with particularity herein pursuant
to Rule 9(b) directed to Plaintiffs – however - the Plaintiffs lack access to all the facts
necessary to detail the claims, as the complaint presents the claims of the Class, and
individual identification of the circumstances of the fraud as to each Class Member
would require extensive discovery and voluminous pleadings.
851.

Plaintiffs have alleged: (a) specific actors in the scheme to defraud and (b) have

alleged with particularity which Defendants are responsible on each specific bond; and
(c) have identified the role of each “corporate bank” and defendant in the scheme; and
(d) have identified their function whether as trustee, or redemption and paying agent, or
selling broker, or underwriter, and that is evident from the bonds and the contractual
relationships between the parties, and their common purpose and common interest and
participation in the scheme and (e) identified their misrepresentations and omissions
made in furtherance of the scheme and (f) how they benefitted is reasonably clear. The
Defendants know their involvement and methods of operation relative to the bonds and
interaction with other Class Members without significant difficulty.
852.

Defendants are “persons” “associated-in-fact” corporations with cognizable and

separate legal structures and with independent businesses of marketing and offering
financial services and products, and the “enterprise” is separate and apart from the
“pattern of racketeering activity” and mail and wire fraud.
853.

In addition, Germany, and the “Corporations Banks”, and Redemption and Paying

agents, and Trustees, formed a “distinct group” relative to the bonds herein - and had a
“hierarchical” structure, and/or “command system”, and/or “chain of command”, and/or
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“consensual decision making” system, and/or “loose knit” or “close-knit” “associationin-fact” and Defendants guided and/or directed the operations of the “international
enterprise”, and the Defendants associated together on the bonds to Class Members, and
for each type of bond Defendants agreed as to who was the “underwriter”, “selling
broker”, and specified who would be “Trustee”, and “Redemption and Paying Agent”
and other aspects the relative to the bond contracts; e.g. “place of issuance” and “place
of performance” - New York.
854.

Defendants have an “association-in-fact” enterprise with a common purpose to

avoid their multi-billion dollar liability towards Plaintiffs and Class Members, and to
escape their obligations for payment of interest and principal on the defaulted bonds,
and have pursued various illicit and fraudulent strategies to materially infringe the
redemption process which materially infringes Plaintiffs rights, and “invalidate” bonds,
“prohibit” payments, and “prevent and restrain” creditors from redemption of bonds and
collecting on their legitimate claims, and Defendants defraud Plaintiffs/Class by:
a. Failing to make available or provide meaningful redemption procedures;
b. Failing to provide fair and competent “validation” procedures;
c. Failing to provide any valid “validation” procedures in English in the United
States as required by the applicable treaties, and by shutting down all “validation
boards”; each Defendant knowingly implemented decisions to “prohibit
payment” to bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class Members and deprive them of
interest and principal due on their bonds;
d. Forcing Plaintiffs and Class members to incur costs for redemption of bonds in
Germany contrary to the terms of the bonds and treaties;
e. Engaging in mail and wire fraud, in a scheme to defraud, designed to
intentionally defraud the Plaintiffs and Class Members, and bondholders;
f. Engaging in coordinated and systematic efforts to defraud bondholders, Class
members and Plaintiffs by materially infringing the redemption process and
creating an environment of “fear and intimidation” and “impossibility” of
redemption and payment of the bonds - designed to prevent and/or dissuade
Plaintiffs from asserting their rights and legitimate claims under the bonds;
g. With the required scienter, taking steps in their plot to defraud and to deprive
Plaintiffs of the monies owing to them in principal and interest.
h. With respect to the bonds here, Germany may be viewed as the “Godfather” and
the “Corporation-Banks” and “Examining Agencies” as the “Family” members.
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The concerted activity alleged could only have been conducted with the type of

ongoing “structure” and “framework” existing in the “International Enterprise”. The
enterprise and structure has a mechanism for guiding and controlling the affairs of the
group on an ongoing basis, and the group relies heavily on the false story of “looting
of bonds by Russian soldiers” which forms the false basis of the “validation” scheme to obligate bondholders to submit bonds to Germany and to “prove ownership in 1945”,
before their bonds can be redeemed or paid, contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds.
856.

The terms of the Bearer Bonds which were sold in the United States and issued in

America and the place of performance being New York, and American Trustees and
Redemption and Paying Agents, require NO “proof of ownership in 1945 outside
Germany”. With bearer bonds “possession is the law” and “possession is the proof”.
857.

The concerted activity of the “associates-in-fact” is vital to the scheme, because if

one member “group” decides to redeem the bonds, and honor its obligations, and makes
payments according to the terms of the bonds (without requiring spurious “validation”
scheme which is presently employed as a barrier - to prevent claims - and to obtain the
property and bonds of bondholders) – then the entire regime would suddenly become
redundant and Plaintiffs’ claims would have to be directly paid by Defendants.
858.

If but one Defendant, “Germany” or “Corporation Bank” honors its obligations and

pays the debts and principal and interest to Plaintiffs and Class Members, then
Defendants would have to pay all the injured investors and compensate the hundreds
and thousands of injured bondholders, including Plaintiffs and Class Members who
have suffered injury to their business or property and would be required to redeem
bonds and pay claims to the full specified amount.
859.

As Germany and Defendants have significant liability and a “lot to lose” by

honoring their obligations and paying the debts to bondholders, they have a
common interest and purpose in not permitting such eventuality - and by “hook or by
crook” the Defendants have schemed to avoid redemption and evaded payment of
bonds and circumvented their obligations to pay Plaintiffs principal and interest.
860.

Germany appoints or selects “Examining Agencies”, and changes its internal laws,

according to its whim, to obstruct Plaintiffs and Class members, and Germany makes
unilateral declarations of “invalidity” of bonds, and guides the “Examining Agencies”
and “ZivilKammers” to refuse bond redemptions and/or “prohibit payments” and to
confiscate or void bonds, and/or to add the “serial numbers” of bonds submitted to a
fictitious “bad list” which has never been produced.
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Germany and the Defendant banks have consensually agreed not to pay their

obligations and agreed to “prohibit payments” and compel bondholders to the
“Examining Agencies” - as was done with Plaintiffs – and wherein Plaintiffs were
defrauded by the incompetent “Examining Agencies” and their bonds were not
redeemed and no payment was forthcoming, and no “Examining Agent” has identified
any expert in bonds redemption or authentication, and has not provided any fair or
secure or proper “validation” procedure, and none is available.
862.

As part of the scheme to defraud, and by mail and wire fraud, Germany and the

Defendants “Corporation Banks” fraudulent mailings and wire communications and the
various “Examining Agencies” continuously conceal and/or falsify facts and:
a. Misrepresent “looting of bonds” by Russians in 1945
b. Misrepresent “validation” requirements for bonds - when “Validation Boards”
are obsolete and the “Examining Agencies” are incapable or incompetent to
“validate” bonds and the bonds are bearer bonds and require no proof of
ownership or chain of custody to 1945.
c. Misrepresent the bonds as “worthless”
d. Misrepresent that “no legal action can be taken in USA” for compensation and
payment of bonds without prior German “validation” or approval.
e. Misrepresent that ORIGINAL bonds with COUPONS from (1939 to 1945
according to BADV-Prufstelle) or (Coupons from 1941-145 according to
Commerzbank) must be sent Germany’s “Examining Agencies” - when no such
requirements are contained in the terms of the bearer bonds.
f. Conceal and purposefully omit to identify the name and contact information of
the “Redemption Agent” or “Examining Agent” who handles the bonds and
examines the bonds and is responsible for redemption of the bonds in order to
maintain secrecy of proceedings to further the scheme to defraud.
g. Conceal and purposefully omit to provide or identify any person with expertise
in authentication of bonds employed by “Examining Agency”.
863.

The organization by Defendants of the false and deceptive “screening procedures”

and the agreement and conspiracy by the Defendants as members of the “enterprise” to
compel bonds be submitted to German “Examining Agencies” is ongoing and
continuing, and once the bonds are in the hands of Germany, they are confiscated,
voided, tampered with, perforated, and/or denied redemption for no legitimate reason,
and/or added to an fabricated list of “stolen” bonds.
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Germany and the relevant “Examining agencies”, and the “Corporation-banks”,

redemption, paying agents and trustees have agreed to “direct” their investors and
bondholders and Class Members and Plaintiffs - to naively and blindly send bonds to
the “Examining Agencies” in Germany, for each type of bond – so as to have bonds
confiscated, or voided, and/or denied redemption and payment for no legitimate reason.
Defendants Conduct, Operation or Management of the “Enterprise/s”
865.

Defendants are liable for violations of Section 1962(c) of the Rico Act which

imposes liability on “those who conduct or participate, directly or indirectly, in the
conduct of such an enterprise’s affairs, through a pattern of racketeering activity.”
866.

Defendants herein, formed “associations-in-fact” “enterprises”, and conducted or

participated, directly or indirectly, in the conduct of such enterprise’s affairs, through a
pattern of racketeering activity, and each knowingly implemented decisions to infringe
the process and foreclose redemption, and unlawfully promote, aid or abet, or acquiesce
to a false campaign of “looted bonds” by mail and wire fraud and by a scheme to
defraud, each knowingly implemented decisions to wrongfully misappropriate Plaintiffs
monies’ and to wrongfully “prohibit” payment of interest and principal to Plaintiffs and
Class Members and bondholders, so as to avoid their mutual liabilities to pay the bonds.
867.

Defendants, by the hierarchical or requisite RICO structure, or by consensual

decision making, exerted requisite measures of control, operation and management of
the enterprises, e.g. “International Enterprise” and acted for the unlawful common
purpose of defrauding Plaintiffs, and avoiding their liability to bondholders, Plaintiffs
and Class Members, and each Defendant participated in the conduct of the “enterprise”
and each member of the “enterprise” implemented strict control of “when” and “how”
and “how much” and “by whom” specific bonds information would be delivered or
withheld, and each member would actively infringe the redemption process and rights,
and limit bonds redemption and/or restrict “to whom” any principal or interest to be
paid, if any, were to be paid, at all, on an arbitrary and capricious and unlawful basis.
868.

When Germany, “Corporation Banks” or “Examining Agencies” receive legitimate

requests for redemption and payment of legitimate bonds - they have implemented
decisions to infringe the redemption process and maintain silence or opposition and/or
“stonewall” claims and refuse to provide proper information or redemption procedures,
and the Issuing Banks, Trustees, Redemption and Paying Agents, “Examining
Agencies” refuse to make payment on bonds, and each has some part in directing the
affairs of “enterprise”, and have interdependent relationships and functions as to bonds.
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In furtherance of the scheme to defraud, Defendants participated, directly or

indirectly, in the conduct and operation of the affairs of the enterprise/s, and Defendants
each had some part in directing the affairs of the enterprise/s, by knowingly taking steps
to implement consensual decisions, or by making decisions, or acquiescing to mutual
decisions, such as to foreclose the redemption process for the bearer bonds and thus
materially infringing on Plaintiffs and Class Members rights to redeem their bonds, and:
a. “Prohibiting” payment of bonds and Manipulating and falsifying historical facts;
b. Sending letters/documents/leaflets with false statements to defraud bondholders;
c. Coordinating their scheme to defraud and “bond liability” avoidance strategy;
d. Public disclosures of misleading facts to bondholders, Plaintiffs; Courts etc.
e. Suppressing the truth about the real value and worth of the bonds ;
f. Suppressing the truth about the validity of the Plaintiffs and bondholders; claims
or redemption worthiness and redemption readiness of the bearer bonds;
g. Misleading the bondholders with misrepresentations regarding the
consequences of “not submitting the bonds to Germany”;
h. Claiming the “unenforceability” of the bonds if they are not sent to Germany for
“validation” by fraudulent and incompetent agencies or zivilkammers;
i. Engaging in a scheme with intent to defraud, through mail and wire fraud;
j. Failing to provide the proper redemption and payment procedures, and;
k. Failing to pay the required interest and principal, and;
l. Refusing to grant information, and refusing to abide by the explicit terms of the
debts and the express language and obligations of the bearer bonds;
m. Refusing to identify who are the individuals responsible for redemption and
payment of the bonds, and directing class members to send their bonds to the
fraudulent and incompetent “examining agency” in Germany - which usurps, or
voids, or denies, or converts, or misappropriates bonds;
n. Remaining silent in the face of a “duty to disclose” the names and identities and
locales of redemption individuals and payment procedures in US; Suppressing
vital information so as to deter any chance of redemption and payment in the
US; by intentionally creating a “validation” void or “redemption” vacuum in the
United States, whereby American Plaintiffs and bondholders have “no place to
go in the United States” to redeem their bonds - which are payable to the bearer
in New York - and are “compelled” to “go to Germany” due to Defendants’
concerted actions and omissions in violation of the applicable laws and treaties.
182

Case 1:08-cv-06254
870.

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 183 of 241

It has been to Defendants advantage to participate in the conduct of the

“international enterprise” affairs through a “pattern of racketeering activity” in order
defraud bondholders, Plaintiffs, Class Members and to avoid their multi-billion dollar
liability. Defendants are “insiders” have relatively similar levels of decision making
powers in the conducting or operation or participation in the affairs of the Enterprise,
and have similar levels of liability, with Germany having the greatest liability, by virtue
of being the foreign issuer of the bonds and the primary party responsible that signed
the treaty with the United States and accepted its unconditional obligations to make
payment on bonds, but collectively the Banks-Corporations and other Defendants also
have liability for participation in the enterprise and the RICO violations and conspiracy,
and the banks have materially infringed the redemption process and Plaintiffs’ rights by
intentional refusal to redeem and/or pay the plaintiffs’ and class members’ bonds.
871.

Defendants have agreed and taken the position that they will refuse to pay bonds

“unless validated” by the fraudulent and incompetent “Examining Agency” or
“ZivilKammer” - which is contrary to the terms and conditions of the bearer bonds
redeemable and payable in the United States in Gold dollars, both principal and interest,
and which are subject to United States law.
872.

The “Examining Agency” in Germany has admitted it cannot “validate”

bonds and a court procedure is necessary, and as the bonds are subject to United
States law having been issued and sold in the United States of America to American
investors and approved by the American government and were placed in the addendum
of additional bonds to the Marshall Plan, and the US Department of State consented to
JP Morgan to sell the Dawes bonds, and bonds are subject to domestic treatment, and
the Federal courts have jurisdiction e.g. US government assumption of bonds, as set
forth in the judicial code 24(1), 80, 28 U.S.C.A. 41(1), 80, was also recognized as
assumption of responsibility as fiduciary trustee charged with the protection of the
bondholders’ property: “Agreement for Transfer of Bonds to Bondholders Committee
held to create express trust to conserve, salvage, and adjust investment, hence Federal
Court had jurisdiction of action by Committee, notwithstanding some of the transferors
could not have sued in Federal court because of insufficiency of their claims.”
873.

The International Enterprise came into existence and began in 1952/1953 during

the London Debt Conference meetings relative to the German external debt and the
outstanding bonds. The participants agreed at these meetings in London to conduct a
false and misleading public campaign about the “looting of bonds” by Russians in order
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to justify their spurious requirements to “validate” bonds and compel bondholders to
incur financial losses and costs to prove ownership and to prove “that the bonds were
held abroad in1945” (i.e. outside Germany in 1945) – and all this contrary to the terms
of the debts and contrary to the language of the bonds because the bonds are payable
to the BEARER and no such “proof of ownership” was required pursuant to the terms
of the bonds. With bearer bonds “possession is the law” and “possession is the proof”.
874.

This false “validation” scheme and its fraudulent, arbitrary and capricious

requirements were/are the centerpiece of the Defendants’ public campaign to defraud, to
change the terms of the debts unilaterally, and to repudiate their contractual and
fiduciary obligations, and to deny and deprive bondholders of their rights, and to deny
Plaintiffs the proper and fair redemption, and deny Plaintiffs and Class Members
payment of principal and interest, which is due according to the terms of the bonds.
875.

The “International Enterprise” has pursued a course of conduct of deceit and

misrepresentations and conspiracy to defraud the bondholders, the public, the courts,
and the representatives of bondholders, to withhold from the public and bondholders
material facts relative to the decision to pursue claims on bonds, to promote a deception
for decades, to promote their fraudulent “Examining Agencies” which are incompetent
and incapable of validating bonds, as well as to shield themselves from public and
bondholders and courts’ scrutiny. The fraudulent misleading and unlawful efforts of the
“International Enterprise” have continued from its inception to the present and threaten
to continue into the future.
876.

The participants in the “International Enterprise” have been consistent and have

repeatedly used false statements and made numerous misleading statements through the
mails and wires, Congressional hearings, and other public appearances as part of a
concerted effort and coordinated campaign to reaffirm the false myth, and/or mendacity
and misrepresentations concerning the “looting of bonds”, the false requirements of
“Validation” with a “Validation Board” that is obsolete - and the false “necessity” to
prove “ownership” in 1945 outside Germany, even though the bonds are bearer bonds.
877.

Behind the shield of false statements and misrepresentations and disinformation the

Defendants have refused to reveal the identity of “Examining agents”, the results of the
“Examining Agencies” vis-à-vis bondholders’ claims, the loss and damage and
tampering with and conversion and/or arbitrary denial of bonds sent for redemption.
878.

Defendants have intentionally suppressed critical information as to the availability

Insurance Policy for lost or damaged bonds, or if something happens to the bonds sent
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to Germany and in possession of the “Examining Agency” or ZivilKammer, and what
compensation can be obtained by bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class members .
879.

Defendants have intentionally suppressed information concerning the background or

expertise of the alleged redemption agents and their ability to authenticate bonds, and
Defendants failed to provide fair and proper redemption information and payment
procedures in accordance with the terms of the bonds - all to avoid civil liability for
payment of the bonds to bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class Members who have had to
wait over 40 years. Defendants have committed knowing and intentional RICO
violations and breaches of contract and fiduciary duties, fraud, and misrepresentations.
880.

The participants in the “International Enterprise” aided and abetted the defendants’

knowingly fraudulent scheme that “validation” is required with a “validation board”
before payment of the bonds by suppressing critical information, and NOT disclosing
that the “validation boards” are OBSOLETE, and NOT disclosing that the bonds are
BEARER Bonds, requiring “no proof of ownership” and have not disclosed the facts to
bondholders or the courts and attempt to manipulate and deceive the bondholders into
surrendering their bonds or claims and injuring them in their business or property.
881.

The Defendants RICO violations have resulted in multiple injuries to bondholders

over time, in the past and present, and will continue into the future unless enjoined.
Plaintiffs have recently discovered Defendants’ violations of §1962, and the causes
of action are new, and the injuries are recent. Plaintiffs were injured within the
meaning of §1964 in 2006, and recently in 2009, and Plaintiffs were denied proper
and fair redemption and payment and were defrauded and were injured in person or
property by reason of Defendants violations of RICO.
882.

Each participant issuing bank, redemption or paying agent, or Germany or its

governmental institutions or examining agencies, whether named or unnamed as
Defendant, in the association in fact, are “persons” liable in the Enterprise and are
subject to liability.
883.

The, “International enterprise”, as a collective entity is distinct and something more

than the members of which it is comprised, and defendants are both a “person” and part
of the “enterprise”.
884.

The Corporation Banks, are not outsiders to the enterprise, they are part of the

circle of the “associated in fact” enterprise, and have refused to redeem the Plaintiffs
bonds in accordance with their duties and obligations as Redemption and Paying Agents
or their Trustee obligations.
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The “Banks-Corporations” have participated in the conduct of the “International

Enterprise” by knowingly implementing decisions to wrongfully “prohibit” payments
and to engage in mail and wire fraud, as well as by making them. And by conduct and
operation of the enterprise through the commission of “pattern of racketeering activity”
and RICO violations which injured Plaintiffs property and give them standing to sue.
886.

Within the German “management” side of the “enterprise” is Germany, Deutsche

BundesBank, German Finance Ministry, and the selected “Examining Agencies” who
conducted the enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity and participated in
the operation and management and direction of the enterprise. The German
“managers” of the Enterprise such as Germany - has signed treaties, with false
premises, and false “validation schemes”, and passed internal laws to compel
bondholders registration of bonds in Germany by certain time and knowingly
implemented decisions to prohibit payments for decades, and to engage in mail and wire
fraud and breached treaties (such as removing the “validation” boards in the United
States, and to wrongfully coerce Plaintiffs to send bonds to Germany without legal
justification for such coercion.
887.

The “Corporation-Banks” are by no means “minor players” in the “enterprise”, and

are on the American “management” side, as major participants, they have equally
conducted the enterprise through a “pattern of racketeering activity”, and mail and wire
fraud, and the Banks are important accomplices and “conducted” or managed or played
a part in the “international enterprise” by implementing knowing decisions to foreclose
redemption and unlawfully prohibit payments of principal and interest, and to materially
infringe redemption rights of Plaintiffs or Class Members’ for their bonds, and to divert
bondholders to the fraudulent “examining agencies”, and to actively suppress critical
information about the “worth” of the bearer bonds and conceal joint liability, and the
banks’ participation is vital to the enterprise and they engaged in “direction, operation
or management activities”, by which the affairs of the enterprise are conducted.
888.

The Corporation Banks – i.e. the Redemption/Paying Agents and Trustees,

participated and conducted and played a part in directing the enterprises affairs, the
Banks-Corporations actions were illegal and they realized that the “validation” scheme
was contrary to the terms of the bearer bonds and was improper, and in particular, as
the “Validation Boards” and procedures were obsolete and unavailable and - for the
Corporation Banks to falsely insist upon the spurious conditions of “proof of
ownership” in 1945 outside Germany, and “validation” was misleading to Plaintiffs and
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bondholders and Class Members and contrary to international law, the uniform
commercial code and contrary to the terms of treaties and bonds, and the unconditional
obligations of the Banks as redemption and paying agents and/or trustees.
889.

Despite knowledge of impropriety, the Corporations Banks, on the American

“management” side of the enterprise - continued and decided to continue and
implemented knowingly and/or consensually - decisions of German “management”
side, - even if violative of RICO Act and the law, - and the Banks-Corporations each
knowingly undertook or acquiesced to unlawful “predicate acts”, independently, or
consensually and/or at the direction of German “management” side, and to illegally
exclude bondholders from Redemption and to wrongfully deny payment of bonds
directly in New York and to engage, aid or abet, in mail and wire fraud and to play a
part in the scheme to defraud.
890.

This is how the game was played – Defendants conducted the enterprise through a

pattern of racketeering activity, and mail and wire fraud, and by making joint and
concerted misrepresentations regarding “looting of bonds” and misleading bondholders
and Plaintiffs about the “validation” scheme and obsolete procedures, and
intentionally understating the value of bonds as “worthless”, and deterring or
diminishing claims, misleading Plaintiffs that “they had no right to sue in America
for compensation prior to “validation” - and to force bondholders “to go to
Germany”; where the fraudulent “Examining Agency” would implement the predetermined decisions to confiscate bonds, and/or deny redemption and payment of the
bonds and would acquire the bonds or serial numbers to add to a fictitious “bad list”.
891.

Thus each Defendant in Germany and the United States, and elsewhere, may be

sued for its actions or omissions as a “participant or player” in the “team or collective”
enterprise. The RICO “persons” are not identical in name, and function as the
“Enterprise” and can be named as Defendants. The Enterprise as an association in fact
includes the Defendant entities but is not limited to them. The Examining Agencies,
such as Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds in Berlin, form part of the Enterprise. One, as
member of the Enterprise, can associate with a group, while the member and the group
remaining as distinct entities.
892.

The Defendants are also liable under civil RICO for aiding and abetting, directly or

indirectly, the commission of the predicate acts by the primary offender under §1962(e)
because defendants have formed an enterprise to defraud plaintiffs, bondholders, class
members and to breach their fiduciary and contractual obligations and failed to redeem
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and pay the bonds and to maintain the status of default on the bonds and to deprive
plaintiffs, class members of bonds or payment of interest and principal, there under.
893.

Defendants engaged in manipulative and deceptive and misleading practices

even in their filings in court such as by falsely stating and fraudulently misrepresenting
in their initial motion to dismiss that Plaintiffs had to comply with the “validation
board” procedures in the territorial jurisdiction in the United States when actually
NONE EXIST – and Defendants knew and should have known that the “Validation
Board” was no longer set up in the United States “comprised of one German, one
American and one neutral person who acts as “umpire” in the event of disagreement”
and it was obsolete, even in Germany – and it was not necessary to submit bonds to
defunct “Validation Board” before Plaintiffs could bring suit to enforce their rights for
redemption and payment of their bonds.
894.

The participants in the “International Enterprise” have not disclosed and have

misleadingly suppressed facts which they had a duty to disclose, E.g. such as that the
1953 Agreement on German External Debt treaty clearly recognizes, that the story of
“looting of bonds” was conjecture and hypothetical, and (b) that “Validation Boards”
are obsolete even in Germany, and (c) that the terms of the bearer bonds require no
“proof of ownership” - in order to control and manipulate bondholders, Plaintiffs and
Class Members into sending their bonds to Germany - where the bonds can be
damaged, lost, perforated, tampered with, voided, or denied for no legitimate reason by
incompetent agencies or incompetent authorities.
895.

The members of the “International Enterprise” have further suppressed the

development of fair “validation” procedures and fraudulently maintains a campaign that
“Validation” of bonds is required when (a) they provide no proper and fair “Validation
Board” and (b) provide no competent authority for the purpose of validation, and (c)
provide no insurance to cover loss or theft of bonds sent to Germany, and (d) provide no
safe-keeping mechanism, and (e) provide no identity of a single “Redemption or
Examining Agent” at any Defendant entity, and no provide not a single person
credentials or background or expertise, and in fact have a history of defrauding
bondholders.
896.

The actions of the Defendants and/or members of the “international enterprise” were

essential to the success of the campaign of deceit, concealment and misinformation.
The constituent members of the enterprise were aware that unless they agreed to act
and acted in concert to defraud bondholders and Plaintiffs, they would be required
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to redeem and Defendants would be required to make payment of the bonds to
bondholders and Plaintiffs according to the terms of the bonds sold in the United States,
and that would cause their profits to substantially diminish as the amounts due to
plaintiffs and bondholders worldwide is in the hundreds of millions, and even billions,
and this would pose a significant threat to their viability and operations in the industry.
897.

The Defendants have engaged in “continuous and related” course of conduct over

decades, and a long-lasting scheme to defraud the American public and investors
and bondholders and Plaintiffs - by Defendants : (a) concealing the true “worth” and
“value of the bonds” and (b) concealing the falsehood of the fabricated story of “looting
of bonds” and (c) concealing the fraudulent nature and lack of competency of the
“Examining Agencies” which are incapable and incompetent for “Validation” purposes,
and by (d) concealing the identity of the alleged “Examining Agents” or their
backgrounds or expertise, and by (e) concealing and failing to provide proper and fair
and secure redemption procedures and payment of the bonds in US.
898.

The predicate acts of “mail and wire fraud” show “continuity plus relationship” in

that: they have the similar or same purpose (“prohibiting payment” to Plaintiffs and
Class Members, defrauding and deceiving bondholders, and avoiding payment of
Defendants’ debts and denying redemption of the bonds contravening the terms of the
debts, maximizing their profits, and financial position, at the expense of bondholders),
similar or same results participants, victims and methods of commission, or
otherwise are interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated events.
899.

There are countless victims of Defendants scheme to defraud and default, hundreds

of thousands of victims, who have naively sent bonds to Germany for “validation” and
have never received their bonds back or received them voided or tampered with, and
have never been paid and have not had their bonds redeemed in the US or Germany.
900.

The repeated conduct of mail and wire fraud done over such an extreme length of

time has no natural end point and the threat of unlawful conduct will continue and recur
in the future, and there is specific threat of repetition exists and the predicates are a
regular way of doing business for Defendants, and are attributed to each defendants
herein, operating as part of a long term and ongoing association for unlawful purposes
and there is no evidence that any of the defendants want to terminate the scheme to
defraud. The countless letters sent by Defendants to bondholders - extends over 50
years, including - recent letters, faxes, and/or emails in 2006 and 2009 to Plaintiffs,
each supporting an individual act of mail and/or wire fraud.
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The RICO claims focus on Defendants’ scheme to defraud the American and other

investors and bondholders and Plaintiffs/Class Members by concealing (a) the real value
and high worth of the bonds and (b) concealing the reality the bonds are Bearer bonds
and concealing the truth that no “proof of ownership” is required in the terms of the
bearer bonds.
902.

By the Terms of the Bonds, There is absolutely no need that the “bonds were held

abroad in 1945” outside Germany, prior to redemption or payment and Defendants
have concealed the truth that the bonds can be redeemed directly and paid by the
Defendants Germany and the redemption and paying agents in the United States
without resort to fraudulent and incompetent “validation” procedures in Germany,
where no “validation board” exists, not in Germany and not in the United States.
903.

Alternatively, the Defendants herein, Germany and its related agencies,

Commerzbank AG, Deutsche Bank AG and Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, JP
Morgan Chase NA, Mizuho Corporate Bank, UBS AG, Citibank NA, Schroders
plc, Credit Suisse Group Ag, Bank of New York Mellon, have engaged in a pattern
of racketeering activity through legal entities , such as law firms, accounting and/or
public relations firms, etc., examining agencies.
904.

Each Corporate Bank or “Germany” as Defendants herein is separate from its

“Legal Defense Firm” which can also be deemed an “law firm enterprise” and the
Defendants have used, directed or conducted the “law firms enterprises” through a
pattern of racketeering activity, and engaged in mail and wire fraud, in furtherance of
the scheme to defraud bondholders, to submit false statements to Plaintiffs, the courts,
the public, through filings of documents in court and judicial proceedings via email or
fax or mail and wires which contain material misrepresentations relative to the
“existence” of “Validation Board and its procedures”, knowing such statements to be
false and misleading, and to promote the false myth of “looting” of bonds - all this to
injure bondholders and Plaintiffs in their business or property and cause financial losses
and deprive Plaintiffs of interest and principal, and deny proper redemption which has
caused injury to Plaintiffs and increased the cost of redemption and obtaining payment
of bonds.
905.

For example, Commerzbank, through its legal defense firm, of “Tishler and Wald”,

as “enterprise”, sent letter to Plaintiffs ‘ counsel on April 20, 2009, on behalf of
Commerzbank, and on page 2, it states the “Federal Office for Central Services and
Unresolved Property Issues Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienste und Offene
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Vermogensfragen - “Validation Board” – (Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds) when it
clearly is NOT, and Commerzbank and/or the defense law firm “enterprise” knew that
the BADV-Pruftselle was not the “Validation Board” but falsely stated that it was. The
BADV-Prufstelle admitted to Plaintiffs counsel that “Validation Boards “ “are not
anymore” - and therefore no such validation procedures are available. Commerzbank
also made the same material misrepresentation about the existence of the “Validation
Board” in a judicial document submitted to court, in the Joint Reply Brief and/or other
misrepresentations in the Joint Motion of Defendants which contained the false
statements of ‘looting of bonds”.
906.

And the Prufstelle-BADV admitted that it is “not capable” and thus incompetent for

the purpose of “validation” and a court procedure is necessary. There is no legally
compelling reason that the court procedure be in Germany. To the contrary the
President of the United States, Dwight D. Eisenhower, confirmed to the Senate,
that the “rights of creditors to sue in Non-German courts under the Agreement is
not impaired”.
907.

Defendants use various forms of coercion, pressure and/or extortion and/or

intimidation and/or fraud and/or mail and wire fraud to deter bondholders and Plaintiffs
and class members from enforcing their bonds in court, and to cause forfeiture of
claims, and to deny plaintiffs their legitimate right to their money in principal and
interest. Defendants have unlawfully maintained default on payment of the bonds.
908.

Moreover, JP Morgan through its law firm of “Ulmer & Berne” “enterprise”

engaged in mail and wire fraud and stated in a letter to Plaintiffs counsel, and in judicial
documents that: Federal Office for Central Services and Unresolved Property Issues
Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienste und Offene Vermogensfragen - “Validation Board” –
(Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds) when it clearly is NOT, and JP Morgan and/or its
defense “law firm” knew it was not the “Validation Board” but falsely asserted it was.
909.

In addition Plaintiffs counsel specifically requested from JP Morgan, on behalf of

clients and plaintiffs and bondholders - the redemption and payment of the bonds and
Plaintiffs counsel Requested Redemption and Payment information from all
Defendants appearing, in a March 12, 2009, to which is attached as Exhibit H –
(Plaintiffs Opposition Memorandum: Document 65-4 filed 04/10/2009), but no
adequate response and no information concerning JP Morgan’s designated
individuals for treating bonds claims was forthcoming, and no adequate response
was forthcoming from any Defendants to whom the Request for payment was sent.
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In addition, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Citibank, through the defense law

firm “enterprise” of “Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP” engaged in mail and wire fraud
and stated in judicial documents that: “Nevertheless the Validation Board exists in the
Federal Republic” when it DOES NOT - i.e. that the Federal Office for Central Services
and Unresolved Property Issues Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienste und Offene
Vermogensfragen which is alleged by Defendants to be the “Validation Board” –
(Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds) when it clearly is NOT, and UBS, Bank of New York
Mellon, Citibank, and/or its defense “law firm enterprise” knew that BADV/Prufstelle
was NOT the “Validation Board” but falsely asserted that it was, in order to further the
scheme to defraud Plaintiffs.
911.

In addition, Schroders Plc, through the law firm “enterprise” of “Ropes and Gray”

engaged in mail and wire fraud and stated in judicial documents that: “Nevertheless the
Validation Board exists in the Federal Republic” when it DOES NOT i.e. that the
Federal Office for Central Services and Unresolved Property Issues Bundesamt fur
Zentrale Dienste und Offene Vermogensfragen which is alleged by Defendants to be
the “Validation Board” – (Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds) when it clearly is NOT, and
UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Citibank, and/or its defense “law firm enterprise”
knew that BADV/Prufstelle was NOT the “Validation Board” but falsely asserted
that it was, in order to further the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs.
912.

In addition, Mizuho Corporate Bank, through the defense law firm “enterprise” of

“Grippo Elden” engaged in mail and wire fraud and stated in judicial documents that:
“Nevertheless the Validation Board exists in the Federal Republic” when it DOES NOT
i.e. that the Federal Office for Central Services and Unresolved Property Issues
Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienste und Offene Vermogensfragen which is alleged by
Defendants to be the “Validation Board” – (Prufstelle fur Auslandsbonds) when it
clearly is NOT, and UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Citibank, and/or its defense “law
firm enterprise” knew that BADV/Prufstelle was NOT the “Validation Board” but
falsely asserted that it was, in order to further the scheme to defraud Plaintiffs.
913.

Moreover, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank Ag, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust,

through their defense law firm of “Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy LLP” as
“enterprise” - refused to provide any redemption information or payment procedures
and failed to identify the parties responsible for treating claims on bonds, and stated that
they “will respond by way of our formal filings and submissions in the lawsuit, and we
expect that this will provide you with the information relevant to your inquiries.”
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However, no proper redemption or prompt payment information has been

forthcoming, not by cooperation, nor by the formal filings and/or submissions. In
fact, Credit Suisse and Deutsche Bank, joined in the fraudulent statements formally
filed in this case by Defendants in the Joint Reply Brief that “Nevertheless the
Validation Board still exists in the Federal Republic” when Credit Suisse/Deutsche
Bank, knew the false, misleading nature of the misrepresentation in furtherance of the
scheme to defraud bondholders and Plaintiffs.
915.

Plaintiffs’ requests for relevant redemption and payment information was sent on

March 12, 2009, to Schroders, Citibank, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Mizuho
Corporate Bank, who simply chose to ignore the Plaintiffs legitimate requests
altogether, and treat Plaintiffs’ request as if “non-existent”, and did not even supply the
courtesy of a response.
916.

None of the Defendants herein, Germany and its related agencies, Commerzbank

AG, Deutsche Bank AG and Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, JP Morgan Chase NA,
Mizuho Corporate Bank, UBS AG, Citibank NA, Schroders plc, Credit Suisse Group
Ag, Bank of New York Mellon, SEB, Prufstelle, Dresdner bank, Landesamt fur
Finanzen, BIS, have identified a single “Examining Agent” for bonds by name, and
have intentionally withheld pertinent information to Plaintiffs claims:
a. NONE of the defendants have adequately responded to legitimate inquiries
about “insurance policies” in case of lost, stolen, or damaged bonds at the
“Examining Agencies”,
b. NONE of the Defendants who have been requested by Plaintiffs to provide
redemption and payment information have responded with meaningful
information that will provide prompt and fair resolution of the claims;
c. NONE of the Defendants have identified who is responsible person for treating
the claims at their respective institutions as they are contractually obligated to
redeem and pay the bonds and have breached their fiduciary obligations to
provide information and to redeem and pay the bonds as trustees or redemption
and paying agents.
d. NONE of the Defendants have identified no expert in bond authentication at
their respective institutions;
e. NONE of the Defendants have provided information about the “safe-keeping
measures”, and NONE have provided “access for independent observers and
experts in authentication”
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Plaintiffs have offered during this case, and before, and overtures from the start of

the instant litigation in 2008, to resolve matters amicably and has suggested confidential
settlement conference pursuant to this District’s Rules or mediation or other appropriate
and mutually agreeable dispute resolution mechanisms but it is Defendants who have
not shown good faith or any indication of willingness to resolve matters via cooperation
or good faith.
918.

When the Defendants did file documents in court, they made misrepresentations and

false statements and attempted to mislead the plaintiffs and the court.
919.

And Defendants may not offer “validation” as an argument, due to Germany’s

breach of the Agreement on German External Debt 1953 or breach of the other treaties
or agreements such as Second Implementing Ordinance 1953, and/or due to
Defendant’s lack of standing under the treaties to invoke the “validation” scheme - and
therefore the Defendants, redemption and paying agents and trustees, and Germany and
the banks, must abide by the terms of the bonds and pay the interest and principal
according to the terms of the bonds and according to the gold clause and their joint
and/or several responsibilities therein.
920.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
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SECOND RICO CLAIM
Rico Violations of 18 USC §1962(a)
Against All Defendants
921.

Plaintiffs have a claim for Defendants violations of 18 USC §1962(a) which make it

unlawful “for any person who has received any income derived, directly or indirectly,
from a pattern of racketeering activity…to use or invest, directly or indirectly any part
of such income, or the proceeds of such income in acquisition of any interest in, or the
establishment or operation of, any enterprise which is engaged in, or the activities of
which affect, interstate or foreign commerce.”
922.

In addition to the “International Enterprise” and the “German Domestic Enterprise”

other RICO “Enterprise/s” exists herein, in that each Defendant is a “person” and
perpetrator - and liable for purposes of 18 U.S.C. §1964(a) in that (1) Each Defendant is
an “Enterprise” under s18 USC §1962(a); and (2) Each Defendant has received income
derived, directly or indirectly, from a “pattern of racketeering”, and/or (3) Each
Defendant has used or invested any part of such income, directly or indirectly, in the
establishment or operation of any “enterprise”, or the acquisition of any interest in an
“enterprise”, (4) which is engaged in, or the activities of which affect, interstate or
foreign commerce. Defendants have used the income in the establishment or operation
of the “enterprise/s”.
923.

Under 18 USC §1962, subsection (a) herein, in receiving income through their

pattern of racketeering activity in the “Enterprise”, each Defendant serves as both the
“Person” and the “Enterprise”, as permitted and - there is no “Person/Enterprise”
distinction required under the plain language §1962(a).
924.

Furthermore §1962(a) does not include the “non-statutory” and improper

“investment injury” or “investment use” element to the claim - which some courts may
expect or take into account - as such a requirement is not necessary and should not be
imposed in this litigation - because that would eviscerate the RICO statute’s remedial
purposes that are nowhere more evident than in the provision of §1964(c) of a private
action for those injured by a pattern of racketeering. This construction is consistent
with Congress’ intent and direction to liberally construe the RICO statute.
925.

All the Defendants are “Enterprise/s” pursuant to §1962(a), and exist as

“Enterprises” herein, including, but not limited to the following listed “Enterprise’s”:
(1) Deutsche Bundesbank (2) German Finance Ministry (3) Commerzbank (4)
Deutsche Bank (5) Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust Co. America (6) JP Morgan
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Chase Bank NA (7) Mizuho Corporate Bank (8) UBS AG (9) Citibank NA (10)
Schroders plc, (11) Credit Suisse Group Ag (12) Bank of New York Mellon (11)
Bank for International Settlements (12) Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken ab (13)
Dresdner Bank Ag (14) BADV-Prufstelle Fur Auslandsbonds (15) Landesamt fur
Finanzen Dienstelle Munchen (16) Citigroup; and/or others not known, and not
mentioned herein but may be added upon discovery.
926.

Each “Person” and/or Defendant has received income, directly or indirectly, from a

pattern of racketeering activity, and used or invested proceeds of that income or part of
the income, in the acquisition of an interest, establishment or operation of the
respective “enterprise”, that is engaged in, or the activities which affect, interstate or
foreign commerce, and the injury to the Plaintiffs and Class Members’ business or
property is causally linked to the racketeering activity of defendants in violation of
§1962(a).
927.

The Plaintiffs have standing because they were injured by Defendants’ use or

investment of income or proceeds derived from the pattern of racketeering, and/or
Plaintiffs were injured by the operation of the enterprise in which Defendants used or
invested the income/proceeds.
928.

Defendants received income derived from their fraudulent scheme to deceive the

Plaintiffs, Class Members and bond-owning public, with misleading statements
regarding the bogus “validation” requirements, misrepresentations as to the “lack of
value” or “worthlessness” of the bonds, and/or artificial conditions that bondholders had
to “prove ownership in 1945 of their bonds outside Germany” before redemption or
payment - and all this to embezzle/expropriate Plaintiffs and Class Members’ money
and bonds and deprive Plaintiffs of interest and principal and deny redemption and
payment of the bonds and Defendants have used the mail and wires to defraud Plaintiffs
and Class Members.
929.

Such racketeering income included substantial revenues from the sale of the bonds,

and/or such racketeering income included significant revenues and profits and income
from the “non-redemption” and the “non-payment” of billions of dollars of principal
and interest owing to Plaintiffs/Class Members on the bonds according to the terms of
the debts, and Defendants’ embezzlement and retention, and misuse and
misappropriation of Plaintiffs’ money from the bonds. Defendants received income in
the billions of dollars of principal and/or interest, relative to the bonds, and which
money is owing to Plaintiffs/Class Members.
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Defendants, each used or invested such revenue, which constitutes a significant

portion of the revenue of each Defendant, to establish, operate, maintain, promote,
and/or expand the “International Enterprise”, and/or the “German Domestic Enterprise”,
and/or the following Enterprises: (1) Deutsche Bundesbank (2) German Finance
Ministry (3) Commerzbank Ag (4) Deutsche Bank (5) Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust
Co. America (6) JP Morgan Chase Bank NA (7) Mizuho Corporate Bank (8) UBS AG
(9) Citibank NA (10) Schroders plc, (11) Credit Suisse Group Ag (12) Bank of New
York Mellon (11) Bank for International Settlements (12) Skandinaviska Enskilda
Banken ab (13) Dresdner Bank Ag (14) BADV-Prufstelle Fur Auslandsbonds (15)
Landesamt fur Finanzen Dienstelle Munchen; through mail and wire fraud, and the
establishment, operation design, development, and/or marketing of fraudulent
“validation” schemes and incompetent “Examining Agencies” to confiscate and usurp
bonds and to deny redemption and payment of bonds, and prohibit payments to
Plaintiffs and Class Members, and increasing the number of victims and size of losses
and injuries to Plaintiffs and Class Members.
931.

Plaintiffs and the Class Members, own bonds and have not been able to redeem their

bearer bonds or obtain the payment for their bearer bonds because of the Defendants’
continued operation and/or expansion of the “International Enterprise”, the “German
Domestic Enterprise”, and their respective “Enterprises”, through reinvestment and/or
use of racketeering proceeds in the “Enterprises” aforementioned, and the design,
development, and marketing of the fraudulent “validation” schemes - to deny
redemption and payment of bearer bonds, to misappropriate the Plaintiffs’ money and
bonds - and the operation of the fraudulent “Examining Agencies” who do the “dirty
work” of misappropriating bonds or mutilating bonds.
932.

Defendants’ have collectively “prohibited” payment, and denied redemption and

payment of bonds, and Defendants’ are increasing the number of victims, and size of
injury of the injured Plaintiffs and Class Members who are continuously fleeced and
deprived of hundreds of millions of dollars on a semi-annual basis, by the Defendants’
non-payment of their interest and/or principal owing to them on the bonds and wherein
the bonds stipulate that payment is due semi-annually every year until such time as the
principal is fully paid.
933.

Such injury to Plaintiffs and Class Members, thus resulted, from Defendants’ use

and investment of the proceeds of their racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C.
1962(a) in that Plaintiffs and Class Members have lost significant property i.e. money
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and/or bonds; by the Defendants use and/or investment of the income received and
racketeering proceeds in the operation of the various “enterprises”.
934.

Defendants received income derived from their fraudulent scheme and deprived

plaintiffs and bondholders of the payment of interest and principal on their bonds, and
deceived the bondholders, congress, the courts, the public, the plaintiffs, with
misrepresentations regarding the “worthlessness” of the bonds, and misrepresentations
regarding the “validation” scheme and the requirements of “validation” with obsolete
“validation boards” or incompetent “Examining Agencies”.
935.

Such racketeering income included, substantial revenues and profits and unjust

enrichment by Defendants from the money and revenues received and income from
Plaintiffs and bondholders purchases of the bonds, and from profits, and/or other
benefits including but not limited to retention of bondholders’ monies’ or property,
preferred interest rates and interest, or other income derived from the Defendants
fraudulent scheme and embezzlement of Plaintiffs’ money, and/or preferred or
increased ratings for securities sold in the United States, and which revenues, profits
and/or benefits are directly related and/or result of Germany; and Defendants
racketeering activity and increased market capitalization and assets predicated upon
Germany and Defendants racketeering activity; and Defendants’ failure to redeem the
bonds and failure to pay and provide the cash payments to Plaintiffs, class members and
bondholders, and/or Defendants’ misuse and misappropriation, and/or confiscation,
conversion, voiding and/or tampering with the property, money and/or bonds, of
Plaintiffs and/or Class Members; and Defendants’ refusal to pay interest and principal
according to the terms of the debts to plaintiffs and class members.
936.

Plaintiffs have been injured by the operation of the “enterprises” in which the

Defendants have used or invested the proceeds. Defendants each used and invested
some or much of such revenue, which constitutes a significant portion of revenue to
promote, operate, expand the “Enterprise/s”, and increasing the scope or number of
victims by operating the fraudulent “Validation” scheme and “Examining Agencies” to
defraud bondholders and plaintiffs, and design, development and marketing of false
story of “looting of bonds” and fraudulent and incompetent “Examining Agencies”
which confiscate, damage, destroy, deny bonds sent to them as part of the so-called
“validation” scheme.
937.

Plaintiffs and bondholders purchased and/or acquired German gold bearer bonds

from Defendants who are part of the legally cognizable structure or “Enterprise/s”, and
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are responsible for payment of the bonds, and/or Defendants are the redemption and
paying agents and/or trustees on Plaintiffs bonds, who own and possess the German
gold bearer bonds, including but not limited to, Rheinelbe Union, Dawes, Young,
United Steel Works bonds, etc.
938.

Defendants’ enrichment at the expense of Plaintiffs and class members was unjust

and as direct and proximate result of Germany and Defendants wrongful conduct,
unlawful acts, racketeering activity, the Plaintiffs and class members have been injured
in their business or property and their property rights and interests have been adversely
affected, and Plaintiffs and class members have suffered injury and monetary damages.
939.

Plaintiffs and class members purchased, owned or possessed bonds and attempted to

redeem their bonds and obtain cash payment but were subjected to Defendants’ scheme
to defraud, and Plaintiffs and bondholders and class members were unable to redeem
their bonds or “validate” their bonds and were not able to obtain payment of principal
and interest according to the terms of the bearer bonds.
940.

This refusal of redemption and withholding of plaintiffs and class members’ money

payment of principal and interest was made possible by Defendants’ continued
operation and expansion of the “Enterprise/s”, through the reinvestment and/or use of
racketeering proceeds therein , and/or by Defendants in the marketing and promotion of
the “Validation” scheme and increasing the scope of fraudulent and incompetent
“Examining Agencies” designed to confiscate or deny redemption of the various bonds
at issue and defraud plaintiffs and the class members.
941.

Such injury thus resulted from Defendants’ use and investment of the proceeds of

their racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1962(a) in that Plaintiffs and class
members lost property, bonds and/or money, through the “validation scheme” and its
components and implementation that was designed and developed by Defendants, and
as a result of, or through, the Defendants’ use and investment of, racketeering proceeds.
942.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution of a
constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained by
Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of action,
and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
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THIRD RICO CLAIM
18 U.S.C. §1962(b) and “injury to business or property”

943.

Plaintiffs have a claim for Defendants violations of 18 U.S.C. §1962 (b) which

states: “it shall be unlawful for any person through a pattern of racketeering
activity…to acquire or maintain, directly or indirectly any interest in, or control of an
enterprise, which is engaged in, or the activities of which, affect interstate or foreign
commerce”.
944.

Defendants herein acquired or maintained an interest in, or control of the

“enterprise/s” through a pattern of racketeering activity, which affected interstate or
foreign commerce, and caused Plaintiffs to suffer injury to their business or property.
945.

Defendants conspired to defraud and used fraudulent “validation schemes” and

incompetent “Examining Agencies” to unlawfully deny redemption and payment of the
Plaintiffs and Class members bonds. Plaintiffs and Class Members who have been
injured to their property or business, and such injury was a result of or through the
Defendants acquisition or maintenance of the enterprise that is separate from the
injuries that resulted from the predicate acts.
946.

Defendants have engaged in a scheme to defraud bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class

Members, and embezzling Plaintiffs’ money (interest and principal owing on the bonds)
and/or the bonds - by designing, developing and operating a fraudulent “validation”
scheme - whereby investors and bond owners are misled and falsely given the
impression by the Defendants that their bearer bonds are not “redemption-worthy” by
concealment of the truth , and concealment of the real value and worth and redemptionability of the bonds, and by misrepresenting that “300,000 bonds were alleged to be
looted by Russian soldiers in 1945” (another fabrication), and misrepresenting that
bondholders are “required” to send bonds to Germany, contrary to the United States
law, or contrary to applicable treaties on the bonds, and contrary the terms of the bearer
bonds which are payable to the bearer in New York, in order for bondholders to
“prove ownership” of the bond in 1945 outside Germany.
947.

Defendants are fraudulently “requiring” Plaintiffs and Class members to “jump

through hoops” which are artificial and false requirements and fraudulently concocted
by Defendants, and intended to confiscate or misappropriate the bonds or deny
redemption on the bonds sent to Germany or deny payment of the BEARER BONDS
for no legitimate reason. The Bearer bonds require NO “proof of ownership in 1945”.
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Plaintiffs and Class Members have been injured to their property or business, and

such injury was a result of or through the Defendants acquisition of an interest, or
control, or maintenance of an “enterprise” - that is separate from the injuries that
resulted from the “predicate” acts.
949.

Defendants have acquired and maintained, directly or indirectly, an interest or

control of the “Enterprise/s” herein, which affect interstate or foreign commerce, and
Defendants caused the implementation and operation of the “Enterprise/s” and its
“validation scheme” and the implementation and continued operation of fraudulent and
incompetent “Examining Agencies” in Germany - in such a manner as to artificially
prolong the default on the bonds, in order to infringe rights and increase redemption
costs and continue to fleece the bondholders and misappropriate their money and bonds,
and deprive the Plaintiffs and Class Members of due interest and principal on the bonds.
950.

Defendants have acquired and maintained, directly or indirectly, an interest or

control of the “Enterprise/s” herein, which affect interstate or foreign commerce, and in
order to conceal the Defendants’ wrongful actions, and to artificially impose conditions
and require arbitrary and capricious criteria for redemption and payment of the bonds in
Germany (such as being “Jewish”), when the Plaintiffs’ bonds are bearer bonds
payable in the United States, and are payable upon demand in the United States, and are
the unconditional obligations of Defendants as the obligors.
951.

As a result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, the Plaintiffs and Class Members

have been saddled with unredeemed and unpaid bonds which remain in default, and
Plaintiffs have incurred additional costs and debts relative to obtaining redemption
and/or payment of their bonds in Germany (such as Plaintiff Elfriede Korber having to
incur financial costs of about $100,000 USD in trying to meet the Defendants spurious
requirements). These injuries are distinct from the mail and wire fraud itself, and
injuries from the predicate acts.
952.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution of a
constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained by
Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of action,
and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
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FOURTH RICO CLAIM
Aiding and Abetting Liability 18 U.S.C. § 1962(e)

953.

Defendants are also liable for “aiding and abetting” the RICO violations and each

other, in the commission of crimes listed in section 1961(1), such as mail and wire
fraud, and this “aiding and abetting” is a “predicate offense” in of itself, upon which
RICO civil liability rests.
954.

Germany (can be likened to the “Godfather”) has brought about, and/or set in

motion the unlawful scheme to defraud and/or the “Corporation Banks” (other
members of the “Family”) who actively “aid and abet”, in the Rico violations .
955.

The enumerated “Persons” and/or Defendants herein did commit “predicate” acts

forming the RICO pattern of racketeering activity, including but not limited to, mail and
wire fraud, and or aided and abetted the participants of the “Enterprise/s”, and/or each
other, in infringing Plaintiffs’ rights, foreclosing redemption, and circumventing their
bond payment obligations - by Defendants’ omissions and commissions herein.
956.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.

FIFTH RICO CLAIM
Conspiracy - 18 U.S.C. §1962(d)
957.

Defendants conspired to violate 18 U.S.C. §1962 (a) and (b) and (c) and thereby

committed a distinct RICO violation of §Section 1962(d). Defendants agreed to
maintain an interest in or control of an “enterprise/s” or to conduct or participate in the
affairs of the “Enterprise/s” through a pattern of racketeering activity; and agreed that
someone would commit at least two predicate acts to accomplish those goals, or on
behalf of the conspiracy.
958.

The Defendants were at all relevant times “persons” and “associates-in-fact” in an

“international enterprise” and engaged in long-term and massive scheme to defraud
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Plaintiffs and Class Members and/or bondholders of their legitimate monies, payments
of interest and principal, due on their bonds.
959.

Defendants also associated with the “International Enterprise”, the “German

Domestic Enterprise”, the “Rheinelbe Union Bonds” Enterprise, the “Dawes Bonds”
Enterprise, the “Young Bonds” Enterprise, the “Free State of Bavaria Bonds”
Enterprise, “United Steel Works Corporation Bonds” Enterprise, and the “American
Domestic Enterprise” in a scheme to defraud Plaintiffs and Class Members.
960.

Each Defendant conspired to participate in the “enterprise/s” affairs through a

pattern of racketeering activity, specifically, acts of mail and wire fraud, in violation of
18 USC §1341, §1342,18 U.S.C. §1962 (a) and (b) and (c), all in violation of §1962(d).
961.

Even if there was not a “specific agreement” by a particular Defendant herein to

commit “two predicate acts”, the Defendant would still be liable under well-established
law for participating in the scheme to defraud and/or facilitating the endeavors which
constitute the substantive violations.
962.

Defendants each facilitated the illegal schemes described above, by devising, and/or

implementing decisions, and/or participating in them, and by their respective conduct.
963.

While the exact date of the agreement to participate in the “Enterprise/s” is not

ascertainable, Plaintiffs are not expected to present particularized allegations of
“internal structure” and “internal operations” and or “consensual decisions” that
occurred behind closed doors, - and such information is uniquely known to Defendants,
however, the mutual benefit and interdependence of the Defendants in the “International
Enterprise” support the inference of common purpose, common agreement and interest:
964.

It is readily apparent from the goals of the RICO conspiracy by Defendants to:
a. Use the mails and wires in a scheme to defraud and engage in a pattern of
racketeering activity to defraud bondholders and infringe Plaintiffs rights;
b. To unlawfully “prohibit” payments of interest and principal on the Plaintiffs’
and Class members’ bonds, and wrongfully “foreclose” or deny redemption.
c. Coordinate and implement a “marketing” strategy of Germany and the
“Corporation Banks” and “Examining agencies” to promulgate and promote a
false story of “looting of bonds by Russians in 1945” in order to “require” the
“validation scheme”; and deny redemption and “prohibit” payment of bearer
bonds; and impose artificial conditions on the bonds; and compel bondholders,
Plaintiffs and Class Members to “go to Germany” for redemption and payment - when the bonds are in fact - Bearer Bonds payable in the United States with
203

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 204 of 241

the redemption and paying agents and trustees in New York and are
unconditional obligations - which Defendants should simply honor their
obligations under the bonds and pay ;
d. Increasing costs and expenses for Plaintiffs to obtain redemption and payment of
the bonds, that would not otherwise be there - but for the Defendants’ Rico
violations. For example, Plaintiff Elfriede Korber, has spent/lost about
$100,000 USD, in attempting to get her bonds redeemed and paid large amounts
in attempting to meet the spurious requirements of Germany and Defendants
under the fraudulent “validation” scheme. See Declaration of Elfriede Korber
(Document 42-2, filed 02/04/2009, incorporated by reference herein);
e. Scheme to Defraud bondholders out of interest and principal on the bonds;
f. Maximize Defendants’ profits by non-payment of the money they owe to
Plaintiffs and Class Members - and make more money by foreclosing the
redemption process and avoiding payment according to the terms of the debts;
g. Promote and maintain the fraudulent “Examining Agencies”, who are not
competent for the purpose of “validation”; and effectively foreclose redemption;
h. Deceive the plaintiffs and bondholders and class members and the public and the
courts about the necessity of a “validation” scheme or existence of “Validation
Boards” when in reality, are obsolete “Validation Boards” and defunct process;
i. Conceal the fraud of the “Examining Agencies” that are incompetent and
misappropriate bonds and deny redemption for no legitimate reason;
j. Conceal the real worth of the bonds, and conceal the redemption-worthiness and
value of the bonds when the bonds are bearer bonds that require no “proof of
ownership” in 1945, and keep unjust enrichment of Defendants.
965.

And this conspiracy cannot be accomplished without concerted action - as

demonstrated by Defendants filing jointly a Motion and Reply brief in this court containing false statements or misrepresentations in a judicial document about the
“existence” of “Validation Board” in Germany where actually none exist in order
defraud plaintiffs and bondholders into believing that “Validation” is “necessary and
possible” in Germany when it is NOT necessary and NOT possible to validate bonds in
Germany.
966.

Even the Pruftselle fur Auslandsbonds in Berlin conceded in May 2009, that the

“Examining Agency” cannot “validate” bonds and no “Validation Boards” exist.
However, the Prufstelle falsely added that “bonds were looted” and that “no one can file
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a lawsuit in the United States for payment of bonds without ‘validation’ which had to be
via court in Germany” which statements are misrepresentations and misleading.
967.

This mail and wire fraud was agreed to by Defendants who all signed their Joint

motion (27 March 2009, Document 62) and Reply brief (8 May 2009, Document 67)
and used the mail and wire in a scheme to defraud and to make false and misleading
statements and to fabricate facts to fit their arguments in their motion. And to
accomplish the goals of the conspiracy. The Defendants’ individual, and/or coordinated
actions, viewed in context of the activities, support the inference of the conspiratorial
agreement, and constitute racketeering acts in furtherance of affairs of the Enterprise.
968.

Each Defendant participated in the predicate acts and/or each Defendant knowingly

facilitated the activities of the Enterprise and the “operators” and “managers” of the
Enterprises and agreed to commit such acts to further the goals of the conspiracy.
969.

Furthermore, there is no pleading obligation as to the exact dates as to when

Defendants entered into agreements to participate in the predicate acts or the
Enterprises, and the terms of such agreement. A conspiratorial agreement can be
express, or it can be inferred from, words, actions and the interdependence of the
Defendants herein and common purpose and common interest in defrauding Plaintiffs
and avoiding their multi-billion dollar liability.
970.

The complaint contains detailed factual allegations as to the relationships and

interdependence between the Defendants and their roles and common purpose and
predicate acts to achieve the goals of the conspiracy, even viewed in the context of the
documents filed in this case by Defendants and coordinated joint action of submitting
fraudulent statements about the existence of “Validation Board” where none exists,
provide more than adequate foundation for a conspiratorial agreement to be inferred.
971.

The Plaintiffs may sue co-conspirators for violations of §1962(d) even if such co-

conspirators, did not, themselves, violate Section 1962(a), (b), (c).
972.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
205

Case 1:08-cv-06254

Document 82

Filed 09/17/2009

Page 206 of 241

SIXTH RICO CLAIM
Injunctive and/or Equitable Relief Authorized by RICO - §1964(a)
973.

In addition to monetary damages, RICO also confers standing on a civil plaintiff to

obtain equitable relief. Section 1964(a) of the RICO Act states:
“The District Courts of the United States shall have jurisdiction to prevent
and restrain violations of section 1962 of this chapter by issuing appropriate
orders, including but not limited to: ordering any person to divest himself of
any interest, direct or indirect, in any enterprise; imposing reasonable
restrictions on the future activities or investments of any person, including
but not limited to prohibiting any person from engaging in the same type of
endeavor as the enterprise engaged in, the activities of which affect
interstate or foreign commerce, or ordering dissolution or reorganization of
any enterprise, making due provisions for innocent persons”.
974.

Plaintiffs request equitable relief pursuant to Section 1964(a) of the RICO statute,

and the Court’s authority for injunctive or other equitable relief also found in the
Court’s inherent power to grant such relief, and the Court’s general equitable powers.
975.

Given the expansive language of the RICO statute and §1964(a) that this Court

“prevent and restrain” the Defendants’ RICO violations and therefore it is proper for the
Court to grant Plaintiffs appropriate equitable relief to protect the rights of the innocent
bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class Members.
976.

Germany ad Defendants circulate bogus, misleading, false and fraudulent letters,

documents containing misrepresentations, and/or leaflets about alleged “swindles”
relative to “looted” bonds – in order to intimidate bondholders that they will be
prosecuted or investigated by the police or FBI, if they choose to make their legitimate
claims, in order to cause forfeiture of claims, to obtain bondholders property by
extortion and/or deceit, and/or to improperly portray bondholders as “swindlers”. See
e.g. Email sent by Julius Kimmle to Plaintiffs’ counsel in March 2006, attached herein,
Defendants and made various misrepresentations through the mails and wires, targeting
bondholders seeking to redeem their bonds, and/or to officials, and courts and
regulatory agencies, and lying to Congress, the public, and plaintiffs.
977.

The Defendants RICO violations have injured Plaintiffs and Class members in their

business or property, and also arise from the fact of the increased costs Plaintiffs have
expended (that would not be there but for the Rico violations) for redeeming their bonds
and obtaining payment, and from the fact that Plaintiffs have not received the principal
and interest due to them for their bonds and have been deprived of their money which is
being unjustly withheld by Defendants, and the Plaintiffs remain with unredeemed and
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unpaid bonds whose real worth and value has been concealed and understated by
Defendants and/or improperly devalued due to Defendants actions, misconduct, default,
breaches of contract and fiduciary duties, fraud and by reason of the Defendants Rico
violations, and all this has caused injury to the business and property of bondholders.
978.

Plaintiffs have already sustained real pecuniary losses, including out of pocket

expenses imposed by Defendants illegal actions and violations. These increased costs
and losses to Plaintiffs would not have occurred but for Defendants misconduct as
described herein, and the financial losses and problems with redemption of the bonds
and “prohibitive costs” for obtaining payment to Plaintiffs were caused by Defendants
Rico violations and acts of mail and wire fraud.
979.

The equitable remedy of disgorgement allows the court to take away any ill gotten

gains and profits earned by Defendants as a result of the wrongful violations of RICO
and Defendants concerted scheme to defraud American investors and international
investors, and ongoing pattern of racketeering activity and mail and wire fraud, yielding
billions of dollars for Defendants, and Defendants have misappropriated billions of
dollars from Plaintiffs and Class members relative to the bonds and “validation schemes
and denial of redemption and payment, and Plaintiffs have lost substantial money,
principal and interest and suffered real pecuniary harm in astronomical proportions.
980.

Defendants have improperly withheld redemption and payment of the bonds, and

have concealed the material facts, and made false misrepresentations to Plaintiffs, Class
members, the courts, financial regulators, Congress, and the violative practices of “mail
and wire fraud” pose a significant threat to continue into the future.
981.

The Plaintiffs rights to seek equitable relief is consistent with the Section 1964(a)

and the statutory directive that RICO be liberally construed to effectuate its purposes.
Injunctive relief, as well as equitable relief such as restitution are properly included in
civil remedies for RICO violations.
982.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,

damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
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COUNT XVIII
DAMAGES FOR VIOLATIONS OF INTERNATIONAL LAW
BREACH OF TREATY OBLIGATIONS
BREACH OF THE 1952 VALIDATION LAW AND/OR
BREACH OF THE SECOND IMPLEMENTING ORDINANCE 1953 AND/OR
BREACH OF THE AGREEMENT ON GERMAN EXTERNAL DEBT 1953
BREACH OF THE UNITED NATIONS CHARTER 1945
BREACH OF THE VIENNA CONVENTION ON TREATIES 1969
BREACH OF THE EUROPEAN CONVENTION ON HUMAN RIGHTS
Against Germany and its Agents and All Defendants
983.

Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of

the preceding paragraphs herein this Complaint.
984.

The Federal Republic of Germany, and related entities, such as Deutsche

Bundesbank, German Finance Ministry, and the various German “Examining Agencies”
for “validation” of bonds, and the other Defendants, and others known or unknown, have
violated International Law by failing to redeem and pay the bonds according to the terms
of the bonds, including the “gold clauses”, and by breaching the 1953 Treaty, and by
defaulting on payment of the debts owed to Plaintiffs and Class Members, as the Dawes
and Young bonds were issued under international contracts and/or under the Hague
Agreement.
985.

Pursuant to the Encyclopedia of the United Nations and International Agreements,

2 nd Edition, 1990, page 459, “International Law Principals postulated in 1944…The text
of the Principals served as a basis for the American Draft of the UN Charter.” The Text
as follows. Principal 1: Each State has a legal duty to carry out in good faith its
obligations under international law, and may not invoke limitations contained in its own
constitution or laws as an excuse for a failure to perform its duty…” and Principal 10:
Each State has a legal duty to refrain from entering into any agreement with another
State, the performance of which would be inconsistent with the discharge of its duties
under general international law.”
986.

Moreover, The Report of the Committee for the Study of International Loan

Contracts, prepared by the League of Nations in Geneva on May 12, 1939, states on
page 15 that “..Gold clauses are legally inexpungible.” The Treaty of Versailles
recognized “gold clauses” as appropriate and just and references to gold are found in
many international agreements. See e.g. Art. 262 of the Versailles Peace Treaty (1919).
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In 1945 in San Francisco, was signed, by the founding members, including the

United States, the Charter of the United Nations, and in Chapter I, Article 1, and
Germany became a Member State of the United Nations in 1973, and Article 1 of the
U.N. Charter states one of the main purposes of the United Nations, under Point 3 is to:
“achieve international cooperation in solving international problems of an economic,
social, cultural, or humanitarian nature, and in promoting and encouraging respect for
human rights and for fundamental freedoms for all, without distinction as to race, sex,
language, or religion.”
988.

In the Preamble of the United Nations Charter, it states several points, including but

not limited to that “We the Peoples of the United Nations Determined”, “to establish
conditions under which justice and respect for the obligations arising from treaties and
other sources of international law can be maintained, and”…
989.

Pursuant to the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties, 1969, United Nations

Treaty Series, Vol. 115, P. 331, treaties are given effect according to the plain language
of the treaty and intentions of the parties therein. Germany agreed to “eliminate” or “end
the status of default” on the bonds and pay the bondholders such as Plaintiffs and Class
Members, and that was the primary objective of the 1953 Treaty on German External
Debt and related Agreements, and Germany accepted liability by treaty, and reiterated
and confirmed liability by letter of its Chancellor Konrad Adenauer to the Allied High
Commission and Germany has an obligation to repay the principal and interest owing to
bondholders and to meet its obligations and redeem the bonds and pay the private debts
owed to Plaintiffs and Class Members pursuant to the terms of the bonds.
990.

Article 31 of the Vienna Convention 1969 states that: 1. “A treaty shall be

interpreted in good faith, in accordance with the ordinary meaning to be given to the
terms of the treaty in their context and in light of its object and purpose.
991.

And Article 31 of the Vienna Convention 1969 further states that: 2. “The context for

the purpose of the interpretation of the treaty shall comprise, in addition to the text,
including its preamble and annexes: (a) any agreement relating to the treaty which was
made between the parties in connection with the conclusion of the treaty…, and (b) any
instrument which was made by one or more of the parties in connection to the conclusion
of the treaty and accepted by the other parties as an instrument related to the treaty.
992.

Defendants are responsible and liable for the ongoing Default and Failure to Pay

the Bonds of Plaintiffs and Class members, according to the clear and unequivocal
terms of the debts and bonds.
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Germany consented to be bound by the Agreement on German External Debt

1953 (previously attached to the First Amended Complaint – Document , and
incorporated by reference herein) and Germany acknowledged the inequitable situation
of default, and expressed its categorical intention, and explicit desire, and agreement to
“end the status of default”, and Germany formally acceded to the Treaty which came
into force generally 16 September 1953, and this is the “best evidence … of the parties’
intent.” See United States v. Stuart, 489 U.S. 353, 372, 109 S.Ct. 1183, 103 L.Ed.2d
388 (1989); Avero Belgium Insurance v. American Airlines, Inc., 423 F.3d 73 (2d Cir.
2005). See Letter by Chancellor Konrad Adenauer accepting Germany’s liability for
the external debt and desire to resume payments on bonds (Doc. 65-10, incorporated).
994.

GERMANY, and the GERMAN government and its agencies herein, formally

stated their intentions, and accepted and agreed to pay for the bonds, and formally
recognized their contractual obligations to pay the debts on the defaulted bonds, and
for that principal purpose entered the Agreement on German External Debt 1953,
which states in the PREAMBLE: “CONSIDERING that, for about twenty years,
payments on German external debts have not, in general, conformed to the
contractual terms, that from 1939 to 1945 the existence of a state of war prevented any
payments from being made with respect to many of such debts, that since 1945 such
payments have been generally suspended, and that the Federal Republic of Germany
desires to put an end to this situation.”
995.

The Agreement on German External Debt 1953, ANNEX II stated that: AGREED

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE SETTLEMENT OF MEDIUM AND LONG
TERM DEBTS RESULTING FROM PRIVATE CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS –
Article 1 – Introductory “This Agreement establishes terms and procedures which are
to govern the settlement of the debts described in Article III below. The Agreement
does not in itself modify the terms of the debts to which it applies (emphasis added).
Rather it is contemplated that new contracts will be entered into between each debtor
and his creditors pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.”
996.

The Plain language of the Agreement is that it applied to those creditors that

accepted the settlement of the London Debt Accord 1953 under “ARTICLE 15,
ACCEPTANCE BY CREDITORS”, which sets forth the methods of acceptance of the
settlement terms by a creditor who must voluntarily submit the old bonds and/or
coupons – for exchange or enfacement or “validation” pursuant to settlement offer.
The “Acceptance” by the creditor of the offer was a condition precedent to the
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exchange and submission of his/her bonds to the “validation” scheme. The nonassenting bondholders were protected and their right for redemption and payment,
pursuant to explicit terms of the original bearer bonds, was not abrogated by the treaty.
997.

Article 31 of the Vienna Convention 1969 further states that: 3. There shall be taken

into account together with the context: (a) any subsequent agreement between the parties
regarding the interpretation of the treaty or the application of its provisions; (b) any
subsequent practice in the application of the treaty which establishes the agreement of
the parties regarding its interpretation; (c) any relevant rules of international law
applicable in the relations between the parties.
998.

Germany has violated numerous Articles of the Vienna Convention on the Law of

Treaties. Germany has violated international law and the Treaties including the 1953
Agreement on German External Debt and Second Implementing Ordinance in that
Germany has violated the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties as follows:
999.

Article 26 (“Pacta sunt Servanda”) which states that “Every treaty in force is binding

upon the parties to it, and must be performed by them in good faith.” Germany has
demonstrated bad faith and refused to cooperate with Plaintiffs and Class Members in
order to meet Germany’s obligations to “end the status of default” on the bonds, and
Germany has deceived bondholders and Plaintiffs and Class members and other bona
fide purchasers or holders in due course, and Germany has stolen and confiscated or
tampered with, perforated, and rendered void bearer bonds sent to it for “validation”, and
failed to provide proper redemption and payment procedures.
1000. Furthermore, Germany and Defendants have denied fair redemption and payment
procedures and have failed to provide the proper information and failed to institute the
secure and reliable mechanisms for the redemption and payment of the bonds, and have
continued the “status of default”, and deceived Congress, and public officials, and courts
and representatives of bondholders with false stories of “looting” of bonds by Russians
and have engaged in racketeering activity and mail and wire fraud.
1001. Article 27 (Internal law and observance of treaties) which states that “A party may
not invoke the provisions of its internal law as justification for its failure to perform the
treaty. This rule is without prejudice to Article 46.” Germany has improperly invoked
its internal laws as justification for failure to perform the treaty obligations, and to limit
the ability of bondholders to exercise their rights to redemption and payment of the
bonds, in order to deter and avoid redemption and payment of the bonds of Plaintiffs and
Class members and bondholders, and to circumvent the 1953 Treaty objectives and to
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circumvent Germany’s obligation to “eliminate the status of default on the bonds” and to
refrain from making payments by imposing a spurious and fraudulent “validation”
scheme, and not to redeem and pay the Plaintiffs and Class members bonds’ and to pay
the principal and interest according to the terms of the debts.
1002. Article 18 which states in relevant part that: “A State is obliged to refrain from acts
which would defeat the object and purpose of a treaty when: (a) it has signed the treaty
or….” Germany has committed various acts designed to defeat the object and purpose of
the 1953 Treaty and London Debt Accord, including but not limited to, for example,
Germany fabricated the story of “Russian soldiers looting of bonds” and shut down the
“Validation Board” in the United States to compel bondholders registration by certain
date and to force Plaintiffs and Class Members to go to fraudulent and incompetent
“Examining Agencies” or to court in Germany to obtain payment, and be subjugated to
biased German agents, and/or German laws which conflict with the Plaintiffs and Class
Members’ constitutional right to jury and to due process, and discovery, and where no
procedural and substantive safeguards exist similar to US law.
1003. Plaintiffs and Class members are not required by law to submit to unfair procedures
in a language they do not understand, as this is contrary to the explicit terms of the 1953
Treaty and contrary to the language of the bonds which were sold in the United States,
denominated in gold dollars, redeemable and collectible and payable to the bearer in
New York, and subject to United States laws, and federal courts.
1004. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 USC §1331 - in that Plaintiffs make
claims against Defendants pursuant to federal law, and “federal question” jurisdiction
exists, and to the extent that federal law incorporates the law of nations and/or
customary international law and/or jus cogens, and, incorporates the international
treaties enforceable as the supreme law of the land under the United States
Constitution, and as federal common law.
1005. Plaintiff Elfriede Korber and/or her family and/or her predecessors are holocaust
victims and/or legally entitled to make claims for the property lost to the German
occupying forces and under the Hitler Regime, in the former Czechoslovakia, and
combined into the treasury of the Nazi Germany. The looting and conversion process
by the German Reich and Nazi soldiers was institutionalized, and Plaintiff Elfriede
Korber and/or her family or predecessors lost property and/or lost personal belongings
and fled to the United States and eventually settled in Chicago, Illinois.
1006. All Plaintiffs claims involve claims for torts and breaches and violations of the
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applicable international treaties such as the Agreement on German External Debt 1953
and Second Implementing Ordinance 1953 and Agreement on Certain Matters Arising
from the Validation of 1953 by Defendants.
1007. Plaintiffs assert claims for torts and breaches that involve Defendants’ violations of
the law of nations and customary international norms condemning the practice of
wrongful misappropriation of property and conversion under the Hague Convention
1907, the Treaty of Versailles 1919, the Holocaust Victims Redress Act of 1998 (Pub.
L No. 105-508, 112 Stat. 15, 1998), and Plaintiffs assert claims for torts, equitable
and/or declaratory relief in violation of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights
(U.N. G.A. Respondent 217(III 1948) International Covenant on Civil and Political
Rights, 999 U.N.T.S. 171 (December 16, 1966), International Declaration Concerning
the Laws and Customs of War, adopted by the Conference of Brussels, Aug. 27, 1874,
reprinted, (1907) 1 Am.Jur.Int.L. Supp. 96; and Protocol No. 1 to the European
Convention on the Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms (Mar.20, 1952, 213
U.N.T.S. 262, E.T.S.9); Multilateral Declaration on Forced Transfers of Property in
Enemy Controlled Territory of 1943, 943 U.S.T. LEXIS 188, 3 Bevans 754;
Multilateral Gold Policy of 1944, 1944 U.S.T. LEXIS 149, 3 Bevans 889; Customary
International Principles of International Law Recognized in the Charter of the
Nuremberg Tribunal, G.A. Res. 95(I), UNGAOR, 1 st Ses, 188, UN Doc. A/236 (1947).
1008. The European Convention on Human Rights, Protocol No. 1 – guarantees the
property rights of individuals and states that “Every natural or legal person is entitled
to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. No one shall be deprived of his
possessions…” Germany, a member of the European community has accepted and
adopted this ECHR and Protocol No. 1, and is bound by its terms and obligations.
Germany, and Defendants, must respect the Plaintiffs rights to “peacefully enjoy their
possessions”, i.e. the bonds, and the rights to payment under the bonds - of principal
and interest. Germany/Defendants have deprived the Plaintiffs and Class Members of
their fundamental rights to “peaceful enjoyment of their possessions” and deprived the
Plaintiffs of their possessions, bonds and/or money payments under the bonds.
1009.

By refusing redemption and payment of the Plaintiff’s bonds, Defendants have

deprived Plaintiffs and Class Members, such as Elfriede Korber, who is a European
citizen, of the use and enjoyment of their property and deprived Class members of the
money, principal and interest owing under the bonds. Defendants and Germany
breached the ECHR and denied Plaintiffs’ property rights.
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1010. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
COUNT XIX
VIOLATIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT 1933 AND
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT 1934
Against all Defendants
1011. Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of
the preceding paragraphs herein this Complaint.
1012. Defendants Germany and the redemption and paying agents and trustees on bonds
are liable for violations of the anti-fraud provisions of the United States Securities Laws.
1013. Plaintiffs have violated state and federal Securities laws, in that among other
things: Defendants employed manipulative and/or deceptive devices in a scheme to
defraud plaintiffs/class members, and/or engaged in acts which operate/d as a fraud,
and/or made untrue statements of material fact, and/or omitted statements of material
fact so as make the statements not misleading, in connection with the bonds, relative to
validity and/or value and/or redemption procedure and/or payment criteria of the
bonds, and did so by negligent or unlawful means and/or by use of any means or
instrumentality of interstate commerce, or mails or facilities of the national exchange
in violation of the common laws and/or US Securities laws or international laws.
1014. The allegations herein by Plaintiffs encompass Defendants’ violations of Section
10(b) - (15 U.S.C. §78j(b)), and violations of SEC Rule 10b-5 of the Securities
Exchange Act 1934, (17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5); and violations of Section 17 , such as
§17(a) – (15 U.S.C. §77q(a)) of the Securities Act of 1933, and/or other anti-fraud
provisions of US Securities laws. And the fraud affected Plaintiff/Class Members,
and/or the market as a whole. In Illinois, (815 ILCS 5/12) mirrors Rule 10b-5, and
Illinois law also states it is a violation to sign or circulate any document pertaining to
any security knowing a material representation therein is untrue (§12.H). The alleged
violations of securities laws subjects the Defendants to various civil penalties under
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Section 20(d) of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. §77t(d)) and Section 21(d) of the
Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78u(d)). The allegations also encompass Defendants
violations of Section 11 and 12 of the 1933 Act based on negligent acts by Defendants.
1015. Defendants are liable as “control person/s” and/or for “aiding and abetting”
liability. To the extent that Defendants may try to limit their liability by means of
fictitious forms, or ambiguous corporate structures, or configurations, or other agents
or entities, the Defendants have control person liability, or vicarious liability, as they
willfully and culpably participated in the fraudulent scheme, and controlled the primary
violators, and/or acted in bad faith, and/or aided and abetted the fraud or breaches,
and/or acted to induce the fraud or breaches, whether directly or indirectly, and/or had
knowledge of the fraud or breaches, and did not prevent the wrongdoing.”
1016. Defendants have, singly or in concert with others, directly or indirectly, in
connection with the offer or sale of securities, or bonds, and by use of the mails,
employed devices and schemes to defraud, made untrue statements of material fact and
omitted to state material facts necessary to make statements made not misleading, and
engaged in acts practices which operate as fraud, not misleading, defrauded
bondholders in violation of the securities laws.
1017. Defendants Germany, and its related agencies, Commerzbank, JP Morgan Chase,
Citibank, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon, Mizuho, Schroders, Credit Suisse,
Deutsche Bank, Deutsche Bank/Bankers Trust, and others, named or not, known, or
unknown, have deceived investors and bondholders with numerous misrepresentations
and omissions, concerning the German gold bonds, such as by misrepresenting to
Plaintiffs (and the court) in letters , faxes, emails and documents (Joint Reply Brief,
filed May 8, 2009, Document 67, Page) filed in these proceedings that, among other
things, the “Validation Board exists in the Federal Republic of Germany” (when it
clearly does not) to induce bondholders to send ORIGINAL bonds and coupons, to
Germany’s incompetent “Examining Agencies” or “Zivilkamers” - where the bonds
will be converted, misappropriated, damaged, lost, the serial numbers added to a
mythical “bad list”, confiscated, disappear, be tampered with, voided, marked
inappropriately, and denied redemption and denied payment for no legitimate reason,
by further false statements, by Germany and Defendants mentioned above, that such as
bonds had been “looted” and/or “mandated validation” before enforcement.
1018. On May 11, 2009, the BADV in Berlin squarely refuted Defendants
misrepresentations, which were designed to deceive Plaintiffs and the court, and
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submitted in an effort by Defendants’ counsel to obtain dismissal of the case, and
BADV, Ms. Ingrid Jaeger, stated there are “Validation Boards are NO MORE”.
1019. Letter by Commerzbank through Tishler and Wald to Plaintiffs’ counsel dated also
misrepresenting that Validation Board is the BADV. Letter by JP Morgan through its
counsel to Plaintiffs’ counsel in Belgium that BADV is the Validation Board.
1020. Letter by Deutsche Bank through its counsel that they will not provide any
information relative to the redemption and paying agents except through filings in
court due to “Plaintiffs decision to seek his enforcement of their rights in court.
1021. Defendants have also stated that the bonds “must be submitted to Examining
Agency”, and that is a false statement as bonds may be submitted to a “Validation
Board” within the territorial jurisdiction of the United States or authority “competent”
for the purpose in the Federal Republic. The Examining Agency has already admitted
it is incompetent and cannot “validate” bonds, and therefore is not competent authority
for the purpose of “validation”, and that a court procedure is necessary. Germany and
Defendants have failed to fulfill their obligations to “validate” or to redeem and pay for
the Plaintiffs’ bonds according to the terms of the bonds or the applicable treaties.
1022. Plaintiffs and bondholders have not had their bonds redeemed or paid and
Defendants have failed to provide meaningful redemption and payment procedures.
1023. The Agreement on German External Debt and Second Implementing Ordinance are
signed by nations, and the private banks are not signatories to the agreement - and the
banks are bound by the terms of the bonds as redemption and paying agents and
trustees. The Defendants-Banks have stated that “NO one” can take action in the
United States on bonds under the treaty, when this is not true. Even the President of
the United States Dwight D. Eisenhower stated “the agreement does not nullify the
legal rights of creditors, and their right to sue in Non-German courts is not impaired.”
1024. Defendants have failed to redeem the bonds and pay the bondholders interest and
principal and they have enriched themselves at the expense of Plaintiffs, class
members, and/or bondholders. This intentional fraud directed to Plaintiffs and the
court, and these allegations by Plaintiffs encompass Defendants’ violations of Section
SEC Rule 10b-5 of the Securities Exchange Act 1934, and violations of Section 17 ,
such as of the Securities Act of 1933, and/or other anti-fraud provisions of US
Securities laws. The fraud affected Plaintiff/Class Members, and/or market as a whole.
1025. In Illinois, (815 ILCS 5/12) mirrors Rule 10b-5, and Illinois law also states it is a
violation to sign or circulate any document pertaining to any security knowing a
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material representation therein is untrue (§12.H). Defendants are circulating letters
with false statements about “looting of bonds” and false statements regarding
“Validation Board, or “Validation” requirements, and false statements understating the
“worth” or “value” of the bonds, and false statements regarding the “unenforceability
of the bonds, all to the detrimental reliance and injury to bondholders who have been
deprived of proper validation procedures and denied redemption and denied payment
on their bearer bonds for no legitimate reason.
1026. For example, Letter by Deutsche Bundesbank - regarding “worthlessness” of bonds
due to “insufficient proof of ownership”. Letter by Commerzbank regarding
“invalidity”, and “worthless” bonds, and yet “only course left open is precautionary
application under Article 52 for compensation.” The false statements were intended to
deceive and deter Plaintiffs/Class from pursuing claims.
1027. Defendants still retain hundreds of millions of dollars of Plaintiffs’ and Class
members bonds in accounts they control and are unjustly being enriched at the expense
of Plaintiffs and bondholders.
1028. The alleged misconduct are in violation of securities laws, and this misconduct and
course of business and fraudulent practices subjects the Defendants to various civil
penalties under Section 20(d) of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. §77t(d)) and Section
21(d) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78u(d)).
1029. The bonds are securities as defined by the section 2(1) of the Securities Act and
section 3(a)(10) of the Exchange Act. Defendants have, directly or indirectly, made
use of the means or instruments of transportation and communication, and the means
or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, and or of the mails, in connection with the
transactions, acts practices, course of business alleged herein.
1030. To the extent that Defendants may try to limit their liability by means of fictitious
forms, or ambiguous corporate structures, or configurations, or other agents or entities,
the Defendants have control person liability, or vicarious liability, as they willfully and
culpably participated in the fraudulent scheme, and controlled the primary violators,
and/or acted in bad faith, and/or aided and abetted the fraud or breaches, or deceit upon
bondholders, Plaintiffs and Class members, and/or acted to induce the fraud or
breaches, whether directly or indirectly, and/or had knowledge of the fraud or
breaches, and did not prevent the wrongdoing.
1031. The elaborate scheme to defraud by Defendants is to disavow responsibility for the
bonds (when Germany has already accepted liability) and to deceive bondholders as to
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the value of the bonds and impose a fraudulent process of validation with defunct
Validation Boards or incompetent Examining Agencies.
1032. Defendants have omitted material facts and refused to respond to request for
information from Plaintiffs and bondholders and Class members. Defendants have
done nothing to provide information as to WHO is responsible for handling bonds
redemption and payment at their institutions? Who is the expert that “examines” bonds
at the examining agency? And what is his/her expertise in bond authentication? What
is the insurance policy to cover loss or damage to bonds sent to Germany, there is
none, or no information has been provided, no safekeeping measures. See Letters by
Plaintiffs seeking information, March 12, 2009 (Document 65-4, filed 04/10/2009,
incorporated by reference herein).
1033. The Defendants materially omit and fraudulently conceal critical information and
fail to respond and foreclose redemption and abuse “validation” process - and the
failure to redeem and pay the bonds as originally intended amounts to breach and
fraud.
1034. As part and furtherance of the intentional scheme to defraud, Defendants prepared
disseminated and used letters to Plaintiffs, and telephone communications or faxes, and
documents in court, and leaflets, and correspondence, and oral misrepresentations,
which contained untrue statements of material facts, and which omitted to state
material facts, necessary to make the statements made not misleading. Defendants
chose not to disclose the “looting” of bonds story was hypothetical, or conjecture, and
chose to falsely insist on the “worthlessness” of bonds, and on the false requirements
of “validation” with obsolete or incorrect and improper “validation boards” or defunct
and incompetent examining agencies; to the detrimental reliance of Plaintiffs.
1035. With respect to the violations of Section 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act, the
Defendants were negligent in their actions, regarding the representations and omissions
alleged herein. With respect to violations of Section 17(A) (1) , the Defendants made
the above-referenced misrepresentations and omissions, knowingly, intentionally, or
with extreme disregard and severe reckless regarding the truth.
1036. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have violated and unless enjoined, will
continue to violate Section (17(a) of the Securities Act.
1037. Defendants directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in connection
with the purchase or sale of securities, by use of the means and instrumentalities of
interstate commerce and/or by use of the mails, or national exchange, have ((a)
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employed manipulative and/or deceptive devices in a scheme to defraud plaintiffs/class
members, and/or engaged in acts which operate/d as a fraud, (b) and/or made untrue
statements of material fact, and/or omitted statements of material fact so as make the
statements made not misleading, in connection with the bonds, relative to validity
and/or value and/or redemption procedure and/or payment criteria of the bonds, (c)
engaged in acts, practices, and course of business which operate as fraud, upon
purchasers, bondholders, plaintiffs and class members and other persons., and did so
intentionally, or by negligent or unlawful means in violation of the common laws, or
US Securities laws or Illinois, or New York, or international laws.
1038. As part and furtherance of the intentional scheme to defraud, Defendants prepared
disseminated and used in letters and documents in court, and leaflets to bondholders
and Plaintiffs via correspondence, and oral misrepresentations, which contained untrue
statements of material facts. Defendants omitted to state material facts, necessary to
make their statements made not misleading, and failed to state that the “looting” of
bonds was fabricated, and/or hypothetical, or conjecture, and failed to inform Plaintiffs
of their right of redemption and payment directly in the United States, without resort to
Germany or its bogus “validation” scheme or “incompetent” agencies, and failed to
provide redemption and payment information at their respective institutions pursuant to
the terms of the bonds, and failed to disclose the true worth of the bonds.
1039. Defendants made the misrepresentations and omissions knowingly or with extreme
disregard or recklessness as to the truth, to the detrimental reliance of Plaintiffs.
1040. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants violated, and unless enjoined, will continue
to violate Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act 1934, and SEC Rule 10b-5.
1041. As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANTS actions or omissions, wrongs,
fraud, negligence, reckless disregard of the truth, breaches of fiduciary duty or bad
faith, and/or unjust enrichment, Plaintiffs have suffered monetary and other damages.
1042. Alternatively, Defendants have violated Sections 11 and Sections 12(a)(2) of the
Securities Act 1933, as Defendants had a duty of care to be truthful in their oral
communications and statements relative to the bonds, and Defendants acted negligently
and breached their duties of care and duties under Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities
Act 1933, and/or Defendants made material omissions and misrepresentations in
written, or oral communications, and/or registration statements, and/or prospectuses,
relative to the bonds, and Defendants have caused losses and damages to Plaintiffs,
and/or depreciation in the value of the bonds resulting from the untruths and omissions.
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1043. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiff /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
COUNT XX
DAMAGES FOR VIOLATIONS OF
THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE
Against All Defendants
1044. Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of
the preceding paragraphs herein this Complaint.
1045. Defendants are aware beyond doubt that Plaintiffs’ bonds are bearer bonds - and
as such no “proof of ownership” is required - as under the Uniform Commercial Code
(UCC) which is honored worldwide and the United States, and Illinois (810 ILCS 5),
and New York current holders of the German gold bearer bonds, as “bona fide
purchasers” and/or good faith “holders in due course” have the full right and title to
these bonds and have the right to pursue their claims regardless of whether the bonds
were “looted” by “Russian soldiers in 1945”.
1046. Defendants’ false statements or concocted story of “bad list” of “looted” bonds and
the artificial conditions imposed by Defendants in the “validation scheme”, and by the
“Examining Agencies” and Defendants - that Plaintiffs as “bearers” of “bearer bonds”
are required to “prove ownership in 1945” before redemption and payment - violates
the Uniform Commercial Code.
1047. U.C.C. Article 1 – General Provisions – Part 2, § 1-201 (5) states that: “Bearer”
means the person in possession of an instrument, document title, or certificated
security payable to bearer, or indorsed in blank. Here the plaintiffs are the “bearers”
and the persons in possession of the bonds which are “payable to the bearer”.
“Possession is the law” and “possession is the proof” and Plaintiffs are not required by
law or the Uniform Commercial Code to “prove ownership of the bonds in 1945
outside Germany” prior to obtaining validation, redemption and payment, and
bondholders can proceed to enforce the terms of the bonds in US Federal courts.
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1048. 810 ILCS 5/8-102(2), Illinois Uniform Commercial Code, Revised Article 8,
Investment Securities states that: “Bearer form” as applied to a certificated security,
means a form in which the security is payable to the bearer of the certificate according
to its terms, not by reason of an endorsement.
1049. UCC – Article 1 - §1-201(19 states that: “Good faith” means honesty in fact in the
conduct or transaction concerned.
1050.

Section 8-301 - Uniform Commercial Code states:

“A bona fide purchaser is ‘a purchaser for value, in good faith and without notice of
any adverse claim’.
“The most common situation in which a bona fide purchaser will assert his rights is
with respect to lost or stolen securities. If a stolen security is delivered to a bona fide
purchaser, the bona fide purchaser will prevail against even the ‘true owner’. In other
words, the bona fide purchaser, like the holder in due course, acquires good title to a
security even though the transfer was wrongful and made by a party who had voidable
title to the security. This also means that the transfer of a stolen security by a bona fide
purchaser does not breach the warranty that a transfer was effective and rightful.”
Section 8-301:02 Uniform Commercial Code – Rights of a bona fide purchaser Investment Securities, Article 8, P. 184.
1051. Section 8-302 of the Uniform Commercial Code states that: “Although section
8-301 enumerates the rights of a bona fide purchaser, the term is defined in §8-302:
To be a bona fide purchaser, one must be: (1) a purchaser, (2) for value, (3) in good
faith, (4) without notice of any adverse claim, (5) who takes delivery of a security in
bearer form or in registered form issued to him or endorsed to him or in blank…Of
course even if the purchaser is not a bona fide purchaser, he may be ‘sheltered’ to the
rights of a bona fide purchaser under Section 8-301. Section 8-302:02 Uniform
Commercial Code - General – Investment Securities, Article 8, P. 195.
1052. Subsection 1-201(32) of the Uniform Commercial Code defines “purchase” as
Including: “taking by sale, discount, negotiation, mortgage, pledge, lien, issue or
reissue, gift, or any other voluntary transaction creating an interest in property… The
purpose of the bona fide purchaser rule is to protect innocent purchaser, and
encourage the sale and transferability of securities.”
1053. Defendants failed to provide in 2006, and continue to fail to provide in 2009,
meaningful and proper redemption and payment information and procedures for
Plaintiffs’ bonds. Defendants’ misleadingly state - that bearer bonds are “worthless”
because of “insufficient proof of ownership. But when it comes to bearer bonds
“possession is the law” and “possession is the proof”.
1054. The person or entity physically holding or in possession of the bond i.e. the bearer
is entitled to make a claim and payment. Defendants, Germany, Deutsche Bundesbank,
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Commerzbank realize the story of “looting of bonds” is false and/or unsubstantiated
and yet continue to assert it as if the “truth” - and the statements are false and
misleading when made in 2006, and now in 2009, and they were false and misleading
in 1953 when Germany misrepresented to Congress during the London Debt Accord.
1055. Additional relevant passages of the Uniform Commercial Code relative to bearer
bonds state that: “If a security is in bearer form, it is negotiated by delivery alone; any
person in possession of the security is a holder and has the right to transfer it to
another by mere delivery. Any purchaser of a security in bearer form, who takes
delivery of the security and meets the other requirements of section 8-302, will become
a bona fide purchaser. This is true even if the security is transferred to the purchaser
by the thief. To the present date, Germany and Defendants have never made any report
of any specific bonds (i.e. by description and/or serial number) being stolen. Since the
fall of Berlin, when the Russians entered the city in 1945, no German authority has
ever reported any specific bond(s) (by number) as stolen.
1056. As such, Plaintiffs and Class Members, as the legal and equitable owners of the
German gold bearer bonds at issue herein, and/or everyone in possession of German
gold bearer bonds, categorically qualifies as a bona fide purchaser, in good faith, for
value without notice of any adverse claim.
1057. Furthermore, in this case, the “pattern of racketeering activity” and the “mail and
wire fraud”, and duplicity in avoidance of bond liability, and denial of payment and
withholding of information and foreclosing of redemption, engaged in by Germany and
Defendants has become a “way of doing business”, and will not end, until a Court
orders Defendants to pay the interest and principal owing to Plaintiffs and the Class.
1058. A United States Court of law can make an order to “prevent and restrain” the
racketeering activity, and order the Defendants to redeem the bonds and make payment
as they are contractually and legally obligated to do, in order to fulfill the promises
made to the “bearers of the bonds” and to satisfy the fiduciary duties to Plaintiffs and
Class Members and to finally “end the status of default” by paying the money which is
due and owing to Plaintiffs and Class Members according to the terms of the bonds and
to which Plaintiffs and Class are clearly entitled to receive their money to the full.
1059. Plaintiffs and Class Members have endured the default and scheme to defraud by
Defendants perpetrated against them and have waited with remarkable patience for
redemption and payment of their bonds, and redemption is long overdue, and such an
order compelling the responsible and liable Defendants to redeem and pay the bonds
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with interest and principal and treble damages would be wholly justified to prevent
injustice and prevent the unjust enrichment of Defendants at the expense of innocent
bondholders who did no harm but were significantly injured and harmed by the
Defendants in their business and property.
1060. Germany has a long history of making false statements and unfounded assertions
relative to the bonds, in this case and others. E.g. In the Integrated Equities case, where
the agent of Federal Debt Office, Gilbert Pouget, submitted a misleading affidavit to
the New Jersey Court, about “stolen bonds” and an alleged “list of stolen bonds”
compiled by Germany. The statement was provided to the FBI. However, Gilbert
Pouget relied on hearsay, and none of the German agent’s statements related to any
“specific facts” about the “theft”, or how the list was “compiled”, or “when or where”
bonds were stolen, “how” they were stolen, “who” stole them, “how” were the files
prepared, who prepared the files, who has maintained the files, since they were set up,
and whether such preparation was in the ordinary course of business, and why such a
“list” has NEVER been produced?
1061. Ms. Ingrid Jaeger, Mr. Huber, Dr. Schmidt or Gierenstein, or any of the Defendants
and/or their counsel, have not produced one iota of credible evidence for their false
assertion that “300,000 bonds were looted by Russian soldiers”. The myth and
falsehood has persisted for decades - unchallenged and unchecked - but that does not
mean it is factual or true, it remains false and misleading. There is no trustworthy and
reliable evidence of any theft, only hearsay and false and unconfirmed reports.
1062. Germany also refuses to produce the “bad list” of allegedly stolen bonds in any
Court of law and refuses to produce the alleged list to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, in reality, it has none, as the records were destroyed during the war, and
this was confirmed by testimony during Senate hearings - that no “list” is available.
1063. The US State Department has also taken the position that information relative to
allegedly looted bonds is “fragmentary and inconclusive”. Germany falsely claims
that 300,000 bonds were looted, and now has a “bad list” that can conclusively identify
looted bonds. Germany has perpetrated this fraud and falsehood for decades.
1064. The German government, or its related agencies, Deutsche Bundesbank, BADV,
Landesamt fur Finanzen, etc, has never supported its contention that 300,000 bonds
were stolen, by any reliable or credible evidence. The German government continues
to fail to meet its burden to prove that bonds were stolen as it has falsely asserted to
Plaintiffs in numerous letters - to perpetuate its myth and false accounts of “looting”.
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1065. Defendants have not met their burden to show that even if bonds are arguably
stolen, that bondholders are not entitled to possession, redemption and payment of the
bonds as holders in due course, or bona fide purchasers in good faith, or legitimate
heirs, assignees. Under the Uniform Commercial Code, respected worldwide, the
presumption is that bonds are authentic and the burden is on the Germany, trustees, or
whoever alleges “looted bonds” to demonstrate that bonds are “looted” - and no one
has ever demonstrated that 300,000 have been “looted”. And even if someone could
conclusively prove that bonds had been “looted by Russians in 1945”, that does not
affect Plaintiffs and Class members and bondholders status as bona fide purchasers in
good faith, and does not impair their claims or their right to redeem the bonds or their
right to obtain payment of the of the owing principal and interest.
1066. Germany and Defendants’ failure to redeem and make payment on the bonds
constitutes a deprivation and conversion and misappropriation of Plaintiffs money and
property, and is an unlawful taking of property without due process of law.
1067. Defendants unfairly refuse to redeem or pay the bonds, and Defendants adhere to
false stories, obsolete or incompetent “validation” schemes, and misleading unilateral
declarations - none of which provide credible justification or excuse for non-payment
of the debts - and simply invite litigation to enforce the Plaintiffs’ legitimate claims.
1068.

The United States government has never officially recognized that 300,000

bonds were in fact “stolen” by Russian soldiers who entered the destroyed Reichsbank
in Berlin in 1945, as Germany has falsely contended.
1069. The Office of Foreign Assets Control, United States Treasury Department
published at 31 CFR Ch. V (7-1-92 Edition) Pages 463-469, Section 520.205 “Foreign
Scheduled Securities” and “Domestic Scheduled Securities” lists the names and serial
numbers of various bonds, and only 27 Dawes bonds, and less than a 100 bonds of
other types combined, as being on a list of “questionable” or “stolen” bonds. Germany
claims to have a list of 300,000 or more bonds allegedly “stolen”.
1070. The German claim about “theft” of bonds is false and inaccurate. Moreover,
Germany does not have any trustworthy list because the Reichsbank was in fact
destroyed, and the bonds were not there, when Russian soldiers entered Berlin in 1945.
1071.

Even, assuming arguendo, if bonds had been “stolen” and re-sold and “re-entered

circulation” and were sold in Switzerland where trade in the bonds was active for the
seven year period of 1945 (time of alleged theft) to 1953 when the London Debt
Accord came into effect, such bonds would not be subject to the “Validation scheme” .
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The “Validation Agreement of 1953” contained a provision that stated that if

bonds “re-entered circulation” they would be exempt or excluded from the Validation
requirements. Article 6, Amortization Bonds, Agreement between the Government of
the United States and the Federal Republic of Germany regarding the Validation of
Dollar Bonds of German Issue. Bonn, , February 27, 1953, TIAS 2794, Article 6,
Amortization Bonds, “(2) Paragraph (1) shall not apply to bonds which on or before
May 8, 1945, have been pledged, or deposited as collateral in favor of third parties, or
otherwise reentered circulation. Nor shall paragraph (1) apply to bonds confiscated
inside or outside Germany on or before May 8, 1945.”
1073. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiff /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action and such other relief the court deems just and proper.

COUNT XXI
REPLEVIN & SAFEKEEPING
Against all Defendants
1074. Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of
the preceding paragraphs herein this Complaint.
1075. To the extent that Plaintiffs or Class Members bonds, specific chattels, money and
personal property is readily identifiable and in wrongful possession of Defendants, the
Plaintiffs request the bonds and/or property, and money, be restored to them along with
costs, and that such property, bonds and money of Class Members or Plaintiffs, be
immediately delivered to the Court for safekeeping until conclusion of this litigation.
1076. To effect safe-keeping by the Court during the pendency of this litigation, Plaintiffs
request a preliminary list of all bonds, monies, property in possession of Defendants,
Germany or the Examining Agencies or the Corporation-Banks, Redemption and
Paying Agents and Trustees for the bonds, be immediately provided, and a list of any
bonds denied redemption and validation and reasons therefore, and a list of the so
called “bad list” of bonds Germany alleges “taken by Russian soldiers in 1945.”
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1077. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
COUNT XXII
DAMAGAS FOR VIOLATION OF THE
ALIEN TORT STATUTE 1789 - “ATS” 28 U.S.C. §1350
Against All Defendants
1078. Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of
the preceding paragraphs herein this complaint.
1079. Plaintiff Elfriede Korber, brings the action, pursuant to the Alien Tort Statute 28
USC § 1350, as she is deemed an alien for the purposes of the statute and is a resident
and national of Belgium and the statute provides that: “The District court shall have
original jurisdiction of any civil action by an alien for a tort, committed in violation of
the law of nations or a treaty of the United States.”
1080. The law of nations may be defined as a norm of international character accepted by
the civilized world, and defined with some specificity. The ATS also grants the court
jurisdiction for torts in violation of a treaty of the United States, as well as violations of
the law of nations.
1081. And Commerzbank, the “Examining Agency”/Paying Agent for the Rheinelbe
Union bonds, discriminates against bondholders, and Plaintiffs, and uses policies and
criteria which are discriminatory, arbitrary and capricious and in violation of law of
nations, - every person has the right to “freedom from discrimination” on account of
religion.
1082. Commerzbank, through its employees, Herman Stahl and/or Julius Kimmle stated
in March 2006, to Plaintiffs, via their counsel in Belgium, that “the only chance to get
bonds redeemed or paid” is if you are “Jewish”. This is contrary to law as both the
“Jewish” and “Non-Jewish” bondholders are entitled to redemption and payment.
1083. This is in violation of the specific terms and binding and obligatory international
norms; and in violation of the applicable Agreement on German External Debt 1953
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and First and Second Implementing Ordinances and the 1952 Validation Laws and
Agreements on Certain Matters regarding Dollar Bonds agreed to by Germany and the
United States, via Treaties, and in violation of (a) the law of nations, (b) the United
Nations Charter, (c) Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the (d) American
Declaration of the Rights and Duties of Man, and (e) customary international law.
1084. The rights of the Jewish and Non-Jewish bondholders are equally sacred, and all
Plaintiffs and Class members should get their bonds redeemed and paid, and their
rights and property and money should be protected, and redemption and payment of
the bonds enforced without discrimination on the basis of religion, or any other
discrimination, by the Defendants.
1085. Article 7 – Universal Declaration of Human Rights 1948 – All are equal before the
law and are entitled without any discrimination to equal protection of the law. All are
entitled to equal protection against any discrimination in violation of this
Declaration and against any incitement to such discrimination.
1086. Article 17 – Universal Declaration of Human Rights 1948 – (1) Everyone has the
right to own property alone as well as in association with others. (2) No one shall be
arbitrarily deprived of his property.
1087. Article 18 – Everyone has the right to freedom of thought, conscience, and
religion, this right includes freedom to change his religion or belief, and freedom,
either alone, or in community, with others and in public or private, to manifest his
religion, or belief, in teaching, practice, worship and observance.
1088. Defendants have violated the fundamental and universal property rights and human
rights of Plaintiffs recognized widely under the law of nations, and Defendants proceed
behind closed doors relative to redemption process, and do not allow access to
Plaintiffs and Class members to their bonds, if submitted, and do not allow the
presence of Plaintiffs own experts for authentication, and the Defendants do not
provide the names of supposed “experts” who review the bonds, or their competency,
and the “Examining Agency” is incompetent, and unwilling and cannot validate bonds.
1089. The typical elements prohibiting religious discrimination under the law of nations
and/or the actionable torts under the treaty and misrepresentation have been met herein.
Defendants have committed torts, in violation of the law of nations and/or in violation
of the United States treaties with Germany – the Agreement on German External Debt
1953 (A/K/A as the London Debt Accord 1953) The Second Implementing Ordinance
1953, Agreement regarding certain matters on Validation of Dollar Bonds 1953.
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1090. As such the Alien Tort Statute applies and jurisdiction is valid and the causes of
action herein permissible and prudential consideration and fairness and justice and
right of redemption for the bondholders militate in favor of allowing the causes of
action herein and providing remedy for the injured Plaintiffs.
1091. The Defendants have committed various torts, including but not limited to, fraud
and negligent misrepresentations, religious discrimination, among other egregious
torts, in violation the terms of the treaties and/or laws of nations.
1092. The Defendants fraudulent statements about the “Validation Board” have been
squarely refuted by Ms. Ingrid Jaeger of the BADV in Berlin Prufstelle for
Auslandbonds des Deutschen Reichs, Bundesamt fur Zentrale Dienste und offene
Vermogensfragen, in an email letter to Plaintiffs’ counsel dated 11 May 2009.
1093. There is no comparable entity to the now defunct “Validation Boards” and no
competent authority of any kind, and no viable entity in Germany for “validation” of
bonds. There is No viable or competent “Zivilkammer” in Germany for validation,
redemption, and payment of the bonds and there is no viable or proper procedure
available for bondholders or Plaintiffs.
1094. There is no competent entity, agency or any department of the Federal Republic of
Germany, whether judicial, administrative, or executive, for the “validation” of the
bonds in Germany; and there is no competent Chamber for Settlement of Securities for
the German bonds; and there is no viable or competent “Examining Agency” which is
capable of “validating” any bonds in Germany or otherwise.
1095. There is no competent entity or agency in Germany for validation of bonds,
whether administrative, judicial, or executive (and there is no “Validation Board” in
the United States or Germany or elsewhere).
1096. There is no viable procedure for validation, no “validation boards” in the US or
Germany, and there is no competent authority in Germany for the purpose of
“validation” of bonds, as required by the Treaty 1953.
1097. The bonds are redeemable and payable directly in the United States according to
the terms of the bonds and Defendants are responsible for redemption and payment of
the bonds according to the full value of the bonds and the terms of the debts in the
United States.
1098. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
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the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.
COUNT XXIII
DAMAGES FOR VIOLATIONS OF 18 U.S.C. §1001 and
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 11
Against Defendants
Commerzbank, JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, UBS, Bank of New York Mellon,
Mizuho, Schroders, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank Ag/Deutsche Bankers Trust
1099. Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of
the preceding paragraphs herein this Complaint.
1100. Defendants made false statements and misrepresentations in judicial
proceedings as described herein, and are in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1001 which
provides that:
“Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of any department or
agency of the United States knowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals, or covers
up, by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact, or makes any false, fictitious,
or fraudulent statements or representations, or makes or uses any false writing or
document knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious, or fraudulent
statement or entry, shall be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned not more
than 5 years, or both.”
1101. The Reply Memorandum in Further Support of Defendants Joint Motion to Dismiss
(Document 67, filed 05/08/2009, Page 3) filed by Defendants’ contains
misrepresentations and misleading statements directed to the Plaintiffs by all the
Defendants in their Reply brief and directed to the court in the documents filed.
1102. The misrepresentation of material fact and false and misleading statement was
made by Defendants Commerzbank, JP Morgan Chase, Citibank, UBS, Bank of
New York Mellon, Mizuho, Schroders, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank, Deutsche
Bank/Bankers Trust, and the false and fraudulent statement was contained in a
document used by Defendants in a “matter within a department or agency of the United
States” i.e. the United States Federal Court, and was knowingly and willfully done to
cover up material facts by making fraudulent statements and misrepresentations that:
“Nevertheless, the Validation Board still exists in the Federal Republic of Germany”.
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1103. The Defendants’ joint Reply brief and joint Memorandum in support of the motion
to dismiss, are documents signed and/or joined in by all Defendants, or their attorneys,
who have collectively, falsely stated, misrepresented and/or misled Plaintiffs and the
court - by Defendants stating that -“Nevertheless, the Validation Board still exists in
Germany,” in order to deceive the Plaintiffs or bondholders and to trick them to submit
their bonds to Germany – where the bonds would be misappropriated, denied,
tampered with, voided, confiscated, perforated, by the Germans.
1104. There can be no doubt that Defendants knew that the “VALIDATION BOARD”
does not exist - and yet Defendants insisted and falsely stated that it does exist - in
their filed joint document – in order to deceive and mislead the court and the Plaintiffs.
1105. The contention by Defendants that the “Validation Board” exists in Germany was
false and unwarranted and demonstrates willful conduct, of fraud, and also constitutes
mail and wire fraud - as there can be no confusion by the Defendants, or their
respective counsel, between the “Validation Board” and the “Examining Agency”,
because the Defendants know the entities are completely different in composition,
procedure, members, authority and ability to “validate”. The Examining Agency has no
authority and lacks competency to validate bonds.
1106. There is no “Validation Board, and there is no entity equivalent to it, which has the
procedures, composition and membership and fairness of the “Validation Board”, and
as such, the misrepresentations to the court by Defendants about the existence of
“Validation Boards” in Germany, filed and signed documents, are not only misleading
and deceitful – but violate Rule 11(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
1107. Rule 11 is intended to protect the integrity of the legal system and courts cannot
function properly if litigants or their representatives are not forthright. It is part of the
lawyer’s overall obligation to the court and the judicial system to help the system
function properly to achieve the just resolution of controversies; and which is meant in
some small degree to enlist the bar in the enterprise of administering the law, thereby
making it more difficult for the strong or wealthy, to use the very costs of the legal
system to undermine its objectives. The certification in Rule 11 is deemed to be made
whenever a pleading is presented to the court. This includes when it is signed,
submitted, filed, and when it is later advocated.
1108. On the one hand, the Defendants describe the “Validation Board” in detail their
Joint Memorandum to Dismiss (filed March 27, 2009) - as having three members “one American, one German and one acting as “umpire”. The Validation Board used
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to be in New York (in the territorial jurisdiction of the United States as required by the
treaty) and had proceedings in English (as required by the Treaty 1953 and Second
Implementing Ordinance), but the “Validation Board” was improperly shut down by
Germany, to try and force bondholders to go to Germany for “validation” and thus
constitutes breach of the 1953 Treaty and the Second Implementing Ordinance.
1109. On the other hand, the alleged “Examining Agency”(such as Landesamt Dienstelle
Munich, Prufstelle in Berlin, Commerzbank in Frankfurt, Dresdner Bank in
Dusseldorf) have Germans, and no American, and no neutral as “umpire” and
conduct proceedings in German only. The “Examining Agency” Refuse to Conduct
Proceedings in English, Refuse to identify its “Examining Agents”, and Refuse to
provide insurance or security for bonds that are lost, damaged or voided improperly.
1110. The Defendants’ designated counsel signed the pleadings and memorandum and
Reply as a joint group. The Defendants’ false and misleading statements to Plaintiffs
and the Court cannot be inadvertent - as it was made by sophisticated Defendants governments, or related agencies, banks and financial institutions - and was made, sent,
filed, used and transmitted by learned and experienced counsel - in these judicial
proceedings in the United States federal court, and Defenadnts jointly and falsely
asserted and insisted that “Validation Board exists in Germany” – when it does notin order to deceive plaintiffs and mislead the court - in order to support their improper
arguments about the “necessity” of “validation” with a “Validation Board”- that is
obsolete – and in order to improperly restrict and materially infringe on Plaintiffs rights
and to deceptively bolster the Defendants’ false argument of “validation” of bonds in
Germany - before Plaintiffs can make claim in United States federal court.
1111. The terms of the bonds are payable to the bearer and do not require bondholders
prove that the bonds were located outside Germany in 1945 as “bonds held abroad”.
It is totally irrelevant where the bonds “were held”, whether “abroad” or otherwise –
and bearer bonds are payable to the person or entity in possession of the bonds. In
terms of bearer bonds, “possession is the law”, and “possession is the proof”. Nothing
further is required. Bonds are deemed and presumed authentic and moreover have
been authenticated by experts by the Plaintiffs.
1112. Defendants also misrepresented in these judicial proceedings and falsely asserted
that a “theft of bonds by Russian soldiers in 1945” (which did not happen and there is
no proof of that) and that Plaintiffs or bondholders must show “where the bonds were
in 1945 outside Germany” and based on this false story.
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1113. The Defendants’ have made their false statements, false accounts, and conducted a
campaign of continuous deceit, mendacity and misrepresentations in (a) letters and/or
wires and/or emails and/or faxes addressed to bondholders and Plaintiffs, and (b) in
document filings in this court by Defendants, e.g. Memorandum of Law of Defendants
in Support of Joint Motion to Dismiss (Document 62 - filed 03/27/2009, Page 7, 8 –
misrepresentations about “looted bonds”).
1114. Due to the Defendants misconduct to foreclose redemption, and misrepresentations
and false “Validation” schemes, the Plaintiffs and Class Members were unable to get
their bonds redeemed or paid and had to expend resources and money - in order to
satisfy spurious and capricious and bogus requirements - such as to demonstrate where
the bonds were in 1945 outside Germany - which are nowhere to be found in the terms
of the “bearer” bonds. All of the bonds are payable to the bearer and have no
requirement of “proof of ownership” of the bonds “outside Berlin in 1945”.
1115. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.

COUNT XXIV
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
Against Germany and Commerzbank and Defendants

1116. Plaintiffs repeat and incorporate herein, as though fully set forth, the allegations of
the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
1117. Defendants have engaged in (a) extreme and outrageous conduct (b) with intent
and/or recklessness, (c) and have caused, (d) severe emotional distress to Plaintiffs and
Class Members, such as Elfriede Korber.
1118. Germany and Commerzbank have acted with tortious intent to inflict severe
emotional distress upon Plaintiffs, and their misconduct is characterized by intentional
malice.
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1119. Germany’s misconduct includes over 50 years of fraud and default, and such a
degree of aggravation, goes beyond all possible bounds of decency, and is extreme in
character, and can be regarded as atrocious and utterly intolerable in a civilized society.
1120. For example Germany, Deutsche Bundesbank, German Finance Ministry and
Commerzbank set out to deliberately defraud an elderly and infirm woman of 80 years
of age, and to deliberately injure and inflict emotional distress upon Plaintiff Elfriede
Korber, after she had waited years for redemption and payment of her bonds, by (a)
falsely claiming “looting of bonds” and (b) falsely requiring spurious and artificial
conditions under their “validation” scheme, and (c) falsely promising her payment of
her bonds, and(d) falsely making her deposit her bonds in Commerzbank Dusseldorf for one year and a half , and (e) pretending as if they had the “competency” to
validate bonds and/or pretending they had the “intention” to redeem and pay her
bonds, and (f) by falsely stating that money would be paid to her account at
Commerzbank, and (g) causing her to incur huge financial costs, and she estimates she
spent over the years in excess of 100,000 USD in trying to get her bonds redeemed and
in trying to demonstrate that her BEARER bonds were “outside Germany in 1945” and
obtaining experts authentication and valuation of her bonds, and (h) then Germany
and/or Deutsche Bundesbank, and/or German Finance Ministry, and Commerzbank Ag
cruelly and intentionally denying her redemption and payment of her bonds for no
legitimate reason, and without providing any written explanation, materially infringing
the redemption process, violating her rights and causing her severe emotional distress.
1121. Moreover, Commerzbank falsely stated in March 2006 to Plaintiffs, that in order to
have any chance of payment, a bondholder had to be “Jewish”, knowing that was false
and misleading; and knowing that “Examining Agencies” had a history of defrauding
even the “Jewish” bondholders, some of whom consist of holocaust victims.
1122. And in 2009, Commerzbank and Defendants falsely stated in judicial proceedings
that “Validation Board” exists in Germany - when it is obsolete – and does not exist in
Germany or the United States - and finally BADV/Prufstelle in Berlin, admitting in a
letter to Plaintiffs’ counsel, on May 11, 2009, that “There are no more validation
boards” and that “Examining Agencies” are incompetent for the purpose of
“validation” – and this after decades of deception by Germany and Defendants relative
to the “validation” schemes in the past and present.
1123. These actions can only be characterized as “outrageous” and have caused severe
emotional distress to Plaintiffs, in particular Elfriede Korber.
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1124. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, demand a jury trial,
damages and judgment against defendants jointly severally and/or individually for (i)
damages which the PLAINTIFFS and CLASS MEMBERS, shall leave to determination of
the ultimate Trier of fact, which should be permitted to award Plaintiffs /Class Members in
HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS and (ii) restitution from , and institution
of a constructive trust, disgorging all profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained
by Defendants, interest, attorneys' fees, exemplary or punitive damages, and costs of
action, and such other relief as the court deems just and proper.

CONCLUSION

1125. Defendants, as makers, issuers, sellers, fiduciaries, obligors, trustees, guarantors,
redemption and paying agents on the bonds, have fiduciary and pecuniary and
contractual obligations to redeem the bonds and pay Plaintiffs according to the terms of
the bonds - payment of principal and interest - and Defendants’ are jointly or severally
liable for redemption and payment of the bonds.
1126. Defendants have deprived Plaintiffs and Class Members of redemption and
payment of their bonds, and caused forfeiture of the Plaintiffs legitimate claims, and
Defendants have not paid Plaintiffs who invested and advanced to Defendants
hundreds of millions of dollars in purchase of the bonds.
1127. No matter when or where they obtained their bearer bonds, the Plaintiffs’ and Class
Members’ rights to redemption and payment of their bonds are equally due and equally
sacred. The Plaintiffs’ and Class Members’ fundamental property rights, and rights to
redemption and payment of their bonds, and universal rights as humans to be free from
discrimination, are as sacred as the laws of God, and requires the force of law and
public justice to protect it, and to prevent the unjust enrichment of Germany and
Defendants at the expense of innocent bondholders
1128. Defendants designed, marketed and sold the German gold bearer bonds to
investors, bondholders in America and worldwide, and then subsequently Defendants’
breached their fiduciary and contractual obligations, and defaulted on their redemption
and payment obligations, and failed to pay the interest and principal.
1129. Defendants greatly benefited and profited from the sale of the bonds in the
financial markets, and were unjustly enriched at the expense of Plaintiffs and Class
Members. Despite Defendants’ protestations about being haled into court, it is not the
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hundreds of thousands or millions of innocent investors who are responsible for the
outstanding default on payment of bonds and ongoing fraud.
1130. Defendants have negligently or intentionally misrepresented facts, and failed to
provide the proper and meaningful redemption and payment procedures on the bonds.
Defendants have misappropriated or converted bonds, and/or have unlawfully withheld
payment thereof, and refused legitimate redemption and payment of bonds.
Defendants have produced this extremely wrongful situation which entitles Plaintiffs to
relief.
1131. We would not be here today had the Defendants respected their responsibilities to
redeem and pay the bonds and to end the status of default pursuant to the terms of the
debts. Defendants’ misconduct has engendered this protracted litigation, and their
continued failure of redemption and payment on the Plaintiffs’ bonds. This matter is
vitally important for Plaintiffs, many of whom are elderly and infirm, and have
suffered ruin, and sustained real financial losses, due to Defendants harmful actions.
1132. This Class Action is the most effective way to bring finality - for Plaintiffs
redemption and payment, and for Defendants resolution of all claims - in light of the
magnitude of injuries to a large number of Plaintiffs and Class Members, which has led
to the need for nationally and/or internationally applicable remedies.
1133. As a factual matter, and as the Plaintiffs will establish, every single outstanding
bond subject to this litigation, is redeemable, enforceable, collectible, and payable, and
these German gold-dollar bearer bonds which contain definite Gold Clause payment
terms, have extremely high value. Unlike other bonds with the names of owners
therein, the German Gold Bearer bonds are payable to the “bearer”, i.e. the individual
or entity in possession of the bonds, and the anonymity of the owner, and portability
and negotiability of the bearer bonds, and their high value, make them attractive
financial instruments. Under these circumstances, of the German Gold bonds being
“bearer” bonds - “possession is the law”, and “possession is the proof”.
1134. Neither common sense, nor the law, requires Plaintiffs, investors and bondholders,
to suffer indefinitely due to Defendants’ default and fraud, and/or to be saddled for
eternity with unredeemed or unpaid bonds. Neither common sense, nor the law, nor
the bonds, nor the Treaties, nor the Uniform Commercial Code, require Plaintiffs’ to
prove “where the bonds were located in 1945”, or to be “Jewish”, or to subscribe to an
incorrect, obsolete and/or incompetent and/or fraudulent - Validation Board” and/or
“Examining Agency”.
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1135. Many bondholders are in fact Jewish, and they, as well as others who are not
Jewish, are entitled to redemption and payment of their bonds by Germany, and its
agencies, and by Defendants, issuing banks, trustees, redemption and paying agents.
1136. Plaintiffs who purchased the bonds from Defendants and paid substantial money
for the bonds, and for qualities and features in the bonds, such as the Gold payment
clauses, are entitled to the benefits of their bonds, and have the right to receive full
redemption, and value, and payment.
1137. Plaintiffs and Class Members have sustained real pecuniary and financial harm as a
proximate cause and by reason of Defendants violations of law and they have been
injured in their business or property. Plaintiffs have been forced to bear financial
losses resulting from Defendants default, fraud and misrepresentations, and are being
forced against their will, and against the law and terms of the debts and bonds and
applicable treaties, to go to Germany to present claims, for redemption and payment of
their bonds to incompetent and fraudulent entities which are not capable of validating
bonds and to incur costs of experts or lawyers or others and losses and/or court costs or
fees, and substantial waste of money and time in Germany. Plaintiffs have been
injured in their property or business by the Defendants RICO violations and the
Defendants’ tampering or voiding or confiscation or misappropriation of their bonds
and property by the secretive and fraudulent “examining agencies.
1138. The Defendants’ are engaged in continuous misrepresentations, misleading
statements, and suppression of critical information and fraudulent conduct intending to
deceive bondholders and plaintiffs, and deprive them of the redemption of their bonds
and deny them legitimate payment of principal and interest and the Defendants failure
to maintain proper, viable, secure, fair and neutral validation procedures, and their
failure to maintain a competent “Examining Agency” and failure to maintain fair
“Validation Board” in the territorial jurisdiction of the United States as required by law
and the 1953 Treaty and Second Implementing Ordinance.
1139. Plaintiffs have been injured in their business or property, because of Defendants’
actions in understating the value of the bonds, prohibiting payment, causing loss of
money, profits, revenues etc. to Plaintiffs and bondholders, and also Plaintiffs have
been injured in their business or property by Defendants voiding, marking improperly,
or tampering with, or losing or damaging Plaintiffs’ bonds or coupons, and/or
depriving Plaintiffs of their bonds, either maliciously, intentionally, and/or fraudulently
or by conversion, or by Defendants’ gross negligence; and/or under false pretenses.
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1140. Defendants have engaged in pattern of racketeering activity and offenses such as
mail and wire fraud in a scheme or artifice to defraud plaintiffs, class members,
bondholders, courts, and to deny redemption and payment of the bonds, for decades and
continue to engage in the same course of conduct which goes on unchecked and poses
a threat of continued illegal and criminal activity in the future. The scheme to defraud
involved intentional misrepresentations, and deception intentionally practiced to induce
Plaintiffs, Class members, bondholders, to part with property or to surrender legal
rights, or to deprive of redemption and payment of interest and principal on bonds.
1141. Germany and Defendants have significant obligations and debts, in the hundreds of
millions of dollars, and money they owe to Plaintiffs and Class Members, and so far,
“by hook or by crook” have refused to meet their obligations for redemption and
payment of the bonds and have failed to pay the debts. Plaintiffs, Class members
simply want their bonds redeemed and paid by the responsible parties, and to obtain
their money according to full specified amount of principal and interest, that they are
entitled to receive, pursuant to the terms of the bearer bonds.
1142. This unlawful conduct of Defendants has persisted for decades and is ongoing and
open ended and with no end in sight and will project into the future and no redemption
or payment will ever be forthcoming unless the court orders the Defendants to abide by
their obligations, and respect their responsibilities.
1143. Defendants have failed to honor their obligations and to pay the debts and have
maintained the status of default on the bonds contrary to the express objectives of the
treaty and the bonds. Defendants have maintained unjust enrichment and the scheme to
defraud, and there are hundreds of thousands of victims over a sustained period of time.
1144. Defendants have improperly insisted on a bogus “validation scheme” before
redemption and payment of bonds. Herbert F. Boynton clarified the rights of
bondholders under the London Debt Accord 1953 during Senate Hearings regarding the
treaty and settlement proposal and “Validation” requirements being offered. Boynton
testified that: “The Committee is required only to recommend such an offer of
settlement to bondholders. It has no authority to obligate a creditor to accept. The
decision to accept or reject is left entirely to the bondholder himself…A creditor does
not have to accept such an offer unless he sees fit.” Testimony of Herbert F. Boynton United States Committee for German Corporate Dollar Bonds at the Hearings before the
Committee on Foreign Relations - United States Senate Eighty Third (83rd) Congress
First Session on Executives D, E, F, and G dated June 17 and 18, 1953, P. 150.
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1145. The Plaintiffs did not accept the “offer” for “pennies on the dollar” proposed, and
had the right to wait until they could obtain the full specified amount on their bearer
bonds under the gold clause, and to obtain due principal and interest.
1146. Further testimony in the Senate Hearings before ratification of the 1953 Treaty
included a question by Senator Green: “In other words, this is the first time that
Congress has been asked to ratify an agreement whereby some American bondholders
will be deprived of his rights?” And the answer by James Rogers of the Executive
Committee of the Foreign Bondholders Protective Committee was: “Well, technically
they are not deprived under this agreement. It provides that the bondholder shall have
the same rights as before, if he did not accept.” United States Senate 83 rd Congress
First Session on Executives D, E, F, G dated June 17 & 18, 1953 p. 110.
1147. In April 10, 1953, the President of the United States of America, Dwight D.
Eisenhower, sent a Message from the President to SENATE, Enclosure 7(a) annexed to
the Hearings before the Committee on Foreign Relations - United States Senate Eighty
Third (83rd) Congress First Session on Executives D, E, F, G, June 17,18, 1953, P.204:
PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES - DWIGHT D. EISENHOWER stated:
“It is important to note that the Agreement does not nullify the legal rights of creditors.
Moreover, their right to sue in Non-German courts is not impaired.”
1148. The President of the United States of America, as the primary “Treaty Maker” who
has the exclusive power to negotiate and make treaties with other nations on behalf of the
United States, and to send the treaty for the advice and consent of the Senate before
ratification - makes it clear in his message to the Senate that 1953 Agreement on
German External Debt, (and/or related treaties, Second Implementing Ordinance,
Agreement regarding Certain Matters on Validation of Dollar Bonds) protects rights of
Plaintiffs and bondholders and creditors.
1149.

The American President, Dwight Eisenhower, expressly stated that

the 1953 Treaty with Germany does not nullify the legal rights of creditors, and their
right to sue in Non-German courts (which. includes the United States federal court) - is
not impaired and the right to sue is expressly preserved under the treaty, as
acknowledged and emphasized by the United States President.
1150.

This primary and affirmative right of the Plaintiffs to sue and take

legal action in the United States federal courts for violations of the applicable treaties and
for claims relative to bonds and violations of Agreement on German External Debt 1953,
is protected and preserved under the treaty and affirmed by the President of the United
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States of America. Plaintiffs and Class members’ rights are explicitly protected under
the treaty which is accorded the same force as federal statutes under the law of the land.
1151.

Under Article III of the United States Constitution, permits this

Courts’ jurisdiction herein, as “the Judicial power shall extend to all cases in Law and
Equity, arising under this Constitution, the Laws of the United States, and Treaties
made, or which shall be made, under their Authority…”

PRAYER FOR RELIEF AND JUDGMENT
WHEREFORE PLAINTIFFS, on behalf of themselves, and all others similarly
situated, and CLASS MEMBERS, pray for relief and demand judgment against
DEFENDANTS as follows:

a) An order certifying the proposed plaintiff Class, designating Plaintiffs as named
representatives of the Class, and designating the undersigned as Class Counsel;
b) A judgment for the full amount of all outstanding and unpaid principal and
interest, including but not limited to compound interest, due on the bonds in
equivalent value of gold coin of the United States in the HUNDREDS OF
MILLIONS of DOLLARS, estimated at $2,000, 000 (Two Million USD) per
bond, and/or greater amount, to be proven at trial;
c) An award of pre-judgment and post judgment interest, attorneys’ fees, and costs
of this action;
d) Punitive, exemplary, and/or treble damages;
e) An order enjoining Defendants from further deceptive practices with respect to
redemption or payment of the bonds and declaration that Defendants provide
suitable redemption and payment procedures for Plaintiffs and bondholders;
f) A declaration that Defendants must disgorge, for the benefit of the class, all or
part of the ill gotten financial gains, or profits they received from the selling of
the bonds, or from the denial of payment of the bonds, or to make full restitution
to Plaintiffs and Class Members;
g) An award to Plaintiff and the Class of compensatory and/or exemplary damages
and/or statutory damages, and and/or treble damages, and/or interest thereon.
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h) A declaration that Defendants institute proper, adequate, meaningful and
efficient redemption and payment procedures for Class Members and that
Defendants are financially responsible for notifying all Class Members of this
action and the availability of proper redemption and payment procedures for
their bonds.
i) Such further relief as the Court deems just and proper.
Dated:

September 17, 2009

Respectfully submitted,

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS
And Proposed Class Members
/s/ Hassan A. Abbas
Hassan A. Abbas
Attorney and Counselor at Law
Illinois A.R.D.C. No. 6206474
Hoveniersstraat 2,Suite 232-Box 344
Antwerp 2018 Belgium
Tel. 323 233 3910 Fax 323 233 9767
Email : hassanabbas@telenet.be
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Certificate of Service
The undersigned counsel hereby certifies that he caused the foregoing
PLAINTIFFS RICHARD BLEIER, ELFRIEDE KORBER
CHRISTOPHER MARK - SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT AND
CLASS ACTION - to be served upon the Parties and Counsel of Record via the
Court’s CM/ECF on this date 17th September 2009.
Respectfully submitted,
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS
And Proposed Class Members
/s/ Hassan A. Abbas
Hassan A. Abbas
Attorney and Counselor at Law
Illinois A.R.D.C. No. 6206474
Hoveniersstraat 2,Suite 232-Box 344
Antwerp 2018 Belgium
Tel. 323 233 3910 Fax 323 233 9767
Email : hassanabbas@telenet.be
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